

BRAIN QUICK Software User Manual

Document Number: BQS-UM-001 Document Revision: H Date: 8 July 2024

MICROMED | via Giotto 2 | 31021 Mogliano Veneto | Treviso, ITALY micromed@micromedgroup.com | tel. +39-041-5937000 | fax +39-041-5937011

Table of Contents

GENERAL INTRODUCTION	9
Introduction	9
System Requirements	10
Intended Use	10
Intended users	
Additional Information	11
GENERAL PRECAUTIONS AND WARNINGS	12
Responsibility	
BRAIN QUICK Software Configuration	
Data Safety	12
Data acquisition and analysis	13
Cybersecurity	13
HIPAA and GDPR compliance	0
ARCHIVE – FILE MANAGER SOFTWARE	15
About FILE MANAGER	15
Access to the Software	15
Windows User Access	15
Authenticated Access	15
Emergency Logon	16
User Permissions	17
Working Configuration and Operating Mode	18
Operating Mode	
Working Online	19
Working Offline	19
Main Window	20
Basic Overview	20
View Pane and Layouts	21
Patients List	26
Exams List	27
Exam	28
File	29
Visit	30
Resources List	31
Ribbon Bar	33
Home Tab	33
View Tab	42
Setup Tab	47
Help Tab	51
Brain Quick Tab	51
Neurowerk Tab	53
	53
	54
Neurowerk EINIG Tab	55
Application Button	56

Title Bar	58
Quick Access Toolbar	59
Status Bar	59
Data Assass Descurres Configuration	50
Data Access: Resources Computation	59
	61
Filtering View	63
Filtering on Patients	64
Filtering on Studies	65
Filtering on files	66
Active Filters	
Saving Filters	68
Patient Quick Search	69
Basic Operations	70
Basic Operations on Patients	70
Operations on Multiple patients' selection	72
Direct Patient Info Editing	72
Concurrency	73
Basic Operations on Exams	73
Direct Exam Info Editing – Exam level	77
Concurrency	78
Basic Operations on Multiple Exams	78
Basic Operations on Exams Files	80
Direct File Info Editing - File level	81
Concurrency	82
Basic Operations on Visit	83
Show Overview	83
Advanced Eunctionalities	84
Morge Patients	8 4 84
Reassign Patient	04 25
Audit Trailing and Log Search	05
Audit Log Search	00 87
HL7 Integration	88
HIS Requests Workflow	88
Import of HIS Requests into the Archive	88
Working List panel	88
Importing HL/ Request	90
Report Export to HIS	92
Patient Update and Patients Merge Requests	94
Patient Info Update	95
Patients Merge	95
	96
Exam Done	97
Multiple requests management	97
	58
EEG Recording from Archive	99
EEG Review from Archive	100
EEG REPORT CREATION from Archive	100
Firmware Update	100
Ambulatory Data Download	101
Data Download form Device	101

Data Download from File	104
Importing Studies and Files	106
How to Import a Study	106
How to Import a File	107
How to Import a Report	108
How to Import a Video	109
How To Import EDF File	110
How To Import BDF File	111
Settings	111
Display Settings	
User Settings	112
Machine Settings	113
Central Settings	114
Language and Internationalization	115
Archive Settings	115
User Settings	115
Central Settings	116
Acquisition List Settings	116
Machine Settings	116
Central Settings	117
Licensing	117
Logging Preferences	
Log settings	118
Audit Log Settings	119
Lockdown Preferences	119
Labels Customization	119
Patient	120
Exam	121
File	121
Visit	122
HIS Settings (HL7 Interface)	122
Settings Centralization	122
EG MODULE – BRAIN QUICK SOFTWARE	125
Main Window Basic Elements	125
Title Bar	
Ribbon Bar	126
Home Tab	127
Montage Tab	128
Navigation Tab	128
Events Tab	128
HEO Tab	129
Analyze tab	129
Reduction Tab	129
Window Tab	129
Help Tab	130
Application button	130
Ouick Access Toolbar	130
Ribbon customization window	130
Time Bar	131
FFG Signal Window	132
View Customization	13
Duplicate And Lock	13 13/
Signal reference	1313-
	100
EEG Review	138

Navigation	138
Video Review	139
Video Play	140
Print	141
How to Print an EEG on Paper	141
Export	143
Export to Ascii	143
Export to Edf+	144
Export events	145
Export Analyzer data	146
EEG Acquisition	147
Acquisition Protocol Window	148
Headbox properties	149
Video properties	149
Default programs	150
Quick channels selection	150
Connect	150
Acquisition Window	152
Check Impedance	153
Status Control Panel	155
Chronometer	155
Photic Stimulation	156
Cortical Stimulation	158
Note setup	160
Trigger Setup	161
Montages and eeg visualization	162
Montage Setup Window	102
Groups	103
	104
Montage View	105
700m	100
Electrode Position	107
	10,
Events	
Events Description	170
Move an Event	173
Edit an Event	173
Delete an Event	173
Notes	174
Insert Notes	175
Move a Note	176
Edit a Note	176
Delete a Note	176
Selections	177
Insert Selections	178
Move a Selection	179
Resize a Selection	179
Delete a Selection	179
Annotations	180
Insert Annotations	180
Collapse or Expand an Annotation	181
Move an Annotation	182
Edit an Annotation	182
Delete an Annotation	182
Digital Triggers	183
Insert Digital Triggers	184

Move a Digital Trigger	184
Edit a Digital Trigger	184
Delete a Digital Trigger	185
HFO Events	185
Insert HFO Events	186
Move a HFO Event	188
Resize a HFO Event	189
Delete a HFO event	189
HFO Events Visibility	189
HFO Statistics	189
Custom Events	190
External Calculation	194
Events Panel	196
Jump to Event	197
Sort	197
Reordering the Column Headers	197
Delete	197
Filter	197
Visualization Settings	199
Local Event Manager	199
Amplifier button and patient button	200
Analyzer threshold alarm	200
Measure Cursors	201
Distance Cursor	201
Buler Measure Cursor	201
Standard Measure Cursor	201
	202
	203
Analyzer	206
Analyzer Data Processing	206
Introduction	206
Data Processing Scheme	206
Spectral Analysis	207
Signal Conditioning (Pre-Processing)	208
Signal Referencing	209
Signal Recombination	209
Signal Filtering	210
Period of Calculation	210
Interval Type	210
Parameter List	210
Analyzer Protocols	211
PSD-Power Spectral Density	211
Absolute Power	211
Relative Power	211
Spectral Edge Frequency (SEF)	211
Peak Frequency (PF)	212
Main Dominant Frequency (MDF)	212
Median Frequency	212
Burst Suppression Ratio (BSR)	213
Inter Burst Interval - IBI	213
Average Coherence	213
Signal Value	213
IAEEG (Integrated Amplitude EEG)	213
User Index	213
Tachogram in bpm	214
Tachogram in sec	214

How to perform EEG Analysis	214
EEG Analyzer panel	215
EEG Analyzer Protocol Setup	217
Layouts	218
Trend List	221
Channel List	225
Frequency Bands	225
User Indexes	226
Maps	227
Map Description	227
Amplitude Maps	227
Amplitude Maps Settings	
3D Amplitude Maps	
Frequency Maps	229
Frequency Maps Settings	230
3D Frequency Maps	230
Posstion Monitor	221
How to perform Protection Manitor ANALYSIS	231
	231
Data Average	233
How to perform Data Average Analysis	234
Data Average Parameters	235
Processing Interval	235
Trigger Type	236
Sweep Length	237
Pre-processing	237
Rejection	237
Post-processing	237
View parameters	238
Trace Export	238
Calculation Report	238
Background Reduction	240
EEG Reduction in Background	240
DEDODT	244
REFORT	244
	244244
Anamnesis	244 245
How to create a new report Model?	245
Report Editor	245
Benort Window	240
Report Dictation	210
ADVANCED FEATURES and CONFIGURATION	253
User Management	253
Micromed Suite	253
Logon System Configuration	253
Active Directory Integration	254
Active Directory Configuration	254
Users Database Configuration	255
Adding a new user	256
Customizing Roles	257
Generic Password Setup	258
Suctom 08 SOL Managar	
System 35 SQL Wanager	258
Creating a Patient Database	258

Adding new Windows user to SQL Server	259
Other Functionalities Available	259
Key Updater	261
Updating Keys	262
Creating Software Keys	263
Appendix	265
Shortcuts	265
Terminology	265
HFO	266

GENERAL INTRODUCTION

INTRODUCTION

BRAIN QUICK SOFTWARE is the software that handles all of Micromed acquisition and Review systems for EEG, EMG and EP, which means that according to the enabled key options, BRAIN QUICK SOFTWARE integrates all types of exams in a single application, such as:

- EEG
- Video EEG
- Long term monitoring of Epilepsy Stereo EEG
- Ambulatory EEG/PSG
- EEG Recording during functional MRI
- Electromyography
- Evoked Potentials
- Intra-Operative Monitoring

The configurations are opened towards external systems and are organized according to the criteria of maximum working flexibility. The single archive and project design guarantee that all the standard activities of Acquisition, Review, Analysis, Report and Archive of all exams can be managed in a single unit or on several systems distributed over a network. The program has been designed to be offered in various performance/feature levels. Hence, some of the features described in the present manual could be not available on the software installed on your system.

This document includes updated features available from BRAIN QUICK SOFTWARE version 3.05.

It is intended to manage the following hardware devices:

- SD PLUS FLEXI amplifier
- SD PLUS FLEXI HIGHRATE amplifier
- SD PLUS FLEXI CLINIC amplifier
- SD PLUS RESEARCH amplifier
- MORPHEUS amplifier
- BRAIN SPY PLUS amplifier
- SD LTM 32 PLUS, SD LTM 64 PLUS amplifiers
- SD LTM 32 EXPRESS, SD LTM 64 EXPRESS amplifiers
- SD LTM STIM cortical stimulator
- BQ NET POE M interface
- BQ NET POE 2 interface
- **BQ NET POE PLUS** interface
- **BQ USB** interface
- **BQ USB EXPRESS** interface
- BQ USB PLUS interface
- **BQ USB MULTI** interface
- **BOX TERMINAL EXPRESS** interface
- BOX TERMINAL MULTI interface

This manual describes the functionality of the software and how to carry out the examination programs for neurophysiologic studies.

SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS

PROCESSOR: Intel® i7 minimum, 2.1 GHz or faster MEMORY: 16 GB RAM minimum HARD DISK: 512 Gb minimum OPERATING SYSTEM: Windows 10 – 64bit DISPLAY: 22" minimum SCREEN RESOLUTION: 1920x1080 minimum (FullHD aspect ratio 16:9) NETWORK CARD: 1Gb OUTPUT PERIPHERALS: Any display meeting IEC 60950 requirements and printer supported by the installed operating system. NETWORK: Systems meant to be connected to the local network will need an Ethernet cord with RJ45 connector. INPUT PORT FOR USB CONNECTION

If Brain Quick software shall be installed in a Citrix environment, the server shall satisfy the following minimum specifications:

PROCESSOR: 4 vCPUs OPERATING SYSTEM: Windows Server 2016 (10.0.14393) minimum MINIMUM CITRIX XENAPP/VAD VERSION: 7 (1903.1) minimum MEMORY: 16 GB RAM minimum HARD DRIVE STORAGE (USABLE): 80 GB OS minimum and 40 GB App (Optional) OPERATING SYSTEM FEATURES:

- PDF reader and default application set for .pdf file type

- .Net 4.0 or later

Separation devices: Parts of the system that are in the "Patient Area" or are electrically linked (i.e. data cable, network or triggers) to devices in the patient area needs proper isolation from the mains voltage and measure to lower the leakage currents on the enclosures of IT-devices included in the system. Hence, the use of a separation transformer on their mains connection, or proper separation devices between devices in patient area and devices outside it (e.g. BQ USB interfaces) is mandatory. The user must not the system configuration made by authorized technicians at the installation.

Failure to use Separation Transformer Units or complete systems from our company will void any declaration of compliance with the standards from our company.

INTENDED USE

BRAIN QUICK SOFTWARE is explicitly designed to help physicians in recording, archiving, and reviewing data coming from Micromed digital acquisition systems.

BRAIN QUICK SOFTWARE can be used for EEG, EMG, and EP exams and other neurophysiologic studies based on the data recorded from the patient through Micromed acquisition devices. The software could also be used for cortical stimulation during electroencephalography examinations (i.e. stereoEEG) in combination with specific stimulators. Some analysis functional tools are provided as default or software options. Results coming from these tools must never substitute the critical interpretation and the clinical conclusions by a physician.

BRAIN QUICK SOFTWARE is not intended to continuously monitor central nervous system functionality, in conditions where a warning on the change of patient condition is essential (e.g. OR and ICU automatic monitoring without the presence of the physician), since the system is not equipped with proper alarms that substitute continuous medical surveillance. The use of BRAIN QUICK SOFTWARE must always be overseen by a physician or a qualified technician.

INTENDED USERS

The use of the software is reserved to physicians, technicians, or other medical professionals that are trained in bio-potential recording. Also when it is used at home, the intended users are the medical professionals that are the only people that have the skills to start and stop the signals' recording and review the traces.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

BRAIN QUICK Software is not intended to continuously monitor Central Nervous System functionality in conditions where a warning on the change of patient condition is essential (e.g. OR and ICU automatic monitoring without the presence of the physician), since it is not equipped with the proper alarms that substitute continuous medical surveillance. The use of BRAIN QUICK Software must always be carried out under the supervision of a physician or a qualified technician.

GENERAL PRECAUTIONS AND WARNINGS

Read this section carefully.

RESPONSIBILITY

Micromed can only be held responsible for the accuracy of signals recorded under the circumstances described in this user manual. The collected data is not a substitute for the interpretation and clinical conclusions by a physician.

Micromed cannot be held responsible for data generated by misuse of the equipment from its operators.

BRAIN QUICK SOFTWARE CONFIGURATION

- BRAIN QUICK Software installation must always be carried out by authorized technicians. Deep knowledge of the inside software structure and of the hardware system is needed.
- To solve any problems that can arise during the use of software, contact your Micromed representative and the Micromed Service department.
- DO NOT ATTEMPT TO MODIFY THE SYSTEM CONFIGURATION BY YOURSELF (including the parts of software that manages hardware setup and that are highlighted and described in the user manual as reserved to the technicians). For any needs, contact Micromed Service Department or a Micromed authorized technician.
- The configuration of the resource list must only be performed by authorized personnel, since a wrong or incomplete configuration of resources can lead to data loss. Ask for Technical Assistance if you need to modify your system: the best software and hardware configuration according to your new exigencies will be suggested.
- Moreover, it is strongly suggested not to install other software on the PC. Any additional software you install is at your own risk and Micromed cannot be held responsible for any problems from that installation. Intervention for resuming a situation where an additional installation has led to a problem will incur a charge by Micromed according to the standard Service Price List.

DATA SAFETY

- Micromed BRAIN QUICK SOFTWARE advanced storage and data management features work properly ONLY if the user does not copy or move data without using the proper archive function, which are better explained in the Archive section of the user manual. This allows the software archive references to always be synchronized with the current situation. OPERATIONS PERFORMED ON DATA FILE NOT USING THE BRAIN QUICK SOFTWARE ARCHIVE COMMANDS CAN LEAD TO TEMPORARY OR DEFINITIVE PATIENT DATA, EXAM OR FILE LOSS.
- It is highly recommended to never access to BRAIN QUICK SOFTWARE work directories (defined in the path selection box of the installation setup, the database and resources setup screens) using the operating system functions (Windows Explorer or the desktop My Computer or Network Neighbourhood icons) to avoid any possible damage to the files.
- Using BRAIN QUICK SOFTWARE, trace data and database backup can be stored on external supports.
- Periodic backup of the database on external supports is available setting the "Database Backup Scheduler" properties. If these are already set, you should modify only the time interval between two

backups while the other configurations (e.g. the path) should be changed only under Micromed technician instructions. Refer to the related chapter of the user manual for detailed instructions.

- IT IS RECOMMENDED TO PERFORM BOTH DATA AND DATABASE BACKUPS REGULARLY to prevent data loss due to physical support damage (e.g. scratches on CD-ROM surfaces) or to a problem with wrong linkage in the database management or to interference with some other running software.
- Trace data and database backup can be performed on a similar or different type of support than the original one. Considering the particularly critical operation, BACKUP MUST BE PERFORMED ON DEVICES NOT CONNECTED TO THE NETWORK (or temporarily disconnected) in order to avoid accidental access to the data during the copy operation.

DATA ACQUISITION AND ANALYSIS

- Since BRAIN QUICK software uses a large amount of PC resources (memory and CPU), it is recommended to close other running applications, especially when performing operations that require the management of a great amount of data (e.g. video acquisition, 32 channel acquisition at high sampling rate and so on) otherwise, a message "SPEED ERROR" could appear and the acquisition could be stopped.
- During data acquisition, it is recommended that the user checks the quality of the resulting traces, keeping them displayed on the monitor. No other operation should be performed during acquisition, in order to minimize the error probability. During the review of the traces for interpretation, it is recommended to check the correspondence of the traces displayed to those desired (patient data, trace parameters, montage).
- The measures automatically performed (e.g. nervous conduction velocity calculation) by EMG and EP software, according to the settings chosen by the user, display the numerical results on the side of the related trace. The flags on the trace indicate the calculation points. The physician that performs the exam should always check if the points selected by the software are the most significant ones from a clinical point of view, and should eventually correct them manually. In all the software features, any automatic analysis tool always has to be considered help in interpreting traces, and not the interpretation itself.

CYBERSECURITY

Micromed systems should comply with the following recommended cybersecurity controls:

- The PC should have an antivirus installed, Micromed usually uses Paloalto Cortex XDR antivirus
- User passwords have to be private and follow the recommended password policy listed below:
 - o They have to be renewed every six months
 - o They have to be at least 8 characters long
 - o They have to contain both upper-case and lower-case letters (case sensitivity)
 - o They have to include special characters, such as @, #, \$
 - o Passwords that match the format of calendar dates, license plate numbers, telephone numbers, or other common numbers are not allowed should be avoided
- If the system is connected to a computer network (intranet and/or internet), the firewall must be active and properly configured by technical personnel to allow Micromed software network services
- Usage of USB media devices should be limited
- Only a limited set of users should access shared folders and disk resources sharing of

resources by several people should be avoided

- It is also recommended to install the most important Windows updates and patches as soon as they are available on Microsoft update centre.

HIPAA AND GDPR COMPLIANCE

In the implementation of software, Micromed implemented all the necessary measures to ensure the compliance with HIPAA and GDPR regulations, including controls to guarantee the protection of e-PHI (Patient Health Information).

The design solutions adopted by Micromed consider the following aspects:

- 1. Ensure the confidentiality, integrity and targeted availability of all patient information
- 2. Identify and protect the software against external threats, which could compromise the security or integrity of the information
- 3. Protect the software from improper use

Furthermore, the software must always be installed in environments that are compliant with the current network regulations.

ARCHIVE – FILE MANAGER SOFTWARE

ABOUT FILE MANAGER

FILE MANAGER is the gateway to review patient data, execute analysis, create reports, or start and stop a study.

The software is comprised of an application conforming to Windows standard and of an archive adhering to ODBC standards; any query can be performed following SQL standards.

Micromed has optimized the FILE MANAGER layout for efficiency: users can manage any part of archived information and the transfer processes from one screen.

All FILE MANAGER features are enabled by a dedicated software license.

ACCESS TO THE SOFTWARE

User can access to **FILE MANAGER with** or **without authentication**.

User authentication can be activated from Micromed Suite after installation, in server machine in case of distributed environment. Logon preferences are then centralized and modifiable only from Micromed Suite.

When user authentication is enabled the Logon system is active and the user must enter valid credentials to access FILE MANAGER; otherwise, if user authentication is disabled, it is possible to directly access FILE MANAGER as "Windows User" logged in the machine.

For further details about access mode configuration, see the Logon System Configuration section of this manual.

WINDOWS USER ACCESS

When authentication is disabled, login is not required and access to software is direct. When accessing without authentication, whole set of functions is available, depending on user permission, and Windows user is set as logged-in user.

For a detailed description of each functionality, see the dedicated sections of this manual.

AUTHENTICATED ACCESS

If the Logon system is active, user authentication is required before accessing the application.

A valid username and password must be entered to access FILE MANAGER (see figure below). Once entered, click the "Sign In" button to proceed.

Only two failed authentication attempts are allowed; the application will close on the third failed attempt.

Note. Only users registered in the centralized Users database can access FILE MANAGER. The application allows to authenticate using both Windows user (Active Directory domain user) and non-AD user credentials; see the dedicated section of this manual for a complete description of the Users database Configuration and Users management.

solutions for neurophysiology	
File Manager - Log On	
Username	
Password	
Sign In Exit	
Micromed File Manager	
Micromed Group Italy - Belgium - France - Germany - USA www.micromedgroup.com	
Micromed Group – Your Global Partner in Neurophysiology	
BRAIN QUICK' MOBERG NEUROWERK' SleepRT'	
www.micromedgroup.com	

When accessing through authentication, the functions to Switch User and Lockdown are enabled and become visible to the user.

The "Reassign Patient" and "Merge Patients" features are NOT available if the HL7 Interface is enabled, the latter allows to manage order entries received from the Hospital Information System (HIS); these operations are performed automatically only when a specific request is received from HIS in order to guarantee a constant alignment between patients database and the anagraphic data managed centrally by the HIS. HL7 is a widely adopted set of standards and protocols designed to facilitate the exchange, integration, sharing, and retrieval of electronic health information among healthcare systems. It ensures interoperability and communication between diverse healthcare applications, devices, and information systems. By providing a common framework for the exchange of clinical and administrative data, HL7 contributes to the improvement of healthcare delivery, patient care coordination, and overall efficiency within the healthcare ecosystem. For more information about HL7 interface, see HL7 section of this manual.

FILE MANAGER functionalities depend on the user permissions when authenticated access is enabled.

Each user accessing the FILE MANAGER has a specific **role**, i.e. a collection of permissions which define which operations are or are not allowed for that user. See **section** below for a complete list of available user permissions.

EMERGENCY LOGON

Emergency logon is an important feature that allows to authenticate in File Manager application in case of users database not reachable or server LDAP offline.

In those cases, user is not able to authenticate, and after the third login attempt failed, File Manager detects the anomaly and prompts the user whether he wants to log using emergency logon to record an exam (EEG/EMG/EP).

Fil	e Manager - Log On	
	Warning	
Us		
Pa	otherwise try again later	
		÷
	<u>Y</u> es <u>N</u> o	
4	Sign in Exit	Γ.

If the user clicks on No, it is possible to quit the application, instead if the user clicks on Yes, File Manager starts in Emergency Logon mode. By default no patient is selected, patients list looks blurred and user cannot interact with it. Other features not available in case of emergency logon are:

- New/Search, Switch User, Lockdown
- Patients' information
- Filters
- Exam contextual menu
- Quick search

From emergency logon, it is possible to create a new patient and, in case it is already recorded in the database, File Manager will directly point to it to start a new recording.

									File Manager		mie mie mie mie mie mie mie mie mie	cromed	- 0) ×
	Home View	w Setup Neurowe	rk EEG 1	Veurowerk EMG	BrainQuick	Neurowe	rk Help							^
C Refresh	lew New/Search Patien	Modify Remove Exa	Remove ms	New Models Imp Anamnesis	am File Log sort Import Search Tools	Persyst h Clean	Working list HIS Auto An	e						
Patient qu	aick search Click	here and type part of the pa	itient's 'Family	name', 'Given name'	or 'Identification' to	o search. l	Use 🖓 to separate mu	tiple search values						
🖵 Loc	ale_S59					I	🗄 Andrea V	erdi						
Gender	Patient	Birthdate	Age	ID1	ID2		□ Q []	Recording date	• Comment	Marker	Locked By Backgro			
O"	Andrea Verdi	2024/01/18	0			•								*
Patients p	er page 30 💌	Total patients: 27	[M] 40	Page 1 of 1 ** **	Go to page	• ·	Total exams: 0				No exams available for selected patient			Ŧ
Datab	ase online	Server ONLINE Distributer	d configuratio	an Locale SS	9 - File system ava	ailable								⇒

The user can acquire and record new exams for the newly created patient, using EEG and EMG/EP acquisition software.

USER PERMISSIONS

One of the greatest advantages offered by authenticated access is represented by role-based restrictions. Each FILE MANAGER user is assigned a specific **Role** which determines user capabilities and restrictions. Each Role consists of a collection of permissions covering key features and operations available within Micromed system. FILE MANAGER offers up to six levels of granularity, i.e. six pre-defined roles: the **Administrator** one and other **five customizable roles** allowing to handle up to five different combinations of permissions (Senior Doctor, Junior Doctor, Senior Technician, Junior Technician, Guest).

All user permissions available are the following:

- 1. Report creation/modification
- 2. Report deletion
- 3. Ability to mark patients and exams as "read"
- 4. File deletion
- 5. EEG and Video EEG reduction
- 6. Patient creation and deletion
- 7. Patient demographic data modification
- 8. Ability to acquire
- 9. Modification of doctor and technician information related to exam
- 10. Resources creation/modification/deletion
- 11. Manual reassignment of exam to another patient (*)
- 12. Manual merge of two patients (*)
- 13. Machine Settings change
- 14. Central Settings change
- 15. Manual archiving
- 16. Management of HIS requests (HL7 interface)
- 17. Report export to HIS
- 18. Add/Modify/Delete database values of lookup lists

(*) Features disabled if the HL7 Interface is enabled.

Note. Not all permissions are available for all roles. Permissions are however customizable

WORKING CONFIGURATION AND OPERATING MODE

FILE MANAGER supports two possible working configurations:

- **Distributed System**: system of workstations connected in a network domain with a centralized users administration and a centralized settings management. In such configuration there is typically a server machine hosting: the central SQL database (ensuring that any file or exam can be retrieved by any user at any time), the centralized Users Database and the Audit Log database. In such networked environment there can also be local SQL databases separate from the central one, generally on LTM acquisition stations.
- **Stand-Alone:** single workstation, never connected to other stations, with its own local configuration and no need to share settings or have a centralized audit trailing; typically user authentication is disabled.

Note. Configuration type must be defined at installation time.

Both configurations require **File Manager Core** service to be installed together with FILE MANAGER software in the workstation. Distributed System configuration requires a File Manager Core Client instance installed locally in communication with central File Manager Core Server instance installed on server; instead, Standalone configuration requires only a File Manager Core instance installed locally.

File Manager Core service is responsible of centralized user administration, centralized settings management and centralized audit trailing.

OPERATING MODE

In a Distributed System configuration, the operating mode is very important. It determines if and how your computer communicates with the central database and other computers in the network.

Working machine can be either **Online** or **Offline**.

Working Online

In a distributed environment, communication with central server and between stations is based on network connection.

If the system is online, central settings are kept synchronized with central configuration and audit trailing, if enabled, is centralized.

In addition, all running EEG recordings in other online stations can be monitored through the Acquisition List and the other review stations of the system can monitor the EEG recording running on your workstation, if any.

Working Offline

When the network connection is not available, your workstation is in offline mode.

If the system is online, user authentication is guaranteed and audit trailing, if enabled, is stored locally.

Changes made to central settings are not uploaded to server until online mode is recovered and no centralization or sharing is possible.

During the offline period, you cannot monitor EEG studies running on other stations, and any recording made on your workstation is not available for monitoring either.

MAIN WINDOW

BASIC OVERVIEW

FILE MANAGER is the working environment for other Micromed acquisition and review software. It is the user gateway to review patient data, record new information or run new studies.

FILE MANAGER application manages files, exams, and patients, that are stored in a resource, linked to a database.

FILE MANAGER main window consists of three main components:

1. View pane, which displays patient and exam information accessible by the current resource. Displayed data are grouped in a patient-based view, with the Patients List on the left and the Exams List on the right, showing the exams associated to the currently selected patient. From View pane, user can change resource selecting one available from dropdown menu.

										File Manager			micromed -	•	×
	Home View	Setup Neurow	erk EEG N	eurowerk EMG	BrainQuick	Neurower	rk Help								^
C a		🖌 🥸 🗁	Co 10				B	9							
inche inche	Detients	fund	anamne	sis Import	t Import Search	Clean	list Arch	ive							
Patient qui	ick search	and type part of the r	ationt's 'Family r	ame' 'Given name'	or "Identification"	to search II	HIS AUTO A	crive	-						
🖵 Wor	king Resourc	e				· [Patient ()1							Reso
Gender	Patient	Birthdate	Age	ID1	ID2		□ Q (Recording dat	. v	Comment	Marker	Locked By Backgro			urces
O.	Patient 01	2023/10/18	0					2024/01/18 1	1:37:3						
°.	Patient 02	2024/01/18	0											_	
ď	Patient 04	2022/09/12	0			- 14		2024/01/18 1	1:56:4					_	
Ŷ	Patient 05	2021/12/20	2												
		PATIENT	LIST			To	otal exams: 2 2024/01/	18 11:37:34 A	M						
								Recording date	Comme	ent	Location				
							Q	2024/01/18 11:37:3						Ŀ	
							0	2024/01/18 11:37:3							
								2024/01/18 11:37:3						_	
1						•									
Patients per	page 30 👻	Total patients: 5	H + P	ige1of1 ⊮ ⊮	Go to page 1) To	stal files: 3								
E Databas	se online 🔛 Serv	er ONLINE Distribut	ed configuration	n Working I	Resource - File sy	rstem availa	able								⇒

Standard Layout Split View

- 2. **Resource List**, which contains all defined resources or folders where patient and exam information is located
- 3. Information panels, which displays patient relative information

In the upper part of the main window there is a **General Information Area** composed by the Title Bar, the Ribbon Bar, the Application Button and the Quick Access Toolbar; at the bottom of the screen there is the **Status Bar**.

									Fik	e Manager		micromed	- • ×
	Home Viev	Setup Neurowe	rk EEG N	Neurowerk EMG	BrainQuick	Neuro	werk He	1p					^
C Refresh	New New/Search	Modify Delete Modify D	elete New anamn	w Models Exam	n File Lo irt Import Sea	ag Persyst irch Clean	Working list	Auto Archive			GENERAL INF	ORMATION AREA	
	Patient	Exams	: An	namnesis	Tools		HIS A	iuto Archive					
Patient q	uick search Click	here and type part of the pa	tient's 'Family	name', 'Given name'	or 'Identificati	ion' to searc	h. Use ';' to se	parate multiple search	values				
P Wa	orking Resou	rce				• P	atient 01						Resources 🖡 🗙
Gender	Patient	 Birthdate 	Age	ID1	ID2		⊂ @ []	Recording date	• Comment	Marker	Locked By Backgro		💭 Working Area
O,	Patient 01	2023/10/18	0			* 💿	a.	2024/01/18 11:3	h3				
or or	Patient 02 Patient 03	2024/01/18 2022/09/12	0					2024/01/18 11/8	6.4				Data_Download
ď	Patient 04	2024/01/18	0					LOL-4/01/16 1113	A Martine				
Ŷ	Patient 05	2021/12/20	2										Working Resource
									VIEW F	PANEL			
						Total e	xams: 2						
													RESOURCE
						20	24/01/1	8 11:37:34 AM					RESOURCE
							R	lecording date C	omment	Location			LIST
							Q 2	024/01/18 11:37:3					
							CP 2	024/01/18 11:37:3					
							DP 2	024/01/18 11:37:3					
						*							
•	20				•								
Patients p	per page	total patients: 5	m m Page 1	iofi≫ ∺ 3o to	opage 1	Total fi	les: 3						
Patient	Info											a ×	
ID1									ID2				
Patient	Patient 01					MANTI		ici	Maiden na	me			
Birthdate	2023/10/18				INFOR	WAIN		VEL	Gender	Male			
Addres	B Clinical reference	e Insurance Other	Comment										
Addre	15												
City									ZipCode				
Home	ce								Mobile				
0	•			_									

Main Window Overview

In the following paragraphs the function and content of each component is explained.

View Pane and Layouts

The View Pane is a picture of patient and studies information stored inside Micromed database; depending on the type of layout selected it shows information in different ways.

Available layouts are **patient-based**; the View pane is always split into two components: the **Patients List** on the left, above which the name of the selected resource is shown, and the **Exams List** on the right, which groups all the exams for the patient selected in the Patients List; see paragraphs below for more details about Patients List and Exams List.

The total number of items (patients or exams) and the number of selected items is shown below each list.

There are three possible patient-based layouts:

- Standard layout
- Standard Split layout
- LTM layout

They represent three different ways to display patient and studies information.

In addition to the three patient-based layouts there is a further layout, the **Workflow overview**, which is an exam-based multiple steps layout. It splits the View pane in four columns, one for each workflow step: each step corresponds to a specific status of the workflow and groups all studies in such status for all patients in one single list where each line represents a single visit; see section below for details.

Default layout is the **Standard layout** and it is possible to change current layout clicking the related button available in the View Tab of the Ribbon Bar, as shown in the figure below.

		1										
Ľ		Hor	ne Viev	N S	etup	Neurowerk FEG	N	leurowe	erk FMG	BrainOuick N	Jeurowerk He	In
				. 0	crop	incuro merin eco		corone		statitiquient i	icuronent in	
(3				ංචු	$ \leftrightarrow $	∇	\sum	0			R
Ref	resh	Standard layout	Standard Split layout	LTM layout	Workflow overview	Space equally	Filter	Clear all	Show patient info	Show acquisition list	Show background tasks	d Show resource list
		Layout				Layout editing	Filte	ering		Info panels		Resources

Available Layouts

Pagination in patient-based layout

In patient-based layouts patients data visualization is organized in different pages to guarantee better performance and easier information display; this is very useful tool managing databases with a significant number of patients.

It is possible to choose the number of patients to be displayed in each page; according to the set-up number, patients are split in a suitable number of pages and it possible to easily navigate through different pages by the navigation bar available at the bottom of the Patients List. The navigation bar displays the current page number, the total number of patients and it offers navigation arrows to go through patient pages and a "Go to page" button to directly jump to a specific page.

Gender	Patient	 Birthdate 	Age	ID1	ID2	
ď	Patient 01	2023/10/18	0			ŀ
ď	Patient 02	2024/01/18	0			
്	Patient 03	2022/09/12	1			
0 ⁷	Patient 04	2024/01/18	0			
Ç	Patient 05	2021/12/20	2			
Ç	Patient 05	2021/12/20	2			
Ç	Patient 05	2021/12/20	2			•

NAVIGATION BAR

Patients List - Pagination

Standard Layout

The **Standard layout** is suitable for displaying EEG routine studies in a collapsed way. It consists of Patients List on the left and Exams List on the right, as shown in the figure below.

					Fil	e Manager	6		m	icrome	d	-		>
	Home View Se	etup Neurower	EEG Neuro	verk EN	1G Br	ainQuick	Neurowerk	H	Help					
C Refresh St	itandard Jayout Standard Split layout Layout Layout	Obj I↔ Workflow overview Space equals Layout ed	Filter Clea all Filtering	Sho	v patient info	ihow acqu list	isition Show bac tas	kgroui ks	nd Show resource list Resources					
Patient qu	uick search Click here and	d type part of the pati	ent's 'Family name'	'Given	name' or '	dentificati	on' to search. Usi	e 🏹 to :	separate multiple se	arch values				
Gender	Patient	Birthdate	Age		□ @		Recording date	-	Comment	Marker	Loc	ked By Ba	ckgro	
o o	Patient 01 Patient 02	2023/10/18 2024/01/18	0 *	œ 🚂)		2024/01/18 2:12:	33						
o o	Patient 03 Patient 04	2022/09/12 2024/01/18	1 0	⊞ @			2024/01/18 11:3	7:3			,			
Ŷ	Patient 05	2021/12/20	2			Recordi 2024/01	ng date Co	ommer	nt Locati	on i	Storage		Doctor	
					01	2024/01	/18 11:36:4							
				HL	0.	2024/0	710 11:30/4:0							
														_
			×											

Standard Layout – Routine EEG

Exams List consists of a tree with two levels:

- **Exam**, representing the recorded study
- File, the inner level collecting all secondary files related to the study, such as videos, report and analysis

Each column at each level of the Exams list shows specific information (according to the level) and it is possible to easily customize visible data by Column Chooser tool available in the contextual menu.

To quickly expand/collapse the inner level for each study it is possible to click the "Plus"/ "Minus" icon next to patient name at the top left corner above the Exams List.

Standard Split Layout

Standard Split layout is the most suitable for displaying EMG-EP studies; it is also useful to display EEG routine studies and related details in an alternative way.

It consists of Patient List on the left and Exam List on the right.

It simply splits information displayed in the Exam List in two separate panes: the **Exam** pane above and the **File** pane below.

C Refresh Si	Home View tandard layout Split layout Layout	Setup Neurower	k EEG Neurowe I Filter Clear Iy Filter all Alting Filtering	erk EMG Brain	Ouick Neurow To ov acquisition Show list Info panels	erk Help background Sho tasks R	W resource list esources	
Patient q	uick search Click here	e and type part of the pal	ient's 'Family name', '	Given name' or 'Ide	intification' to search.	Use ';' to separate	multiple search values	
Gender	Patient	Birthdate	Age		Recording dat	e 🔻 Commen	t Marker	Locked By Backgro
O'	Patient 01	2023/10/18	0 *	D	2024/01/18 2	12.22		
O,	Patient 02	2024/01/18	0	enfo	2024/01/10 2	16-22-1		
O,	Patient 03	2022/09/12	1		2024/01/18 1	1:37:3		/ 🗆
O.	Patient 04	2024/01/18	0		2024/01/18 1	1-26-4		
				2024/01/	18 11·37·34 A	м		
				2024/01/	Recording date	Comment	Location	
				<u></u>	2024/01/18 11:37:3			
					2024/01/18 11:37:3			
				0	2024/01/18 11:37:3			
				(r)	2024/01/18 2:23:29			

Standard Split Layout – Routine EEG

In the case of an EMG-EP study, the EMG-EP recording session is represented by a single line, in the upper pane, and there is a line for each single examination performed within the same session, in the lower pane; any report related to the EMG-EP study can be found in the lower pane.

In the case of an EEG routine study, the EEG recording session is represented by a line, in the upper pane, and there is line for each related secondary file, such as videos, report and analysis, in the lower pane.

LTM Layout

LTM layout is dedicated to LTM studies, and it is automatically activated when the option "Group LTM Exams into Visits" (display settings) is enabled.

It is patient-based so it consists of Patients List on the left and Exams List on the right; it split each study information in two panes: the **Visit** pane above and the **Exams List** below.

la l	1						File Man	ager			micror	ned	- 0	3
Þ	Home View	Setup Neurowe	k EEG N	eurower	k EMG	BrainQu	ick	Neurowerk	Help					
C	Standard L	H Cop ↔	e Filter	Clear	Show patier	Ę nt Show a		n Show backgro	und Show					
	layout Split layout la	yout overview equal	ly	all	info			tasks		list				
	Layout	Layout e	diting Filter	ing		lr	fo pane	s	Re	sources				
atient	quick search Click he	re and type part of the pa	ient's 'Family r	ame', 'G	iiven name'	or 'Identif	ication' t	o search. Use ';' t	o separate r	nultiple search va	lues			
Ρw	orking Resourd	e			• Pa	tient (01							
Sender	Patient	Birthdate	Age	ID1		D Q	D 🏟	Recording date	▼ Code		Doctor	Requesting Doctor	Technicia	1
ď	Patient 01	2023/10/18	0		• D		0	2024/01/40 2.12	- 22					
ō	Patient 02	2024/01/18	U		INFO		led.	2024/01/18 2:12	:33					
ď	Patient 03	2022/09/12	1					2024/01/18 11:3	6:4					
ď	Patient 04	2024/01/18	0											
Ŷ	Patient 05	2021/12/20	2											
								4						
					Total	visits: 2 -	Selected	:1						
					Ξ									
								Recording date	e 🔻 Cor	nment	Marker	Locked By Backgr	D	
					•	5 🚥		2024/01/18 11	:37:3			/		
							Recor	ding date	Comment	Locat	on Stora	age Do	ctor	
						9	2024/	01/18 11:37:3						
							2024	01/18 11:37:3						
						0	2024/	01/18 11:37:3						
						\odot	2024/	01/18 2:23:29						
						•		2024/01/18 11	:36:4					
				Þ				1						
Patients	per page 30 👻	Total patients: 5	H H Page 1	c >> >>	Total	exams: 2		10 A						
2				8	1									
3 Dat	abase online	ver ONLINE Distributed	configuration	1	Working I	Resource	File sys	stem available						

LTM Layout

The single LTM study grouping one or more EEG recording is represented by a line in the upper pane; the Exams List in the lower pane represents by a tree with two levels of detail all the recording related to the LTM study; the number of EEG recordings belonging to the LTM study are reported at the bottom of the exams list. **Note. EEG recordings are grouped in LTM visit according to the grouping criteria set in the display settings.**

Workflow Overview

Workflow overview layout is an exam-based layout, i.e., it collects in a single list all studies for all patients, but according to the respective workflow status; as shown in figure below.

	-											File Ma	anag	er											
□₽	>	Но	me	View Setup	N	leurowe	erk EEG	3 Ne	eurowe	rk EMG	BrainC	uick	Ne	eurowe	rk	Help									^
C		•		Ч II 🧠	,	←	≯	∇	76	8		çò					ß								
Refres	h S	tandard layout	Sta Split	ndard LTM Workfl layout layout overvi	ow	Spa	ice ally	Filter	Clear all	Show patien	t Shov	acquisit		Show b	ackgro tasks	ound	Show resour	ce							
		<i>.</i>		Layout		Layout	editing	Filter	ing			Info pan	nels				Resources								
Patie	Jent quick search Click here and type part of the patient's 'Family name', 'Given name' or 'Identifica												' to s	search.	Jse ';' t	to sepa	irate multiple	searc	h values						
N	ew					Pr	e-ev	aluate	ed			Eva	alu	ated					Re	ead					
	0	ର 🗋	ø	Recording date 🔹				R 🗋 🍘	Reco	rding date	•			ର 🗋	•	Record	ding date				Q 🗋 🏟	Recording date	• Patient	t	
	•			2024/01/18 1:58:06	F	inro			2024	/01/09 9:43:2	8*							-	-	•		2024/01/08 4:59:58	Test St	e	-
-	•			2024/01/18 10:28:0		-	-		2024	/01/08 11:57:	0														
-	•			2024/01/18 10:11:0																					
	•			2024/01/18 9:19:14																					
	•	Q []		2024/01/18 2:43:44																					
		0		2024/01/17 5:43:41																					
-	a			2024/01/17 3:40:21																					
-				2024/01/16 5:00:54								No 1	studi	ies avai	able fo	or selec	ted patient:								
	•			2024/01/16 3:19:14																					
				2024/01/16 11:38:0																					
-	•			2024/01/16 10:01:2																					
				2024/01/12 4:46:33																					
-				2024/01/12 4:30:50																					
-				2024/01/12 9:09:31																					
			-	•	-				141			-			_	•		-							1
Total	visits	:40 - S	electe	d: 0		Total	visits: 2	- Selecte	ed: 0		<u> </u>	Total v	isits:	:0 - Se	ected:	0			Total	visits:	1 - Selecte	d: 0			
	atal	ase on	ine	Server ONLINE	Dis	stribute	d conf	iguration		Locale_S59	- File	system a	avail	able											≓

Workflow overview Layout

It consists of four steps, one for each workflow status, and for each step the view displays in a single list all studies which are marked as belonging to that specific workflow status.

Default workflow steps are:

- New
- Pre-evaluated
- Evaluated
- Read

The first columns of the studies list show essential information, such as the recording date, patient name and patient's ID1; for each step it is possible to customize visible information by selecting the "Show Column Chooser" option available when right-clicking on each column header.

Available columns are:

- a. Code
- b. Doctor
- c. Requesting Doctor
- d. Technician
- e. Hospital department

Workflow overview allows to quickly move studies forward and backward through available step by selecting a study and simply dragging and dropping it to the desired workflow step.

Workflow status associated to each study is stored in the "Marker" field and it can be used as filtering criterium.

PATIENTS LIST

Patients List displays all patients stored in the selected resource. Each patient is associated with a record, i.e. a line in the list of patients.

Each column in the Patients List shows a customizable selection of patient information.

It is possible to move a column to the desired position by dragging the column and dropping it before or after other columns.

Left clicking on the header of one of the available columns allows to sort patients in ascending or descending order based on the selected field. In addition, right clicking on one of the available column headers opens a contextual menu with the following options:

- Sort Ascending, to sort the Patients List in ascending order (according to the selected column)
- Sort Descending, to sort the Patients List in descending order (according to the selected column)
- Show Column Chooser, to choose the columns to display Available columns are:
 - a. Gender
 - b. Maiden
 - c. Birth Date
 - d. Age
 - e. Height
 - f. Weight
 - g. Address
 - h. City
 - i. State
 - j. Zip Code

- k. Country
- I. Home (home number)
- m. Mobile (mobile number)
- n. Insurance Number
- o. Insurance Company
- p. ID 1
- q. ID 2
- r. Hospital Department
- s. Comment
- t. Marker

u. Doctor

w. Last Exam date

v. Gestation Days

Note. By default, the following columns are visible: Gender, Patient, Birthdate, Age, ID 1, and Doctor.

- Best Fit, to adjust the width of the selected column to the best fit
- Best Fit (all columns), to adjust the width of all visible columns to the best fit

₽	∇	8 🔒 🙆	ծ 🌡 🌤			
4	٩cd	uisition I	EEG			
Ger	nder	Patient 🔺	Birthdate	Last Exam Date		Hospital departme
(3	Patient 01	1/1/1900	2/25/2017 5:33:39 PN	₽ ↓	Sort Ascending
<	3	Patient 05	8/4/2021	8/5/2021 8:27:48 AM	Z ↓	Sort Descending
<	3	Patient 06	6/13/2010	10/21/2013 10:18:59		Clear Sorting
<	Ş	Patient 07	12/9/2020	10/13/2022 1:42:29 P		Hide Column Chooser
(3	Patient X	8/9/2021	8/9/2021 10:21:47 AN	+ A +	Best Fit
						Best Fit (all columns)
			Search Cd Genu Maio Birth Age Heig Add City	olumns der Idate Iht Ipht ress		
4						•
Tot	al rec	ords: 5 - Vi	sible: 5 - Se	elected: 1		

Column Chooser – Patients List

EXAMS LIST

The Exams List contains all examinations related to the patient selected in the Patients List.

Information related to studies are organized and displayed in different way according to the selected layout, but there are always two levels of detail available, **exam** and **file**; a further level, the **visit**, is available in LTM layout in order to group more recordings related to a specific patient under the same study.

Each column at each level of the Exams List shows a customizable selection information related to a specific study or file, according to the level.

As for Patient Lists, left clicking on the header of one of the available columns allows to sort exam (file) in ascending or descending order based on the selected field.

In addition, right clicking on one of the available column headers opens a contextual menu with the following options:

- Sort Ascending, to sort exams (files) in ascending order (according to the selected column)
- Sort Descending, to sort exams (files) in descending order (according to the selected column)
- Best Fit, to adjust the width of the selected column to the best fit
- Best Fit (all columns), to adjust the width of all visible columns to the best fit

Patient 05



Exam

Exam level represents a specific recording session and corresponds to a line of the Exam List (upper level) or the Exam pane.

Essential information related to a study are shown in the first columns.

- The first column refers to the **type** of exam, which could be an EEG, an EMG-EP, or an anamnesis; a symbolic icon allows to easily recognize the examination type (see the figure below)
- The **second column** summarizes which type of files are included in the study by showing a collection of representative symbols.

Icon	Description
	Study contains one or more video files
×	Study contains analysis file
REP	Study contains one or more report file
	Study contains Persyst file

"Study contains" Column - Icons

By clicking on the report icon it is possible to open the anamnesis and report files directly from this first level. If more than one file is present, when clicking on the report icon a tooltip list appears allowing to choose which file to open.

• The third column is the **Recording Date** which shows the date and time in which the exam was created.

Pa	tie	nt	02						
	0	۹		Recording date	Doctor	Technician	Hospital Departm	Marker	
•	•	۲		9/26/2006 4:05:09 PM					
æ				9/26/2006 4:05:09 PM					

Exams list – Exam Level Detail

Columns visible after the second can be chosen by users by clicking on the "Show Column Chooser" option in the right-click contextual menu available on each column header.

Available columns are:

- a. Recording Date
- b. Code
- c. Comment
- d. Doctor
- e. Requesting Doctor
- f. Technician

- g. Hospital department
- h. Marker
- i. Quick Search Flag 0 through 5
- j. Corrupted Video
- k. Location
- I. Locked by Background Copy

Default visible columns are <u>Recording Date</u>, <u>Comment</u>, <u>Marker</u>, and <u>Locked by Background Copy</u>.

Mone View Setup Neurowerk EdS Neurowerk EdS Beinduick Neurowerk Help Image: Setup	m	1						File M	anager			micro	ned -	- 0	×
Patient quick search Click here and type part of the patient's 'family name', 'Given name' or 'identification' to search. Use 'to separate multiple search values Image: Control of the patient's 'family name', 'Given name' or 'identification' to search. Use 'to separate multiple search values Image: Control of the patient's 'family name', 'Given name' or 'identification' to search. Use 'to separate multiple search values Image: Control of the patient's 'family name', 'Given name' or 'identification' to search. Use 'to separate multiple search values Image: Control of the patient's 'family name', 'Given name' or 'identification' to search. Use 'to separate multiple search values Image: Control of the patient's 'family name', 'Given name' or 'identification' to search. Use 'to separate multiple search values Image: Control of the patient's 'family name', 'Given name' or 'identification' to search. Use 'to separate multiple search values Image: Control of the patient's 'family name', 'Given name' or 'identification' to search. Use 'to separate multiple search values Image: Control of the patient's 'family name', 'Given name' or 'identification' to search. Control of the patient's 'family name', 'Given name,'Given name', 'Given name', 'Given name', 'Given name', 'G	C Refresh	Home Vie O New New/Search Patien	w Setup V V Modify Delete	Neurowerk EE Modify Delete Exams	G Neu New anamnesi Anam	Mode s mesis	EMG Is Exa Imp	BrainQuick m File Log ort Import Search Tools	Neurowerk He Persyst Clean List HIS A	Auto Archive					^
Cender Patient 1 Birthdate Age O' Patient 01 2024/01/18 0 O' Patient 02 2024/01/18 0 O' Patient 03 2024/01/18 0 O' Patient 05 2021/12/20 2 Column Chooser King Recording date Column Chooser King Recording date Column Chooser King Recording date Columnant Dick Search 0 Ouker Search 1 </td <td>Patient</td> <td>quick search Click</td> <td>k here and type p</td> <td>art of the patient's</td> <td>s 'Family na</td> <td>me', 'Gi</td> <td>/en nam</td> <td>or 'Identification'</td> <td>n' to search. Use ';' to se</td> <td>eparate multip</td> <td>le sea</td> <td>rch values</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>	Patient	quick search Click	k here and type p	art of the patient's	s 'Family na	me', 'Gi	/en nam	or 'Identification'	n' to search. Use ';' to se	eparate multip	le sea	rch values			
Gender Patient Birthdate Age ID	ΠW	orking Reso	urce			*	±Ρ	atient 01							
	Gender රී රී රී රී	Patient Patient 01 Patient 02 Patient 03 Patient 04 Patient 05	 Birtl 202 202 202 202 202 202 202 	hdate 3/10/18 4/01/18 2/09/12 2/09/12 4/01/18 11/12/20			Calumn C Search C V Rec Column C V Rec Court C V Ma	Recording date • 2024/01/18 2:12:33 2024/01/18 1:137:3 2024/01/18 1:137:3 2024/01/18 1:137:3 >>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>	X	2 ↓ 3 ↓ +A+	Sort Ascending Sort Descending Hide Column Chooser Best Fit Best Fit (all columns)	cked By Backgro			
Patients per page 30 • Total patients: 5 Hi (ii Page)) Hi Total exams: 3	• Patient:	per page <u>30 v</u>	Total patie	ents: 5 H4 4	(Page ≫	v H	Total e	cams: 3	ck Search 0 ck Search 1 rk Search 2						¥ Þ

Column Chooser (Exam) – Exams List

File

File level is comprised of all the files associated to a selected exam, i.e. all the traces, reports, videos and files created during the analysis.

As for the exam, the first column represents the file type through a symbolic icon.

Visible columns after the first can be customized by clicking on the "Show Column Chooser" option in the rightclick contextual menu available on each column header.

Available columns are:

- a. Recording Date
- b. Comment (file comment)
- c. Location (resource name)
- d. Storage (archive resource name)

- e. Doctor
- f. Requesting Doctor
- g. Technician
- h. Hospital Department

Default visible columns are Recording Date, Comment, and Location.



Column Chooser (File) – Exams List

Visit

A Visit represents a collection of exams performed under the same recording session; it is typically used to represent LTM studies.

Information available at visit level are only the essential ones.

• The first column refers to the type of visit.

Note. When the display option "Group LTM exams into Visits" is enabled, it is possible to choose the criteria according to which multiple exams are grouped under the same LTM session; options available are from 1 up to 7 days. For example, if the 1 day option is selected, all EEG recordings performed in the same day, i.e. within 24h, are grouped together.

- The second column summarizes which type of files are included in the visit by showing a collection of representative symbols (see the "Study contains Icons" table above for details).
- The third column represents the **Recording start**, i.e. the date and time in which the LTM session was started.

Pa	tient	05			VI	SIT									
	- Q		Recording date 🔹	Doctor	Technician	Hospital depart									
	- Q		8/5/2021 8:26:52 AM	Green, Michelle; Whit	e	Neurology;		*							
			Recording	start				*							
Total	Total visits:1 Selected:1														
± 8	8/5/2021 8:26:52 AM EXAMS belonging to VISIT														
	□= 0	R 🗋 🏟	Recording date	Hospital Departmer	nt	Marker									
-	□ (ગ્	8/5/2021 8:26:52 AM	Neurology		Evaluated		*							
	Record	ding dat	e	Comment 🔺	Doctor	Technician	Location								
-	8/5/20	021 8:26:	52 AM		Green Michelle	1	Working Area								
	8/5/20	021 8:26:	55 AM			1	Working Area								
\odot	8/6/20	021 1:40:	31 PM			1	Working Area								
Q	8/6/20	021 1:41:	27 PM				Working Area								
#	œ		8/5/2021 8:27:48 AM			Evaluated									
								•							
Total	exams:	2													

Exams List - Visit

RESOURCES LIST

The Resources List is a dockable panel which lists all resources available to the user; the name of the resource is on the left and the available space is on the right.

If path associated to a resource is not accessible or reachable the red message "File system not available" is shown next to the resource name (instead of the space available) to notify the user no operation can be successfully performed on such resource. Check the network connection, for resources associated to a network shared folder, and the correctness of the path entered in the resource definition.



Resource - File System Not Available

Clicking on a specific resource on the Resource list, patients and exams list display all patients stored in the database and for each one all studies stored on the selected resource path.

View pane displays error messages if the patient and exam data loading fail for some reason.

If patient database is not reachable the message shown in figure below will appear:



Main reasons behind such error are network disconnection or wrong resource definition, caused by incorrect database details filled.

If resource name is not correctly defined0 the message below will appear:

III.	1							File Manag	51.			mic	romed	-		×
	Home	View S	etup	Neurowerk El	EG Ne	urowerk EMG	BrainQu	ick Ne	eurowerk	Help						^
C Refresh	New New/S	earch Modify	Modify	New M	Aodels Ex	am File	Log Persyst	Working	Auto							
	Pa	ients	Exams	Anamnesis	sis	ort Import S Tool	earch Clean s	HIS	Auto Archive	ve						
Patient	quick searc	h Click here an	d type par	t of the patient	's 'Family n	ıme', 'Given na	me' or 'Identif	cation' to s	earch. Use ';	' to separate	multiple search	values				
														Resour	ces	* ×
														₽w.	rking A	rea
														S44 Sta	L_Acqui tion	sition
														💿 Sto	rage_Lo	ocale_S44
														S59	_Local	
					C	N N	o data is	visibl	e					E Loo	ale_S59	9
					C	5 Sto	orage data is	not visibl	2					∎ - wa	rking R	esource
														•		Þ
🛃 Dat	tabase online	Server O	INLINE C	istributed co	nfiguration	Work	ing Resource	File syste	m available							≓

It is possible to create, modify, and delete a resource directly from the Resources List panel.

Right-clicking on a resource a contextual menu will appear, allowing the user to modify or delete the selected resource.

Right-clicking on the Resources List Panel, another contextual menu appears allowing the user to create a new resource; for further information, see the paragraph **Data Access: Resources Configuration** below.

From the context menu it is also possible to hide resources by selecting the **Show/Hide** option, or to import or export one or more resources by selecting the **Import** and **Export** item, respectively.





RIBBON BAR

On top of the FILE MANAGER main window, above the View Pane, there is the main toolbar, called Ribbon Bar, which helps the user to navigate through the software and shows all the functions that the application offers to the user. Buttons are grouped in different menus (or Tabs) according to their functionality.

Ribbon Bar can be minimized keeping only tabs titles displayed.

The user has the possibility to use this bar in normal mode, in minimized mode and on auto-hide mode, that is a function that automatically hides entire Ribbon Bar to work on the window in full screen.

The Ribbon Bar of the FILE MANAGER is comprised of the following Tabs:

- Home
- View
- Setup
- Brain Quick (if installed)
- Neurowerk (if installed)
- SleepRT (if installed and configured)
- Neurowerk EEG (if installed)
- Neurowerk EMG (if installed)
- Help

A **Refresh** button is present in every tab and it allows to update patients list and the associated exams.

Home Tab

The Home Tab groups the FILE MANAGER main functions related to the management of patients and exams; buttons are organized in functional Groups.

It contains the following Groups:

- Patients
- Exams
- Anamnesis
- Tools
- HIS

- Auto Archive
- Users

ER.	1			File Mana	ger		mic	гоп	ned		- 0	×
	Home Vie	w Setup	Neurowerk EEG	Neurow	erk EMG	Bra	inQuick	: N	eurower	k Helj	р	^
С		e e	C7 C3			C_	•			Ē,		
Refresh	New New/Search	Modify Remove	Modify Remove	New anamnesis	Models	Exam Import	File Import	Log Search	Persyst Clean	Working list	Auto Archive	
	Patier	nts	Exams	Anamr	nesis		To	ols		HIS	Auto Archive	

Patients Group

The Patients group offers four buttons for the creation, search, modification, or removal of a single patient. While the "New" and "New/Search" buttons are always available, the "Modify" and "Remove" buttons are enabled only when a patient has been selected.

Clicking the **New** button opens the dialog for the creation of a new patient. As shown in the figure below, the dialog offers several fields that can be populated with the patient personal data. The only DEFAULT required fields are "Last name", "First name" and "Birth Date"; mandatory fields are marked with a red X when empty. The "ID1" and/or "ID2" fields may also be set as mandatory. For more information, see the section related to **Labels Customization**.

st name	8	First name	8
thdate	10/17/2022	Gender	Unspecified
e		Maiden	
Standar	d fields		
Addres	5	Clinical re	ference
Addres	3	Hospital	department 👻
City	▼ ZipCode	Marker	•
State	✓ Country ✓	Doctor	•
Phone		Insurance	
Mobile	:	Insurance	number
Home		Insurance	company
Physica	al data	Notes	
Height	Weight Gestation days	Notes	

Once all the mandatory fields are filled, the "OK" button will become enabled.

Note. "First name", "Last name", "Birth Date" and "ID1" fields are used by the FILE MANAGER application for the unique patient identification check performed every time a new patient is created or an existing patient demographic data is edited.

When creating a new patient record, FILE MANAGER checks if another patient with the same demographic data already exists, to avoid any unwanted duplicates. If a matching patient record exists, the user is asked for confirmation before proceeding.

		ID2		
t name Patient		First name	01	
thdate 1/1/1900		🗄 Gender	Male	
e		Maiden		
tandard fields				
Address		Clinical re	eference	
Address	FileManager		×	•
City State	Patient is al	ready inserted. Are yo	u sure to duplicate it?	• •
Phone Mobile		Y	es No	
Home		Insurance	company	
Physical data		Notes		
Height Wei	ght Gestation days	Notes		

Once created, the patient will appear in the Patient List.

The **New/Search** button can be used to search for a patient. The search can be filtered based on patient "Last name", "First Name", "Birth Date", "ID1", and "ID2" fields, as shown in the picture. Once the correct patient record is selected, the "Open" button is enabled to open that patient on patients list. Selected patient can be opened even double-clicking on the selected row.

Last name	First name	Birthdate	ID1	ID2	
P	8				
Last name	First name	Birthdate	ID1	ID2	
Patient	05	8/4/2021			
Patient	Х	8/9/2021			
Patient	01	1/1/1900			
Patient	06	6/13/2010			
Patient	03	7/21/2021			
Patient	04	6/22/1984			
Patient	02	7/20/1964			
Patient	07	12/9/2020			

If no patient matching the search criteria is found, pressing the "New" button it is possible to open the patient creation dialog where fields are pre-populated with the information used in the search.

The **Modify** button opens a dialog that allows users to modify the content of the fields for a selected patient. Press "OK" to save the changes or press "Cancel" to discard them.

Note. Patient demographic data, such as "Last name", "First Name", "Birth Date", "ID1", and "ID2, can be changed by authorized user only, i.e. user with the "Can Modify Patient Demographics" permission. Moreover, demographic information are locked and not modifiable in case of HL7 environment enabled. If request extra fields management is also enabled from Micromed Suite at central level, other fields are locked and non-modifiable (Address, City, Doctor, etc.)

The **Remove** button allows users to remove the selected patient record and all the associated exams. When clicking this button, a popup will appear asking the user for confirmation before proceeding with the deletion. If the user confirms, a final fail-safe popup appears and asks if the user would like to cancel the removal. By clicking "No", the patient record and all its exams will be deleted permanently. It is possible to remove multiple patients from Remove button, in case of multiple patients' selection (Ctrl + click or Shift + click).

Note. Only authorized user with the "Can Create/Delete Patient" permission can add a new patient to or remove an existing patient from Micromed database.

Exams Group

The Exams group offers two buttons to modify and remove an exam belonging to a selected patient, respectively; such buttons are enabled only when an exam has been selected.

To modify an exam, first, select the desired patient from the Patient List. Once the patient is selected, the associated exams will be automatically displayed in expanded mode in the Exam List. When clicking on exam or on any of exam-related files, the "Modify" and "Remove" buttons will be enabled.

1		ID2		
name	Patient	First name	06	
hdate	6/13/2010	Gender	Male	
e		Maiden		
m path	D:\MicromedDisk\MicromedData\Acquisition_EEG\Archive Micromed\	PAT_4		
tandaro	d fields			
odo				
ode				
Code				
Code				
Ode				
Marker Comme				•
Marker Comme	ent			٩
Marker Comme Comme	ent ent			•
Marker Comme Comme	ent ent			•
Marker Comme Comme	ent ent			
Marker Comme Comme -lags Seizure	ent ent Quick Search 1	Quick Sear	ch 2 🗌	Quick Search 3

Clicking the **Modify** button opens a dialog (shown above) that allows users to modify any editable field of the selected exam. The dialog also shows the patient-related data in read-only mode. Click "OK" to save the changes or click "Cancel" to discard them.

By default, no exam related field is mandatory. For information about setting exam fields as mandatory, see the **Labels Customization section of this manual**.
At the bottom of the "Modify exam" dialog there is the **Change Patient** button which allows users to re-assign the exam to a different patient, for example if the acquisition was performed under the wrong patient; see the **Reassign Patient** section below for further details.

To remove a WHOLE exam, select the exam to be removed from the list of exams and then click the **Remove** button. It is even possible to remove multiple exams, in case of multiple exams selection (Ctrl + click or Shift + click).

Note. Exam removal will remove the WHOLE selected exam, including all files within it. To remove a single file, instead, see the section related to the basic operations available on Exam Files.

Depending on whether exam or file is selected, the Exams List allows users to perform a series of operations by selecting the dedicated option in the right-click context menu; see the **Basic Operations** section below for a detailed description of all available functionalities.

Anamnesis Group

The Anamnesis group allows users to create a new anamnesis and manage models for anamneses.

To create a new anamnesis, select a patient and click on the **New Anamnesis** button.

A dialog will open allowing to choose a predefined model. Once the model is saved, the new anamnesis will appear in the list of exams for the selected patient.

The **Models** button allows the creation of new models for anamneses; see the **Anamnesis Models** section for further details.



Anamnesis models

Tools Group

The Tools group offers buttons to perform importing operation and to search on the Audit Log trail.

Clicking the **Exam Import** button allows the user to import EEG exam with related videos or EMG-EP exam. It is also possible to import a video file for anamnesis purpose and associated it to a new anamnesis.

Clicking the **File Import** button allow the user to import single secondary file related to the selected exam, such as event file or analysis file.

Note. The import of Persyst analysis files is not supported.

See the Importing Studies and Files section below for further details about importing functionality.

If the Audit trailing is enabled and network connection is available, it is possible to search on the Audit Log database by clicking the **Log Search** button. The Audit Log Search window will appear allowing to define searching criteria and to visualize search results; see the **Audit Trailing and Log Search** section below for further details about this functionality.

Clicking the **Persyst Clean** button it is possible to manually clean up database associated to current local resource by grouping all Persyst files related to each EEG exam, if any, into one only main zip (PST) file; such operation improves the archive module performance in accessing and managing Persyst files.

Important Note. After the clean up it will be NO more possible to review any Persyst analysis file with previous versions of Brain Quick software (1.xx.yy).

HIS Group

If HL7 Interface is active, the His group is available: it consists of one only button to access the **Working List** panel where all requests received from the Hospital Information System are collected; requests are split in new requests to import, and requests already imported to be executed.

1.00						le Manager		micromed	mi_test 🔒		o x
₽	Home	View Setup	Neurowerk EEG	Neurowerk EMG	BrainQuick	Neurowerk Hel	,				^
$\underset{\text{Refresh}}{C}$	New New/Se	earch Modify Remo	ve Modify Remove	New Models	Exam File Lo	9 Persyst Working	Auto Swi	itch Lockdown			
		Patients	Exams	Anamnesis	Import Import Sear Tools	rch Clean list HIS	Archive Us Auto Archive	Users			
Patient	quick search	Click here and type	part of the patient's 'F	amily name'. 'Given na	ame' or 'Identification'	to search. Use 12 to see	arate multiple sear	rch values			
Workin To Impo	ng list ort Already	mported									# ×
С	Refresh	Import 😡 Join of	line								
Reque	st Group Ide	Patient Identifier	Last Name	First Name	Birthdate	Gender	Address	City	Province	Country	
57		45	Rossi	Andrea	2005/04/21	O'				ITALY	^
58		46	Bianchi	Lorenzo	1975/11/09	0				ITALY	
1		510		Jintonis.		0				11961	•
🖵 Lo	ocale_S59			⊞ Bb	b Defendi						
Dat.	abase online	Server ONLIN	Distributed config	uration	e_S59 - File system a	vailable					≓

Working List

Working List, as most of the Archive panels, is dockable; information displayed are customizable and it is possible to filter on the requests list.

The Working List can be manually refresh and clicking the **Import** button on the toolbar it is possible to import a specific HIS request with related patient information within Patients database; for further details on HL7 requests management see the **HL7 Integration** section of this manual.

Users Group

If the Logon system is active, the Users group is available on the Home Tab; it contains the Switch User and the Lockdown buttons.

User Switching

Clicking **Switch User** button it is possible to switch to a different user by entering the appropriate user credentials.

100											
	Home V	ew Setup Neurowerk	EEG Neurov	mrk EMG Bra	inQuick Neurow	erk Help					~
C C Refresh N	ew New/Search Patie	Modify Delete Modify Del	te New Manaminesis	Indels		Working list HIS Auto An	Switch Lock	edown			
Patient qu	ick search Ci										
- Wo	rking Reso	urce	* 🖽 I	Patient 01							a ×
Gender	Patient	+ Birthdate	Ag	a a D 🍘	Recording date *	Comment	Marker	Locked By Backgro	Local	le_\$59	
	Patient 01		0)							188.5 GB used of 927.5 GB
			1 8 4	000					Work Work	ing Resource	42.4 GB used of 97.7 GB
					Passwo	ord eeeee		Sign In Cancel			
۲) Patients pe	r page 30 💌	Total patients 5 4	V N Hi Total	exams: 3					-		
Databa	se online	Server ONLINE Distributed	onfiguration	Working Reso	urce - File system ava	ilable					\rightleftharpoons

Switch User

It is also possible to switch user clicking the "switch user" icon on the top right corner of FILE MANAGER title bar next to current logged in user username.

When switching users, user capabilities are automatically upgraded according to user role, i.e., according to the collection of permissions assigned to the user. It is possible to switch user only towards one with higher privileges. For instance, it is not possible to switch user from an administrator role to a technician role.

Note. Any on-going process will be completed in the background and the new user will be able to see all the on-going tasks launched by the previous user in the Background tasks panel. The Background tasks panel can be enabled by clicking the Show background tasks button on the Ribbon Bar (View Tab).

Manual Lockdown

Clicking the **Lockdown** button, it is possible to enter in lockdown mode, that is to manually force the FILE MANAGER application lockdown.

When FILE MANAGER is locked down the main window is blurred, no PHI data is visible, and any button is disabled. Even all additional windows (Brain Quick, Neurowerk, etc.) will appear blurred and all functionalities will be locked. Logon dialog window automatically appears over the application window to allow user to unlock the system by entering valid credentials when a user interaction with the application main window is detected.

Nome View Stelling Neurowerk EEG Neurowerk EEG Neurowerk EEG Neurowerk <	
Patient quick search	
And the second s	
	Lincole, SSR 100 S GB week of 977.5 GB
	Voluminity Resolution 42.4 GB used of 97.7 GB
File Manager - Username <mark>missar</mark> Password	- Log On - Sign In

Lockdown mode

Automatic Lockdown

Lockdown mode can also be enabled in an automatic way; FILE MANAGER offers a dedicated option stored at machine level allowing to activate the automatic lockdown of the application after a certain period of inactivity of the Archive module; for details about the automatic lockdown activation see the **Lockdown Preferences** section of this manual.

EEG Sessions in Lockdown Mode

The lockdown mode automatically propagates to any on-going EEG recording and/or review session.

When an EEG review session is locked down, in the Brain Quick review window any PHI data is anonymized, all panels showing PHI data are blurred and no action is possible: ribbon bar buttons are disabled, and no event insertion is possible.



EEG Review session – Lockdown mode

Instead, when an EEG recording session is on-going and the system enters in lockdown mode, the EEG trace and video, if any, continue to be visible on the screen allowing the live monitoring, also patient name remains visible but no operation can be performed by the user without logging in again.



EEG Recording session – Lockdown mode

Again, the LogOn dialog window automatically appears over the Brain Quick window to allow user to unlock the system when any interaction with the application main window is detected.

Auto Archive Group

The Auto Archive group offers a button to manually run the automatic archiving procedure.

Note. The auto-archive feature is available only if the FMS AUTOARCH license is active.

Clicking the **Auto Archive** button it is possible to manually run the auto archive for exams marked as "read" of current local resource; such procedure scans patients marked as "read" and archive related exams in the defined storage resource. It is possible to archive reports in a dedicated storage resource, i.e. in a different path respect to the exam data.

Note. Persyst and analysis files (.fft), if any, are considered by the auto archive procedure ONLY if the related option is enabled, otherwise they are discarded and permanently deleted.

The auto archive procedure allows to automatically delete exams marked as "to delete", if any; such exams are discarded from the archiving and are permanently deleted.

If the auto archive is successful, the archived files are moved to the designated storage resource; the destination storage resource name is shown the "Storage" column of the Exams list at file level.

1	2/27/2022 12:08:06 F	M			
	Recording date	Comment	Location	Storage	
æ	12/27/2022 12:08:06 PM			Test Storage	•
\odot	12/27/2022 12:08:33 PM			Test Storage	
₩	12/27/2022 12:12:55 PM			Rep Storage	



Finally, the auto archive can be combined with the EEG/VEEG exams cut: if such option is enabled, EEG and Video EEG exam marked as "read" are automatically cut according to the chosen reduction protocol and then archived, i.e. moved to the designated storage resource. It is even possible to automatically delete the original trace file, keeping only the reduced exam. The automatic cut is highly recommended in order to avoid saving unnecessary files.

An additional auto archive setting is Patients list cleaning from archived patients, allowing the archived patients to be no longer visible on source resource after the procedure.

View Tab

The View Tab groups the main functionalities related to the window layout management; buttons are organized in functional Groups.

It contains the following Groups:

- Layout
- Layout editing
- Filtering
- Info panels
- Resources

100					File	e Manag	jer	micro	med	_		×
	Home	e View	Setup	Neurowerk EEG	N	leurowe	erk EMG E	BrainQuick	Neurowerk H	elp		^
С	•		ු රුං	$ \leftrightarrow $	∇	\sum	0				Ø	
Refresh	Standard layout S	Standard LT plit layout lay	M Workflow out overview	Space equally	Filter	Clear all	Show patient info	Show acquisition	on Show backgrour tasks	nd Sł	how resource list	
		Layout		Layout editing	Filte	ering		Info pane	ls		Resources	

Layout Group

The Layout group collects all layout options. Available patient-based layouts are: Standard, Standard Split and LTM; they show the exams grouped by patients.

Note. The Standard layout is the default one.

To turn on one of these layouts on, click on the **Standard**, **Standard Split** or **LTM** button. The View pane will be divided in two components: Patient List, on the left, and Exam List with all studies related to the selected patient, on the right.

A further layout available is the Workflow overview layout which is exam-based and groups all studies according to the associated workflow status; user can activate it by clicking on the **Workflow overview** button: it splits the View pane in four columns, one for each workflow step and it is useful to move studies forward and backward supporting the user in the workflow management.

See the View Pane and Layouts section above for further details about available layouts.

Layout Editing Group

This group contains only one button, which can be used only when a patient-based layout is selected. The **Space Equally** button automatically adjusts the Patient List and Exam List so that they have the same width.

Filtering Group

The Filtering group contains the **Filter** button which allows to enable or disable the Filtering pane which is dockable.

The Filtering pane allows the user to set multiple searching criteria to filter current view; it also allows to apply a custom filter or to define a new one and save it; see the **Filtering View** paragraph for further details about how filtering patients and studies.

This group contains also the **Clear all** button which allows the user to quickly reset current view clearing all applied filtering criteria at a time.

Info Panels Group

This group contains the buttons enabling or disabling information panels; such panels are dockable.

Clicking the **Show patient info** button will open a pane that shows any information related to the selected patient, as seen in the figure below. The patient information is in read-only mode and therefore no changes can be made directly from the Patient Info pane.

Lon.								File Man	sger			microm	ed mi_test 🕹	
₽	Home Vi	ew Setup Neuro	werk EEG N	eurowerk EMG	BrainQu	iick	Neurowerk	Help						^
C Refresh	Standard layout Split layou	LTM Workflow s	ipace quality tradition Eilter	Clear all Show patier info	nt Show	scquisiti list	on Show backgro tasks	Show resource						
Patien	t quick search	k here and type part of the	nationt's 'Family	name' 'Gwen name' (or 'Identii	ication'	to search Lise 21	n senarate multiple se	arch values					
Ωv	Vorking Reso	urce			•	±Ρ	atient 01	o separate maniper se					Resources	* ×
Gender	Patient	 Birthdate 	Age	ID1			= Q [] 🏟	Recording date •	Comment	Marker	Locked By Backgro		Locale S59	
0	Patient 01	2023/10/18	0		•	œ 🐽		2024/01/18 4:11:03						188.5 GB used of 927.5 GB
C	Patient 02	2024/01/18	0										Working Reso	urce
0	Patient 03	2022/09/12	1			⊕ i mfo		2024/01/18 2:12:33						42.4 GB used of 97.7 GB
ç	Patient 05	2021/12/20	2			E 🥶	□ Q	2024/01/18 11:37:3						
						H 🐻		2024/01/18 11-26-4						
					w								Acquisition list	# ×
4					•							•	✓ LAP-MA-ANTO	
Patien	ts per page _30 👻	Total patients: 5	IN IN Page 1	of 1 PP PP ge	,	Total e	kams: 4						Online	
Patie	nt Info											# ×	× 544	
ID1							ID2						Acquiring	
Patien	t Patient 01						Maiden r	name					× 559	
Birthd	ate 2023/10/18						Gender	Male					Recording	VEEG
Add	ress Clinical refere	nce Insurance Oth	er Comment											
Add	iress													
City	linco						ZipCode							
Hor	ne						Mobile							
E, Da	tabase online	Server OFFLINE Distrib	uted configuration	on 🔛 Working I	Resource	- File sy	ystem available							≓

Info Panels

The **Show acquisition list** button opens a pane that shows the status of all the acquisition systems connected. Each acquisition system is represented by a "card" with a status bar reporting system name and related status and a reduced details panel.

To be visible in the Acquisition List, an acquisition system has to first be configured in the dedicated pane of the "Options" window, as described later in this manual. The acquisition machines to be managed from acquisition list must be defined as resources in File Manager, to allow remote reviewing tools.

For details about Acquisition List configuration see the **Acquisition List Tab** paragraph below.

Clicking on the caret icon close to the acquisition system name will reveal the name and ID of the patient under acquisition, as well as the location (resource name) of the exam, as seen in the side figure.

Note. Fields shown as part of the information displayed for the acquisition systems are user configurable and can set in the "Options" window (Acquisition List tab).

The Acquisition List panel also shows the (color coded) state of each acquisition system:

- **Online (grey)**, if FILE MANAGER is connected with the acquisition system
- Idle (grey), if Brain Quick Software (or SystemPlus EVOLUTION) is open on the acquisition system but it is not acquiring data
- Acquiring (yellow), if the acquisition system is actively receiving data from the amplifier
- Recording EEG (green), if the acquisition system is recording EEG, i.e. saving data
- VEEG Recording (green), if the acquisition system is recording VEEG (EEG + video)
- Paused (red), if the acquisition system is paused
- Impedance Check (purple), if the acquisition system is checking the impedance values

Right-clicking on the Acquisition List panel a contextual menu with the following options will appear:

- Ascending, to sort the systems in alphabetical order
- **Decreasing**, to sort the systems in reverse alphabetical order
- View as, to see the acquisition systems by system or by patient
- Filter by, to see only the systems that meet the selected criteria (state)
- **Refresh**, to refresh the panel

Right-clicking on each system status bar a contextual menu with the following options will appear:

- Remote Control, which allows the user to remotely control the acquisition system (via UltraVNC or Brain Quick software) and live monitor eventual on-going EEG recording Note. Remote control is based on UltraVNC for acquisition systems running SystemPLUS Evolution, otherwise it calls Brain Quick software for acquisition stations where Brain Quick software is installed
- **Remote Review**, which opens Brain Quick software for the remote review of the on-going EEG recording on the selected acquisition machine
- See in Database, which allows to point directly to the patient and the exam under recording

The **Show background tasks** button opens the Background Tasks pane, which displays all the on-going background processes as "cards".

The information shown by each card depends on the process type, but all cards report at least the <u>task name</u> and the <u>progress status</u>. It is possible to display further details by "expanding" the card clicking the caret icon on the top right corner of the card. Finally, it is possible to cancel the process at any time clicking the Trash icon.

The processes that are displayed in the Background Tasks Pane are the following:

• **Data transfer** performed with the 'copy to' and 'move to' operations. The information displayed in these types of cards is:

- The source and the target resources
- The name of the patient currently being transferred
- The visit, exam and file currently being transferred
- How much data has been processed so far
- Video EEG reduction tasks. In addition to the task name and the progress status, this type of card displays also:
 - The patient name
 - The file under reduction and the date and time of the related exam
 - The user who has launched the reduction task
 - The machine where the reduction task has been launched
- Auto archiving tasks. The card shows the progress status, the patient and the exam ID in which the procedure is running.
- **Persyst cleaning** tasks. Even in this case, the card shows the progress status, the patient and the exam ID in which the procedure is running.

The progress bar is labelled differently according to the reduction task status:

- Queued: the reduction task is in queue and waiting for to be processed
- **Running**: the reduction task has already started but has not been completed yet
- Cancelling: the reduction task is being cancelled
- Cancelled: the reduction task was aborted and has been completely removed from the queue
- **Completed**: the reduction task has been completed. The card will disappear from the Background Tasks panel.
- **Failed**: the reduction task failed or was rejected by Reduction service due to some error; a tooltip report a brief description of the occurred error. Failed tasks have to be cancelled manually.

Reduction tasks only can be promoted by clicking the Promote icon available for each card next to the Trash one; promoting a task means assign to it high priority in the processing, tasks with the same priorities are executed according to the insertion order.

Background tasks	# ×	Background tasks	# ×
Copying patient(s) from "Working Area" to "Security Area" 0 %	Û ~	Copying patient(s) from "Working Area" to "Security Area" Current patient: Current visit:EEG (Micromed) 1/28/2021 12:38:41 PM Current exam:1/28/2021 12:38:41 PM Current file:VID_33.MPE (506,458,551 bytes)	<u>۵</u>
		Processed so far:1,046,901,198 bytes of 1,627,786,399	

View Customization

FILE MANAGER allows the user to define size and position of all its information panels; each panel can be moved by clicking on its title bar and then dragging it to the desired position.

In order to modify height and width of a panel, point the mouse cursor on the panel's edge and, when the cursor turns into a two-sided arrow, click and drag the panel's edge until the desired dimension is reached.

All File Manager panels, except for the Patients List and the Exams List, are dockable. A dockable panel is a layout panel that provides an easy docking in preset positions.

When dragging one of the panels File Manager displays all the preset positions in which the panel can be docked. Just release the panel over a docking position and the panel will be docked in that location. Panels can be docked on the left, right, top, bottom, or center of the window. If docked, they can be moved and pinned to the top, bottom, left, or right of the application window.

							File Mana	ger					
				and stars and	- mulati								
	Home view set	up iveurowerk e		Eurowerk Emil		rveurowerk	neip						
G		600	V	6 8	۲Ö	-	E						
Refresh Sta	wout Split layout layout o	/orkflow Space verview equally	Filter	Clear Show patient Shi all info	ow acquisiti list	on Show backgro tasks	ound Show resource list						
	Layout	Layout editin	ng Filter	ing	Info pane	ls	Resources						
Patient qu	ick search Click here and t	type part of the patien	t's 'Family n	ame', 'Given name' or 'Ide	entification'	o search. Use ';' I	to separate multiple sea	rch values					
🖵 Wor	rking Resource				• 🗄 Pa	atient 01	=					Resources	# ×
Gender	Patient •	Birthdate	Age	ID1		n Q 🗋 🏟	Recording date 💌	Comment	Marker	Locked By Backgro		Locale_S59	
ੱ	Patient 01	2023/10/18	0		* E 😳		2024/01/18 4:11:03				_	-	186.5 GB Used of 927.5 GB
O'	Patient 02	2024/01/18	0									Working Resour	ce
3	Patient 03 Patient 04	2022/09/12	1		1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		2024/01/18 2:12:33						42.4 GB used of 97.7 GB
Ŷ	Patient 05	2021/12/20	2		🖽 🧰	⊐ 0 ,	2024/01/18 11:37:3						
							2024/01/18 11/26/4						
							2024/01/10 11:50/4						
					1		1						
<u> </u>												Acquisition list	* _
	Patient Info											• ×	
	ID1						ID2					_	
	Patient Patient 01						Maiden nam	ie.					
	Birthdate 2023/10/1	8					Gender	Male					
	Address Clinica	al reference Insurar	nce Oth	er Comment									
	Address												
	City						ZipCode						
	Home						Mobile						
4					-11								
Patients pe	r page <u>30 v</u> Total	patients: 5 H	« Page 1 a	of 1 HH ge 1	Total e	iams: 4							
Databa	se online Server Off	FLINE Distributed co	Infiguratio	n 🔛 Working Resou	rce - File s	stem available							2
30	120												

View Customization

Resources Group

This group contains the **Show/Hide** button which allows the user to decide which resources to hide or show among the defined ones; enabled resources are visible in the Resource List.

The Show/Hide resource window that opens when clicking this button is shown in the picture below.

Working Area	
2	
Database 🔥 (File system not availab	ole)
Acquisition EMG	
Signals TestLab	
ReviewEEG	

Show/Hide Resources

Users can show (hide) a resource by toggling the "eye" icon next to each resource in the list of the available ones.

Hiding a resource makes it invisible in the Resource List and it will not be possible to transfer any type of data from and to the hidden resource. Conversely, showing a hidden resource makes it visible and enables data transfer from and to it again.

From Show/Hide Resources, it is possible to reorganize resources list, by dragging-and-dropping a resource to the selected position.

The Resource group contains also the **Show resource list** button which allows to show/hide the Resource list panel as it is possible for all other information panels.

Setup Tab

The Setup Tab contains all the functionalities that are related to resources, doctors, and technicians.

It is divided in two Groups:

- Resources
- Doctor Technician
- Tools



Resources Group

The Resources group allows users to create, modify, or delete a resource from the FILE MANAGER.

Micromed resource allows users to access patient information and exam data, and to perform operation on recorded studies.

Note. Resource setup is an advanced feature which can be performed by authorized personnel only, i.e. user with the "Can Create/Modify/Delete Resource" permission. Depending on the environment where workstations have to be installed, many variants are possible; it is highly recommended resource setup is performed with the support of Micromed technicians at installation time according to system configuration.

Clicking on the **New** button will open a dialog for the creation of a new resource; see the **Data Access: Resources Configuration** paragraph below for more details.

Note. A password is needed to define a new resource.

Clicking the **Modify** button allows users to modify the current resource. This will open a dialog, similar to the dialog for the creation of a new resource, where it is possible to modify any field of the current resource.

Clicking on the **Delete** button will trigger an alert message asking to confirm the resource deletion; clicking "OK" will delete the selected resource. Deleting a resource DOES NOT delete the patients and their exams and DOES NOT delete the database associated with the resource, but it simply removes the resource from the list of resources.

Note. A password is needed to delete a resource.

The Resources group allows also to import and export resources.

It is possible to import one or more resources by clicking the **Import** button and selecting the configuration file (systemResources.xml) storing the definition of the resources to import. This will open the "Import" dialog window where all detected resources are listed.

For each resource the following information are displayed:

- resource name (same displayed in the Resource List)
- resource path
- name of the patient database associated to the resource
- resource type (Local, Database, Storage etc.)

In addition, on the right side it is shown whether the resource is duplicated, i.e. if it already exists a resource with the same name, whether its path is not UNC ^(*), and whether it is reachable.

> Ir	mport		×
	(Select All)		
	Working Area Path: Database: Type:	Local	Path not UNC Path unreachable Duplicate resource
~	Sigma Path: Database: Type:	Local	Path unreachable
~	BrainQuickEEG Path: Database: Type:	Local	Path unreachable
~	Moberg Archive Path: Database: Type:	Local	Path unreachable
			Ok Cancel

Import Resources

(*) UNC paths are used to access network resources; they have a conventional format starting with the host name (machine name) or the server name preceded by "\\" and followed by a shared directory name.

As default all new resources with a UNC path are selected for the import and it is possible to change the selection; clicking the "Ok" button selected resources are added to the list of system resources but they are not enabled, in order to make them visible the user have to click the **Show/Hide** button (View tab) and enable the ones of interest. Importing a duplicated resource, changes will be ignored.

Finally, it is also possible export one or more resources by clicking the **Export** button; this will open the "Export" dialog window where all system resources are listed, and the user can select the ones to export.

For each resource the following information are displayed:

- resource name (same displayed in the Resource List)
- resource path
- name of the patient database associated to the resource
- resource type (Local, Database, Storage etc.)

> Exp	port		- □ >
🔳 (S	elect All)		
v	Vorking Area Path: Database: Type:	Local	Path not UNC
s	iignals TestLab Path: Database: Type:	Local	
R	ReviewEEG Path: Database: Type:	Remote	
	Database Path: Database: Type:	Database	Path not UNC
N	Path: Database: Type:	Remote	
Т	estDB		
			Ok Cancel

Export Resources

In addition, on the right side it is shown whether the resource path is not UNC (see note above). As default all resources with a UNC path are selected for the export and it is possible to change the selection; clicking the "Ok" button resources are saved in a configuration file (.xml) which can be shared with other stations of the system and imported.

The Import/Export options are also available in right-click contextual menu of the Resource List.

Doctor Technician Group

From the Doctor Technician group it is possible to add new doctors/technicians to the database.

Clicking on the **New doctor** (**New technician**) button will open a dialog where doctor (technician) information can be entered.

🥵 New doct	or			
Last Name				
First Name				
		OK	Ca	ncel

Once the required fields are filled in, the doctor (or technician) will be saved to the database and it will be available in the list of doctors (or technicians).

Tools Group

From Tools Group it is possible to Modify or Delete database data for already existing fields, related for instance to City, Doctor, Department, etc.

Note: only if the permission Can Add/Modify/Delete DB Values of Lookup Lists is enabled for the logged-in account the button will be active

Clicking on the **Delete/Modify DB Data** button will open a dialog where the user can catalogue doctor and technicians as valid or obsolete and to select database fields to be updated or deleted. When a new doctor or technician is created, by default it is marked as Valid, and hence available from dropdown menu to be assigned to a record. From the interface, for each doctor/technician available, the user can uncheck Valid/Not obsolete field. If a doctor or a technician is obsolete, the choice will not appear when the user selects from the available doctors or technicians list. When a technician or a doctor becomes obsolete, all patients, exams, or files associated with that entity on database will remain unchanged and will not alter after rendering a doctor or technician obsolete.

Clicking on **Update obsolescence** button, all changes will be saved.

Ļ	Delete/Modify Archi	ve Data		×	
	Drag a column header h	nere to group by that colu	ımn	Q	
	Doctor Technician	Is Doctor	Is Valid/not Obsolete		
	doctor 1	~	~		
	doctor 2	~	\checkmark		
I	doctor 3	~			
	Rossi Andrea	~		▼	
			Update Obsolesc	ence	

As shown in the following image, it is possible to **select data from** the available Database fields (City in the example), select an **Actual value**, type the **Desired value**, and click on update to change it with the desired one.

		Select data from:	City
Actual value	Milano	 Desired value 	Roma
NOTE: select empty field	d on desidered value to de	lete selected actual value Update	

The user can then decide whether to overwrite the Actual value or to keep it in the database.

		7/11/2023 3:01:1
	Select data from:	Doctor •
Actual value	Andrea, Rossi	Luca, Rossi 👻
VOTE: select empty fie	ld on desidered value to delete selected actual value Update	X Do you want to keep the existing values (patient/exam information) of Andrea, Rossi present in database?
ncesco Zacchi 10/2023		Yes No Gender Male

• Clicking on **Yes**, the Desired value will be added to the database keeping even the actual value (N.B. if the field is doctor or technician, actual value will be marked as Not valid)

- If the user selects **No**, another confirmation popup will appear and, if confirmed, desired value will replace the actual value in the list
- If the desired value is empty, the actual value will be deleted from the database.

All records in the selected database will be updated consequently. If the user decides to overwrite values, all entities on database associated to the actual value will be updated with the desired value. The field will be deleted for existing entities in case the desired value is empty.

Help Tab

The Help Tab contains all the functionalities that offer help to the user, as shown in the figure.



The **Help** button allows users to open the user manual for the FILE MANAGER.

The **Contact Support** button will open a window with the customer support number and email address. The **Company Homepage** button opens the <u>www.micromedgroup.com</u> webpage in a browser and the **About** button opens a window with information about the manufacturer, the name of the product, the software version, and the copyright (shown below).

🥵 Abo	out FILE MANAGER SOFTWARE	
MANAGER	FILE MANAGER SOFTWARE	i
	Version: 3.05.00	0
	FILE MANAGER SOFTWARE is manufactured by Micromed SpA	
	Via Giotto 2 - 31021 Mogliano Veneto (TV) - Italy	
	Warning: this computer program is protected by copyright law and international treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this program or any portion of it may result in severe civil and criminal penalti and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under law.	es
	ОК	

Brain Quick Tab

Brain Quick Tab will be available if the Brain Quick and Brain Quick Acquisition applications are installed and the system has licenses for acquisition and review.

The Brain Quick Tab groups all functionalities that allow the user to start a new EEG or Video EEG recording, create a new acquisition protocol or define an EEG report model.

									File Man	ager		micromed	mi_test	S	Ô	-	×
4		Home View	Setup	Neuro	werk EEG	Neu	ırowerk EN	1G I	BrainQuick	Neurowerk	Help						^
			5		\downarrow	EDF	[↓]										
New EEG	Select Protocol	New EEG (Favourite Protocol)	New report	Data Download	Firmware updater	Import EDF	Report Models										
		Exams			Tools		Setup										

Clicking the **New EEG** button will open the Brain Quick Software acquisition window which allows to start a new EEG or Video EEG recording with the last used acquisition protocol. The name of the last used acquisition protocol will be available under **New EEG** button during the File Manager session.

It is also possible to start a new recording by selecting the desired protocol; clicking the **Select Protocol** button will open a dedicated window of the Brain Quick Software where all defined acquisition protocols are listed, and it is possible to start a new recording with the selected protocol or create a new protocol.

Finally, it is possible to start a new recording with the default acquisition protocol by clicking the **New EEG** (**Default Protocol**) button; the Brain Quick Software acquisition window will appear allowing to start a new recording.



New EEG Acquisition

Selecting an exam and clicking on **New Report** button, will allow the user to choose from the existing available templates and to create and save a new report under the selected exam.

It is also possible to define a new EEG report model; clicking the **Report Models** button the "Models management" window will open allowing to define a new report template and save it.

									File Ma	anager		mic	rome	d mi_	test	S	ê			×
	Home	View	Setup	Neuro	werk EEG	Net EDF	urowerk EM	G	BrainQuick	Neurowerk	Help									^
New Sel EEG Prot	ect Nev ocol (Favourit Exams	v EEG e Protocol)	New report	Data Download	Firmware updater Tools	EDF	Report Models Setup													
Patient qu	lick search	Click here	and type	part of the	patient's 'i	amily na	ime', 'Given r	name' o	r 'Identificatio	on' to search. Use	'/ to separat	te multiple s	earch value	s						
🖵 Wo	rking Re	source)		-	±Ρ	Patient ()1						Resou	irces					4 ×
Gender	Patient						5	Select ti	he template ti	o manage						9				
0"	Patient 01	Hom	e												^	ľ.	188.	5 GB use	d of 927.	.5 GB
0"	Patient 02		ាញា													lesour	ce			
O'	Patient 03	New	Delete														42.4	GB used	of 97.7 (GB
9	Patient 04 Patient 05	Ivew	Delete																	
		Mo	del																	
		EEC	6_Empty	E	EG_ENG		EEG_ESP		EEG_ITA											
													OK	Can	cel					

EEG Report Models

Note. EEG Report creation and related models management are handled by Brain Quick Software; if Brain Quick Software is not installed, it will not be possible to create any EEG reports or EEG report models.

The Brain Quick tab collects also other useful tools allowing ambulatory data download, EDF file import and firmware update.

Clicking the **Data Download** button, it is possible to download ambulatory EEG data directly from amplifier (connected via cable) or from memory card by a card reader; see the **Ambulatory Data Download** section of this manual for details.

Clicking the **Firmware updater** button, it is possible to check the actual firmware version of a specific amplifier and upgrade/downgrade the firmware.

Finally, the **Import EDF** button allows to import an EEG exam in EDF or EDF+ format by calling Brain Quick software conversion tool from EDF/EDF+ file into Micromed EEG file format; the imported trace will appear as a new EEG exam in the Exams list associated to currently selected patient in the Patients list.

Neurowerk Tab

The Neurowerk Tab groups all the main commands that allow the user to start a new EMG recording, define a new acquisition protocol, manage settings for electromyography, or define an EMG report template.



Neurowerk Tab in File Manager

- **New Session** button starts a new sequence of EMG examinations allowing the user to select or create a new acquisition protocol and start the recording of a new session.
- **Continue with Session** button allows to select an existing EMG session and to record new exams, appending them directly in the selected session.
- **New Report** button allows the user to choose from an existing report template, to create and save a report for the selected session.
- **Report Models** button, allows the user to select and edit an existing template, or to create a new one from an empty form.
- Finally, there are three buttons for session appearance and general settings (Settings, General Settings, Default Settings), and one for editing the protocols already defined from the user (Edit Protocol).

SleepRT Tab

SleepRT Tab groups the functionalities available from the integration with SleepRT software.

						File	Manager			micromed	-	×
	Home	View	Setup	Neurowerk EEG	Neurowerk EMG	BrainQuick	Neurowerk	SleepRT	Help			^
	<u>^</u>											
Analyze Open	Config											
Exams	Setup											

SleepRT Tab in File Manager

If SleepRT is installed in the machine and the .exe path has been correctly configured from settings, SleepRT tab is available to process and open analysis executed with the external software.

Analyze button allows to start a new analysis for the selected EEG exam. The exam is directly opened from SleepRT software, and the user can define a new protocol to be used for the analysis of the desired exam. Analysis can be either launched from contextual menu at exam level.



Analyze with SleepRT from contextual menu

Once an analysis is launched and saved, a new file of type OSG and dedicated icon is added under the analysed exam.

Open button allows to open an existing analysis belonging to the selected EEG exam, that will be the first one in case of multiple analysis.

Config Console button opens SleepRT specific configuration console, useful for changing and defining new settings on the external application.

File Manager can manage and save reports created during analysis with SleepRT software to be opened and modified from its editor.

Note: only the first version of the report will be saved and visible in File Manager, additional modification after the analysis or newly created reports will not be updated and saved in File Manager

From File Manager settings, specifying the analysis destination folder, it is possible to open and review an analysis executed with SystemPLUS Evolution.

Neurowerk EEG Tab

Neurowerk EEG Tab groups the functionalities available from the integration with Sigma Neurowerk EEG software.

								File M	lanager			micromed	-	×
Ц	Home View	Setup	Neuro	owerk E	EG	Neurower	k EMG	BrainQuick	Neurowerk	SleepRT	Help			^
(🚷 🏠	🗞 🚷	(3	۲	3								
New EEG	Standard Standard U Video EEG EEG Reduced	User User 1 2	User 3 r	New report	Montage Setup	Report Models								
	Exams				Set	tup								

Neurowerk EEG Tab

If Neurowerk is installed and configured in the machine, Neurowerk EEG tab is available to start new acquisitions using the external software and to create new reports.

New EEG button allows to start Neurowerk EEG software to start a new EEG acquisition.

Standard Video EEG button starts Neurowerk EEG to run a standard video EEG acquisition.

Standard EEG reduced button allows to run a standard EEG reduced.

User 1, User 2, User 3 buttons refer to acquisition protocols configured by the logged user to start a default protocol.

When a new acquisition is started, a new exam will be created in the archive with a dedicated Neurowerk EEG icon.

New Report button allows the user to select from the available report templates and to create a new one for the selected exam.

Montage Setup button starts Neurowerk EEG and directly opens Montage Setup window to allow the user changing the acquisition montage

Report Models button opens the existing report templates, with the possibility for the user to create a new one or to modify the defaults

EEG exams recorded with Neurowerk EEG can be opened directly from double clicking on them.

Neurowerk EMG Tab

Neurowerk EEG Tab groups the functionalities available from the integration with Sigma Neurowerk EEG software.



If Neurowerk is installed and configured in the machine, Neurowerk EMG tab is available to start new acquisitions using the external software.

New EMG button allows to start Neurowerk EMG software to start a new EMG acquisition.

When a new acquisition is started, a new exam will be created in the archive with a dedicated Neurowerk EMG icon.

EMG exams recorded with Neurowerk EMG can be opened directly from double clicking on them.

Ribbon Bar Customization

FILE MANAGER allows the user to customize all Ribbon Bar tabs and groups and define which functions shall be present in the different tabs and groups.

To access ribbon bar customization tool right-click anywhere on it and select the "Customize Ribbon" option in the contextual menu.

The "Ribbon Customization" dialog window is split into two panels: on the left, all the available commands, i.e. features (buttons) available, grouped according to the default configuration; on the right, currently applied ribbon bar configuration.

It is possible to create a new custom tab by selecting **New Page** from the "New" menu at the bottom of the right panel; to populate the tab with a new functional group the user has to select **New Group** from the "New" menu and enter the new group name.

After that, it is possible to add to each group all buttons corresponding to the desired functionalities: the user has to simply search for a specific function in the commands list available in the left panel, then click on the **right-arrow** button placed between the two panels to move the selected command under the selected group on the right panel, and so on.

Click the "Ok" button to save and apply the customized configuration.

In the right panel, customized tabs and groups are recognizable since marked by the "(Custom)" label next to the tab or group name (as shown in figure below).



Ribbon Bar Customization

Each tab and group name can be changed by clicking the **Rename** button (at the bottom of the right panel) and the order of tabs, groups within the same tab or commands within the same group, can be changed by simply selecting the item to move and using the **up-arrow** and **down-arrow** buttons available in the middle of the customization window.

It also possible to **hide** useless tabs, groups or buttons by **unchecking** related item in the right panel or moving a specific command back to the left panel by clicking the **left-arrow** button.

Ribbon customizations can be exported or imported from file clicking the **Import/Export** menu and choosing the desired option.

It is also possible to reset the entire ribbon bar to the default configuration or restoring only a specific tab (page) by selecting one of the available options from the **Reset** menu in the bottom left corner.

APPLICATION BUTTON

FILE MANAGER main window contains an Application button at the top left corner.





Clicking on the application button opens a menu allowing to access:

- Settings area
- Settings Centralization area (*)

(*) Administrator user only can access this area, only if the working configuration is Distributed

Clicking **Settings** in the left side menu it is possible to access the "Settings" window where the user can configure FILE MANAGER options; see the **Settings** chapter of this manual for all details about setting types and how to change settings.

Display	A liter Machine Central	
Archive		
Lockdown	Theme	
Acquisition List	Office2019White	
Licensing	Grid	
Logging	Auto-expand Files when expanding Visits	
Labels customization	Font size 14 🗘	
Language	Naming convention	
HIS	Last name before first name	
	○ First name before last name	
	Visit View	
	Revert to default view	
	Group LTM Exams into Visits	
	l <u> </u>	•

Settings window

Selecting the other options available in the left side menu it is possible to perform advanced operations.

Clicking on **Settings Centralization**, the user can access a dedicated area where he can centralize local settings defined at machine level, to be available on all the machines of the distributed system; see the **Settings Centralization** section of this manual for further details.

Note. Only authorized user, i.e. user with the "Can Modify Central Settings" permission, can access Settings Centralization area.

TITLE BAR

When user authentication is enabled, Title bar at the top of the main window shows the username of the user currently logged in.

On the top right corner, it also contains two controls (icon), the Switch User and the Lockdown, as seen in figure below.

micromed mi_test	Ş	₿		×
SWITCH U	ISER	LOCK	DOWN	

Clicking on these buttons it is possible to quickly switch to another user and lockdown FILE MANAGER application, respectively.

See dedicated sections of this manual for further details about both functionalities.

QUICK ACCESS TOOLBAR

The Quick Access Toolbar is a small customizable toolbar which collects commands most frequently used. It is possible to add any control placed in the ribbon bar by selecting the "Add to Quick Access Toolbar" option in the right-click contextual menu available for each button.



Quick Access Toolbar

The Quick Access Toolbar default position is above the ribbon bar next to the application button placed in the top left corner of the main window. By right clicking any ribbon button it is also possible to move the Quick Access Toolbar below the ribbon bar ("Show Quick Access Toolbar Below the Ribbon" option) and to minimize the Ribbon.

STATUS BAR

At the bottom of the main window there is a Status bar which provides useful information.

On the left, it shows whether the **database** is online or not and the **operating mode** (distributed or standalone); only in case of distributed system configuration, the **server connection** status is displayed. In addition, the **name** of current **resource** is shown with indication about the file system availability.

Database online	Server ONLINE Distributed configuration	EEG Test - File system available	

Status Bar

DATA ACCESS: RESOURCES CONFIGURATION

A typical networked installation is composed by:

- some Acquisition stations,
- several Review stations to be used by the consultants to read and analyse the recorded data,
- a Server containing the SQL Central Database
- a Storage containing the Working Area, the Virtual Disks and the Multistorage

Depending on the installation environment many variants are possible; sometimes acquisition, review and/or server operations can be performed on the same unit.

Micromed resource is the key component to access patient and exam data; it consists of two parts:

- a link to the SQL database where patient information are stored
- a **path**, i.e. a local or shared network folder, where studies are stored

Into every workstation, a series of resources is defined, every folder having different purposes and having the need to be accessed from the other units.

A resource can be define from the Setup Tab of the ribbon bar by clicking the **New** resource button; the "New resource" dialog will open allowing to enter resource details.

Name: Lo	ocal Data		
Root path: 🔇	•		
Resource type	: 🗜 Local resourc	e	-
Provider: 🖲	SQL		
Provider: ● Server name:	SQL	Username:	
Provider: Server name: Database:	SQL	Username: Password:	
Provider: Server name: Database: Select dat	SQL	Username: Password:	Test connection

"New resource" dialog window

The fields required to define a new resource are:

- the "Root path", which defines where the study files are physically stored
- SQL database details, i.e. "Server name" and "Database" the resource points to

Note. No resource creation is possible without the above information; mandatory fields are highlighted by a red cross if not filled in and the OK button is disabled.

Every resource has a specific name configured by the technician during the installation; this information can change across users.

A "Resource type" needs to be specified for every resource. The following types are available:

- Local: a "powerful" resource in which the user has full control, i.e. he can create, modify, remove patients and exams, and mark exams as "read" or "to delete". This resource points to a local or a network repository and it is always linked to a SQL database.
- Local Lite: a Local resource but portable, i.e. linked to a SQLite database; user can create, modify, delete patients and exams, but not mark exams as "read" or "to delete".
- Auxiliary: a portable, temporary archive resource, typically used for data exchange. This resource is always linked to a SQLite database.
- **Remote**: a resource on which the user has only a partial control, i.e. he can only remove patients and

exams, and mark exams as "read" or "to delete". It points to a local or network repository ant it is always linked to a SQL database. It is possible to set this resource as read-only to limit operations the user can perform on data.

- **Database**: a resource typically used to read database information with limited access: "new" and "modify" functions are not allowed. Users can only delete patients and exams, and mark exams as "read" or "to delete". This resource must be linked only to SQL databases.
- **Storage**: it represents a virtual disk partition or an optical media (DVD or BluRay disk) where data and reports are stored for archiving purpose. This resource must be linked only to SQL database and it can be set as read-only.

Note. This resource cannot be selected by the user to obtain a patients list since this function is managed directly by the Database.

• **MultiStorage**: it represents a collection of archive resources. This resource must be linked only to SQL database and it is read-only to guarantee archived data protection.

Note. This resource cannot be selected by the user to obtain a patient lists since this function is managed directly by the Database.

• Moberg Live Data: this resource is used to access Moberg CNS data during the acquisition for the live monitoring; it is generally linked to a network repository used by the Integrator to handle Moberg CNS data.

Note. Local type resources must be used to review Moberg CNS data after the acquisition.

IMPORTANT NOTE. Operations the user can perform on data depends on user's permission; that is the resource gives access to data with some limitation according to the resource type but features allowed and not allowed are determined by user's rights.

Once all required fields are populated, it is possible to test the connection to the database by clicking the "Test connection" button: this allows users to test whether the configuration fields have been filled correctly. The "Select database" button allows users to select one of the previously used databases.

Clicking the OK button resource is created and it automatically appears in the Resources List. Patients List automatically shows all patients with at least a study stored on current resource.

ROUTINE ACQUISITION STATION

Here is an example of the resources typically defined in a **routine acquisition station**:

- Acquisition: Local type, pointing to a local folder of the recording PC, linked to the Central SQL Database. Data will be recorded here.
- Working Area: Local type, pointing to a folder shared on the network, linked to the Central SQL Database. Data will be moved here at the end of the recording.

New resource	New resource
Name: Acquisition	Name: WorkingArea
Root path: D:\Micromed Local\ ····	Root path: \\main_Storage\BQ Working Area\
Resource type: 😱 Local resource 💌	Resource type: 😱 Local resource 👻
Provider: SQL	Provider: SQL
Server name: MAIN_SERVER Username:	Server name: MAIN_SERVER Username:
Database: MICROMED_DB Password:	Database: MICROMED_DB Password:
Select database 🔻	Select database 🔻
OK Cancel	OK Cancel

Acquisition Resource

Working Area Resource

REVIEW STATION

Here is an example of the resources typically defined in a **review station**, which, in general, is intended to review data and create reports:

- Acquisition: Local type, pointing to a folder shared on the network by the recording PC, linked to the Central SQL Database. Data will be recorded here.
- Acquisition LTM: Local type, pointing to a folder shared on the network by the recording PC, linked to the SQL Database of the recording unit. Data will be recorded here and no network is necessary to run.
- Working Area: Local type, pointing to a folder shared on the network, linked to the Central SQL Database. Data will be moved here at the end of the recording.
- **Multistorage**: Multi-storage type, pointing to a local folder of the Server or shared on the network, linked to the Central SQL Database. Data will be archived here.

New resource	New resource							
Name: Acquisition	Name: Acquisition LTM							
Root path: D:\Micromed Local\	Root path: \\Acquisition_LTM\Micromed Local\							
Resource type: 😱 Local resource 🔻	Resource type: 📮 Local resource 👻							
Provider:	Provider: SQL							
Server name: MAIN_SERVER Username:	Server name: Acquisition_LTM Username:							
Database: MICROMED_DB Password:	Database: LTM_1 Password:							
Select database 🔻	Select database 🔻							
OK Cancel	OK Cancel							

Acquisition Resource

Acquisition LTM Resource

New resource	New resource								
Name: WorkingArea	Name: Multistorage								
Root path: \\main_Storage\BQ Working Area\	Root path: \\main_Storage\BQ Multistorage\ ••••								
Resource type: 🔛 Local resource 👻	Resource type: 🖉 Multi-storage 👻								
Provider: SQL	Provider: SQL (linked database)								
Server name: MAIN_SERVER Username:	Server name: MAIN_SERVER Username:								
Database: MICROMED_DB Password:	Database: MICROMED_DB Password:								
Select database 🔻	Select database 🔻								
OK Cancel	OK Cancel								

Working Area Resource

Multistorage Resource

FILTERING VIEW

The number of patients stored inside Micromed database can be significant resulting in a huge amount of studies to manage. In order to easily find a specific patient or study, or to perform operation on a group of studies it is possible to filter current view.

FILE MANAGER offers a Filter tool which allows to filter patients and studies displayed according to a collection of searching criteria.

Note. It is possible to set up to six different criteria which can be applied at a time.

Clicking the **Filter** button on the ribbon bar (View Tab) the Filtering panel will open allowing the user to set filtering criteria.



Filtering Panel

Filtering panel consists of three main parts:

- the upper section, where it is possible to select a custom filter among the saved ones or create a new filter by saving a collection of searching criteria
- the Patient filters pane, where it is possible to choose patient related fields as filtering criteria

- the Exam filters pane, where it is possible to select information related to exam as filtering criteria
- the **File filters** pane, where it is possible to select information related to statistic items at file level as filtering criteria

FILTERING ON PATIENTS

The Patient filters pane allows user to choose filtering criteria among all available patient related fields. Most of filters available are editable text fields, such as patient <u>first name</u> and <u>last name</u>, patient ID number or patient's notes.

iltering		÷	×	Filte	Filtering	9								₩ 3
	8	Select Filter	•	ering							E	Î	Select Filt	er 🔻
^ Patient filters					^ Pat	ient filt	ers							P
Last exam date					Birt	ndate								
Today					From	n				To 1	0/14/	2022		
This week					Gen	d 🖣		N	1ay 20	22		+		
Last week						L S	Μ	Т	W	Т	F	S		
This month						24	25	26	27	28	29	30		
Last month						F 1	2	3	4	5	6	7		
This year					ID1	8 15	9 16	10	11	12	13 20	14 21		
Last year						22	23	24	25	26	27	28		
^ Date range					ID2	29	30	31	1	2	3	4		
From	To 10/14/2022							Toda	y	Clear				
					Last	exam da	te						-	
				1		÷ .								

Filtering on Patients

It is possible to easily filter on patients on the base of their "Birthdate" or focusing on the most recent study filtering on the "Last Exam Date" field; for the both fields it is possible to easily set a specific time interval making use of the calendar or choosing among standard date ranges, as shown in the previous pictures.

For some fields Filter tool allows to choose among a pre-compiled list of values:

- The <u>Gender</u> filter contains a check box for each of the three available options (Male, Female, Unspecified).
- The <u>Doctor</u> filter contains a scrollable list of all doctors saved in the database of the current resource.
- The <u>Hospital Department</u> filter contains a scrollable list of all hospital departments saved in the database of the current resource.

Filtering			÷×
	B	Î	Select Filter 💌
^ Patient filters			
This week			
Comment			
Hospital department			
Select or leave blank			-
Emergency Neurology			
Marker			
Select or leave blank			•
Patient advanced filters			
✓ Exam filters			•

Filtering on Patients – Hospital department

• The <u>Marker</u> filter contains a scrollable list of all markers saved in the database of the current resource.

Finally, there is a **Patient advanced filters** section where it is possible to filter for further details, such as insurance details, physical data etc.

FILTERING ON STUDIES

The Exam filters pane allows user to choose filtering criteria among all available information related to studies and related files.

Filters available on exam allow for example to display:

- Only specific type of studies, such as EEG or EMG
- All EEG studies recorded last week or in a specific date range
- All EEG studies to be reviewed by a specific doctor

It is possible to easily filter on studies on the base of their type or focus on examinations performed in a specific date range filtering on the "Recording Date" field; for the latter field it is possible to easily set a specific time interval making use of the calendar or choosing a standard date range, as shown in the picture below.

Filtering	Filtering						Ē	Ŵ	► × Select Filter ▼						
	✓ Patient filters														
	^ Exam filters														
	Recording date														
	Today														
	This week														
	Last week														
	This month														
	Last month														
	This year														
	Las	t year													
	∧ Da	te rang	je												
	From					To 10)/14/2	022							
	Code	4		Jan	uary 2	022		•							
		S	Μ	Т	W	Т	F	S							
	Comm	26	27	28	29	30	31	1							
		2	3	4	5	б	7	8							
	Hospit	9	10	11	12	13	14	15							
	Select	16	17	18	19	20	21	22	-						
		23	24	25	26	27	28	29							
	Reque	30	31	1	2	3	4	5							
	Select			Today	/	Clear									
	Doctor														

Filtering on Studies – Recording Date

For field such as exam <u>Code</u> and <u>Comment</u> it is possible to search by typing free text, like keywords, in an editable textbox.

As for patients, for some exam related fields Filter tool allows to choose among a pre-compiled list of values:

- The <u>Doctor</u>, <u>Technician</u> and <u>Requesting Doctor</u> filters contain the list of all doctors and technicians saved in the database.
- The <u>Hospital Department</u> field contains a scrollable list of all hospital departments saved in the database of the current resource.
- The <u>Marker</u> filter contains the list of all available markers.

Finally, the <u>Flags</u> filter groups all the flags which can be assigned to a study in a box containing a check box for each "Quick Search" flag and one for the "Corrupted Video" flag.

Note. "Quick Search" flags description can be customized to mark a study as desired; see the Labels Customization section of this manual for further details.

Filtering criteria on studies can be combined with filtering criteria related to patient, for example to visualize all EEG studies related to patients belonging to a specific hospital department or assigned to a specific doctor.

FILTERING ON FILES

The File filters pane allows user to choose filtering criteria among all available statistic fields present in database statistic tree and comment at file level.

Filters available on a file allow for example to display:

- Only a set of files with a specific comment
- All files related to a single or multiple statistic classes

This filtering tool is powerful if a statistic tree is defined in the selected database, and allows to display multiple files with the same classification.

Filters	🖹 📋 Select Filte	er
Patient filters		
Exam filters		
File filters		
Comment		
Additional info		
Class Description: sintomi		
coma non risvegliabile	\checkmark	
coma reattivo agli stimoli		
sopore		
confusione	\checkmark	
deficit motorio		
deficit sensitivo		
deficit funzioni corticali superiori		
deficit di memoria		
altri sintomi deficitari		
crisi parziali		
assenze		
crisi convulsive		
crisi non comprese nei gruppi precedenti		
stato di male parziale		
stato di male generalizzato convulsivo		
stato di male non compreso nei precedent		
cefalea		

ACTIVE FILTERS

It is possible to enable more than one filter at a time, i.e. to apply a collection of filtering criteria. All applied filters are shown in a dedicated panel which appears on top of the View pane above the patients and exams list when there is some filter active (see figure below).

lo 🕹 🚳	8 & 8 II II II &												
Patient quic	Patient quick search Click here and type part of the patient's 'Family name', 'Given name' or 'Identification' to search. Use ',' to separate multiple search values												
Applied	Applied filters Exam type: EEG X												
🖵 Work	Working Resource • 🗄 Patient 01												
Gender	Patient 🔺	Birthdate	Age	ID1			□ @		Recording date 🔻	Comment	Marker	Locked By Backgro	
ੰ	Patient 01	2023/10/18	0		•	e te			2024/01/18 4:11:03				-
					Œ	•	- Q		2024/01/18 11:37:3				
					Œ	•	□=		2024/01/18 11:36:4				

Applied Filter Summary

From the "Applied filters" panel it is possible to clear active filters one by one, i.e. to reset only the selected filter, by clicking the "X" button. Alternatively, the user can reset ALL the filters by clicking the **Clear all** button on the ribbon bar (or in the Quick Access toolbar, if added), as highlighted in the image below.

120										File	Manager			
	Home View Setu	IP Neurowerk EE	G Neuro	werk EMG Br	ainQuick Neu	rowerk	Help							
C		obo ↔	∇	6	Ć			Ê	1					
Refresh Star	ndard Standard LTM Wi yout Split layout layout ov	orkflow Space verview equally	Filter Clea all	r Show patient S info	Show acquisition Sł list	now backg tasks	round S	how re list	source					
	Layout	Layout editing	g Filtering		Info panels			Resou	rces					
Be &e Be ■ ■ &e														
Patient qui	Patient quick search Click here and type part of the patient's 'Family name', 'Given name' or 'Identification' to search. Use ',' to separate multiple search values													
Applied	Applied filters Exam type: EEG ×													
Gender	Patient	Birthdate	Age ID	1	ID2				Recording date 🔹	Comment				
	Patient 01	2023/10/18	0			•	H			2024/01/18 4:11:03				
							H 🔍	□= @		2024/01/18 11:37:3				
							E	□		2024/01/18 11:36:4				

Clear All Filters

Note. Active filter applies to all views, that is if the user changes current layout, patients and studies displayed are only those satisfying the applied filtering criteria.

SAVING FILTERS

Filter tool allows to create custom filters, assign a friendly name and save them for quick access.

In the upper part of the Filtering panel there is a dropdown list with all available saved filters, as shown in the figure below. The user can select one of the pre-defined filter to quickly load and apply it searching for patients and/or studies of interest according to the customized criteria.

Filterin	Filtering	m =								
g			EEG Clipped Studies V							
	✓ Patient filters		NoFilter							
	 Exam filters 									
	Exam type	Study cor	ntains							
	EEG	Video	o							
	EEG clipped	Repo	rt							
Saved Filters										

Next to the filters list there are a "Save" and a "Delete" button which allow to save a collection of filtering criteria as custom filter and to remove a saved filter, respectively.

To save a filter:

1. Fill in one or more search criteria in the Filtering pane and apply the filter.

- 2. Click on the "Save" filter button.
- 3. Enter the name of the filter to be saved and press the "Save" button.

From now on, the saved filter will be available among custom filters and the user can apply it by selecting it from the dropdown list on the top right corner of the Filtering pane.

To remove a custom filter, first apply the filter to be removed, then click on the "Delete" filter button to the left side of the custom filters list.

PATIENT QUICK SEARCH

In the Archive module it is also possible to quickly search for a specific patient or group of patients thanks to the **Patient quick search** box available on top of the View panel above the Patients List itself.

Entering patient name, last name or identification the patients list will be filtered in **real time** showing only patients who match current searching criterium; more criteria can be combined using ";" as separator. The order for patient search is First Name ; Last Name ; ID1.

							File	e Man	ager		micr	omed	mi_test	S	ê -		×
	Home View Setu	up Neurowerk E	EG Ne	urowerk EMG	Brain	Quick	Ne	eurow	verk	Help							^
Refresh Star	Person Standard Standard LTM Workflow Space Filter Clear Show patient Show patient																
🐻 🕹 🐼	8 🖬 📲 🔕																
Patient qui	atient quick search Pat																
- Wor	Working Resource																
Gender	Patient •	Birthdate	Age	ID1				. @		Recording date 💌	Comment	Marker		Locked E	y Backgro		
ď	Patient 01	2023/10/18	0		-		•			2024/01/18 4:11:03							-
ି ପ	Patient 02 Patient 03	2024/01/18 2022/09/12	0			E I	ຳ			2024/01/18 2:12:33							
o"	Patient 04	2024/01/18	0					0							_		
Ŷ	Patient 05	2021/12/20	2			±	2 -	ع		2024/01/18 11:37:3							
						± 💷	•			2024/01/18 11:36:4							
Patients per	page 30 👻 Total	patients: 5 🛛 🕬	4 Page 1 d	of1 ⊮ ⊮ p	e 1 >	Total	exam	5:4									*
Databas	e online	LINE Distributed co	- nfiguration	Work	ing Resource	ce - File	syste	m ava	ailable								⇒

Patient Quick Search

To reset patient list visualization and show all the patients click the "x" button on the right corner of the quick search box.

BASIC OPERATIONS

BASIC OPERATIONS ON PATIENTS

All basic operations the user can perform on patient are quickly accessible from the Patients List.

Right-clicking on a patient record will present a contextual menu showing all the actions available:

- Move to: this action allows moving the selected patient from one resource to another that is linked to the same database. The patient will be no longer available in the source resource, as it has been moved to the target resource.
- **Copy to**: this action allows copying the selected patient from a resource linked to a database to a resource linked to a different database. After the copy, the patient in the source resource will be still present, and any changes made on it will not affect the patient copied in the target resource.

<u> </u>	· ·-						,	
ď	Patient 01		2024/01/10		0			
Ŭ		O	Copy to	۲	0	25		
		ම 1	Move to	١.	🖵 Loca	ale_S322		
		0	Modify		D			
		Ŵ	Remove		D			
		•	Set marker to "Read"		0			
l. I la		1	2023/11/20		0			

Patient – Basic Operations

- Modify: this action allows editing patient information by accessing the "Modify patient" window.
- **Remove**: this action allows removing the selected patient from the Patients List and delete all of its related exams.

Note. **Patient removal requires confirmation by the user**. If the user confirms patient removal but at least one exam related to the selected patient has not been archived yet, a further popup appears warning about the possibility to lose unsaved data and suggesting to cancel the operation. The user can decide if continue or not. If patient removal is confirmed, the patient and all associated exams will be permanently deleted.

Figure below shows the warning message displayed: answer "Yes" if any unsaved data to avoid data loss, answer "No" to confirm patient removal.



• Set marker to "Read": this action allows marking the selected patient as "read" in order to trigger the automatic archiving procedure; typically used after the exams of the selected patient are reviewed by the doctor/technician.

Note. A patient can be marked as "read" only if all the related exams are already marked as "read" or

"to delete".

If a patient has no associated VEEG exams and one or more exams are not marked yet, the following popup will appear:



The popup will notify the user that the patient cannot be set to "read" since one or more EEG exams do not contain any GREEN flag (used to select parts of the EEG exam to keep) and the operation will be aborted.

<u>If a patient has associated VEEG exam</u> and one or more exams are not yet marked, the following popup will appear:



The popup will notify the user that one or more VEEG exams do not contain any RED flags (used to select parts of the VEEG exam to keep). The user will be asked if they would like to add the RED flags manually:

1. Choosing "Yes", the user will be prompted to work on each single exams (at a later time) and the patient will not be marked as "read".



2. Choosing "No", the user will be asked whether to maintain all videos ("Keep ALL") or to delete them all ("Delete ALL"). After selecting one of these options and pressing the "OK" button, the patient will be marked as "read", as well as all its associated exams. The user will still be able to abort the operation by clicking the "Cancel" button.

Set marker to "read"	
No RED selection found on some VideoEEG files. Please make your choice for ALL Video files of ALL exams (exams	without Archiving selection)
Keep ALL	
O Delete ALL	
	Cancel OK

Operations on Multiple patients' selection

File Manager allows to select multiple patients from patients list (Ctrl + click or Shift + click). Right clicking on the multiple patient's selection, it is possible to perform the following operations, that follow the rules of single patient selection:

- Copy To: all patients and related exams will be copied to the destination resource
- Move To: all patients and related exams will be moved to the destination resource
- Remove: all patients and related exams will be removed from the selected resource

Direct Patient Info Editing

In the Archive module it is also possible to directly edit Patient information acting on Patients list columns.

For example, the user can quickly enter patient **Comment** by directly typing into the related column or he can easily assign exam **Doctor**, **Marker**, or **Hospital Department** by selecting the desired value among the available options in the drop-down menu which opens by clicking the "pencil" icon in related column.

Ç	Abagnale Valeria		1977/12/23	45
Q	Abagni Egidia		1935/11/05	
0 ⁷			1975/05/10	48
0 ⁷	Abalintoaiei losif		1983/08/10	40
Q	Abalos Reimineta	Seizure dete	1951/12/15	71
				Update Cancel
	Abaoub lazia		1046/10/02	Update Cancel
Ç			1946/10/02	Update Cancel
Ç O	Abaoub Jazia Abarra Robert		1946/10/02 1971/10/03	Update Cancel 77 52 51654781 51654781
Ç ♂ ♂	Abaoub Jazia Abarra Robert Abas Mounir	LOMBOISCHIALGI	1946/10/02 1971/10/03 1965/01/01	Update Cancel 77 52 51654781 58
♀ ぺ ぺ	Abaoub Jazia Abarra Robert Abas Mounir Abas Mohamed El Mash	LOMBOISCHIALGI controllo coma po	1946/10/02 1971/10/03 1965/01/01 1954/04/11	Update Cancel 77 5 52 51654781 58 6 69 51048193



Gender	Patient	Birthdate	Doctor	Hospital department	Age	ID1
o^*	Francesco Zacchi	31/10/2023	1	Neurology	0	
			doctor 1			
			doctor 2			
			doctor 3			
			Rossi Luca			

Patient Fields editing
Concurrency

FILE MANAGER does not allow some operations on patient in case of **concurrency**, i.e. if some exam related to the patient is open or under elaboration, such as editing, removal or transfer, OR if the patient itself is "locked" for modification, removal or transfer by another workstation of the system.

A popup message will appear warning the user the operation cannot be performed when such action is temporarily blocked for concurrency matter; the message displays the name of the machine "locking" the patient and the cause of the block in brackets.



BASIC OPERATIONS ON EXAMS

All basic operations the user can perform on a selected exam are quickly accessible from the Exam List or the Exam pane, according to current layout.

Double clicking on a single exam opens the exam primary file with its associated application, such as Brain Quick software for EEG studies; this allows the user to review the recorded study with the suitable application.

⊞ Pat 12					
- Q 🗋 🍈	Recording date	-	Comment	Marke	er
E 🔍 🗋	2022/07/14 2:15:	57	commento	marke	er1 🖍
	ດີ ເ ເ ນີ ເ ນີ ເ ນີ ເ ນີ ເ ນີ ເ ເ ເ ເ ເ ເ	S C S C S S C S S C S S C S S C S S C S S C S S C S S S C S	Open Copy to Modify Remove Export to Viewer Reduce	•	
	ල ල ස්	js SS	et marker to "To Delet et Exam to Done oin with	e"	

Exam – Basic Operations

Right-clicking on an exam presents a contextual menu that allows the user to perform the following operations:

1. **Open** the exam file with the associated application, if it is installed; otherwise, a warning message will appear notifying the user that the expected application is not installed.

IMPORTANT NOTE: If the selected exam is CNS Moberg, a further option Open With is available, which allows the user to choose the specific application to use for the exam review. Options available are: CNS Envision, Brain Quick and Persyst. If the selected application is not installed the CNS exam is not open.

- 2. **Copy** the selected exam and related patient **to** the chosen resource. This option copies ONLY the selected exam; to copy all the exams for the patient, see the "Copy to" in the Patients list.
- 3. Modify the exam through the "Modify exam" dialog (see Home Tab section for further details)
- 4. **Remove** the selected exam. In order to remove the selected exam, it is required for the exam to be accessible through current resource, i.e. it is required for the exam files to belong to the current resource path.
- 5. Set the marker to "Read", i.e. mark the selected exam as "read" (ready to be archived).

Note. An exam can be marked as "read" only if it contains GREEN/RED flags (used to select which part of EEG/Video EEG to keep).

If the exam has no associated Video EEG files and no flags are present, the following message will appear:



By clicking "Yes", File Manager will alert the user to work at exam level to insert the desired flags. If instead the user chooses "No", the exam will be marked as read.

If the exam has associated Video EEG files and no RED flags are present, the following message will appear:



By clicking "Yes", File Manager will alert the user to work at exam level to insert the desired flags.

By clicking "No", the user will be asked whether to maintain all the videos ("Keep ALL") or to delete them all ("Delete ALL"). After selecting one of these options and pressing the "OK" button, the selected exam will be marked as "read". The user will be able to abort the operation by clicking the "Cancel" button.

Set marker to "read"								
No RED selection found on this VideoEEG file. Please make your choice for ALL Video files of the exam								
Keep ALL								
O Delete ALL								
	Cancel	OK						

Note. If no GREEN/RED flags are inserted and the "Keep ALL" option is chosen, the entire EEG trace with related videos is kept when the exam clipping is performed; it is highly recommended to save storage space avoiding to archive not interesting data.

6. **Reduce**, which allows the user to create a reduction task for the selected exam according to the selected reduction protocol.

Note. This option is available ONLY for EEG and Video EEG exam, not yet archived, recorded with Micromed Acquisition Software.

After clicking on this item, a dialog will open to allow the user to select a suitable reduction protocol among the available ones from a refreshable drop-down list. Once the reduction protocol is chosen, the user can send a reduction request to the Brain Quick Background Reduction Service by clicking the "Start reduction" button.

Reduction protocol selection	
Reduction protocol selection	
Legacy Protocol	▼ ⊖ Refresh
	Start reduction Cancel

Note. Background Reduction Service in embedded inside Brain Quick Software, FILE MANAGER sends a reduction request to Brain Quick Software when the "Start reduction" buttons is clicked. If Brain Quick Software is not installed, it will not be possible to perform EEG reduction

A new reduction task will automatically appear in the Background Tasks panel reporting related progress status and further details, as illustrated in the dedicated section before.

If the reduction request fails for some reason, the related task is marked as failed and a brief description of the occurred error is available clicking on the info icon which appears next to the task status.



7. **Export to Viewer**, which allows to export the selected trace to a ".vwr" format that can be opened using external viewer programs.

Clicking this item will open the "Export to Viewer" dialog, where it is possible to choose whether to also include the video, events, and analyser files related to the selected trace. It is even possible to export Viewer program to easily open exported data. Program export will be successful just in case Brain Quick Viewer is installed in the machine.

Another option is to keep the exported exam anonymous, by checking the related option.

Note. This option is available ONLY for EEG exams recorded with Micromed Acquisition Software.

Base settings	Advanced settings
✓ Trace	Anonymize file
Video	
Analyzer File	
Export viewer program	
Destination folder	
Folder path	
C:\Users\ma_anto\Documents\Mii	cromed\FileManager\Export Viewer

8. Join with, which allows to join EEG or Video EEG traces associated to the same patient into a unique one.

Clicking this item will open the "Join with" dialog where it is possible to choose EEG recordings to be joined with the selected one in the Exams list.

II @ 🗋 🌐	Recording Date	Comment	
	10/18/2022 9:57:25 AM		
2	10/18/2022 10:00:00 AM		
2	10/18/2022 10:02:34 AM		

Note. This option is available ONLY for EEG exams recorded with Micromed Acquisition Software. The functionality does not handle the joining process when the traces exhibit different connections. Moreover, it only combines EEG data, even when video files are present, as the merging of video files is not supported.

9. Set marker to "To Delete", i.e. mark the exam as ready to be deleted. Exam marked as "to delete" will be discarded by the auto-archive procedure and automatically deleted.

A double confirmation is required for marking an exam as "to delete", since it will be permanently removed during the auto-archive procedure and not archived at all.

	40	~	-		n	E
Ра	τı	e	n	ι	U	С

	□ Q [] (þ	Recording date	Comment	Marker	Doctor	Locked By BackGround Copy
æ	• D		8/5/2021 8:27:48 AM			Red Paul	
æ			12/1/2022 2:26:03 PM		To Delete		
æ	D:		12/1/2022 2:29:21 PM				

Note. Exams marked as "to delete" are considered by the auto-delete procedure ONLY if related patient is marked as "read".

- 10. Reset Marker, allows to remove a marker that has been set for the selected exam
- 11. Close Job allows to close working cycle in case of patient imported with HL7 environment. The option will be visible among the basic operations only if it has been enabled from options. See section related to HL7 integration for further information.

Direct Exam Info Editing – Exam level

In the Archive module it is also possible to directly edit Exam information acting on Exams list columns.

For example, the user can quickly enter exam **Comment** by directly typing into the related column or he can easily assign exam **Doctor**, **Technician** or **Hospital Department** by selecting the desired value among the available options in the drop-down menu which opens by clicking the "pencil" icon in related column.

🖙 🔍 🗋 Recording date 👻 Comment Marker Locked By Backgro...

ę	۲	02/1	1/2023 5:39:2	Multiple seiz		P				
								Upd	ate	Cancel
				Comme	nt e	diting				
		-				-				
Pa	atient 0	5								_
	- Q []	🖙 🍳 🗋 ጮ Recording dat		late 🔺	Com	ment	Docto	Doctor H		0
æ	□= 🔍 2021/08/05 8:2			8:26:52 AM		Green		n Michelle	Neu	
-	œ []	0	2021/08/05	8:27:48 AM	Seizu	ire det	White	e Leonard	·	
							Gree	n Michelle		•
	_		4				Prof	Elger	►	
lotal e	exams: 2						Red	Paul		
202	21/08/0	5 8	:27:48 AN	Λ			Whi	te Leonard		
	Record	ing d	ate	Doctor		Technician				
٩	2021/0	8/05	8:27:48 AM	White Leon	ard					•
C	2021/0	8/05	8:27:48 AM	White Leon	ard					
N R	2021/0	8/06	2:53:37 PM	White Leon	ard					
N PA	2021/08/09 3:44:46 PM			White Leon	ard					
0	2022/0	9/29	2:29:20 PM	White Leon	ard					
	2023/0	3/15	12:40:26 PM	White Leon	ard					-
4									Þ	

Exam Fields editing

Note. Modifications related to "Doctor", "Technician", "Requesting Doctor" and "Hospital Department" fields will automatically apply to all the files associated to the edited exam.

Concurrency

FILE MANAGER does not allow some operations on exam in case of **concurrency**, i.e. if some file related to the exam is open or under elaboration, such as editing or removal, OR if the exam itself is "locked" for modification, removal or transfer by another workstation of the system.

A popup message will appear warning the user the operation cannot be performed when such action is temporarily blocked for concurrency matter; the message displays the name of the machine "locking" the exam and the cause of the block in brackets.

Pa	atient Z									
	r Q 🗋 🌐	Recording dat	e 🔹	Comment	Hospita	I Depart	Marke	r		
i	B	2022/10/17 5:	32:07 PM				Pre-va	ilu 🏝		
Q	B	1								
FileManager × Total exams: 2 Cannot perform operation: AG-GIULNL in Open, 2013/11/19 12:05 OK										
	Recording d	ate	INOTES	Doctor	Ie	chnician	1	Lo		
ê 4	2013/11/19	12:05:53 PM	E-Stim	Prof. Elge	r 🖌		1	w ^		
	۵ 2013/11/19	12:05:53 PM					1	W		
0	2022/11/30	5:30:53 PM					١	W		
1 T-h-14	ilos 2						[•		

In addition, if there is any on-going review session or report file is open or any "locking" operation is in progress, the Exam is highlighted in a different color in the Exams list and all the Files interested by the "locking" operation, such as trace file, video, events file, analysis file and/or report, are visually marked as "locked" by a "lock" icon which appears at file level (as shown in the image).

Note. Exam or single file **editing** and **removal** are "blocking" operations, i.e. no action is temporarily allowed on Exam and File; instead, if an exam or a file is open it is possible to open it again in another workstation (collaboration): the user will be notified about it and asked to confirm the file opening.

FileManager	×
	File being used by AG-GIULNL (Open). Continue anyway?
	Yes No

Basic Operations on Multiple Exams

Exams list allows to select multiple exams and apply the same action at the same time.

Keep the "Ctrl" or "Shift" button pressed and select multiple exams, then right-click on the selection: a contextual menu will appear allowing the user to perform the following operations:

- 1. Copy to, to copy all selected examinations (and related files) to a target resource at the same time.
- Modify, to modify the same information in all the selected exams at the same time. The "Modify all" dialog will display all common editable fields, such as Doctor, Technician, Hospital Department etc.; modification(s) will apply to all files related to each selected exam.

D1		ID2		
ast name	Patient	First name	γ	
irthdate	2021/08/09	Gender	Male	
tle		Maiden name		
am path	D:\MicromedDisk\MicromedData\WorkingArea\Archive Micromed\PA	T_17		
Standaı	rd fields			
Exams		Marker		
Code		Doctor		-
Marke	۲ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Requesting	Doctor	White Leonard
Comm	ient	Technician		
		Hospital De	partment	Neurology

Note. If any exam has some value already assigned for the edited field(s) the user is warned and asked to confirm the overriding of the existing value(s) with the new one(s).



- 3. **Remove**, to remove all the selected exams at a time. Exams must belong to current resource path to be effectively removed.
- 4. Set marker to "Read", i.e. mark all the selected exams as "read" (ready to be archived).
- 5. Set marker to "To Delete", i.e. mark all the selected exams as ready to be deleted; such exams will be discarded by the automatic archive procedure and definitively removed.
- 6. **Reset marker**, to remove all "read" or "to delete" markers assigned to any of the selected exams.



Multiple Exams – Basic operations

BASIC OPERATIONS ON EXAMS FILES

All basic operations the user can perform on a selected file are quickly accessible from the inner level of the Exam List or the File pane, according to current layout.

Double clicking on a single file opens it with its associated application. Note. Only EEG (EMG-EP) trace files, report file, and anamnesis file can be opened by double click.

	Recording date			Commen	t	Locati
e	2023/	11/28	3 9:18:49			
	2023/	(11/20 A	0.10.E0			
	2023/	/ .~	Modify			
C 1	2023/	W	Remove			
			Additiona	il info		

File – Basic Operations

Right clicking on a file shows a contextual menu with the following options:

 Modify, which opens a dedicated dialog for editing file information, as shown in the figure below. Like the "Modify exam" dialog, the "Modify file" dialog shows the patient information in read-only mode. The drop-down menus for the "Doctor" and "Technician" are filled in with the doctors and technicians added using the "New Doctor" / "New Technician" buttons in the Setup Tab.

01		ID2	
ast name	Patient	First name	x
rthdate	8/9/2021	Gender	Female
tle		Maiden	
le path 🖟	Archive Micromed\PAT_2\EEG_234.TRC		
Doctor Techni	r 🗸 🗸	Requesting Hospital De	poctor v epartment v
Doctor Techni Comm	r 🗸 🗸 🗸 r	Requesting Hospital De	Doctor

"Modify file" dialog window

2. Remove, which allows the user to remove the selected file. As is required for the removal of the entire exam, a file can be removed only if it belongs to the current resource.

Note. It is not possible to remove trace file, act at exam level for such purpose.

3. Additional info, which allows the user to assign additional information (custom fields) to current recording. It is possible to assign different fields to each trace file and for each additional information it is possible to select multiple values from a pre-compiled list.

Medications		
Noradrenalin		
Oiamox		
Olanzapine		
Oxazepam		
Oxycodone		
Opioids		
l Epilepsy		
Yes	×	
No		
Crisis type		
Focal simple		
Focal complex		
Focal with 2nd generalization		
Generalized	\checkmark	
Exam type		
EEG standard		
EEG 1H		
EEG 2H	>	
EEG 3H		
EEG 4H		
EEG 24H		
EEG night		
Control		
EEG monitoring		

Additional Info

Note. Additional information available must have been defined as statistic items in SystemPLUS Evolution. FILE MANAGER only read statistic items defined in Micromed database and allows the assignment to EEG recordings.

Additional info assigned to a specific recording can be visualized in the Exams list at file level by selecting the information to show through the Column Chooser, as shown in figure below.

Recording date	Comment	Location	Medications	Crisis type
2 1/12/2023 9:08:40 AM	Column	Chooser \times	 Noradrenalin	Generalized
	Search Columns	5		
	✓ Medication	IS 🔺		
	Epilepsy			
	🗹 Crisis type			
	🗌 Exam type			
	Undefined	Statistic Co		

Note. Only the first six additional information classes can be selected as column to display on the Exams list; if less than six classes have been defined Undefined Statistic Column option will appear in the Column Chooser list.

Direct File Info Editing - File level

In the Archive module it is also possible to directly edit File information acting on Exams list columns at file level.

As for Exam, the user can quickly enter file **Comment** by directly typing into the related column and he can easily assign **Doctor**, **Technician**, **Requesting Doctor** and **Hospital Department** by selecting the desired value among the available options in the drop-down menu which open by clicking the "pencil" icon in related column.

	Recording date	Comment	Doctor	Technician	Location	
æ	2017/02/25 5:33:39 PM		White Leonard		Working Area	*
⊛	2017/12/19 4:25:28 PM				Working Area	
W HK	2023/02/16 10:38:52 AM	Review	0		Working Area	
						-

017/02/25 5.22.20 014

Comment editing

201	17/02/25 5:33:39 PM					
	Recording date	Doctor	Technician	Location	Storage	
•	2017/02/25 5:33:39 PM	White Leonard 💉	1 (2)	Working Area		*
	2017/12/19 4:25:28 PM			Working Area		
M 90	2023/02/16 10:38:52 AM	Green Michelle		Working Area		
		Spring Lucy Verdi Michela				
		White Leonard	J			•
4					•	
Total f	iles: 3					

File Fields editing

Concurrency

FILE MANAGER does not allow some operations on single file in case of concurrency, i.e. if the file is temporarily "locked" since it is open or under elaboration, such as editing, removal or transfer.

A popup message will appear warning the user the operation cannot be performed when such action is temporarily blocked for concurrency matter; the message displays the name of the machine "locking" the exam and the cause of the block in brackets.

Pa	tient	: 05												
	⊡ @		Record	ing dat	e	•	Code	÷		Doct	tor		Hosp	
-	- Q		2021/0	8/05 8:	26:52 A	M				Gree	n Michel	lle	Neur	•
-	B		2021/0	8/05 8:	27:48 A	M				Whit	e Leonar	rd 🖌		
Total e	xams:	2 3/05 8	·27·48	FileMa	nager	Cannot AG-GIUI	perforn LNL (Oj	n operation ben)	× 1:]			Þ	•
	Rec	ording d	ate					OK			Notes			
œ	202	1/08/05	8:27:48	AIVI	wnite	Leona	ra							*
	¤ 202	1/08/05	8:27:48	٩M										
-)w	202	1/08/06	2:53:37	РМ	Rossi	Paolo	1			1				
W	202	1/08/09	3:44:46 I	РМ										
ſ) 202	2/09/29	2:29:20	РМ										
	202	3/03/15	12:40:26	PM										
														٣
•													•	

In addition, the Exam to which the "locked" file is associated is highlighted in a different color in the Exams list and the File itself is visually marked as "locked" by a "lock" icon (as shown in the image).

Note. File **editing** and **removal** are "blocking" operations, i.e. no action is temporarily allowed on such file; instead, if the file is open it is possible to open it again in another workstation (collaboration): the user will be notified about it and asked to confirm the file opening.

FileManager			\times
	File being used by AG-GIULNL (C)pen). Conti	inue anyway?
		Yes	No

BASIC OPERATIONS ON VISIT

As described before a visit is a collection of exams; in particular, LTM visit groups EEG (Video EEG) recordings performed under the same LTM recording session.

All basic operations the user can perform on a selected visit are quickly accessible from the right-click contextual menu; options available are:

- **Open**, which allows to directly open the entire visit, i.e. all trace and video files, with the application associated; if the latter is not installed, a warning message will appear notifying the user of the inability to open the selected visit.
- Show Overview, which allows to open the Events Overview Panel

It is also possible to open a visit by a double click, like for exams and files.

Show Overview

File Manager allows to visualize all events contained in a single visit. From LTM Layout view, right clicking on a visit, click on Show Overview.



This function open the events overview panel, which allows to visualize all events contained in all grouped traces. From the panel, it is possible to refresh the view in case of new events insertion, or to filter and look for specific events in the visit. It is a dockable panel so it can be moved and pinned within FILE MANAGER main window or be kept separate in a second monitor.

					Events Overview		д	×	
	- Q]	Recording date 🔹	Code	Π	S	Search			
	œ	06/12/2023 3:24:1			Туре	Text	Position		
					Photic selection		15:26:20,746	1	
					 O Hyperventilation 		15:26:25,779		
					W ASeizure		15:26:30,736		
				T					
Total	risits: 1 - Selecter	• 1							
Ð									
	- Q 🗋	Recording date	Comment						
H		06/12/2023 4:02:5							
H		06/12/2023 3:26:1							
E	-	06/12/2023 3:24:1							
Total e	exams: 3								r
.otur t								- L	

Double clicking on a single event, makes Brain Quick Software open the related exam and move to the temporal position related to the selected event.

ADVANCED FUNCTIONALITIES

Feature described in following sections are advanced functionality and may not be available for standard user.

MERGE PATIENTS

FILE MANAGER allows to manually merge two patients when a patient has been erroneously duplicated with different demographic data in order to collect all patient's studies under the correct patient.

Important Note. Manually patients merge is enabled ONLY if HL7 Interface is NOT active; with HL7 integration enabled, MERGE operations are automatically handled according to ADT messages received from the Hospital Information System.

From the Patients List, it is possible to merge two patients, that is to associate all exams (and related files) of a patient to another patient. After the merge operation, the obsolete patient (erroneously defined) will be deleted from database.

Note. The "Merge Patients" functionality is available for authorized user only, i.e. user with the "Can Manually Merge Patient" permission.

Merging two patients is a critical operation and can be performed only if the obsolete patient is not locked by background copy nor is under archiving.

To merge two patients, select the obsolete patient in the Patients List, right-click and choose the "Modify" option in the contextual menu. The **Merge with** button is at the bottom of the "Modify patient" window. By clicking on it, a password will be required and then the "Merge Patients" window will appear with a list of all available patients in the database, as shown in the figure below:

Last nameIcitationIcitationIcitationPatientT7/19/2004ID1ID2Patient0712/9/2000ICItationICItationPatient0712/9/2020ICItationICItationPatientF9/21/2022ICItationICItationPatientZ9/12/2022ICItationICItationPatient119/12/2022ICItationICItationPatient027/20/1964ICItationICItationPatient107/21/1976ICItationICItationPatient037/21/2021ICItationICItationPatient066/13/2010ICItationICItationPatient119/12/1955PT001XX68030ICItationPatientX8/9/2021ICItationICItationPatient058/4/2021ICItationICItationPatientX8/4/2021ICItationICItationPatientICItation8/4/2021ICItationICItationPatientICItation8/4/2021ICItationICItationPatientICItation8/4/2021ICItationICItationPatientICItation8/4/2021ICItationICItationPatientICItationICItationICItationICItationPatientICItationICItationICItationICItationPatientICItationICItationICItationICItationPatientICItation<	Last name	First name	Birthdate	ID1	ID2	
Patient T 7/19/2004 Image: Constraint of the system of	Last name	▼ First name	Birthdate	ID1	ID2	
Patient 07 12/9/2020 Image: Constraint of the system o	Patient	т	7/19/2004			
Patient F 9/21/2022 Indext Indext <thindext< th=""> Indext <thindext< th=""> Indext <thindext< th=""></thindext<></thindext<></thindext<>	Patient	07	12/9/2020			
Patient Z 9/1/2022 Image: Constraint of the symbol of	Patient	F	9/21/2022			
Patient 11 9/12/2022 Image: Constraint of the symbol o	Patient	Z	9/1/2022			
Patient 02 7/20/1964 end end Patient 12 5/2/1976 end	Patient	11	9/12/2022			
Patient 12 5/2/1976 Image: Constraint of the symbol of	Patient	02	7/20/1964			
Patient 10 7/2/1976 Image: Constraint of the state of the sta	Patient	12	5/2/1976			
Patient 04 6/22/1984 Patient 03 7/21/2021	Patient	10	7/2/1976			
Patient 03 7/21/2021 Patient 06 6/13/2010 Patient 01 9/12/1955 PT001XX68030 Patient X 8/9/2021 Patient 05 8/4/2021	Patient	04	6/22/1984			
Patient 06 6/13/2010 Patient 01 9/12/1955 PT001XX68030 Patient X 8/9/2021 Patient 05 8/4/2021	Patient	03	7/21/2021			
Patient 01 9/12/1955 PT001XX68030 Patient X 8/9/2021 Patient O5 8/4/2021 Patient Patient	Patient	06	6/13/2010			
X 8/9/2021 Patient 05 8/4/2021	Patient	01	9/12/1955	PT001XX68030		
Patient 05 8/4/2021	Patient	х	8/9/2021			
	Patient	05	8/4/2021			

The patients list can be filtered by "Last name", "First name", "Birth Date", "ID1" and "ID2" to quickly search for the patient to merge with. Once the correct patient is selected, click on the **Merge** button; the following message will appear:



The message warns the user that the MERGE operation will permanently reassign all exams and files to the selected patient and that the obsolete patient will be permanently deleted. By clicking "Yes" patients will be merged and the obsolete patient will be removed from Patients list; by clicking "No" the operation will be cancelled.

Note. The target patient selected for the merge operation cannot be locked by background copy nor be under archiving.

IMPORTANT NOTE. Archived exams, if any, are included in the MERGE operation, i.e. they are associated to the new patient.

REASSIGN PATIENT

FILE MANAGER allows users to re-assign an exam to a different patient, for example if the acquisition was performed under the wrong patient.

Important Note. Manually re-assignment of patient is enabled ONLY if HL7 Interface is NOT active; with HL7 integration enabled, such operations are handled according to requests received from the Hospital Information System.

It is possible to manually re-assign a study to a different patient directly from the Exams List.

To re-assign an exam select it, right-click and choose the "Modify" option in the contextual menu, the **Change Patient** button is at the bottom of the "Modify exam" dialog.

After clicking this button, the user will be required first to enter a password and then to confirm the action.



The message shown in the figure above warns the user that the CHANGE PATIENT operation permanently reassigns the selected exam and all associated files to another patient.

After giving confirmation, the "Change Patient" window shown in the figure below will appear, allowing the user to select the new patient.

iender	Patient	 Birthdate 	ID1	
്	Patient 01	9/12/1955	PT001XX68030	
ď	Patient 05	8/4/2021		
്	Patient 06	6/13/2010		
	Patient 07	12/9/2020		
്	Patient T	7/19/2004		
്	Patient X	8/9/2021		

Clicking "OK" will reassign the exam to the selected patient.

Note. The Change Patient functionality is available only for authorized user, i.e. user with the "Can Manually Reassign Patient" permission.

AUDIT TRAILING AND LOG SEARCH

FILE MANAGER offers the possibility to track user interaction with each workstation and record the execution of key functions to an audit log; in a networked environment such functionality is manage centrally, that is all significant activities performed by users within Micromed system are written to the **central Audit Log database** (on server).

To enable the audit trailing click the application button, enter the Settings area (Logging) and select the "Enable Audit Log" option:

Settings	
Display	Central
Archive	
	Log Settings
Lockdown	Log File Path
Acquisition List	MinLevel Log File
Licensing	
Licensing	Audit Log Settings
	Addit Log bettings
Logging	Enable Audit Log
Labels customization	



Note. Only authorized user with the "Can Modify Central Settings" permission can enable audit trail.

In the centralized Audit Log database are trailed all FILE MANAGER and Brain Quick software significant activities performed by the logged-in user.

Note. If users authentication is disabled (not recommended), there is an option in the logon preferences ("Use Environment Username") which allows to consider the domain user logged into the machine in the audit trail.

Audit Log Search

FILE MANAGER offers an embedded searching tool, the **Log Search**, which allows to search on the Audit Log trail focusing on a specific activity or a specific user.

Clicking the **Log Search** button on the ribbon bar (Home Tab) the "Audit Log Search" window will open; it consists of an upper pane where the user can insert search criteria and a lower panel where research results are displayed in tabular way.

Log Search tool allows to monitor all activities performed by a certain user on a specific machine or generally on the system; it also allows to focus on a specific activity.

It is possible to filter search results in a certain date range or for a specific machine.

Set desired criteria and click the "Search" icon to visualize search results. A navigation bar, above the results table, allows to easily scroll through different pages.

Search criteria					
Activity description	Date range From 11/07/2023 🖻 To 11/07/2023 🖻	User	Machine name	Resource name Strict search	
csv ¢	<	< 1 /			
Date (UTC)	Activity description	Machine name	User	Description	
2023-07-11 07:52:05	Labels customization	AG-GIULNL	ag giul	Labels customization	
2023-07-11 07:52:05	Configuring System Settings	AG-GIULNL	ag giul	Enabled Audit Log	
023-07-11 07:54:42	Database name	AG-GIULNL	ag giul	Select Resource	
023-07-11 08:04:22	Database name	AG-GIULNL	ag giul	Select Resource	
023-07-11 08:05:32	Edit File Information	AG-GIULNL	ag giul	Edit file information	
023-07-11 08:14:30	Edit File Information	AG-GIULNL	ag giul	Edit file information	
023-07-11 08:14:54	Configuring System Settings	AG-GIULNL	ag giul	Configure System Settings	
023-07-11 08:14:56	Labels customization	AG-GIULNL	ag giul	Labels customization	
023-07-11 08:15:23	Startup	AG-GIULNL	ag giul	Login at startup	
023-07-11 08:15:33	Database name	AG-GIULNL	ag giul	Select Resource	
023-07-11 08:29:54	Edit File Information	AG-GIULNL	ag giul	Edit file information	
023-07-11 08:31:29	Edit File Information	AG-GIULNL	ag giul	Edit file information	
023-07-11 08:42:58	Configuring System Settings	AG-GIULNL	ag giul	Configure System Settings	

Audit Log Search window

HL7 INTEGRATION

In FILE MANAGER it is possible to see, handle and process HL7 requests received from the Hospital Information System (HIS).

Micromed Suite offers a dedicated **HIS Settings configurator** where it is possible to set up HL7 Interface and enable HL7 requests management on authorized workstations; HL7 interface is based on both **Central** and **Machine** (local) settings which are stored in dedicated configuration files.

Central settings configuration is typically performed on **server** and it is inherited by all client stations involved in the HL7 requests management.

Machine settings configuration is performed on **single workstation** in order to set up local HL7 preferences; FILE MANAGER *Settings area* has a dedicated **HIS** settings panel for this purpose.

Note. HL7 Interface functionalities, both server and client side, are protected by specific license keys.

HIS REQUESTS WORKFLOW

Once HL7 interface is properly configured, FILE MANAGER offers a dedicated panel, the **Working List**, where all HL7 requests received from the Hospital Information System are displayed and can be imported to be executed.

It is possible to easily filter on received HIS requests and **import** patient-specific request within Micromed database as request associated to a new patient whose demographic data are automatically aligned with information received from the HIS.

Since then, patient data will be kept automatically **synchronized** (updated) with the central anagraphics handled by the Hospital Information System.

Finally, **report** document related to an imported HL7 request can be **exported in Pdf** format, i.e. sent back to the HIS, and there is also the possibility to handle subsequent versions of the same document before closing the loop.

IMPORT OF HIS REQUESTS INTO THE ARCHIVE

In the Archive module (FILE MANAGER) it is possible to import HIS request, such as order entry or appointment request, received from the Hospital Information System as a new patient with a pending exam to be executed; if the patient already exists in Patients database, the Archive will directly point to this patient.

Important Note. To activate the Working List panel and manage HIS requests on single workstation you need the *FMS HIS CLIENT* license enabled and the logged user must have the "*Can Access to External HIS Interface*" permission.

In addition, to export report and send it back to HIS the logged user must have the "*Can Export Report to HIS*" permission.

Working List panel

When HL7 Interface is properly configured and enabled, the **Working List** button appears in the Home tab of the archive window ribbon bar under the HIS functional group.



Clicking on the **Working List** button, the Working List appears; it is a dockable panel so it can be moved and pinned within FILE MANAGER main window or be kept separate in a second monitor.

		-						
C) Refresh	Import							
Patient Identifier	Last Name	First Name	Birthdate	Gender	High Priority	Exam Comment	Exam Department	Schedule Date
119	Ricci	Carlotta	1/28/1990	Ç	 	35002 - EEG Clinico	Neurology	6/12/2023 10:45:00 AM
122	Galli	Riccardo	6/18/1986	ď		35001 - EEG Standard	Neurology	6/20/2023 3:30:00 PM
	D1 11	Cimena	4/10/1070	7	V	35001 - EEG Standard	Neurology	6/20/2023 9:45:00 AM

Working List

The Working List collects all HL7 requests received from the HIS listed in a table where each line represents a specific-patient request; requests are split into two main tabs: *To Import* and *Already imported*.

The former displays all received requests to be processed; the latter shows all the already imported requests.

It is possible to manually refresh the list of the received requests by clicking the **Refresh** button on the toolbar.

For each request essential information related to the patient and the request itself are displayed, such as patient name, patient ID, patient date of birth, the request scheduled date and time, eventual comments/notes and whether it is urgent.

Information displayed are customizable, i.e. by the *Column Chooser* tool available in the context menu it is possible to select what show/hide.

Note. The management of patient extra fields and exam extra fields is a Central settings option; if enabled, extra information available in the received HL7 requests will be automatically imported and kept updated.

Working list	- du importo	d								ф.	×
Refresh	Importe	d			Colu	mn Chooser	×				
Patient Identifier 119 122 124	Last Name Ricci Galli Bianchi	First Name Carlotta Riccardo Simone	Birthdate 1/28/1990 6/18/1986 4/18/1978	Gender Q C ¹ C ¹	Sea V V V V V V V V V V	Columns Veriver High Priority Exam Comment Exam Department Schedule Date Comment (patient) Patient Department		m Der yr Z↓ yr A↓ yr +A+	Sort Ascending Sort Ascending Clear Sorting Hide Column Chooser Best Fit Best Fit (all columns)	AM PM AM	
4						Order identifier Request Date Address City	•				•

Working List - Column Chooser

Requests can be sorted in ascending or descending order based on the selected field by simply clicking the column header.

It is possible to filter on displayed requests by setting on or more filtering criteria at the same time; currently applied filters are shown at the bottom of the list.

atient Identifi	er Last Name	First Name	Birthdate	Gender	High Pr 🕈	Exam Comment	Exam Department	Schedule Date 🕈
19	Ricci	Carlotta	1/28/1990	Ç	~	35002 - EEG Clinico	Neurology	6/12/2023 10:45:00 AM
24	Bianchi	Simone	4/18/1978	ð	\checkmark	35001 - EEG Standard	Neurology	6/20/2023 9:45:00 AM

Filtering Working List

Note. Filters applied to the Working List will be maintained after closure and restart of FILE MANAGER.

Importing HL7 Request

To import a patient-specific request inside the Archive module you have to select the request from the Working List (*To Import* tab) and click the **Import** button on the toolbar.

o Import Alre	ady importe	d							
C Refresh	o Import)							
Patient Identifier	Last Name	First Name	Birthdate	Gender	High Priority	Exam Comment	Exam Department	Schedule Date	
119	Ricci	Carlotta	1/28/1990	Ç	~	35002 - EEG Clinico	Neurology	6/12/2023 10:45:00 AM	-
122	Galli	Riccardo	6/18/1986	ð		35001 - EEG Standard	Neurology	6/20/2023 3:30:00 PM	
124	Bianchi	Simone	4/18/1978	ð	\checkmark	35001 - EEG Standard	Neurology	6/20/2023 9:45:00 AM	

Working List - Import HL7 request

Patient related to the imported request is automatically added to Patients database, if not yet registered, and patient information received from the HIS are inherited; you can see all patient information in the "Modify patient" dialog which opens by selecting the "Modify" option in the right-click contextual menu.

act name	Ferrari			First name	Alice	
irthdata	1009/02/04			Gender	Famala	
ale	1550/05/04			Maidan nama	Terriale	
ue .		6 10 11		Maiden name		
stient path	D:\MicromedDisk\I	MicromedData	EEGdata_HIS\Archive Mic	romed\PA1_3		
Standar	d fields					
Addres	is			Clinical refe	rence	
Addres	via Roma 108			Hospital dep	partment	Neurophysiology -
City	Treviso	- ZipCode	31100	Marker		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
State	TV	- Country	Italy 👻	Doctor		Rossi Francesco 👻
Phone				Insurance		
Mohile				Insurance n	umber	
Home				Insurance of		
Home				insurance co	ompany	
Physica	al data			Comment		
Height	0 Weight 0	Gestation	davs 0	Comment	No epilep	tic patient

Patient Info

The new patient appears in the Patients List or, if already existing, is highlighted.

For the newly imported patient, no exam is available, and you can proceed with the exam execution according to the received order entry, for example performing a new EEG recording.

Working	a list												
EEG	HIS					F	errari	Alice]				
Gender	Patient	Birthdate	ID1	Hospital de			- e	R 🛛 🗭	Recording date	•	Code		
ď	De Marchi Alessandro	10/14/1988	112	Neurology	•								•
Q	Rossi Camilla	6/23/1997	100	Neurophys			N	o exams	available for selecte	d pat	lent		Ŧ
Q	Ferrari Alice	3/4/1998	106	Neurophys					•			Þ	
								Recordin	n date 🔺	Doct			
								Recording	guate	Doct			
					•				No files available				•
4				Þ	[4						Þ	
Patient	s per page 30 🔻	Total patie	nts: 3	10 H		Total	files: 0						
Patient	t Info											д	×
ID1	106				ID:	,							*
Patient	Ferrari Alice				Ma	- iiden r	name						
Birthdat	e 3/4/1998				Ge	nder	Fer	nale					
Addre	Clinical reference	Insurance	Other	Comment									
Addre	ess Via Roma 108												
City	Treviso				Zip	Code	31100						
State	TV				Co	untry	Italy						
Home	2				Mo	bile							

Imported HL7 request (patient)

In the Working List panel imported requests automatically pass from the *To Import* list to the *Already imported* one.

Workir	ng list								д	×
To Impo	rt Already imported									
\bigcirc	Refresh 🔽 Undo Im	port								
Patient	Identifier Last Name	First Name Birtho	late G	ender High Pric	ority	Exam Comment	Schedule Date	Comm	ent (patient)	
106	Ferrari	Alice 3/4/1	998	Q 🗸		35001 - EEG Standard	6/12/2023 11:30:00 AM	No ep	ileptic patient	•
• EEG	HIS					Ferrari Alice	2		Þ	•
Gender	Patient	Birthdate	ID1	Hospital de		= Q 🗋 🎒	Recording date	-	Code	
ď	De Marchi Alessand	lro 10/14/198	3 112	Neurology	•					
Q	Rossi Camilla	6/23/1997	100	Neurophysi		No exam	s available for selecte	d patie	nt	-
Q	Ferrari Alice	3/4/1998	106	Neurophysi			4			•
						Total exams: 0				

Working List – Already imported requests

It is also possible to perform import undo, i.e. to cancel an import operation, by simply selecting the imported request in the "Already imported" list and clicking the **Undo import** button on the toolbar: the request will return to the "To Import" list and eventual examination already executed will be "invalidated", that means it will not be possible to close the loop by exporting the report associated, if any, i.e. sending it back to HIS.

REPORT EXPORT TO HIS

Once the exam is done, it can be reviewed and related report document is created; to close the imported request loop it is possible to send it to the Hospital Information System in Pdf format within an HL7 message. The PDF export option needs to be activated from File Manager settings.

Settings	
Display	Machine
Archive	Convert and replace
Lockdown	Close Job
Acquisition List	Export PDF Enable Pdf Compression
Licensing	
Logging	
Labels customization	
Language	
HIS	

The saved report will appear in the archive window Exams List as a document associated to the Exam; in addition, a "report" icon will appear in the "Study contains" column (second column) related to the exam.

EEG	G HIS					Fe	rrari	Alice				
Gender	Patient	Birthdate	ID1	Hospital de			- Q		Recording date	•	Code	
Q	Ferrari Alice	3/4/1998	106	Neurophys [▲]		ii0		\bigcirc	6/19/2023 5:22:	4 PM		
ð	De Marchi Alessandro	10/14/1988	112	Neurology		_		C				
Q	Rossi Camilla	6/23/1997	100	Neurophysi								
					Tot	al e	xams: '	1				
					6	5/1	9/20	23 5:2	2:24 PM			
					6	5/1	9/20 F	23 5:2 Recordin	g date	Doct	or	
					6	5/1	9/20. F	23 5:2 Recordin 5/19/202	2:24 PM g date 3 5:22:24 PM	• Doct	or	
					6	5/1	9/20 F © 6	23 5:2 Recordin 5/19/202 5/19/202	2:24 PM g date 3 5:22:24 PM 3 5:22:42 PM	Doct	or	
					6	5/1 (9/20 F P E E E E E E E E E E E	23 5:2 Recordin 5/19/202 5/19/202 5/19/202	2:24 PM g date 3 5:22:24 PM 3 5:22:42 PM 3 5:26:28 PM	Doct Ferra	or ari Andrea	
				Ţ	6	5/1 (9/20 F e e	23 5:2 Recordin 5/19/202 5/19/202 5/19/202	2:24 PM g date 3 5:22:24 PM 3 5:22:42 PM 3 5:26:28 PM	Doct Ferra	or ari Andrea	

EEG Report – Exams list

By clicking on the "report" icon it is possible to open the saved report within the Report Editor, check the content of the document and send it to the HIS in Pdf format by clicking the **Export Pdf** button available in the HIS tab of Report Editor toolbar.

Note. According to the set central preference, the name of the doctor assigned to the examination or the name of the logged user can be included in the report export message.

Report - Ferrari Alice - 6/19/2023 5:26:28 PM	# X
File Home Insert Page Layout View Review	HIS
L I · · · · I · · · · 1 · · · · 1 · · · · 2 · · · 1 · · · · 3 · ·	······································
BRAIN QUICK	micromed
KING'S Neurophysi Direc	S HOSPITAL iology Department stor: Dr. Jones
- 8850 Long Bridge - Venice, Italy	Phone:+39.041.5937000 Fax: +39.041.5937011
EE	G Report
Patient: Alice Ferrari	Date of Birth: 3/4/1998
* ID: 106	Sex: Female
Referring Physician: Rossi Francesco	Date: 6/19/2023
No epileptic patient	

Report Editor – HIS tab

Clicking the Export Pdf button, the report is converted in PDF and sent to the HIS.

In case the option **Convert and Replace** is not enabled, a new PDF report will be added to the exam and can be open in **read-only** mode within the Report Editor. It can be used to handle different versions of the report. Instead, if the option is enabled, the exported report will be replaced from the new PDF report. It is even

possible to enable the PDF compression, which allows to reduce the PDF memory size in case of images, or any other media saved in the report.

				F	errari	Allce				
Patient	Birthdate	ID1	Hospital de			R 🗋 🏟	Recording date	•	Code	
Ferrari Alice	3/4/1998	106	Neurophys ^	Œ			6/19/2023 5:22:24	4 PM		
De Marchi Alessandro	10/14/1988	112	Neurology							
Rossi Camilla	6/23/1997	100	Neurophys							
				6/*	19/20	023 5:2 Recordin 6/19/202	22:24 PM g date • 3 5:22:24 PM	Doct	tor	
				K		6/19/202	3 5:26:28 PM	Ferra	ari Andrea	
			•	4						Þ
F	Patient Ferrari Alice De Marchi Alessandro Rossi Camilla	Patient Birthdate errari Alice 3/4/1998 De Marchi Alessandro 10/14/1988 Rossi Camilla 6/23/1997	Patient Birthdate ID1 errari Alice 3/4/1998 106 De Marchi Alessandro 10/14/1988 112 Rossi Camilla 6/23/1997 100	Patient Birthdate ID1 Hospital de errari Alice 3/4/1998 106 Neurophys De Marchi Alessandro 10/14/1988 112 Neurology Rossi Camilla 6/23/1997 100 Neurophys	Patient Birthdate ID1 Hospital de errari Alice 3/4/1998 106 Neurophys De Marchi Alessandro 10/14/1988 112 Neurology Rossi Camilla 6/23/1997 100 Neurophys Total 6/7	Patient Birthdate ID1 Hospital de errari Alice 3/4/1998 106 Neurophys De Marchi Alessandro 10/14/1988 112 Neurology Rossi Camilla 6/23/1997 100 Neurophys Total exams: 6/19/20	Patient Birthdate ID1 Hospital de □ <td< td=""><td>Patient Birthdate ID1 Hospital de errari Alice 3/4/1998 106 Neurophys De Marchi Alessandro 10/14/1988 112 Neurology Rossi Camilla 6/23/1997 100 Neurophys Value Value Valu</td><td>Patient Birthdate ID1 Hospital de De Recording date errari Alice 3/4/1998 106 Neurophys De Marchi Alessandro 10/14/1988 112 Neurology Rossi Camilla 6/23/1997 100 Neurophys Rossi Camilla 6/23/1997 100 Neurophys Recording date ← Doct Recording date ← Doct Recording date ← Doct Recording date ← Doct C 6/19/2023 5:22:24 PM Recording date ← Doct C 6/19/2023 5:22:24 PM C 6/19/2023 5:22:42 PM C 6/19/20</td><td>Patient Birthdate ID1 Hospital de De Recording date</td></td<>	Patient Birthdate ID1 Hospital de errari Alice 3/4/1998 106 Neurophys De Marchi Alessandro 10/14/1988 112 Neurology Rossi Camilla 6/23/1997 100 Neurophys Value Value Valu	Patient Birthdate ID1 Hospital de De Recording date errari Alice 3/4/1998 106 Neurophys De Marchi Alessandro 10/14/1988 112 Neurology Rossi Camilla 6/23/1997 100 Neurophys Rossi Camilla 6/23/1997 100 Neurophys Recording date ← Doct Recording date ← Doct Recording date ← Doct Recording date ← Doct C 6/19/2023 5:22:24 PM Recording date ← Doct C 6/19/2023 5:22:24 PM C 6/19/2023 5:22:42 PM C 6/19/20	Patient Birthdate ID1 Hospital de De Recording date

Exported Pdf Report in case of Convert and Replace – Exams list

Repor	rt - Ferrari Alice - 6/19/2023 5:26:28 PM		# ×
PDF V Print File	Find Previous Next of Navigation View		^
	BRAIN QUICK	micromed	
	KING'S HO Neurophysiology Director: Dr.	SPITAL Department ^{Jones}	
	8850 Long Bridge Venice, Italy EEG Rer	Phone: +39.041.5937000 Fax: +39.041.5937011	
	Patient: Alice Ferrari	Date of Birth: 3/4/1998	
	ID: 106	Sex: Female	
	Referring Physician: Rossi Francesco	Date: 6/19/2023	
	Indications: No epileptic patient		
	Requesting doctor: Rossi Francesco		
	Technician:		
٩	Doctor: Ferrari Andrea		•

Report - Pdf Viewer

PATIENT UPDATE AND PATIENTS MERGE REQUESTS

HL7 Interface also supports the automatic handling of patient info **update** and patients **merge** requests received from the Hospital Information System (HIS).

Patient Info Update

HL7 requests with the purpose of updating a specific patient information are **automatically** processed with the result of keeping the imported patient information **always synchronized** with the Hospital Information System.

For example, if demographic data related to a specific patient, such as the birthdate or the address, are wrongly entered by HIS, when the HIS itself detects and corrects the error it can send an ADT message notifying Micromed system about the patient information update.

		To Import	Already i	imported Undo Impo	t									
		Patient Ide	ntifier	Last Name		First Name		Birthdate	Addres		City	Province		
Norking list		128		Ricci		Carlotta	(08/03/1995	Viale V	enezia 8	Verona	VR		٠
		124	124 Bian		Bianchi		Simone		Via Pascoli 65		Verona	VR		
Io Import Airead	ay imported	128		Santi		Elena		3/8/1995	Viale V	enezia 8	Verona	VR		
🔿 Refresh 🛱	Undo Import	•											Þ	•
Patient Identifier	Last Name	First Name	Birtho	late	Addre	255	City		Province		$\mathbf{\mathbf{N}}$			_
119	Ricci	Carlotta	1/28/	1993	Via M	ilano 18	Veron	a	VR 🔺					
124	Bianchi	Simone	4/18/	1978	Via Ve	erdi 48	Veron	a	VR	1	X			
128	Santi	Elena	3/8/1	995	Viale	Venezia 8	Veron	a	VR					
4									•					

Working List – Updated Patient Info

1 119	ID2	
st name Ricci	First name	Carlotta
thdate 1/28/1993	🖻 Gender	Female
le	Maiden nam	ne
tient path D:\MicromedDisk\MicromedData\EEGdata_HIS\Arcl	nive Micromed\PAT_4	
Standard fields		
Address	Clinical ref	ference
Address Via Milano 18	Hospital d	department Neurology -
City Verona - ZipCode 37134	Marker	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
State VR Country Italy	▼ Doctor	-
Phone	Insurance	
Mobile	Insurance	number
Home	Insurance	company
Physical data	Comment	
Height 0 Weight 0 Gestation days 0	Comment	Epileptic patient

Patients List - Updated Patient Info

Patient information inside Patients database are automatically aligned with the central HIS anagraphics and in the Archive module updated data are shown both in the Working List panel than in Patients list (and so in the "Modify patient" dialog).

Patients Merge

Hospital Information System can send HL7 messages with the purpose of **merging two patients**, for example in case a patient has been wrongly doubled in the central HIS anagraphics and there is the need to unify all examinations under the correct anagraphic data (patient); such messages are **automatically** processed and patients are properly merged.

Workir To Impo	ng list rt Already in	mported									4	×
0	Refresh 🗔	Undo Impor	t			DELETED PATIENT	after me	erge				
Patient	Identifier	Last Name	Fir	rst Name	2	Birthdate	Gender		Address	City	Province	
128		Ricci	Ca	arlotta		1/28/1993		Ç	Via Milano 18	Verona	VR	-
124	24 Bianchi Simone		mone	4/18/1978			ð	Via Verdi 48	Verona	VR		
128	28 Santi Elena					3/8/1995		Ŷ	Viale Venezia 8	Verona	VR	
1						REMAINING PATIEN	T after i	merge			Þ	•
EEG	HIS						Sa	anti Ele	ena			
Gender	Patient		Birthdate	Age	ID1	Hospital departmer		□ @	Recording d	ate 🔻	Comment	
ď	Bianchi Simo	ne	4/18/1978	45	124	Neurology	EEG		6/28/2023 1	1:20:25 AM		*
O,	De Marchi A	lessandro	10/14/198	8 34	112	Neurology						
Q	Ferrari Alice		3/4/1998	25	106	Neurophysiology			4			Þ
Q	Rossi Camilla	э	6/23/1997	26	100	Neurophysiology	Total	exams: 1				
Q	Santi Elena		3/8/1995	28	128	Neurology	6/2	28/202	23 11:20:25 AM	1		
								Recor	rding date	Doctor	Tech	nnic
							٩	0/28/	2023 11:20:25 AM			•
							C	6/28	2023 11:20:28 AM			
							(6/28/	2023 11:22:43 AM			
						•	C	6/28 /	2023 11:22:52 AM			-
4						•	•					Þ
Patient	s per page 3	30 -	Total pat	ients: 5		🗝 🕫 Page 1 🔅 🖮	Total t	files: 4				

Patients Merge

The merge operation implies that one only patient is maintained in Patients database and any exam associated to the removed patient (obsolete) is moved to the correct patient folder.

In the Working List panel, any existing request related to the obsolete patient is unified, i.e. properly assigned to the correct patient ID.

CLOSE JOB

HL7 Interface also supports the manual closure of the working cycle in case of request already imported in which the PDF export is no longer useful. The option Close Job needs to be enabled from File Manager settings.

Machine Machine
Convert and replace
Close Job
Export PDF Enable Pdf Compression

When the option is enabled, the choice gets available from the contextual menu at exam level, and from HIS tab in the created report.



Repo	rt - France	sco Zaco	:hi				П.	×
File	Home	Insert	Page Layout	View	Review	HIS		^
Export Pdf	Close Job							
	• 🛛 • • • •			e e je e e	. 3	, , , , 4 , , , , <u>,</u> , , , , 5 , , , , <u>,</u> , , , <u>6</u> , , , , <u>1</u> , , , , <u>7</u> , <u>2</u> <u>1</u> ,		
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	BF	IA S	N QU	ICI	<	micromed		

When clicking on Close Job, the working cycle will be closed and it will no more be possible to export the PDF report, nor to Undo the request import.

EXAM DONE

HL7 Interface also supports the manual setting of exams as Done. This feature can be enabled at from server and allows to mark an exam before exporting to PDF or closing the job.

When the option is enabled, the choice gets available from the contextual menu at exam level.



Clicking on Set Exam to Done will open a dialog window, in which it is possible to mark the exam as "Done" or "Not Done" and to confirm the operation sending the notification to HIS.

JOIN OFFLINE PROCEDURE

HL7 Interface supports the Join Offline feature, which allows to join an exam which was previously done with a newly received request. This may be useful in case of network faults, in which the request may not be available to be imported. In those cases, the patient can be created manually with just basics information, the exam can be executed and, once the request import will available again, it will be possible to select the exam, the request and to join them. Join Offline may be also useful in case the request is imported from another resource.

In this case, all patient and exam information will be updated with the ones received from the joined request. This closes the HL7 working cycle, and the request will no more be available in "Already Imported" tab. To execute the procedure, it is necessary to select an exam, then a request and click on **Join Offline** button.

ne

MULTIPLE REQUESTS MANAGEMENT

HL7 Interface also supports the management of Multiple Requests. The option can be activated at Central level from Micromed Suite and is propagated to all the clients of the system. When multiple requests environment is enabled, requests for a single patient are no more managed singularly but as a group of requests for the single patient.

This causes that all the operations previously seen work with a group of requests. The workflow from File Manager (requests import, PDF export, Exam Done, Join Offline) is the same. During import procedure, it is no more possible to import a single request but only the requests group.

Working list	Vorking list										
To Import Already import	ted										
C Refresh 🕞 Impor	rt Doin offline										
Patient Identifier	Last Name	First Name	Birthdate	Gender	Address	City					
A Request Group Identifier: 20 (1)											
19	Lionel	Messi	21/04/2023	o [™]							

EEG RECORDING FROM ARCHIVE

FILE MANAGER is the entry point for EEG recording and all reviewing activities clinicians and physicians can perform on EEG studies.

The Brain Quick Tab of the ribbon bar collects all commands to start a new EEG recording.

100									File Manage	r	mic	romed	mi_test	3	ô	-	×
4	>	Home View	Setup	Neuro	werk EEG	Neu	irowerk EN	ЛG	BrainQuick	Neurowerk	Help						^
			1		\downarrow	EDF											
New EEG	Select Protocol	New EEG (Favourite Protocol)	New report	Data Download	Firmware updater	Import EDF	Report Models										
		Exams			Tools		Setup										

Clicking the **New EEG** button will open the **Brain Quick software** Acquisition window which allows to start either a new EEG or Video EEG recording with the last used acquisition protocol. An acquisition protocol is the collection of configuration parameters needed to perform an EEG recording, such as the headbox, one or more cameras, the connect configuration, i.e. the settings of the input channels of the acquisition device, and the photic stimulation protocol.

The Home Tab of the ribbon bar of Acquisition window collects all commands to start, save, pause and stop the acquisition, and to set up photic stimulation, chronometer, notes and cortical stimulator; **see the dedicated chapter of Brain Quick software User Manual for all the details.**

If there are on-going EEG recordings the Acquisition List panel allows to monitor the progress status of the ongoing recordings; in the detail section related to the specific acquisition machine the patient name and the name of the acquisition resource are shown.

From the Acquisition List of other review stations of the system, it is possible to remotely review the on-going EEG study during the recording by selecting the acquisition system from the list and choosing the "Remote Review" option in the right click contextual menu.

In addition, it is possible to take the remote control of an acquisition station and live monitoring the on-going recording by choosing the "Remote Control" option in the right click contextual menu.

Acquisition list		д	×					
∧ AG-GIULNL								
Name	Patie	nt, 01						
Location EEG Test								
Recording E	EG							
× S39	2	See in Database	t					
Online		Remote Control	ł					
	Q	Remote Review						

Acquisition List – Options

It is also possible to start a new recording by selecting the desired acquisition protocol; clicking the **Select Protocol** button will open a dedicated window of the Brain Quick software where all defined acquisition

protocols are listed and it is possible to start a new recording by selecting a protocol from the list, create a new protocol or edit an existing one.

Finally, clicking the **New EEG (Default Protocol)** button it is possible to start a new recording with the default acquisition protocol.

EEG REVIEW FROM ARCHIVE

From FILE MANAGER main window it is possible to access the EEG review window of **BRAIN QUICK software** which allows to read and review EEG and Video EEG data recorded with BRAIN QUICK software itself, with SystemPlus EVOLUTION and with the CNS Monitor.

To access the EEG review window, the user must select a patient from the Patients list and choose the study to review from the Exam list, then follow the procedures below:

- Click twice directly on the EEG exam icon in the first column of the exam list
- Or click twice on the trace file on the inner level (or the lower panel) of the exam list (depending on the active layout)
- Or select the **Open** function from the right click contextual menu available both for exam and file

This way, the EEG review screen will appear: it is the part of Brain Quick software that is used to review and analyze EEG exams. In the review section, it is possible to review more than one trace at the same time and this allows the user to compare different exams of the same patient or of different patients. For further details about the EEG studies Review see the dedicated chapter of Brain Quick software User Manual.

EEG REPORT CREATION FROM ARCHIVE

From FILE MANAGER main window it is possible to create a new report for the selected exam. After selecting an exam, In Brain Quick Tab there is a **New Report** button, which opens the window for the template selection. After selecting a template from the available ones, editing the report, and saving it, makes the report to be added to the desired exam.

FIRMWARE UPDATE

From the Archive main window it is possible to perform the firmware update of the amplifier when it is connected to the PC.

In Brain Quick Tab there is a **Firmware Updater** button to open the window in order to perform the headbox update.

									File Manager	r	micro	med	mi_test	3	ô	-	×
1	>	Home View	Setup	Neuro	werk EEG	Neur	rowerk EN	/IG	BrainQuick	Neurowerk	Help						^
			5		↓	EDF	[¥]										
New EEG	Select Protocol	New EEG (Favourite Protocol)	New report	Data Download	Firmware updater	Import EDF	Report Models										
		Exams			Tools		Setup										

Clicking on the button opens the following window:

Firmware updater	
Device list SD_LTM_PLUS_64 - BAA-ES26/v4-20	▼ C Refresh
File info details	•
Versione attuale: firmware ver. 2022.02 11 Versione disponibile:	Nov 2022

From the drop-down menu, it is possible to choose which of the available headboxes to perform the firmware upgrade. Once selected, information regarding the current version and the version available for upgrade is shown. Finally, the two buttons next to the drop-down menu are used to update the list of available devices and to upgrade the firmware, respectively.

AMBULATORY DATA DOWNLOAD

From the Archive main window it is possible to **download ambulatory data** directly from the amplifier, which can be connected via cable, or from a memory card reader; the data download is performed by **Brain Quick Software.**

In Brain Quick Tab there is a Data Download button to access the "Data downloader" dialog window.

Note. Supported Micromed ambulatory recorders are:

- SD LTM PLUS family
- SD LTM EXPRESS family
- Morpheus

DATA DOWNLOAD FORM DEVICE

In the "Data downloader" dialog window, select the **Download from device** option in order to get ambulatory data from the desired amplifier.

Select the amplifier from the list of the available devices and wait for the data reading.

				File Manager	micro	omed mi_test	S	ê -	- 🗆	×
	Home View Se	tup N	eurowerk E	G Neurowerk EMG BrainQuick Ne	urowerk Help					^
New Select EEG Protoco	Exams	ew Dawr	P ta load u Tc	Data Download Data Download Dota from file						
A		type part o	o the pa	Download from device						
∎ _ Wor	king Resource	•	⊞ F							* ×
Gender	Patient	Birthe		Device list Select a device		🔾 Scan		227.2 60	10075.0	
്	Patient 01	2023, 🔺	H (Description SD_LIM_EU_64 - Serial r	umber BA3-0190/02-14	•		237.2 GB use	of 927.5 G	s
<u></u>	Patient 02	2024,		The to download details						
O'	Patient 03	2022,	E i					42.4 GB used	of 97.7 GB	
0°	Patient 04	2024,	H G							
		Ŧ		Download percentage		0% ×		42.4 GB used	of 97.7 GB	# ×
Patients per	page 30 🔻 Tota	al pati	Total			OK Cancel				
Databas	e online	NLINE Dis	tributed co	figuration 🚛 Working Resource - File system	n available					≓

Data Download from Device

Note. If the amplifier is not in the list, it is possible to force the headbox discovery by clicking the **Refresh** button.

As soon as data reading completed, in the "File info details" panel below essential information related to the recorded data are displayed, such as patient name, the headbox serial number, the number of recorded channels, the sampling frequency, the recording start and stop etc.

	oad			
🔿 Downlo	ad from file			
Downlo	ad from device			
Device list	SD_LTM_EU_64 - BA3	-0190/02-14	 • (Scan
File to do	wnload details			
Sample Channel Frequen Is oxime Number Number Starting Closing Headbo Patient	number: 44544 s number: 31 cy: 128 ter active: Inactive of EEG channels: 0 of thor abdo channels of flow channels: 0 of body position: 0 date: "2024-01-18117 rdate: "2024-01-18117 rdate: "2024-01-18117 tate: "2024-01-18117	ls: 0 ;48:07Z" 53:55Z" ;1T00:00:00Z"		
				0%

Click the **Import** button in order to start the ambulatory data download; a progress bar will report the data download progress status.

ooto oomin	load			
O Downlo	ad from file			
Downlo	ad from device			
Device list	SD_LTM_EU_64 - BA3-	0190/02-14	-	C Scan
File to do	wnload details			
Sample Channel Frequen Is oxime Number Number Number Starting Closing Headbo Patient	number: 44544 s number: 31 cy; 128 ter active: Inactive of EEG channels: 0 of thor abdo channels: 0 of thor abdo channels: 0 of body position: 0 date: "2024-01-1817/5 date: "2024-01-1817/5 k type: 48 birth date: "0202-04-21	s: 0 48:07Z" 3:55Z" T00:00:00Z"		
Download	percentage			40% ×

Note. If patient currently selected does **not** correspond to the patient associated with the recorded data you are going to download, a warning message will ask you for confirmation before starting the data download.

FileManager		\times
	Patient name do Continu	es not match. Je anyway?
	Yes	No

When download completed, click "Ok" to exit.

In the Exams list a new EEG exam related to the selected patient will appear with an ambulatory trace file associated at file level.

Loca	ale_S32					Р	atie	ent	А					
Gender	Patient	Birthdate	Last Exam Date	Hos				۲		Recording d	ate 🔹	Code	Hospi	t
ď	Patient 15	28/12/2022	09/05/2023 10:43:06 AM		•	EEG				07/07/2023	10:28:36 AM			•
ð	Patient 30	28/11/2022					ソ							
Q	Patient A	20/07/2004	07/07/2023 10:28:36 AM	Neu										
														•
										•			•	
						lotal	exan	ns: 1						
						07	/07	/20	023 1	0:28:36 A	Μ			
							F	Reco	ording o	late	Comment		Doctor	
						6	мв С	07/0	7/2023	10:28:36 AM				-
														1
•				►		4							Þ	•
Patient	s per page 30	▼ Tota	al patients: 3 🛛 🔟 🔟 🛛	₩ ₩		Total	files:	1						_

Patient Info

Ambulatory Data – Exams list

DATA DOWNLOAD FROM FILE

In the "Data downloader" dialog window, select the **Download from file** option in order to get ambulatory data directly from file when a memory card reader is connected to the PC.

Click the "folder" icon to browse the source trace file with data to download: Windows File Explorer dialog will open allowing you to navigate to the .trc file location (file name will be in the format *FILEPAZn.TRC*, where n is a progressive number).

					File Mana	ger	microme	d mi_test {	6	-		×
	Home View Set	tup Ne	urowerk EE	G Neurower	rk EMG BrainQuick	Neurowerk	Help					^
New Select EEG Protoco	New EEG Ne (Favourite Protocol) rep Exams	ew Data	Fit Poad	Data Download	•				1			
lo 🕹 🚳	E = 6			Data Download								
Patient quic	ck search Click here and	type part of	the pa	Download free	om file							
💭 Worl	king Resource	-	ΞF	 Download free 	om device						д	×
Gender	Patient	Birthe		Source file path					227.2 6		027.5.00	
o"	Patient 01	2023, 🔺	e 🥶	File to downlo	ad details				257.2 0	used of	927.3 66	.
O'	Patient 02	2024,		The to domine	do details							
0	Patient 03	2022,			🖡 Apri					×	7.7 GB	
0	Patient 04	2024,	± i		$\leftrightarrow \rightarrow \uparrow \uparrow \bullet \bullet \circ \circ \bullet$	uesto PC → Morphe	eus (D:) 🗸 ඊ	Cerca in Morph	eus (D:)	Q		
	Total to S	2021	e 🥶		Organizza 👻 Nuova	cartella	<u>^</u>			0	7.7 GB	
			E 🐻		Desktop ^	Nome		Ultima modifica	Tipo		7.7 GB	-
					Documenti	FILEFORM.DAT	ſ	14/04/2023 11:33	3 File DA	T I F		
4 Patients ner	nane 30 💌 Toti	v Jasti	Tel	Download per	 Download Immagini Musica Oggetti 3D Video Windows (C:) Morpheus (D:) Rete Nor 	st FILEPAZ1.TRC		14/04/2023 11:5:	S Micror	Ned File	۹ 	
Patients per	page 30 🔻 Tota	al pati	Total	L		11			-	.1		
Database	e online 🛄 Server ON	NLINE Distr	ibuted con	figuration	Working Resource - Fil	e system available						⇒

Data Download from File

Select the trace file to import, click "Open" button to confirm and wait for the data reading to complete; at the end, in the "File info details" panel below essential information related to the recorded data are displayed, such as patient name, the headbox serial number, the number of recorded channels, the sampling frequency, the recording start and stop etc.

Jata downloader source	
Download from file	
Download from device	
Source file path D:\FILEPAZ1.TRC	
File info details from FILEPAZ1.TRC	
Nome paziente: Ketata	
Cognome paziente: Aicha	
Numero di serie testina: MPH-0509/07-18 Numero di campioni: 12212	
Numero di canali: 21	
Frequenza: 128	
Ossimetro attivo: Disattivo	
Numero di canali (DC): 0	
Data inizio: "2000-01-01116:38:172"	
Tipo di testina: 38	
Data di nascita paziente: "1978-09-09T00:00:00Z"	

As for the download from device, click the **Import** button in order to start the ambulatory data download; a progress bar will report the data download progress status.

Data downloade	source	
Download from the second se	m file	
 Download from 	m device	
Source file path	D:\FILEPAZ1.TRC	
File into detail	from FILEPAZ1.TRC	
Nome pazien	te: Ketata	
Cognome pa	tiente: Aicha	
Numero di se	rie testina: MPH-0509/07-18	
Numero di ca	mpioni: 13312	
Frequenza: 1	28	
Ossimetro at	tivo: Disattivo	
Numero di ca	nali (DC): 0	
Data inizio: "	2000-01-01T16:38:17Z"	
Data fine: "20	00-01-01T16:40:01Z"	
	a: 38	
Tipo di testin	a paziente: "1978-09-09100:00:002"	
Tipo di testin Data di nasci		
Tipo di testin Data di nasci		

When download completed, click "Ok" to exit.

As before, in the Exams list a new EEG exam related to the selected patient will appear with an ambulatory trace file associated at file level.

Loca	ale_S32					Pat	ient	В					
Gender	Patient	Birthdate	Last Exam Date	Hos			- Q		Recording da	ate 👻	Code	Hosp	it
ð	Patient 15	28/12/2022	09/05/2023 10:43:06 AM	[•				07/07/2023	10:51:08 AM			
്	Patient 30	28/11/2022							01/01/2020	1010 1100 7 111			
Q	Patient A	20/07/2004	07/07/2023 10:28:36 AM	Neu									
റ്	Patient B	15/05/1996	07/07/2023 10:51:08 AM	Neu									
													Ŧ
									•)	•
						Total ex	ams: 1	1					
						07/0)7/2	023 1	0:51:08 AI	Μ			
							Reco	ording d	late	Comment		Doctor	
						АМВ	07/0	7/2023	10:51:08 AM				1
													-
•				Þ	•								•
Patient	s per page	30 🔹 Tota	al patients: 4 🛛 🖽 🐗 🛛	₩ ₩		Total file	es: 1					,	

Patient Info

Ambulatory Data – Exams list

IMPORTING STUDIES AND FILES

FILE MANAGER provides two import functions:

- Exam Import
- File Import

Importing functionality can be related to a specific patient or to an existing study.

HOW TO IMPORT A STUDY

From the Home tab (Tools group) of ribbon bar it is possible to import an entire examination clicking the **Exam Import** button.

Windows File Explorer will open and the user can select the EEG (EMG-EP) trace file related to the study to import. When click "Open" the "Patient Info" window will appear with patient data pre-compiled, click "OK" to confirm the import.

If imported study is related to a patient not yet registered, a new patient will appear in the patients list with the imported exam associated in the Exams list.

					File Man	ager	microme	ed mi_test 🔱	ê - c	×
	Home View Set	up Neurowerk EE	G Neurow	erk EMG	BrainQuic	k Neurowerk	Help			^
C C Refresh Ne	w New/Search Modify F	Remove Modify Remo	we New anamnesis Anam	Models	Exam Import	Log Persyst Search Clean ols HI	king Auto Archive S Auto Archive	vitch Lockdown Jser Users		
lo 💩 🚳	6 🖬 🖬 🖓									
Patient qui	ck search Click here and	type part of the patient	's 'Family name',	'Given na	me' or 'Identifica	tion' to search. Use ';' t	o separate multiple se	arch values		
🖵 Loca	le_S32		•	±Α	1 Patient					
Gender	Patient .	Birthdate	Age		- Q [] 🏟	Recording date 👻	Comment	Marker	Locked By Backgro	
ੱ	A1 Patient	2024/01/19	0	E 😳	- Q	2024/01/19 11:34:0				
			×							
Patients per	page 50 + Iota	i patients: 22	·····	Total e	(ams: 1					
Databas	e online 🛛 🚔 Server ON	LINE Distributed con	figuration	Local	e_S32 - File syste	em available				₹

VEEG Exam Import

Note. If a Video EEG study is selected both trace file and all related video files are imported.

HOW TO IMPORT A FILE

From the Home tab (Tools group) of ribbon bar it is possible to import a single file related to existing or already imported examination clicking the **File Import** button.

Windows File Explorer will open and the user can select the file to import. It is possible to import only event or analysis files; such file will be associated to the EEG study currently selected.

When click "Open" the import is confirmed and the selected file will appear in the inner level of the Exams list under the selected study or in the File pane, according to current layout.



Event File Import

Note. It is supposed the user knows the EEG study to which the imported file is associated; no check is performed by FILE MANAGER importing procedure.

HOW TO IMPORT A REPORT

From the Home tab (Tools group) of ribbon bar it is possible to import a report related to existing or already imported examination clicking the **File Import** button.

Windows File Explorer will open and the user can select the report file to import. It is possible to import report in Word, Odt or Pdf format only; such file will be associated to the study currently selected.

-	beruh ileih	DIGITIQUICK	NEULOWEIK				
2	🥵 Apri					×	
Vodit	$\leftrightarrow \rightarrow \cdot \uparrow$	📙 « Tolmpor	t → PAT_D	ٽ ~			
8	Organizza 🔻	Nuova cartella					
•	📌 Accesso ra	pido	^				
te	👔 Micromed	S.p.a		W			
00	lesson of the contract of the	Micromed S.p.a		REP 868.doc			
1	💻 Questo PC						
10	📃 Desktop						
20	😫 Documer	ıti					
21	👆 Download	ł					
1	📰 Immagini						
	🁌 Musica						
	🧊 Oggetti 3	D					
	Scansioni	GiuliaAgostini	~				
		Nome file:	REP_868.doc	~	Word files (*.doc)	~	
					Event files (*.evt)		
					Analysis files (*.fft) PDF files (*.pdf)		
-			T		Word files (*.doc)		
			Þ	•	OD I files (*.odt)		

When click "Open" the import is confirmed and the selected report will appear in the inner level of the Exams list under the selected study or in the File pane, according to current layout. In addition a report icon will appear in the "Study contains" column of the exam list related to the study.

an l					File	Manage	r	mic	romed	mi_te	st 💫	Ô	-		×
	Home View Se	tup Neurowerk EEG	Ne	urowerk	EMG	Brain	Quick Ne	urower	k Help						^
C Refresh	New New/Search Modify Patients	Remove Modify Remove	Ne anam A	ew Mi inesis	odels E Ir	ixam nport In	File Log File Tools	Persyst Clean	Working list HIS Aut	Auto Archive	Switch I User	Lockdown sers			
s 🕹	6 5 5 5 8														
Patient	uick search Click here and	I type part of the patient's 'Fa	mily n	ame', 'Gi	ven name	' or 'Ide	ntification' to se	earch. U	se ';' to separat	e multip	ole search va	lues			
🖵 Lo	cale S32		-	⊞ A1	l Patie	ent									
Gender	Patient	 Birthdate Ag 	e		□ @		Recording dat	e 🕶	Comment		Marker		Locked	By Backs	gro.
ੇ	A1 Patient	2024/01/19 0		8 🥮	- Q		2024/01/19 1	1:34:0							•
0.	A2 Patient	2024/01/19 0	11			Record	ing date	Comm	ent	Locatio	on	Storag	e	C	loct
			11		@	2024/0	1/19 11:34:0			Locale,	\$32				
			11			2024/0	1/19 11:34:0			Locale,	_\$32				
			11			2024/0	1/19 11:34:0			Locale,	S32				
			11		۲	2024/0	1/19 11:34:0			Locale,	_\$32				
			11			2024/0	1/19 11:43:4			Locale,	_\$32				
			Ľ	Total ev	ame 1		1								Þ
Data	base online	NLINE Distributed configu	iration		Locale_S	32 - File	system availa	ble							≓

Report Import
Note. Report file does not store information which allows univocal identification of related patient and associated exam. It is supposed the user knows the EEG study to which the imported report is referred; no check is performed by FILE MANAGER importing procedure.

HOW TO IMPORT A VIDEO

FILE MANAGER also allows to import video file for anamnesis purpose and to associate it to a specific patient. Select the patient in Patients list and click the **Exam Import** button in the Home Tab (Tool group) of the ribbon bar.

Windows File Explorer will open, change the file type choosing the "video file (*.MP4)" option and select the video to import.

When click "Open" the import is confirmed a dialog window will appear allowing the user to select the template to create a new anamnesis for the selected patient. The new anamnesis will appear in the Exams list with the imported video associated. In addition, a video icon will appear in the "Study contains" column of the exam list related to the anamnesis.



Video Import (Anamnesis)

It is possible to play the imported video directly within FILE MANAGER main window by double clicking on video icon or on the video file itself; the Video panel (dockable) will appear with buttons to play, pause and stop the video.



Video Panel

HOW TO IMPORT EDF FILE

FILE MANGER allows to import also file in EDF or EDF+ format and associate it to a specific patient.

Select the patient in Patients list and click the **Import EDF** button in the Brain Quick Tab (Tools group) of the ribbon bar.

Windows File Explorer will open with file type set to "edf files (*.edf)": navigate to the folder where file to import is located and select the EDF to import; click "Open" to confirm the operation.



EDF File Import

The imported file is automatically converted by Brain Quick Software into an EEG trace file and a new EEG exam appears in the Exams list associated to current patient.

HOW TO IMPORT BDF FILE

FILE MANGER allows to import also file in BDF format and associate it to a specific patient.

Select the patient in Patients list and click the **Import EDF** button in the Brain Quick Tab (Tools group) of the ribbon bar.

Windows File Explorer will open: change the file type choosing the "bdf files (*.bdf)", then navigate to the folder where file is located and select the BDF file to import; click "Open" to confirm the operation.

				File Manager	microme	d mi_test	6 &	- 0	×
New EE (Default Proto	Home View Set G Select Ner col - S) Protocol (Favourit Exams	up Neurowerk El w EEG New te Protocol) report D	EG No Data Jownload	Firmware Tools	Neurowerk Help				^
lo & lo									
Patient quid	ck search Click here and t	type part of the patient	's 'Family I	name', 'Given name' or 'Identifica	tion' to search. Use ';' to separ	ate multiple sea	arch values		
Loca	le_S32		*	spopen					
Gender	Patient	Birthdate	Ane	← → * ↑ → This PC >	Documents > EDF_BDF_library	~ 0	D Search	EDF_BDF_library	
	A1 Detirest	2024/01/10	Age A	Organize 👻 New folder	•				•
ď	A2 Patient	2024/01/19	0	This PC 3D Objects	Patient Z-20230831_1517	40-20230831_152	8/31/2023 3:23 PI	Type M BDF+ F	ile
				Decentrads Decentrads Decentrads Decentrads Decentrads Decentrads Decentrad ScansioniGiuliaAgestini Videos Go (c) Dati (Do) Vitruad Disk (E) Limited (T) Versioni (\\10.1.201) (Ve) TEMP (\\\nas) (Vi) File name: Pace	 ✓ ✓	52101.bdf+	v bdf+ files (*	bdf+)	,
• Patients per	page <u>30 👻</u> Total	patients: 22 44		Total exams: 1			Open	Cance	
Database	e online	LINE Distributed co	nfiguratio	n Locale_S32 - File syste	m available				≓

BDF File Import

The imported file is automatically converted by Brain Quick Software into an EEG trace file and a new EEG exam appears in the Exams list associated to current patient.

SETTINGS

FILE MANAGER and Brain Quick software settings type are:

• User: local settings different for each user (applied to a specific user on a specific machine)

Note. All FILE MANAGER User settings are centrally stored; there are no local User settings.

Machine: local settings equal for all users on a specific machine

Note. Machine settings are editable by authorized users only, i.e. user with the "Can Modify Unit Settings" permission

• Central User: central settings different for each user (applied to a specific user in all the machines)

• Central: central settings equal for all users in all the machines of the system

Note. Central settings are editable by authorized users only, i.e. user with the "Can Modify Central Settings" permission

In a networked environment the centralized settings configuration is stored on **server**; **local** type settings are maintained on single workstation with possibility to be **manually centralized**, while **central** type settings are automatically downloaded to single workstation at installation time and kept **synchronized** with the central configuration.

It is possible to access the Settings area by clicking the FILE MANAGER application button on the top left corner of the main window and selecting **Settings** from the menu; the "Settings" window will open organized into different tabs.

This dedicated area allows the user to modify many application settings, some of which are key to the correct functioning of the FILE MANAGER application itself.

Note. It is highly recommended that Administrator users only perform Central settings setup and that Unit settings are changed only by qualified technical personnel.

The complete list of options is comprised of eight tabs, each one grouping different settings.

The Tabs are:

- Display
- Language
- Archive
- Acquisition List
- Licensing
- Logging
- Lockdown
- Labels Customization
- HIS

Settings type for each configuration tab will be specified in the following sections.

Note. Following paragraphs describe all options available for Administrator user which is allowed to setup and change also Unit and Central settings. The majority of settings illustrated below is not available for standard user who typically can access only User settings.

DISPLAY SETTINGS

The Display Tab allows users to configure display settings of the application; the tab pane is divided into the following three sections: User, Machine and Central.

User Settings

Each user can setup the following display settings:

- **Theme** of FILE MANAGER application, the user can select the desired theme among many Microsoft Office themes. Once the theme is changed, restarting the FILE MANAGER is NOT required to apply the changes.
- Grid, preferences related to the Patients list and Exams list. In this section it is possible to:
 - a. Enable the option to auto-expand files when selecting a visit in the exams list.
 - b. Change the font size for patients and exams.
 - c. Select the naming convention, patient's last name before the first name or vice versa.

Note. Chosen naming convention will be applied to any physical person whose data is shown in FILE MANAGER, such as patients, doctors, and technicians.

Settings	
Display	A User Address (Central
Archive	Theme
Lockdown	Office2019Colorful
Acquisition List	
Licensing	Grid
Logging	Auto-expand Files when expanding Visits
Labels customization	Font size
Language	Naming convention
ніс	Last name before first name
1115	○ First name before last name
	Visit View
	Group LTM Exams into Visits
	Grouping interval (days): 1

- Visit View, in this section it is possible to:
 - Enable the automatic grouping of LTM EEG exams in a single visit. If this option is enabled, the user can also decide the grouping criteria (in days) from one up to seven days; for example, if "1 day" option is selected all EEG recording performed within the same day are grouped under the same LTM visit.

Note. The LTM aggregator algorithm considers two parameters: the grouping criteria and the anchor time, a central settings, which represents the starting time of the day from which the grouping begin.

Machine Settings

Authorized user can setup the following display settings which are saved at machine level, i.e. applied to all users working on the machine:

CNS Exam Options, to manage the integration between Moberg CNS Envision software and FILE MANAGER.

Settings	
Display	
Archive	Co User The Machine Cenual
Lockdown	CNS Exam Options
Acquisition List	CNS Envision
Licensing	"Open With" Menu options ☑ CNS Envision
Logging	Persyst
Labels customization	Envision Program Selector
Language	choose file
HIS	Persyst Program Selector Program File Path Choose file
	SleepRT
	Program File Path choose file
	OK Cancel

As seen in the figure above, in this section is possible to:

a. Choose the default application to open a CNS exam when double clicking.

Available options are Brain Quick, CNS Envision, and Persyst.

b. Configure the right-clicking "Open With" menu options for CNS exams opening; if any of the listed options is selected, the ability to open files with applications different from the default one will be enabled.

Note. The "Open with" option will be available in the right-click contextual menu of Exams list when a CNS exam is selected.

- c. Set the program file path for
 - a. CNS Envision executable file (.exe)
 - b. Persyst executable file (.exe)
 - c. Analysis destination folder, in case of hybrid system with SleepRT analysis executed from SystemPLUS Evolution
 - d. SleepRT executable file (.exe)

Note. To open CNS exam files with applications other than the default one, it is required that the CNS Envision and Persyst path fields point to their respective ".exe" files.

Central Settings

Authorized user can set up the following centralized display options which apply to all users and all machines:

• Anchor time, which is the starting time of the day used as reference to split EEG exams into different LTM visits according to the grouping criteria chosen by each user.

Display	
Archive	
lockdown	Visit View
Acquisition List	Split LTM Visits at Specified Time (hh:mm 24hr format) 00:00
icensina	

LANGUAGE AND INTERNATIONALIZATION

The Language Tab allows authorized user to choose the application language.

Note. Available languages are English (default), Italian, German, French, Spanish, Portuguese, Danish, Dutch, Finnish, Russian, Swedish and Turkish.

In the same tab it is also possible to set up internationalization preferences, i.e. to choose the date time format and related separator.

Display 📀	Central
Archive	
Archive	anguage (requires application restart)
Lockdown	inglish 🔹
Acquisition List D	ate time format
Licensing F4	dd-MM-уууу 06-07-2023 eparator slash (/) 06/07/2023
Logging	ate separator 06/07/2023
Labels customization	
Language	
HIS	

Once the selections are saved, THE APPLICATION NEEDS TO BE RESTARTED to apply the changes.

Note. Language and Internationalization preferences are Central settings, i.e. they must be set up by Administrator user and they apply to all users and all machines of the system.

ARCHIVE SETTINGS

The Archive Tab is divided into two sections: User and Central.

User Settings

User can set up the following options:

a. Enable the "Set patient to "Read" when all patient exams are marked as "Read"" option, which allows to automatically set a patient to "read" if all the patient's exams have been marked as "read". The "read" option allows the user to trigger the automatic archiving procedure.

If this option is disabled, the patient is not set to "read" even when all the patient's exams have been marked as "read"; such operation have to be performed manually.

Note. The option takes into consideration also the "to delete" marker, i.e. if enabled, patient is automatically set to "read" if all related exams are either marked as "read" OR as "to delete".

b. Enable the "Ask to mark exam as "Read" on EEG review window exit" option to automatically prompt the user to set an exam to "read" when exiting from an EEG review session.

Settings	
Display	Suser Central
Archive	Archiving Options
Lockdown	Archiving Options Ask to mark exam as "Read" on EEG review window exit
Acquisition List	Set patient to "Read" when all patient exams are marked as "Read" 🗹

Central Settings

Authorized user can set up the following centralized options which apply to all users and all machines:

a. Enable the "Archive analysis file to Storage (Persyst, .fft)" option, which triggers the automatic archiving of analysis files, if any, when an EEG exam is archived.

ACQUISITION LIST SETTINGS

The Acquisition List Tab allows to configure the settings of the Acquisition System List; it is divided into two sections: Machine and Central.

Machine Settings

Authorized user can enable/disable the Acquisition list on each single machine.

Then it is possible to configure the following settings of the Acquisition System List:

- a. Enable option for the remote control of the listed acquisition systems.
- b. Browse the UltraVNC Viewer installation path for the remote control of acquisition system running System PLUS Evolution.
- c. Add/Remove an acquisition system; each workstation can monitor and/or take the control only of acquisition system listed in the Acquisition systems table.

All controllable acquisition systems are listed, together with their host (i.e. their IP address) and their (hidden) password for the remote control by UltraVNC. Buttons "Add" and "Remove" at the bottom of the list can be used to add a new system or to remove the selected one.

Note. Machine name, IP address and password are mandatory to interact with the acquisition system.

Archive C Enable To make changes effective you must restart the application Lockdown Options Descriptions						
Lockdown Options						
Acquisition List						
VNC Viewer	VNC Viewer					
C:\Program Files\uvnc bvba\UltraVNC\vncviewer.exe	C:\Program Files\uvnc bvba\UltraVNC\vncviewer.exe Browse					
Logging						
Acquisition systems						
abels customization Name Host Password						
S39 10.1.2.74 ••••••	-					
S44 10.1.2.25 ••••••						
	•					

IMPORTANT NOTE. In order to use the Control functionality on acquisition stations running SystemPLUS Evolution, the software UltraVNC must be installed both on the server computer and the client computer.

Central Settings

Authorized user can set up the following centralized options for the Acquisition list configuration:

- a. Choose the format for the patient name.
- b. Configure the four visible fields (A through D) displayed in the details pane of each acquisition machine shown in the Acquisition List panel; default values are Name, Location, ID1 and None, respectively.

Settings		
Display	Machine Central	
Archive	Patient Format	
Lockdown	LastCommaFirst	•
	Field A Field B	
Acquisition List	Name	•
	Field C Field D	
Licensing	None None	•

LICENSING

Note. All Licensing settings are Machine settings, i.e. they apply to all users working on a specific station.

The Licensing Tab allows authorized user to configure and view the active licenses for the application.

All active licenses are listed in a table and grouped by category.

Settings					
Display	Machine				
Archive					
/ i cinve	Id		Name	Notes	
Lockdown	E	10	SW FILEMANAGER		
Locatoria	E	11	SW BRAIN QUICK		
Acquisition List	Ð	14	SW NEUROWERK		
Acquisition List	E	16	SW SLEEPRT		
	Ð	17	SW MOBERG		
Licensing	Ξ	15	CNS		
Logging Labels customization Language HIS					

LOGGING PREFERENCES

Note. All Logging preferences are Central settings, i.e. they apply to all users and all machines.

The Logging Tab allows authorized user to configure the level of detail of the log activity and to enable the auditing functions for the application.

Settings					
Display	Central				
Archive	Log Settings				
Lockdown	Log File Path	C:\Users\Public\Docun	nents/Micromed/FileManager/L	.og	Browse
Acquisition List	Log Accuracy	Detailed	✔ Debug	Basic	
Licensing	Audit Log Settings				
Logging	☑ Enable Audit Log				
Labels customization					

Log settings

In the Log Settings section it is possible to define the log file path, i.e. where comments and/or errors are logged while FILE MANAGER application is running.

Authorized user can select the destination folder to save the log files and choose the level of details of the log file; such options are the same for all machine of the system.

Three levels of accuracy are available:

- **Detailed**, which keeps track of each action performed in the FILE MANAGER
- Debug, which tracks less actions than the "Detailed" level
- **Basic**, which keeps track only of the most important information (typically errors and exceptions) related to actions performed in FILE MANAGER

Note. The default path for the log file is "C:\Users\Public\Documents\Micromed\FileManager\Log".

Audit Log Settings

The Audit Log trail keeps track of the actions performed and which user performed them.

In the Audit Log Settings section it is possible to activate or deactivate the audit trailing; activities are centrally stored in the Audit Log database (on server).

LOCKDOWN PREFERENCES

If Logon system is enabled, the Lockdown Tab allows authorized users to enable the application automatic lockdown and to set up the idle timeout, i.e. the period of inactivity of the Archive module after which the application automatically enters in lockdown mode.

Settings	
Display	Machine
Archive	Lockdown Options (requires application rotart)
Lockdown	Automatic lockdown Disable option
Acquisition List	Disable option 1 minute(s)
Licensing	5 minute(s) 10 minute(s) 20 minute(s)
Logging	1 hour(s) and 0 minute(s)
Labels customization	
Language	
HIS	
	OK Cancel

Note. Lockdown preferences are Machine settings, i.e. they apply to all users working on a specific station.

LABELS CUSTOMIZATION

For authorized users it is possible to assign a custom description to application labels.

Note. Customized application labels are shared among all users and machines in the networked system.

Clicking on the FILE MANAGER application button in the top left corner of the main window and selecting "Labels customization" tab in the Settings area it is possible to access a dedicated pane.

Note. Authorized user only, i.e. user with the "Can Modify Central Settings" permission, can perform labels customization.

The "Label customization" pane allows users to assign a custom description to application labels. It is comprised of four tabs:

- Patient
- Exam
- File
- Visit

Note. The configuration of custom labels is saved at Central level, i.e. it is unique to all users in all machines of the networked system where FILE MANAGER is installed.

FILE MANAGER will refresh with customized descriptions as soon as changes are confirmed. The figure below shows an example of customization for the "Comment" column label in the Exams list.

Pa	ntie	nt	05					
	œ	۲		Recording date	Diagnosis	Doctor	Technician	Marker
œ	œ	۲		8/5/2021 8:26:52 AM		Green Michelle		Pre-evalu
Q	•			8/5/2021 8:27:48 AM		Red Paul		Evaluated

Patient

The Patient tab allows users to assign a custom description to patient related fields shown in FILE MANAGER application.

The Patient pane is comprised of the following sections:

- Personal details
- Address
- Clinical references
- Contact
- Insurance
- Physical data
- Other

In each section it is possible to customize specific labels related to patient data, such as demographic details, insurance information, etc.

Settings					
Display	Central				
Archive	Patient				
Lockdown	Exam	Personal details Address	Clinical references Contact	t Insurance details Physical data	
Acquisition List	LA IN	Original: ID1	Custom:	Mandatory	
Licensing	File	Original: ID2	Custom:	Mandatory	
Logging		Original: Last name	Custom:	Field is always mandatory	
Labels customization		Original: First name	Custom:	Field is always mandatory	
Language		Original: Birthdate	Custom:	Field is always mandatory	
		Original: Gender	Custom:		
		Original: Title	Custom:		

Additionally, in the "Personal details" section it is possible to set the "ID1" and "ID2" fields as mandatory. Note. The default mandatory patient fields are "Last name", "First name" and "Birth Date".

Exam

The Exam tab allows users to assign a custom description to exam related fields shown in the FILE MANAGER application, such as "Code", "Marker", etc.

Settings					
Display	Central				
Archive	Patient				
Lockdown	Exam	Exam			
Acquisition List	Visit	Original: Exam path	Custom:		
Licensing	File	Original: Code	Custom:	Mandatory	
Logging	110	Original: Marker	Custom:	Mandatory	
Labels customization		Original: Comment	Custom: Diagnosis	Mandatory	
Language					
		Original: Quick Search	0 Custom:		
		Original: Quick Search	1 Custom:		
		Original: Quick Search	2 Custom:		
		Original: Quick Search	3 Custom:		
		Original: Quick Search	4 Custom:		

As in the Patient tab, it is possible to set certain exam related fields editable by users as mandatory; this option is available only for "Code", "Marker", and "Comment".

File

The File tab allows users to assign a custom description to file related fields shown in the FILE MANAGER application, such as "Comment", "Doctor", etc.

Settings						
Display	Central					
Archive	Patient					
Lockdown	Evam	File				
Acquisition List	Visit	Original: Reco	ording date	Custom:		
Licensing	VISIL	Original: Com	iment	Custom:	Mandatory	
Logging	File	Original: Loca	ation	Custom:		
Labels customization						
Language		Original: Stora	age	Custom:		
		Original: Doct	tor	Custom:	Mandatory	
		Original: Requ	uesting Doctor	Custom:	Mandatory	
		Original: Tech	inician	Custom:	Mandatory	
		Original: Hosp	pital Departmer	Custom:	Mandatory	

Again, it is possible to set certain fields as mandatory; this option is available only for user-editable fields, i.e. Comment", "Doctor", "Technician", "Hospital Department", and "Requesting Doctor".

Visit

Finally, the Visit tab allows users to assign a custom description to columns associated to visit.

HIS SETTINGS (HL7 INTERFACE)

Note. All HIS preferences settable in FILE MANAGER *Settings area* are Machine settings, i.e. they apply to all users of the workstation.

The HIS Tab allows authorized user to configure the HL7 Interface local preferences linked to report management.

Settings	
Display	Machine Machine
Archive	Convert and replace
Lockdown	Close Job
Acquisition List	Export PDF Enable Pdf Compression
Licensing	
Logging	
Labels customization	
Language	
HIS	
	OK Cancel

For single workstation (machine) it is possible to:

- Enable the "**Convert and replace**" option, i.e. decide to override the original report document keeping only the exported pdf document. Otherwise, it is possible to keep a copy of the exported report (useful to handle different versions of the same document) if leaving the option unchecked.
- Enable the **report export** in **Pdf** format and decide if send it in a compressed format or not.
- Enable the "Close Job" option, i.e. the possibility of closing a job (imported HL7 request) even if the related report is not yet been exported.

SETTINGS CENTRALIZATION

In a networked environment it is possible to share local settings, i.e. Unit settings, with other users and machines of the system.

FILE MANAGER offers a dedicated area where it is possible to select configuration files to share and centralize them.

Note. Only authorized user, i.e. user with the "Can Modify Central Settings" permission, can perform settings centralization.

	e				File Manager				- 0	×
			FileManager	Name			File type	 Centralized 		
			BrainQuickEEG	BrainQuic	kEEG Settings					
			Neurowerk	d Unit						-
					Tomplater					
					remplates					
					EEG_Empty.doc		generic file			-
					EEG_ENG.doc		generic file			_
0			File Manager		- 0	×	generic file			
e	EleManager	Nama		Ele hune	* Cantralized		generic file			
	BrainQuickEEG	A File	Mananer Settings	riie type	- Centralized	98.	BrainQuick montage file			
	Neurowerk		Unit			-b8	BrainQuick montage file			
			Dictionaries			fb4	- BrainQuick montage file			-
			• 📕 ISpell			ich	BrainQuick montage file			
			Templates			160	Paris Quick mentage file			
			ANA_Empty.doc	generic file		709	brainquick montage nie			
			ANA_ENG.doc	generic file		511.	. BrainQuick montage file			
			ANA_ESP.doc	generic file		cb	BrainQuick montage file			
			ANA_ITA.doc	generic file		-b,	BrainQuick montage file			
			NW_EEG_DE.doc	generic file		5b0.	BrainQuick montage file			
			9 NW_EEG_ENG.doc	generic file		388.	BrainQuick montage file			
			AcquisitionListOptionsUnit.ini	INI configuration file		37f.	BrainQuick protocol file			
			AllUsersLocaLini	INI configuration file			generic file			
			UisplayUnit.ini	INI configuration file			generic file			
			LockdownUnitini	INI configuration file			generic file			
			RunAsPreferences.ison	JSON configuration file		00,	generic file			
			dictationConfiguration.xml	XML configuration file			generic file			
			externalProgramConfiguration.xml	XML configuration file		Эf	generic file			*
			hisClientConfiguration.xml	XML configuration file					C	
									Centralize	
Settings Centralization										
Settings	0				Centralize					

To centralize settings click the FILE MANAGER application button on the top left corner of the main window and select the **Settings Centralization** option from the left menu; a dedicated pane will appear where it will be possible to select the software for which configuration parameters have to be shared (FILE MANAGER, Brain Quick software). All configuration files available to be centralized are listed and a checkbox indicates which settings have already been shared.

Select items corresponding to settings to centralize and click the **Centralize** button. The setting is marked as centralized and will be spread to all other machines of the distributed system.

In all other workstations, at software restart, the user will be prompted with a notification as soon as he accesses FILE MANAGER and can decide whether to accept or reject the settings just centralized, i.e. to be synchronized or not with central configuration.

When a setting file is centralized, all machines of the network have a local copy of it and can still go on modifying it locally.

In case an already centralized setting is updated from a client machine and the changes need to be updated in all clients on the network, the user can select the desired setting and click on **Update**. The modifications will be propagated to server which will spread the modified setting to all clients through the distributed network. In all other workstations, at software restart, the user will be prompted with a notification as soon as he accesses FILE MANAGER and can decide whether to accept or reject the settings just centralized, i.e. to be synchronized or not with central configuration.

When a setting file is updated, all machines of the network have a local copy of the modified settings and can still go on modifying it locally.

e			File Manager		- 0	×
	FileManager	Name		File type	Centralized	
	BrainQuickEEG		IDC M/d - D0-51-15 4040 46-L -35	generie file		-
	Neurowerk	20	IPS WIDE Kange_e9e51a15-t049-40cb-a55	generic file		
			LicensingUnit.ini	INI configuration file		
			LockdownUnit.ini	INI configuration file		
		0	MonitorCalibration.ini	INI configuration file		
		P 20	Monopolar_176076af-f941-480e-97fc-6cb	BrainQuick montage file		
		b	New Montage_b6883e93-b4a9-4781-80b9	BrainQuick montage file		
		B	New Montage_e5eb5165-16a8-4a60-9611	BrainQuick montage file		
		() 1000	noteSetup.xml	XML configuration file		
			Poly. Reduced_76bc7136-cd8c-4343-93cb	BrainQuick montage file		
			Polygraphic_49e1e3c9-aa49-407a-86b9-b	BrainQuick montage file		
			Reduced_da5c8861-7543-4bc9-89e5-b5b0	BrainQuick montage file		
		(J)	reductionProtocols.xml	XML configuration file	×	
		0	ScreenCapturePreferences.ini	INI configuration file		
		0.0	Standard 10-20.bqsc	generic file		
		00	Standard JB EEG DSUB.bqsc	generic file		
		00	Standard JB LTM 128.bqsc	generic file		
		00	Standard JB LTM 256.bqsc	generic file		
		00	Standard JB LTM 32.bqsc	generic file		
		0.5	Standard JB LTM 64.bqsc	generic file		
		00	Standard JB LTM DSUB.bqsc	generic file		
		00	Standard JB LTM EU 256.bqsc	generic file		
Cattions Controllection		00	Standard JB LTM TOPHAT.bqsc	generic file		
Settings Centralization		o`	Standard IR SLEEP bosc	generic file		•
Settings	0			C)ecentralize Update	

After a file has been centralized, it is still possible to decentralize it, hence from server there will be no more mechanisms to distribute that file to all available client machines. To trigger that, it is necessary to select the setting to be decentralized and click on Decentralize button. The setting file will be still available locally in all machines of the distributed environment and can still be used and modified.

e			File Manager		- 0	×
	FileManager	Name		File type	Centralized	
	BrainQuickEEG	-Q-	11 5 Neudeed Nange_055055055 1150 4401	genene me		-
	Neurowerk	00	IPS Wide Range_e9e51a15-f049-46cb-a35	generic file		
		0	LicensingUnit.ini	INI configuration file		
		0	LockdownUnit.ini	INI configuration file		
		0	MonitorCalibration.ini	INI configuration file		
		- B	Monopolar_176076af-f941-480e-97fc-6cb	BrainQuick montage file		
		I	New Montage_b6883e93-b4a9-4781-80b9	BrainQuick montage file		
		I	New Montage_e5eb5165-16a8-4a60-9611	BrainQuick montage file		
		0	noteSetup.xml	XML configuration file		
		I	Poly. Reduced_76bc7136-cd8c-4343-93cb	BrainQuick montage file		
		b	Polygraphic_49e1e3c9-aa49-407a-86b9-b	BrainQuick montage file		
		I	Reduced_da5c8861-7543-4bc9-89e5-b5b0	BrainQuick montage file		
		40	reductionProtocols.xml	XML configuration file	×	
		0	ScreenCapturePreferences.ini	INI configuration file		
		00	Standard 10-20.bqsc	generic file		
		00	Standard JB EEG DSUB.bqsc	generic file		
		00	Standard JB LTM 128.bqsc	generic file		
		00	Standard JB LTM 256.bqsc	generic file		
		00	Standard JB LTM 32.bqsc	generic file		
		00	Standard JB LTM 64.bqsc	generic file		
		00	Standard JB LTM DSUB.bqsc	generic file		
		00	Standard JB LTM EU 256.bqsc	generic file		
Settings Controlization		00	Standard JB LTM TOPHAT.bqsc	generic file		_
Setungs Centralization		a	Standard IR SI FER hose	generic file		•
Settings	0			C	Decentralize Update	

EEG MODULE – BRAIN QUICK SOFTWARE

BRAIN QUICK SOFTWARE is the software that handles all of Micromed acquisition and Review systems for EEG, EMG and EP, which means that according to the enabled key options, BRAIN QUICK SOFTWARE integrates all types of exams in a single application.

MAIN WINDOW BASIC ELEMENTS

The EEG window makes up the main part of BRAIN QUICK SOFTWARE window. The figure below shows the basic elements of this window:



In particular, the General Information Area is divided into four parts:

- Title Bar;
- Ribbon Bar;
- Application Button;
- Quick Access Toolbar.

TITLE BAR

Title bar displays the type of the window open ("EEG" or "REPORT"), first and last name of the patient with recording date and time.

During the review, if the user needs to hide patient's personal information the function **Anonymize** is available in the Home tab of the Ribbon bar:

3 - Double Banana ▼ 400 µV/cm ▼ 3.0 cm/sec ▼ 1 ▼	1.6 Hz 🔻 70.0 Hz 🔻	EEG - 01 Patient - 1/23/2024	11:57:04 AM		– 🗆 X.
Home Montage Navigation Events HFO Analyse Reduct 3 - Double Banana	AVG AVG SRC	Ω ⊕ × Collapse al ↓ Zoom ≎ Expand all	Ruler Standard Advanced One	1 🕂 🕂 [
recorded Speed 1 -	setup Setup	impedances	Clos	e panel Unlock Re	sport 🖆
Montage parameters	Reference	Tools Groups	Cursor Vide	o Events	Standard

This function hides patient's name and surname from the title bar and from the Video review window:



RIBBON BAR

The upper part of BRAIN QUICK SOFTWARE window is devoted to the Ribbon menu containing the toolbars commands that allow access to all the functions. It is designed to help the user to quickly find the commands that he needs to complete a task.

The Ribbon bar contains all the toolbars placed on several tabs, grouped by functionality to expose different sets of controls when needed.

This menu uses tabs to expose different sets of controls, eliminating the need for many parallel toolbars.

Contextual tabs are tabs that appear only when the user needs them.

It could be minimized keeping only tabs titles displayed.

The user has the possibility to use this bar in normal mode, in minimized mode and on auto-hide mode, that is a function that automatically hides entire Ribbon in order to work on the window in full screen.

Commands are organized in logical groups, which are called together under the tabs.

BRAIN QUICK Software allows the user to customize all tabs, groups and define which functions could be present in the different tabs and groups. This software could also allow the user to change tab and group name, to reset the selected tab or the entire Ribbon Bar to the default configuration.

It contains by default the following tabs:

Home

- Montage
- Navigation
- Events
- HFO
- Sleep
- Analyze
- Reduction
- Window
- Help

Home Tab

	3 - Double Banana	•	400 µV/cm ▼	3.0 cm/sec 🔻	1 💌	1.6 Hz 🔻	70.0 H	⊣z ▼	EEG	i - 01 Pa	tient - 1/23/2024	11:57:04	AM					-		×
	Home Montag	e Navigati	tion Events	HFO Analyse	Reduction	Windo	ow Help)												^
3 - Double Lines: 26 - EE	Banana 🔹	As recorded Sp	ain 400 μV/cr ase time 3.0 cm/se peed 1	n ▼ C ▼ Notch Hp filter	1.6 Hz • 70.0 Hz •	AVG	AVG setup S	SRC Setup	Ω View impedances	⊕ _{Zoom}	$\stackrel{\scriptstyle \scriptstyle \times}{_{\sim}}$ Collapse all $\stackrel{\scriptstyle \scriptstyle \leftarrow}{_{\sim}}$ Expand all	Ruler	Standard	Advanced	Open Close	Open Lock panel Unlock	Open Report	6 6	Anonymi	ze
		Montag	ge parameters				Reference		Tool	s	Groups		Cursor		Video	Events		Standar	d	

Home tab contains command buttons and provides quick access to the functions needed most often during Video EEG.

"Home" tab in Review window contains the following Groups and Functions:

- "Montage Parameters" group: Montage selection, As recorded, Gain selection, Base time selection, Speed selection, Notch, Hp filter selection, Lp selection
- "Reference" group: reference selection (G2, AVG, A1A2, SRC), AVG Setup, SRC Setup
- "Tools" group: View Impedances, Zoom
- "Groups" group shall: Collapse all, Expand all
- "Cursor" group: Ruler, Standard, Advanced
- "Video" group: Open/Close
- "Events" group: Open panel, Lock/Unlock
- "Standard" group: Open report, Copy EEG page to report, Take a screenshot, Screen video recording, Print Setup, Print, Anonymize

"Home" tab in Acquisition window contains the following Groups and Functions:

- "Montage Parameters" group: Montage selection, Gain selection, Base time selection, Notch, Hp filter selection, Lp selection
- "Reference" group: reference selection (G2, AVG, A1A2, SRC), AVG Setup, SRC Setup
- "Tools" group: Connect Setup, Start/Stop Acquisition, Pause, Save, Check Impedances, Enable Video, Setup Acquisition Tools, Control Panel, Photic Setup, Chrono Setup, Cortical Stimulation, Cortical Stimulation Setup;
- "Groups" group: Collapse all, Expand all
- "Video" group: Open/Close
- "Events" group: Open panel, Lock/Unlock
- "Standard" group: Open report, Anonymize

3 - Double Banana ▼ 400 µV/cm ▼ 3.0 cm/sec ▼ 1	▼ 1.6 Hz	▼ 70.0 Hz ▼	EEG - ACQUISITION: 01 Patier	nt (EEG EXAM ACQUIRE)					-		×
Home Montage Events HFO Analyse Window He	lp										^
3 - Double Banana ▼ Gain 400 µV/cm ▼ Y Hp filter 1.6 Hz ▼ Lines: 26 - EEG: 18 - Polygraphic: 0 Base time 3.0 cm/sec ▼ Notch Lp filter 70.0 Hz ▼	Connect Check	Run Save Pause Ena	ble Setup Acquisition Control	Photic Chronomete	r Cortical Cortical	AVG AVG SRC	$\bigoplus_{\text{Zoom}} \begin{array}{c} \stackrel{\text{\star Collapse all$}}{\stackrel{\text{$\star$ Expand all$}}{\stackrel{\text{$\star$ Som}}{\stackrel{\text{\star Som}}{\text{$\star$$	Open Lock	Open Anonym	ize	
Montage parameters	Setup Impedan	ce via	Tools	Sumulation	sumulation setup	Reference	Groups	Events	Standard		

Montage Tab

	3 - Double Banana 🔻 400 μV/α				400 µV/cr	n 🔻	3.0 cm	/sec 🔹		1 🔻	1	.6 Hz	•	70.0 Hz	*	
	Home Montage Events HFO Analyse Window Help															
Ð	(P)	Ð	B	(Pos	(P)	æ	⊘= ⊘=	0= 0=	- <u>M</u>	-//~-)		-	-1		a	
Setup	Electrode Position	Save all	Save	Reload	Archive	Show montage	Select All	Deselect all	Cut	Сору	Paste	Кеер	Delete	Dup	licate&Lock	
	Settings							Montag	e line e	diting				View		

The Montage tab allows the Montage visualization and the **Montage editing** directly in the EEG review window or in Setup menu.

From this tab it possible to change **Eletrode Position** and enable **Duplicate & Lock** View.

Navigation Tab



Navigation tab groups the **navigation** commands present also in timebar for the movements through the trace and in Video window for video play.

The software allows several users to review the same EEG trace at the same time and all the users are listed in the **Session** list and presented as {*machine name*}/{*user name*} including the position of the given user.

Events Tab

3 - Double Banana Home Montage	▼ 400 µV/cm ▼ 3.0 cm/sec ▼ 1 ▼ 1 Navigation Events HFO Analyse Reduction	1.6 Hz ▼ 70.0 Hz ▼ EEG - Patient 3 - 1/23/2024 11:57:04 AM	
Open Events panel setup	tion Digital Video Hyperventilation EEG Analysis Photic trigger selection General	Image: Construction Image: Construc	

Events tab contains commands to enable insertion of **General** events, like Notes, Digital Triggers, Annotations, Flags, and Selections, to enable insertion of **Custom** events defined from users and to enable **Tools** such as the External Event Calculation.

HFO Tab

	3 - Doubl	e Banana	•	400 μV/	′cm ▼	3.0	cm/sec	•	1 💌	1.6	Hz 🔻	70.0	Hz 🔻	EEG - Patient 3
	Home	Montage	Navigat	tion I	Events	HFO	Ar	nalyse	Reduct	tion	Window	Help	0	
F% F4	F	G	R	Ų	G	5	R	F	હ્	S		\swarrow	ď	
Open Events panel setup	Lock Unlock	Duplicate&Lock	HFO ripple	HFO fast ripple	HFO gamma	HFO spike	HFO ripple	HFO fast ripple	HFO gamma	HFO spike	Statistics setup	Process	External calculation	
		View		HFO e	vents		ł	HFO even	ts visibilit	у	HFO sta	atistics	Tools	

HFO tab allows insertion of **HFO events**, to change view settings enabling Duplicate&Lock function, to change **HFO Events Visibility** and gives the possibility to perform **HFO Statistics** and call **External Calculation**.

Analyze tab



In Analyze tab there are all the features to perform online and offline analysis on the recorded EEG: **EEG Analyzer**, **Maps**, **Reaction Monitoring**, and **Persyst**. All these features will be described in the following sections.

Reduction Tab

	3 - Double Banana	▼ 400	µV/cm ╺	3.0 cm	/sec 🔻	1 💌 👘	1.6 Hz 🔻	70.0 Hz 🔻	
B	Home Montage	Navigation	Events	HFO	Analyse	Reduction	Window	Help	
to	Protocol Legacy Protocol 🔻	to to							
Edit		Run Preview							
Setup	Tools								

In Reduction tab it is possible to define a new **Reduction Protocol**, select one of the saved protocols to visualize on the open trace a **Preview** of the reduction that can be performed and to **Run** it to start the reduction.

Window Tab

	3 -	Double Banana	•	400 µV/cm	▼ 3.0 c	cm/sec 🔻	1 💌	1.6 Hz 🔻	70.0 Hz 🔻	EEG - Patient 3 -
	Hor	me Monta	age Naviga	ition Events	s HFO	Analyse	Reductio	on Window	Help	
Tile vertical	Tile horizontal	Tile vertical double screen	Tile horizontal double screen	EEG - Patient 3 EEG - ACQUISIT	- 1/23/2024 TION: 01 Pat	11:57:04 AM tient (EEG EXA)	vi acquire)			
		Windows			Available	Windows				

Window tab contains information about the **Available Windows** related to the open files (EEG exams) and clicking on the title of these windows the user can focus the selected window that will be visualized. The aim of this component is to select the window of interest to easily change visualization between different windows.

This tab also allows the user to change multiple **Windows** layout with the dedicated icon.

Help Tab

	3 -	Double	Banana	▼ 400	µV/cm ▼	3.0 cm	/sec 🔻	1 🔻	1.6 Hz 🔻	70.0 Hz	•	EEG - Patient 3 -
B		ome	Montage	Navigation	Events	HFO	Analyse	Reduction	Window	Help		
?		i	·····									
Help	Company homepage	About	Shortcuts									
	F	lelp										

Help tab provides information about the company and supports the user providing the possibility to quickly access to this online **Help** manual that includes a search functionality that the user can use to search for help in the BRAIN QUICK SOFTWARE documentation.

APPLICATION BUTTON

The BRAIN QUICK software window contains an application button at the top left. Clicking on that button opens a menu containing commands related to operations on the file (such as Open, Print, Export to ASCII or EDF+), information related to File Properties, and useful commands for changing the display of the exams.



From Application Button it's possible to open the properties window, where the user can personalize:

- The Monitor Calibration;
- The visualization preferences (derivation labels color and font, time and video cursor color, background color)
- Screen Capture folder (the path where it's possible to save screenshots and screen records)
- System Preferences, in order to set the Notch Filter Frequency.

QUICK ACCESS TOOLBAR

It is a small, customizable toolbar that displays frequently used commands. Commands can be added to the Quick Access Toolbar from Ribbon bar by right-clicking on the command and choosing "Add to Quick Access Toolbar"



micromed

The Quick Access Toolbar default position is on top of BRAIN QUICK Software window next to the application button placed in the top left corner. By right-clicking each ribbon button the user is also able to minimize the ribbon bar and to move Quick Access Toolbar below or above the ribbon.

RIBBON CUSTOMIZATION WINDOW

It is possible to customize the Ribbon Bar for all associated tabs and groups through the Ribbon Customization window. To access it, it is necessary to right-click on the Ribbon Bar, so that the following menu appears:

Show Quick Access Toolbar Below the Ribbon
Minimize the Ribbon
Customize Ribbon

Choosing "Customize Ribbon," the following window opens:

All items	All tabs
(comboAnalyser) (comboAnalyserStored) (comboMontage) (comboMontageReference) m About About Acoustic stimulus MeAdvanced	 ✓ Default category ▶ ✓ Home ▶ ✓ Montage ▶ ✓ Navigation ▶ ✓ Events
Amplitude map Analysis selection Anotation So Anonymize Archive Archive Archive Archive Archive Anousal	 ↓ ✓ HFO ↓ ✓ Sleep ↓ ✓ Analyse ↓ ✓ Reduction ↓ ✓ Window ↓ ✓ Help

In this window it is possible to choose which tabs to activate or deactivate during acquisition or review, as well as add functionality for individual tab groups. Finally, by right-clicking on one of the tabs, it is possible to create a new group, rename the tab, remove it, or change its order.

Custon	nize the Ribł	bon:	
All tab	os		•
⊿ De	efault catego V Home Home Montag	je	
* * * *	Vavicati	Add new group Show page Rename Remove Reset Move up Move down	
•	✓ Help		-
New	 Renam 	e Import/Export 🔻	

In the end, it's possible to export the customization performed or import an existing one, using "Import/Export" button in the window.

TIME BAR

Time Bar is an area placed under the EEG trace panel that represents information about the position of EEG page displayed in the trace and about the entire duration of the exam giving an overview on the presence of video files, notes, selections and other events. The time bar allows the user to quickly locate interesting parts of the recording. By taking advantage of this information, the user can more easily navigate the trace and can quickly locate the parts of greatest interest.

The time bar of the BRAIN QUICK acquisition software indicates the length of the associated trace with indication for events added during acquisition.

Brain Quick Review Software Time bar includes the following elements:

- Date and Time of the beginning of EEG signal page in visualization. Each time the user moves along the trace these values are refreshed at once.
- Timer from the beginning of the recording
- Completed Visualization Interval area with vertical lines of division (parameters for time reference)
- Complete EEG tracks area with vertical lines of division (parameters for time reference)
- Page Cursor
- Interval Cursor visualized as a horizontal line under the interval of visualization
- Vertical lines for the representation of NOTE Events (default colour blue)
- Vertical lines for the representation of TRIGGER Events (default colour green)
- First horizontal line as indicator for the presence of VIDEO (default cinematograph film)
- Second horizontal line for SELECTION event as indicator for VIDEO to archive (default colour red)
- Third horizontal line for SELECTION event as indicator for EEG to archive (default colour green)
- Fourth horizontal line for SELECTION event as indicator for TIMER, like hyperpnea (default light blue)
- Fifth horizontal line for SELECTION event as indicator for MAP to analyse (default colour orange)
- Sixth horizontal lines for customizable EVENTS (defined by user)
- Horizontal lines for HFO SELECTION (e.g. colour red)

During the review, the Time Bar includes two slider:

- **Page Slider:** allows the user to scroll the trace and represents the position of the EEG page displayed in the entire duration of EEG exam.
- **Interval Slider:** represents the position of the Interval displayed in Time bar in the entire duration of EEG exam and allows the user to scroll through the recording



In review, the Time Bar can manage a temporal interval including one or more traces, consecutive or not, previously selected and related to the same patient. In addition, it can work as a calendar with interval included between the start of the first EEG trace and the end of the "last" EEG trace.

In the end, it can include time period with no EEG trace appropriately highlighted with maximum duration of 23 hours and 59 minutes (less than 1 day with no EEG) between other traces in Multiple EEG visualization.

The navigation bar, placed near the time bar, allows the user to manage all the temporal movements in the trace during the review.

EEG SIGNAL WINDOW

EEG trace panel contains:

Labels view of the selected channels according with the chosen montage. From EEG window it is
possible to modify the view of all the channels displayed using the specific functions proposed in
Montage tab of the Ribbon bar. Selecting one or more line labels and right-clicking on them, a line
editor will be open in order to allow the user to quickly change parameters only of the selected lines
like the color of the displayed trace or filter parameters



It is possible to perform a multiple selection of labels with Shift+Click or Ctrl+Click.

The presence of lines with different gains or filter settings will be indicated using a warning symbol near the label, in this way:



Traces visualization of one EEG page. Traces are displayed according to their montage options and the
number of EEG seconds that will be visualized can be changed from base time option in Ribbon bar. In
EEG page also the events are displayed related to the position in which they were inserted with a
vertical bar if the event is on all lines or using a selection on a line.

VIEW CUSTOMIZATION

BRAIN QUICK SOFTWARE allows the user to define size and position of all its windows and panels. BRAIN QUICK SOFTWARE's panels and windows can be moved by clicking on their title bar and then dragging them to the desired position.

In order to modify height and width of panels and windows, point the mouse cursor on the panel's/window's edge and, when the cursor turns into a two-sided arrow, click and drag the panel's/window's edge until the desired dimension is reached.

All BRAIN QUICK SOFTWARE's panels are dockable panels. A dockable panel is a layout panel that provides an easy docking in preset positions. When dragging one of the panels BRAIN QUICK SOFTWARE displays all the preset positions in which the panel can be docked. Just release the panel over a docking position and the panel will be docked in that location. Panels can be docked on the left, right, top, bottom, or center of the window.



BRAIN QUICK Software's panels can be also dragged to locations different from docking positions. In this case, the panel will remain floating.

The windows placement defined by the user before the EEG window closure will be restored when the window is reopened keeping the last size and position set.

Windows placement memorization depends on the number of windows opened and on the window's type (EEG or Report), so the system saves and restores the last size and position used with 1 EEG window, with 1 Report window, with 2 EEG windows, with 1 EEG window + 1 report window, and so on.

BRAIN QUICK Software makes sure the windows are placed exactly where the user wants them every time he opens them; moreover, windows and panels disposition can be associated to the user logged in the machine.

DUPLICATE AND LOCK

"Duplicate and Lock" function can be enabled from Montage Tab with a dedicated button.



Duplicate and Lock function automatically opens additional panels for EEG visualization. The panels are synchronized and allow the user to scroll the trace, play video, modify montage and visualization parameters, analyze the EEG and insert notes and events. The user can have different EEG visualizations in different panels:

3 - Double Banan	a ▼ 400 µV/cm	▼ 3.0 cm/sec ▼	1 💌 1.6 Hz 💌	70.0 Hz	▼ EEG - P	atient 3 - 1/23/2024 11:57:04 AM					-	o ×
Home Mont	tage Navigation Event:	s HFO Analys	e Reduction Window	Help								^
3 - Double Banana Lines: 104 - EEG: 72 - Polygraphic	Gain 400 Gain 400 Base time 3.0 Speed Montage parameter	µV/cm ▼ cm/sec ▼ 1 ▼ Notch Par	filter 1.6 Hz • AVG filter 70.0 Hz • AVG	AVG setu Reference	SRC SRC Dip Setup E To	← Zoom ces bols Collapse all character Collapse all Collapse all character Collapse all character Collapse Collapse allo character Collapse	er Standard Curso	Advanced Open Close	Open Lock panel Unlock Events	pen port 🐔 Scre	y EEG page to report a screenshot en Video Recorder Standard	GO Anonymize
1 - Double	Banana	2 - D	ouble Banana	×	3 - D	ouble Banana	×	4 - D	ouble Banana		VIDEO - Patient 3 - 1/23/2024	11: ×
□ Fp2 F4 F4 C4		Fip2 M Fip2 M A4 C4 C4 PM M 022 Fip2 R8 R8 T4 T4 T6 C4 P2 C4 P3 Fip2 R8 R8 T4 T4 T6 C4 P2 Fip2 R8 Fip3 C3) Fp2 F4 F4 C4 C4 P4 P4 O2 Fp2 F8 F8 T4 T4 T6 T6 O2 Fp2 f2 F2 C2 C2 P2 F3 C3) Fp2 F4 F4 C4 C4 P4 P4 O2 Fp2 F8 F8 T4 T4 T6 T6 O2 Fp2 f2 C2 P2 F3 C3 F3 C3			23/01/2024 11:57:07.007 00/25 43027037 ms drawing 0.0031 s Delta -259.606 ms Jitter: 4.987 ms	
P3 O1		P3 01			P3 01			P3 O1				a k
Fp1 F7 F7 T3 T3 T5 T5 O1		Fp1 F7 F7 T3 T3 T5 T5 O1			Fp1 F7 F7 T3 T3 T5 T5 O1			Fp1 F7 F7 T3 T3 T5 T5 O1			23/01/2024 11:57:07.037 01/25	
EGG1+ ECG1- not pres EMG4+ EMG4- not pres EMG2+ EMG2- not pres PNG1+ PNG1- not pres	ent ent ent	ECG1+ ECG1- EMG4+ EMG4- EMG2+ EMG2- PNG1+ PNG1-	not present not present not present not present	P	ECG1+ ECG1- EMG4+ EMG4- EMG2+ EMG2- PNG1+ PNG1-	not present not present not present not present		ECG1+ ECG1- EMG4+ EMG4- EMG2+ EMG2- PNG1+ PNG1-	not present not present not present not present		43027057 ms drawing 0.0031 s Delta -259.606 ms	•
MKR+ MKR- PULS+ PULS- not pres BEAT+ BEAT- not pres SpO2+ SpO2- not pres	ent ent ent	MKR+ MKR- PULS+ PULS- BEAT+ BEAT- SpO2+ SpO2-	not present not present not present		MKR+ MKR- PULS+ PULS- BEAT+ BEAT- SpO2+ SpO2-	not present not present not present		MKR+ MKR- PULS+ PULS- BEAT+ BEAT- SpO2+ SpO2-	not present not present not present		11:57:06.871 ▶ ◀ ┣ ધ ▶ ◀ ٦▶ -) — I
00:00:02 1/23/2024 11:57:06_871		11,57,10		1001001000	11:57:15		11:57:20 EXCERNICACIÓN		<mark>л Ц</mark>	- 5 <	X 4 © > X> F3	M 🔊

By default, montage is the same of primary window and can be modified. To change montage and modify lines parameters on a single panel, the user can either click on the panel or select it from Montage Parameters group in Home Tab. Once one panel is selected, the parameters border color changes according to the selected panel. Parameters will be highlighted in different colors depending on how many panels are open.



Montage parameters in case of third panel selected (red)

	3 - Doubl	e Banana	•	400 µV	/cm 🔻	3.0 cr	m/sec 💌		1 -		1.6 Hz	
	Home	Montage	Navig	ation	Events	HFO	Analy	se	Redu	ction	Wir	nc
3 - Double	e Banana	•	69	Gain	400 µV/c	m 🔻	V Hp	filter		1.6 H	z 🔻	
Lines: 104 - E	EG: 72 - Poly	/graphic: 0	Pp1 Pp2	Base time	3.0 cm/se	ec 🔻	Notch Lp	filter		70.0 H	lz ▼	
			recorded	Speed		1 🔻	Par	nel: 1	2	3	4	
			M	ontage par	ameters							

Montage parameters in case of first panel selected (light blue)

User can change montage parameters (Montage, Gain, Base Time, HP and LP filters) modifying them after panel selection. Show Montage function, available from Montage Tab, always displays montage related to first panel.

The function allows to open up to 4 synchronized EEG panels at the same time. Panels are dockable, so the user is able to drag and drop them to the desired position, even using multiple monitors.

To scroll through the EEG recording when Duplicate and Lock is enabled the user can use the buttons from Navigation tab of the Ribbon Bar, the buttons of the Navigation Bar or keys from the keyboard (see section <u>Shortcuts</u>). In case of Video EEG recording, video player buttons can also be used.



If the user starts Autoscroll feature when Duplicate and Lock is enabled, all EEG panels will scroll the trace according to the selected speed, and the user can stop Autoscroll from one of all open panels.

Duplicate and Lock function is available even during acquisition to visualize synchronized EEG acquisition in different panels, in case of high number of channels recorded, or in the case user needs to view the recording trace with different montages.

The workflow to enable and use duplicate and lock function is identical.

SIGNAL REFERENCE

The following referencing algorithms can be applied to the signal:

- Average Reference (AVG): visualize data with the reference referring to the average of the signals recorded with all electrodes;
- Bi-Auricular Reference (A1-A2): visualize data with the reference referring to the average of the two signals A1 and A2 recorded on the earlobes;
- Source Reference (SRC): visualize data according to the parameters of the derived reference source (called Laplacian or Hjort derivations).

In particular, the AVG and SRC references have settings, which can be selected from the Home Tab.



AVG settings allows the user to choose which electrodes to include in the AVG calculation:



SRC settings, on the other hand, sets the parameters of the derivation's reference source. Through the present matrix, the user can set the parameters of the reference, creating a new matrix, duplicate it, delete it or reset it.

8	•					9	Sour	rce Deri	vation Set	up		-		×
[₽	B	SRC		SRC	SR.	ç							
C	lose	Save	Create New	Duplicate	Delete Aatrix	Res Mat	et rix							
			C	onfiguration										
St	tanda	rd 8 ele	ctrodes	configuratio	n									•
				Fp1	Fp2		Т3		C3	C4	T4	01	O2	
۲	Fp1			1		-0.5		0	-0.5	0	0	0	0	-
	Fp2			-0.5	i -	1		0	0	-0.5	0	0	0	
	T3			C)	0		1	-1	0	0	0	0	
	C3			-0.25	i	0		-0.25	1	-0.25	0	-0.25	0	
	C4			C)	-0.25		0	-0.25	1	-0.25	0	-0.25	
	T4			C)	0		0	0	-1	1	0	0	
	01			C)	0		0	-0.5	0	0	1	-0.5	
	02			0)	0		0	0	-0.5	0	-0.5	1	

EEG REVIEW

BRAIN QUICK software can read EEG data recorded with SystemPLUS Evolution, with BRAIN QUICK software and with CNS Monitor. The software allows to review also the Video recorded during the exam. To do that, the user shall enable the Video window from the Ribbon bar and move through the recording using the Video window buttons or by dragging the video cursor.

To access the EEG review window, the user must select a patient from the patient list in the Archive section and choose the exam from the exam list and follow the procedures below:

- Click twice directly on the exam icon in the exam list column
- Or click twice on the file icon (trace) in the file list column
- Or click the right mouse button on the exam icon or file icon (respectively on the exam or file columns) and select the **View** function from the menu bar

This way, the user enters the EEG review screen, which is very similar to the acquisition screen. The EEG review screen is the part of the program that is used to review and analyze EEG exams. In the review section, it is possible to review more than one trace at the same time and this allows the user to compare different exams of the same patient or of different patients.

The EEG review screen is sub-divided into four main sections. On the top, there are the menu bar and the toolbars; in the center of the window, there is the display of traces; on the bottom, there is the status bar.



NAVIGATION

The navigation bar is placed under the EEG trace panel and allows all the temporal movements in the trace. From left to right:

- **BEGIN BUTTON:** moves to the beginning of the trace
- INTERVAL BACKWARD BUTTON: moves to the previous interval
- EVENT BACKWARD BUTTON: moves to the previous event

- AUTO BACKWARD BUTTON: automatic scrolls backward
- PAGE BACKWARD BUTTON: moves to the previous page
- **PLAY BUTTON:** starts/stops video play
- **PAGE FORWARD BUTTON:** moves to the next page
- AUTO FORWARD BUTTON: automatic scrolls forward
- EVENT FORWARD BUTTON: moves to the next event
- INTERVAL FORWARD BUTTON: moves to the next interval
- END BUTTON: moves to the end of the trace



There are other movement functions that could be called from hotkeys (see Shortcuts topic) and not associated with buttons in the Navigation bar, like:

- HALF PAGE BACKWARD: Shift + Left Arrow
- HALF PAGE FORWARD: Shift + Right Arrow
- **ONE SECOND BACKWARD**: Ctrl + Left Arrow
- ONE SECOND FORWARD: Ctrl + Right Arrow
- INCREASE SPEED AUTO SCROLL: *
- DECREASE SPEED AUTO SCROLL: /

VIDEO REVIEW

Video window allows video review and enables video cursor at the same time. Video window can be opened/closed from Ribbon bar > Home tab:



Video window provides an intuitive, easy-to-use interface to play Video files recorded during EEG acquisition:



The presence of Video files on a particular part of the EEG recording is underlined in the Time bar by a horizontal line with "cinematographic film" style:

19/11/2013	12:32	12:34	12:36	12:38	12:40	12:42	1244	12:46	
12:35:06.825									>

If the video line is present in the current EEG page it means that a video file can be opened and played. If the video line is not present the video window can be opened anyway, but no image will be displayed because in that part of the EEG the Video was not recorded. In this case a NO VIDEO warning will appear on the video window.

Video window can be floating in the position of interest in the EEG window or can be docked to one of the preset positions in the EEG window (see sections "Dock Panel Layout" and "Windows Placement"). Video window can also be placed on a second screen. To move Video window, just click on its header and drag it to the desired position.

The height and width of Video window can also be modified. To resize Video window just hover the mouse on one of its edges. When the cursor turns into a two-sided arrow, click and drag the window edge until the desired dimension is reached.

Video Play

After clicking on **Open/Close Video** button, the Video window opens and a Video cursor appears on the trace. Video Cursor is a red vertical bar having width 1 frame and indicates the exact point on the EEG page, which corresponds with the image displayed by the Video window.

The user can manually move video cursor dragging it with the mouse for an accurate visualization of patient movements during particular EEG activities.

Video window displays patient and recording date information on its header and contains also information about the date/time of the video in visualization, which are displayed in yellow on the bottom right of the Video window.

Video window provide a set of buttons, placed under the video image, to:

- PLAY/STOP the video
- Move to PREVIOUS/NEXT FRAME

- Move to PREVIOUS/NEXT SECOND
- Enable/disable VOLUME
- Adjust the VOLUME
- Restore DEFAULT VIDEO SPEED
- Increase/decrease VIDEO SPEED
- Toggle FULL SCREEN VIDEO

NOTE: TOGGLE FULL SCREEN button is present only if Video window is floating.



The user can also start/stop video play by using spacebar.

The video image can be **zoomed** using left mouse click selection on the image area to be zoomed. Selecting another area with left mouse click, the zoom will increase. To de-zoom the video image, just double click on it with left mouse button.

PRINT

This function is placed in Home tab from EEG review window and allows the user to print one or more pages of the EEG trace during Exam review. The user can use indifferently the thermal printer (continuous module) or a standard printer single sheet (laser or ink-jet).

The Print function uses printer settings from windows that can be set from Print Setup function.

1 - Reduced ▼ 150 μV/cm ▼ 3.0 cm/sec ▼ 1	1.6 Hz 🔻 70.0 Hz 🔻	EEG - Patient 3 - 1/23/2024 11	1:57:04 AM			
Home Montage Navigation Events HFO Analyse Re	ction Window Help					
Lines: 12 - EEG: 8 - Polygraphic: 0		Ω ⊕ × Collapse all ⇒ Expand all			Copy EEG page to report	Print setup
recorded Speed 1 -	setup Setup i	impedances	Kuler Standard Advanced O	ose panel Unlock	Report 🗂 Screen Video Recorder	
Montage parameters	Reference	Tools Groups	Cursor Vi	deo Events	Standar	d

How to Print an EEG on Paper

Print and Print setup functions allow the user to print the trace during the review of an EEG exam.

Print Setup: allows the user to set the parameters for the print and the printer:

- Device:
 - **Printer**: a combo menu allows the user to select the printer to use.
 - **Properties**: allows to set up some print settings, such as Portrait/Landscape orientation.
 - **Show Print Dialog?**: enabling this option a dialog window will appear after clicking Print button (before the print process starts). If this option is disabled the print starts immediately after clicking on Print button.
- Page:
 - Truncate Page if less than 50% full: if this option is enabled only pages more than 50% full will be printed. Pages less than 50% full will not be printed even if included in the paged to be printed.
 - **Margins**: the user can select a value for the page's Top, Bottom, Left, and Right margins. Margins values must be specified in cm.
 - Heading:
 - Size: None, Small, or Large
 - First Sheet Only: if this option is enabled an heading with the above specified size will be added only to the first page. If this option is disabled an heading with the above specified size will be added to all pages.
 - **Reference Gain**: From Montage. This means that reference gain is imported from the current montage applied.
 - **Page Speed**: it can be imported From Montage or it can be specified by the user. Page Speed value must be specified in cm/s.
 - Grid Style: No Grid, Main Only, Main With SubGrid
- Selections:
 - **Entire Trace**: all the EEG recording will be printed
 - **Current Page**: only the currently visualized EEG page will be printed
 - From Annotations: the user can select an event from the list of available Selection events. The EEG included within the Selection will be printed. The user can specify EEG seconds to be printed before/after the event selected.
 - **Seconds (from beginning)**: the user can specify EEG seconds to be printed. Seconds are calculated from the beginning of the EEG recording.

Printer setup						
Device						
Printer:				-	Properties	
✓ Show Print Dialo	g?					
Page						
Truncate Page if	less than 50% f	full				
Margins						
Тор:	0.0	¢ cm	. Left:	C	0.0 🌲 cm.	
Bottom:	0.0	¢ cm	. Right:	C	0.0 韋 cm.	
Heading			Reference Gair	۱		
Size:			From Mont	tage		
Small		•				
First Sheet On	у		Page Speed			
			From Mont	tage		
Grid			Other:) 🌲 cm/s	
Style:						
Main with SubGi		•				
Selections						
Entire Trace						
 From Annotation 	S:		Before:	0 🤤 After:	10 🤤 s	
Seconds (from be	eginning): 😢				0.0 🌲 s	
					ОК	

Once the printer setup is configured, the user can press the button **Print** in order to send the job to the selected printer. A prompt dialogue window will appear if this option has been set in the Printer setup, otherwise the print process will immediately start.

EXPORT

BRAIN QUICK SOFTWARE provides different kinds of export functions:

- Export to Ascii
- Export to Edf+
- Export Events
- Export Analyzer Data

All these functions are available in the menu, which opens by clicking on BRAIN QUICK Application button:



Export to Ascii

This function exports the acquired EEG signal data in a ASCII format file. To export data, follow this procedure:

- 1. From BRAIN QUICK Application button, select the function Export Ascii
- 2. Select the EEG trace interval to export: Whole trace, Current page, or part of the trace defined by the user's selections
- 3. Select which montage lines to export: All montage lines or some Selected lines
- 4. Save As

	ASCII Export EEG data to a ASCII formatted a Text or Excel Document	ASCII Export		File I	Details	
	o the of their bocoment		Source	e File	Target	File
	EDF+		Number of samples:	1.3M	Number of samples:	1.3M
	Export Raw or Processed EEG data to the European Data Segment (EDE 1)		Number of signals:	31	Number of signals:	7
	the European Data Format (EDF+)		Number of sections:	9	Number of sections:	9
	Events		EEG Signal resolution:	97.658nV/bit	EEG Signal resolution:	97.658nV/bit
	Export Event List to a Text or Excel		EEG Signal range:	-3.2mV to +3.2mV	EEG Signal range:	-3.2mV to +3.2mV
	Document		Digital range:	0 to 66k	Digital range:	0 to 66k
	to down Date		File size:	82MiB	Estimated file size:	126MiB
	Export Analyzer Data to a Text or	- Internet			^	
	Excel Document	Intervals				
Ma	Matlah	Whole trace				
	Export EEG data to a MatLab Document	 Current page 				
		Selected interval events				
		Read				~
		Specific sections				
		All sections selected				~
		Data				
		Data				
		 All montage lines 				
		Selected lines				
		All montage lines are selected				v
		Save As				

Export to Edf+

EDF formatted files make it easier to use Micromed EEG data for research purposes with external analysis applications. The EDF+ file format support can handle multiple segments using the same Amplifier inputs. The software can support events and sleep scores in multiple segmented EDF+ files. If the exam contains multiple montages (as in As Recorded), multiple EDF+ files are created.

Multiple sleep scores cannot be exported, just the current sleep score. An extra channel is added to the EDF+ file, which is used to store the scores from 0 to 9.

- 1. From BRAIN QUICK Application button, select the function Export Edf+
- 2. Select the EEG trace interval to export: Whole trace, Current page, or part of the trace defined by the user's selections
- 3. Select which montage lines to export: All montage lines or some Selected lines
- 4. Select resolution (16 or 24 bit)
- 5. Select EEG Output Physical Range
- 6. Save As


The same procedure can be applied to export the EEG trace in Edf+ starting from raw EEG data. To export raw data, the user has to select the function **Export Edf+ from raw** from the menu on the left.

Note: 24-bit export is available only for trace acquired at 24 bits

Export events

This function exports the list of the events of the exam, according to the settings specified by the user:

- 1. From BRAIN QUICK Application button select the function **Export Events**
- 2. Select the EEG trace interval to export: Whole trace or Current page
- 3. Select which types of events to export
- 4. Select how to sort the events to export: Sort by begin time o Sort by type
- 5. Select the document format: Text document or Excel document
- 6. Save As

Trace properties	Export	
Export	ASCII Export EEG data to a ASCII formatted a Text or Excel Document EDF+ Export Raw or Processed EEG data to the European Data Format (EDF+) Events Export Event List to a Text or Excel Document Analyser Data Export Analyzer Data to a Text or Excel Document MatLab	Events Export Intervals Whole trace Current page Events All events are selected Sorting By Date/Time
Options	Export EEG data to a MatLab Document	By Type File Type Text Document Excel Document Save As

Export Analyzer data

This function exports the numerical values obtained by analyzer calculations, according to the settings specified by the user:

- 1. From BRAIN QUICK Application button select the function Export Analyser Data
- 2. Select the EEG trace interval to export: Whole trace or Current page
- 3. Select the document format: Text document or Excel document
- 4. Save As

Trace properties	Export	
Export	ASCII Export EEG data to a ASCII formatted a Text or Excel Document EDF+ Export Raw or Processed EEG data to the European Data Format (EDF+) Events Export Event List to a Text or Excel Document	Analyser Data Export Intervals Whole trace Current page File Type Text Document
	Analyser Data Export Analyzer Data to a Text or Excel Document	C Excel Document
	MatLab Export EEG data to a MatLab Document	Save As

EEG ACQUISITION

The acquisition window allows the user to record either an EEG or Video EEG exams. Acquisition is performed by technicians using an acquisition headbox that requires the configuration of certain parameters. The signal is displayed according to the criteria grouped in the Montage tab.

The fundamental concept that must be kept in mind is the way in which the acquisition takes place. The headbox always works with a fixed sampling rate and has only minimal hardware filtering, this means that the signal is always saved referenced to G2 and with maximum bandwidth, being then displayed with desired leads, references and values of filters and amplification.

Connect contains all parameters related to the hardware part, such as sampling rate, Maximum signal amplitude, number and type of channels acquired, and more. All parameters related to the display (leads, filters, Notch Filter, amplification, reference) are contained in the Montage section. These parameters can be changed or modified at any time.

The EEG acquisition screen is divided into four main sections. At the top are the menu bar and toolbars; in the center of the window is the Trace Display; to the left side is the Channel Label; and finally at the bottom is the Status Bar.



From the archive the user can open a new acquisition window, select or create a new protocol, start a New EEG using the default protocol, create a new report, data download from a device, Update the firmware of a device connected, Import an EDF or create a new report model, via the BrainQuick tab.



ACQUISITION PROTOCOL WINDOW

By clicking on "Select Protocol" button from the Brain Quick tab, a window appears divided into three parts: the list of protocols created on the left, general protocol properties in the middle and connection properties on the right.

	Acquisition Protocol Wir	ndow						-	a x
EEG Manager	🔍 574 🖉 💯 🚳 🚳 🚱 68								
Protocol Protocol EEG	Scan Discovery Labels Name Position EEG and Run and Run Connect Go To Acquisition								
Acquisition Protocols	> Default Protocol - Simulator								
Destand News		Enable	Label Po	osition Channel Type	Frequency EEG (Hz) ADC Window EEG (AV (Vu	G Map Latitud	le Longitu	/de
Protocol Name	Headbox Properties	4 Type: Eed	3						
Default Protocol - Simulator 2.7	Headbox Serial Number		Fp1	1 Monopolar	256 [-3200, 3200] µV - 0.	15 Hz	90	.0 10	8.0
	SIMULATOR *		Fpz	2 Monopolar	256 [-3200, 3200] µV - 0.	15 Hz 🗹	90	.0 9	0.0
		V	Fp2	3 Monopolar	256 [-3200, 3200] µV - 0.	15 Hz 🗹	90	.0 7.	2.0
	Video Properties	v	F7	4 Monopolar	256 [-3200, 3200] µV - 0.	15 Hz 🕑	90	.0 14	4.0
	Comerce List ID Comerce	V	F3	5 Monopolar	256 [-3200, 3200] μV - 0.	15 Hz 🗹	61	.8 13	0.7
	Camera List IP Camera	V	Fz	6 Monopolar	256 [-3200, 3200] µV - 0.	15 Hz 🗹	45	.0 9	0.0
	[no canera]		F4	7 Monopolar	256 [-3200, 3200] µV - 0.	15 Hz 🗹	61	.8 4	9.3
	IP Camera 2		F8	8 Monopolar	256 [-3200, 3200] µV - 0.	15 Hz 🗹	90	.0 3	6.0
IEId Manager Image: I	»		T3	9 Monopolar	256 [-3200, 3200] µV - 0.	15 Hz	90	.0 18	.0.0
			C3	10 Monopolar	256 [-3200, 3200] µV - 0.	5 Hz	45	.0 18	.0.0
	Quick Channels Selection		Cz	11 Monopolar	256 [-3200, 3200] µV - 0.	SHZ V		0	0.0
			C4	12 Monopolar	250 [-3200, 3200] µV - 0. 256 [-3200, 3200] µV - 0.	IS HZ	40	0	0.0
			14 TS	13 Monopolar	250 [-3200, 3200] µV - 0	15 Hz		0 21	0.0
			03	15 Monopolar	256 [-3200, 3200] (V = 0	15 Hz V		8 22	0.0
	Connect		Pz	16 Monopolar	256 [-3200, 3200] µV - 0.	15 Hz 🗸	45	.0 27	
			P4	17 Monopolar	256 [-3200, 3200] µV - 0	15 Hz V		.8 31	0.7
	Standard Conliguration Resolution (bit) ALC Window ECG (JV) Prequency CEG (Hz)	Image: A start of the start	T6	18 Monopolar	256 [-3200, 3200] µV - 0.	15 Hz 🗸	90	.0 32	4.0
	Standard 10-20 * 10 * [-3200, 3200] * 230 *	v	01	19 Monopolar	256 [-3200, 3200] µV - 0.	15 Hz 🖌	90	.0 25	2.0
		V	Oz	20 Monopolar	256 [+3200, 3200] µV - 0.	15 Hz 🗹	90	.0 27	0.0
		V	O2	21 Monopolar	256 [-3200, 3200] µV - 0.	15 Hz 🗹	90	.0 28	8.0
		4 Type: Ma	irker						
			MKR	22 Marker	256 [-3200.3200] (// - 0	15 H+		0	0.0
•									

The tab is divided by 14 buttons:

EEG N	EEG Manager												
₽	(+)	Ō	B	⑪		R	رک ارک	-	<u>T</u> ,	Ð		$\langle \mathbf{\hat{o}} \rangle$	(
Close	New	Duplicate	Save	Delete	Set as Favorite Protocol	Headbox Scan	Camera Discovery	Default Labels	Auto Name	Electrode Position	Open EEG	Apply and Run	Save and Run
	Protocol EEG								Connec	t	(Go To Acquisit	ion

- "Close": if the user is editing a protocol or creating one, this button allows to return to the initial protocol selection screen;
- "New": allows the creation of a new protocol.
- "Duplicate": allows duplication of an existing protocol.
- "Save": allows saving changes to an existing or newly created protocol.
- "Delete": allows deletion of the selected protocol.
- "Set as Favorite Protocol": allows to select a protocol as default, in order to start an acquisition from the BrainQuick Tab.
- "Headbox Scan": allows starting a new headbox discovery
- "Camera Discovery": allows starting a new camera research on the network
- "Default labels": inserts the default labels corresponding to the associated headbox.
- "Auto name": allows to insert the labels and prefixes to a grid or a strip electrodes, depending on the rows and columns chosen.

₽		Auto nam	e (grid/strip)	- 🗆 ×
Rows (1,2,3,)	Colum	ns (A,B,C,)	Prefix	Displacement
5	▼ 4	•	•	Columns 🔻
Preview of electro	des auto name	electrode posit	ion: prefix]	
1: A1	6: B1	11: C1	16: D1	_
2: A2	7: B2	12: C2	17: D2	
3: A3	8: B3	13: C3	18: D3	
4: A4	9: B4	14: C4	19: D4	
5: A5	10: B5	15: C5	20: D5	
•				Þ
Available channels:	21			
				OK Cancel

- "Electrode position": allows to open electrode position window (more information in <u>its section</u>). More details regarding the section of the acquisition protocol window are in the next paragraphs.
- "Open EEG": once a protocol is selected, it allows to open a new acquisition window with the decided parameters.
- "Apply and Run": allows to apply the changes made to the selected protocol and to run the acquisition.
- "Save and Run": allows to save the changes made to the selected protocol and to run the acquisition.

Headbox properties

In this section it's possible to choose the headbox from the available ones found by Brain Quick Software. There is a drop-down menu with all the available devices. On the side, there is the possibility to select the desired Jackbox and to enter the headbox IP if you are using an SD LTM 32/64 PLUS.

Headbox Properties

Headbox Serial Number	Jackb	ох		IP LTM
SD LTM PLUS 64 - BAA-PX01/AX-23	▼ JB LT	M 32 EXPRESS	•	

Video properties

In the video settings, one or two cameras can be associated with the protocol, so the user has the possibility to record Video EEG during acquisition. In order to view the available cameras, click on the "Camera List" and select the one desired. It's possible finally to associate the chosen camera with Camera 1 or 2 by pressing the small arrow next to one at the corresponding box. If a camera is not available, it will be notified to the user through a warning. The cameras listed in the camera list are identified within the subnet specified in the Micromed Suite's "Camera Settings" section. For additional details, refer to the installation manual of Brain Quick Software 3.05.

Video Properties

Camera List		IP Camera	
[no camera]	>>	10.1.2.236	
		IP Camera 2	COM Camera 2
	>>	10.1.2.139	5

BRAIN QUICK software also recognizes if the selected camera is a VISCA type, also ensuring association with the COM port from where PTZ movement of the camera can be controlled.

User can remove cameras from protocol by choosing "No Camera" option from dropdown menu and by pressing the small arrow next to one at the corresponding box.

Default programs

In this section it's possible to select default Photic Stimulation Programs and Analyzer Protocols that will be automatically loaded for acquisition. In the case displayed below the user will find "IPS Reduced Range" Photic Program enabled by default and analyzer not enabled by default. The user will be able to modify these programs in every moment during the acquisition.

Default Programs

Photic Stimulation Program	Analyser Protocol
IPS Reduced Range 🔹	None

Quick channels selection

In this section it's possible to enable and disable special channels management, such as OXY, THOR, ABDO, DC It is even possible to enable and disable the Amplifier button management.



Connect

'Connect' means the setting of the input channels of the acquisition device (the 'headbox').

The 'connection' indicates which channels are active for acquisition and their settings, including: the sampling rate, the resolution (in bits) of the analog-to-digital conversion, and the quantization ADC window (in μ V) for the EEG channels.

Connect

Standard Configuration	Resolu	tion (bit) ADC Window EEG (µV)	Frequen	cy EEG (Hz)
Standard SD LTM 32	▼ 16	▼ [-3200, 3200]	▼ 256	•

In addition, it is possible to choose the channels to be enabled and personalize their label typing the desired name on "Label" section of the desired channel.

The channels in the list are divided by type: EEG (Monopolar or Bipolar), marker, oxymeter, DC, Body_position, Thor, and Abdo.

Ena	ble	Label	Position	Channel Type	Frequency EEG (Hz)	ADC Window EEG (µV)	AVG	Мар	Latitude	Longitude	
4 Type: Body Position											
	\checkmark	xyz	136	BODY POSITION	256	[-32768, 32767] µV - 0 Hz			0.0	0.0	
	Turner ECG	Reat		_							
	Type: Loo	DEAL	100	0	256	10 0551 have 0 11a			0.0	0.0	
	V	BEAT	129	Oxymeter	200	[0, 255] bpm - 0 Hz			0.0	0.0	
1	Type: Eeg										
	\checkmark	el001	1	Monopolar	256	[-3200, 3200] µV - 0.15 Hz	\checkmark	\checkmark	90.0	108.0	
	\checkmark	el002	2	Monopolar	256	[-3200, 3200] µV - 0.15 Hz	\checkmark	\checkmark	90.0	90.0	
	\checkmark	el003	3	Monopolar	256	[-3200, 3200] µV - 0.15 Hz	\checkmark	\checkmark	90.0	72.0	
	\checkmark	el004	4	Monopolar	256	[-3200, 3200] µV - 0.15 Hz	\checkmark	\checkmark	90.0	144.0	
	\checkmark	el005	5	Monopolar	256	[-3200, 3200] µV - 0.15 Hz	\checkmark	\checkmark	61.8	130.7	
	~	el006	6	Monopolar	256	[-3200, 3200] µV - 0.15 Hz	\checkmark	\checkmark	45.0	90.0	
	~	el007	7	Monopolar	256	[-3200, 3200] µV - 0.15 Hz	\checkmark	\checkmark	61.8	49.3	
	~	el008	8	Monopolar	256	[-3200, 3200] µV - 0.15 Hz	~	~	90.0	36.0	
	~	el009	9	Monopolar	256	[-3200, 3200] µV - 0.15 Hz	\checkmark	\checkmark	90.0	180.0	
	\checkmark	el010	10	Monopolar	256	[-3200, 3200] µV - 0.15 Hz	\checkmark	\checkmark	45.0	180.0	
	~	el011	11	Monopolar	256	[-3200, 3200] µV - 0.15 Hz	\checkmark	\checkmark	0.0	0.0	
	~	el012	12	Monopolar	256	[-3200, 3200] µV - 0.15 Hz	\checkmark	\checkmark	45.0	0.0	
	~	el013	13	Monopolar	256	[-3200, 3200] µV - 0.15 Hz	\checkmark	\checkmark	90.0	0.0	
		el014	14	Monopolar	256	[-3200, 3200] µV - 0.15 Hz	~	\checkmark	90.0	216.0	
	~	el015	15	Monopolar	256	[-3200, 3200] µV - 0.15 Hz	\checkmark	\checkmark	61.8	229.3	
	~	el016	16	Monopolar	256	[-3200, 3200] µV - 0.15 Hz	\checkmark	\checkmark	45.0	270.0	
	~	el017	17	Monopolar	256	[-3200, 3200] µV - 0.15 Hz	\checkmark	\checkmark	61.8	310.7	
	~	el018	18	Monopolar	256	[-3200, 3200] µV - 0.15 Hz	~	~	90.0	324.0	
	~	el019	19	Monopolar	256	[-3200, 3200] µV - 0.15 Hz	~	\checkmark	90.0	252.0	
	~	el020	20	Monopolar	256	[-3200, 3200] µV - 0.15 Hz	~	~	90.0	270.0	
	~	el021	21	Monopolar	256	[-3200, 3200] µV - 0.15 Hz	~	~	90.0	288.0	
	~	el022	22	Monopolar	256	[-3200, 3200] µV - 0.15 Hz	~		0.0	0.0	
	~	el023	23	Monopolar	256	[-3200, 3200] µV - 0.15 Hz	~		0.0	0.0	
	~	el024	24	Monopolar	256	[-3200, 3200] µV - 0.15 Hz	~		0.0	0.0	
	~	el025	25	Monopolar	256	[-3200, 3200] µV - 0.15 Hz	\checkmark		0.0	0.0	
	~	el026	26	Monopolar	256	[-3200, 3200] µV - 0.15 Hz	~		0.0	0.0	
	 Image: A start of the start of	el027	27	Monopolar	256	[-3200, 3200] µV - 0.15 Hz	\checkmark		0.0	0.0	
	~	el028	28	Monopolar	256	[-3200, 3200] µV - 0.15 Hz			0.0	0.0	
	~	el029	29	Monopolar	256	[-3200, 3200] µV - 0.15 Hz	\checkmark		0.0	0.0	
	~	el030	30	Monopolar	256	[-3200, 3200] µV - 0.15 Hz	\checkmark		0.0	0.0	

In this list it is possible to select the channels to be included in the AVG reference. By flagging the checkbox of channel in the AVG column, the channel will be used to calculate the AVG reference. Only monopolar channels can be used for the calculation of the AVG reference.

If an electrode in the acquisition protocol is currently mapped to a spatial position of the brain, the relative flag in the MAP column is checked. In order to remove the mapping for one or more electrodes, the user must open the Electrode Position window using the toolbar icon (more details in the Electrode Position section).

Right clicking on a single channel or on a channel selection (created with Shift + Click or Ctrl + Click), it is possible to select among four options:

Enable	Label	Position	Channel Type		Frequency EEG (Hz)						
▲ Type: Body Position											
\checkmark	xyz	136	BODY_POSITIC	N	256						
▲ Type: ECG Beat											
~	BEAT	100	<u> </u>		256						
	<u>T</u> ,	Auto Nai	me								
▲ Type: E	eg 🗛	Activate	Selected								
\checkmark	ell 🧒	Deactiva	te Selected		256						
\checkmark	el 🖕	Default I	abals		256						
\checkmark	elbus	Default L	wonopolar		256						
\checkmark	el004	4	Monopolar		256						

• Auto Name opens Auto Name window and allows to rename labels starting from the selected electrode

- Activate Selected activates the selected electrode or group of electrodes
- Deactivate Selected deactivates the selected electrode or group of electrodes
- Default Labels assigns the default labels from the first default standard configuration

ACQUISITION WINDOW

Once the protocol to be used has been created or chosen, the window for acquisition can be opened.

In addition to the montages to use - functions present in both acquisition and review - the main buttons for managing acquisition are grouped in the "Tools" section of the Home Tab:



Connect Setup button allows to open the protocol in order to modify it, while the Check Impedance, Run, Save and Pause buttons handle the checking impedance, starting, saving, pausing the acquisition, respectively. Finally, the Setup button opens a settings window for photic stimulation, chronometer and quick notes and the Control Panel button opens the Acquisition Status Panel, as we will see in the following sections.

Note: The options present by opening the window with the setup button are also present by clicking on Application button > Properties.

On the "Tools" section there are also buttons to enable photic stimulation, chronometer and cortical stimulation and cortical stimulation setup. Photic Stimulation allows to open photic stimulation panel to start a stimulation, Chronometer opens chronometer interface, while Cortical Stimulation opens cortical stimulation panel which allows to start a new stimulation. Cortical Stimulation Setup instead open setup for cortical stimulation. Detailed discussion of these features can be found in the following sections.



In the end, it is possible to decide the trace length and the video recording length by clicking on Application Button > Preferences > Acquisition Saving Options:

	Modify Options	×
Preferences	EEG Recording	
Trigger Setup	Trace Length O No Limit	
Acquisition Saving Options	Close Trace File Every	
Setup Acquisition Tools	00:10 Image: Close trace File At Time 00:00 Image: Close trace Time Prevention	
	Video Recording Video File Length	
	✓ Local Event Manager ✓ Core master Event Manager ✓ Enable send patient and amplifier buttons message ✓ Enable send patient and amplifier buttons message ✓ Enable send analyser Threshold messages ✓ Enable send analyser Threshold messages File Manager Core Master Ip Address File Manager Core Master Port	
	ОК	Cancel

From this window the user can enable messages exchange to Event Manager. The user can enable the use of a Local Event Manager or/and the communication to the File Manager Core Master. The user can decide whether to enable Amplifier Buttons message or analyzer threshold messages to be sent. In case of communication with the File Manager Core Master the required parameters are File Manager Core IP Address and Port. "Event Manager" section is available only in case EVENT MANAGER license is enabled in the acquisition machine. More details about Event Manager are described in Advanced Guide Installation Manual.

CHECK IMPEDANCE

From the "Check impedance" button, it is possible to view the value of the impedances of the headbox channels. Check Impedance can be enabled during acquisition even without pausing the recording: in this case, recording is automatically paused and impedances check is executed.

This panel can be used to view impedance values during EEG acquisition and check cable connections and adjust impedances between electrodes and the patient's skin. The measured impedance values can be saved in the recorded EEG file and read back at any time during the acquisition.

The Impedance Check panel offers two visualisation modes:

- a table with the list of impedance values for all the active channels
- a headbox image with channels colored in different way according to the impedance value

Impedances Check III Positive Negative						
6/20/2023 10	:03:20 AM			-		
Pos	sitive	Neg	ative			
Fp1	9,6 KΩ	G2	9,8 KΩ	-		
FpZ	9,7 KΩ	G2	9,9 KΩ			
Fp2	9,7 KΩ	G2	9,8 KΩ			
F7	9,7 KΩ	G2	9,8 KΩ			
F3	9,6 KΩ	G2	9,8 KΩ			
Fz	0,5 KΩ	G2	8,9 KΩ			
F4	0,5 KΩ	G2	9 KΩ			
F8	>20 KO	G2	14,2 KΩ			
17	>20 KD	G2	14,1 KΩ			
C3	>20 KΩ	G2	14,2 ΚΩ			
Cz	>20 KΩ	G2	14,2 KΩ			
C4	>20 KO	G2	14,1 KΩ			
T8	>20 KΩ	G2	14,2 KΩ			
P7	>20.80	G2	14,3 KΩ			
P3	>20.80	G2	14,1 KΩ			
Pz	>20.80	G2	14,1 KΩ			
P4	>20 KO	G2	14,1 ΚΩ			
P8	>30 KD	G2	14,1 ΚΩ			
01	>20 KO	G2	14,2 KΩ			
OZ	>20 KO	G2	14,1 ΚΩ	Ŧ		

In the first visualization mode, the table shows the list of active channels with relative current impedance for both positive and negative inputs. For each input, then, a different color is associated according to the measured impedance: white if tending to 0 K Ω , green below 10 K Ω , orange between 10 and 20 K Ω , red if higher, as also shown in the figure.

Note. Threshold limits considered in the impedance check can be customized; default values are 10 K Ω as warning threshold and 20 K Ω as overflow threshold.



In the second visualization mode, the image of the headbox connected is shown and each input channel is colored in green, orange or red according to the related current impedance value; by hovering the mouse over a specific channel it is possible to see the exact impedance value measured.

It is possible to switch among the two visualization by clicking the button in the top right corner of the impedance check panel.

The impedance check is based on the threshold limits set in the software preferences; it is possible to set a warnig threshold limit and a overflow threshold limit by clicking the Brain Quick application button and selecting Preferences > EEG Preferences.

		Mod	ify Options
Preferences	Calibration Preferences	EEG Preferences	Screen Capture
Trigger Setup			
Acquisition Saving Options	Impedance value limit Warning threshold limit	10 ΚΩ	
Setup Acquisition Tools	Overflow threshold limit	20 ΚΩ	

All active input channels with a impedance value below the warning threshold will be highlighted in green, the ones with a impedance value between the warning and the overflow threshold will be colored in orange, the ones with a impedance value greater than the overflow threshold will be highlighted in red.

STATUS CONTROL PANEL

From the "Control Panel" button it is possible to open the status control panel, a window that allows the user to view the type of connection (whether wired or wireless) and the status (connected, recovering or no connection). Below is an example of a wired connection:

Acquisition Status
Connection Status
₿.

The background will be green when the connection between the headbox and Brain Quick Software is present, yellow when data recovery is in progress showing residual delay, and red when it is absent.

Finally, in the panel, there is the possibility to start the chronometer and photic stimulation procedures, described in the next paragraphs.

CHRONOMETER

During recording, the user has the option of measuring the duration of a specific event such as hyperventilation. Chronometer needs to be enabled from Ribbon Bar and started by clicking the proper button from the status control panel, where the chronometer controls are displayed.

Acquisition Status	×
Connection Status	
₿.	
Chronometer	
6 00:00:00	

The first button starts the chronometer, once started it also allows the pause function, which allows the user to stop the time count. The second button allows the user to reset the count to zero. Finally, the elapsed time is displayed in the center of the display in hh.mm.ss.

From the "Setup" button on the Home Tab, the chronometer options tab can be accessed:

		Modify Options	
Photic Stimulation	S Chronometer	🖉 Note	
Chrono Settings			
Enable Double Chronometer			
✓ Start Chrono Note	Artefatto	Associate Key to Start	
Stop Chrono Note	Fine HPN	▼ Associate Key to Stop	
Enable Interval Event	Video selection		
V Enable note insertion during ch	onometer		
Note every sec :	5 1		
During Note:	Start Chrono from		
Post Chrono Note			
✓ Enable Note			
Length [s] : 20 🗘			
Note every sec : 5 💲			
Post Chrono Note Post Chr	ono from		
			OK Cance

From these settings it is possible to:

- Enable a possible double chronometer;
- Set a start and end note for the duration that the chronometer is running. Chronometer can be started and stopped using Quick Notes
- Enable an event for the interval when the chronometer is running;
- Enable note insertion during and post chronometer.

PHOTIC STIMULATION

During the recording of the examination, the user can enable Photic Stimulation controls from Photic Stimulation button on Ribbon Bar and has the option of starting the photic stimulation by clicking the proper button from the status control panel, where the controls of the photic stimulator are displayed.

Acquisition Status	×
Ģ	
Photic Stimulation	
\mathcal{F}_{0}	
At the end start Program	none 🔻

Using a user defined program, the first button allows to start stimulation according to the selected program, while the second one allows to pause the ongoing program. In case of Manual stimulation, the second button is a Single Photic Stimulation. The drop-down menu allows the user to select the program to be used. If "Manual" stimulation is chosen, stimulation is carried out with the frequency set in the box below.

The photic stimulation setup can be opened from Setup Acquisition Tool button on Home Tab or from Acquisition Tools Options tab from application button preferences and contains two sections: Manual Settings and Program Settings.

In the Manual Settings section, it's possible to set a time limit for stimulation (hh:mm:ss), which allows to automatically stop manual stimulation after the time specified from the user.

The Program Settings section allows to create, modify, and delete photic programs that contains an automatic sequence of stimulations. In each sequence of stimulation, it is possible to define the following parameters:

- Frequency (Hz): sets the stimulation frequency.
- Length (sec): sets the duration of the stimulation in seconds.
- Pause (sec): sets the duration of the pause before the next stimulation.
- Note: selects the note that will be entered at the beginning of the stimulation.

Product sumulation Chronometer Vote Manual Settings Active Time Limit 000000 Program Settings rogram Names IPS Reduced Range 1 10 10 10 14 10 10 10 12 10 16 10 18 10 18 10 10 10 18 10 10 10 24 10 10 24 Hz 28 10	
Manual Settings Active Time Limit 00:00:00 Program Settings Trogram Names IPS Reduced Range Image: Setting S	
Active Time Limit 00:00:00 Program Settings file file Trogram Names IPS Reduced Range file file Frequency [Hz] Length [s] Pause [s] Note Delete Row 1 10 10 1 Hz Ga 4 10 10 4 Hz Ga 8 10 10 8 Hz Ga 112 10 10 12 Hz Ga 112 10 10 16 Hz Ga 118 10 10 18 Hz Ga 12 10 10 24 Hz Ga 12 10 10 10 18 Hz Ga 12 10 10 10 24 Hz Ga 12 10 10 24 Hz Ga Ga 13 10 10 24 Hz Ga Ga 14 10 10 28 Hz Ga Ga	
Active Time Limit 00:00:00 Program Settings file file Frequency [Hz] Length [s] Pause [s] Note Delete Row 1 10 10 1 Hz Ga 4 10 10 4 Hz Ga 1 10 10 1 Hz Ga 6 10 10 1 Hz Ga 1 10 10 1 Hz Ga 11 10 10 1 Hz Ga 12 10 10 1 Hz Ga 18 10 10 1 Hz Ga 18 10 10 2 Hz Ga 28 10 10 2 Hz Ga 28 10 10	
Frequency [Hz] Length [s] Pause [s] Note Delete Row 1 10 10 1 Hz C 4 10 10 4 Hz C 1 10 10 8 Hz C 1 10 10 1 Hz C 1 10 10 2 Hz C	
Frequency [Hz] Length [s] Pause [s] Note Delete Row 1 10 10 1 Hz C 4 10 10 4 Hz C 1 10 10 8 Hz C 1 10 10 1 Hz C 1 10 1 Hz C C 10 <td< th=""><th></th></td<>	
Program Names IPS Reduced Range Mote Delete Row 1 10 1 Hz G 4 10 10 4 Hz G 1 10 10 8 Hz G 1 10 10 1 Hz G 1 10 10 10 2 Hz G 1 10 10 10 Hz G 1 1 10 20 Hz G 1 1	
Frequency [Hz] Length [s] Pause [s] Note Delete Row 1 10 10 1 Hz 6% 6% 4 10 010 4 Hz 6% 6% 4 00 010 4 Hz 6% 6% 6 10 010 8 Hz 6% 6% 16 010 10 12 Hz 6% 6% 16 010 10 16 Hz 6% 6% 18 010 010 18 Hz 6% 6% 28 010 010 28 Hz 6% 6%	
1 10 10 1 Hz Pia Pia 4 10 10 4 Hz Pia Pia 8 10 10 8 Hz Pia Pia 12 10 10 12 Hz Pia Pia 16 10 10 16 Hz Pia Pia 18 10 10 18 Hz Pia Pia 24 10 10 28 Hz Pia Pia	
4 10 10 4 Hz Fig. 8 10 0 8 Hz Fig. 12 10 10 12 Hz Fig. 16 10 10 16 Hz Fig. 18 10 10 18 Hz Fig. 24 10 10 28 Hz Fig.	
8 10 10 8 Hz Pig 12 10 12 Hz Pig Pig 16 10 12 Hz Pig Pig 16 10 10 16 Hz Pig Pig 18 10 10 18 Hz Pig Pig 24 10 10 28 Hz Pig Pig	
12 10 10 12 Hz Pa 16 10 16 Hz Pa 18 10 10 18 Hz Pa 24 10 10 24 Hz Pa 28 10 28 Hz Pa	
16 10 16 Hz Pa 18 10 10 18 Hz Pa 24 10 10 24 Hz Pa 28 10 0 28 Hz Pa	
18 10 18 Hz Hg 24 10 24 Hz Hg 28 10 28 Hz Hg	
24 10 10 24 Hz Pain 28 10 10 28 Hz Pain	
28 10 10 28 Hz 🖼	
At the and start Departm	
none T	
Fnable Interval Event Video selection	

It is also possible to create, save changes and delete programs with the three icons at the side of the program drop-down menu.

It is possible to access Photic Stimulation program even during the acquisition.

CORTICAL STIMULATION

During exam recording, the user has the option of starting cortical stimulation by clicking on Cortical Stimulation button from Home Tab. When the Cortical Stimulation button is pressed, Cortical Stimulation panel is displayed. This function is possible only with SD LTM 64/128/256 PLUS and SD LTM 64/128/256 EXPRESS headboxes and only when the SD LTM STIM cortical stimulator is connected to the headbox.

Cortical Stimula	tion		×
Stimulation			
START	STOP		
Manual Delivered Current [m	IA]		Ŧ
Messages			
Manual Sequence			
Contacts +/-	FpZ ·	•	
Pulse Sequence Intensity [mA] Duration + [µs] Duration - [µs] Stim Rate [Hz] Duration [s]	0.1 500 1 10 10 10 10 10 10 1		

From this interface, you can initiate, terminate stimulation, and execute an ictal disrupt using the buttons located at the top. The drop-down menu provides options to select the type of program.

The **Ictal Disrupt** function repeats the last single stimulus, delivering a one-second stimulation at the chosen frequency. This means that if the stimulation was set to 1 Hz, then one stimulus is delivered, whereas if the sequence was at 50 Hz, one second of stimulation needs to be administered, equivalent to 50 pulses.

Below this, there is information about the delivered intensity and messages generated by the software to update the user on the stimulation status. Additionally, if the Manual program is chosen, the Manual Sequence section allows you to select the contacts and the pulse sequence for stimulation.

If an automatic program is set, the Automatic sequence section appears:

PAUSE	MANUAL TR. OUT
	E
List	
Previous	
Actual	
Time to next sequ	Jence
Next	
After Next	
Automatic ——	
Start from	Fp1-FpZ 10Hz 10mA 10s 🔻
Run Salartari Sari	

In this section the user can pause, execute manual trigger out and observe the status of the automatic stimulation, reading the previous, actual, next and after next stimulation type. Then, it's possible to start from a particular stimulation and run selected sequence only.

In the end, from the Setup Acquisition Tools the user can create, modify and save a new stimulation program from the Cortical Stimulation section, choosing to insert the automatic note.

₽												Cortical Stimul	ation Setup						_	×
Clos	r ⊧ S	ave	Create New	Duplicat Pr	e Delete Program	[T] Renam	e Add line	Select all lines	Cut Co	opy Pas	te Del lin	Starting elec Number of l ete	trode Fp1 ines 8 Auto-Progr	Tam	} €4 plar Au	Enable tomatic No	ote			
De	ault rogr	Program am Se	m ttings																	•
	#	Input	t+ I	nput -	Sequen	ce Dur	Intensity	[mA]	Stim Rate	e [Hz]	Pause	Pulse Type	Positive I	Duration [µs]	Nega	. Dista	Note			
	1	Fp1	F	рZ		10		10		10	10	positive_negati.		50	50	25				

NOTE SETUP

The "Setup" button allows the user to define some keyboard keys associated with the creation of notes added in the trace during acquisition. By default the following keys are present in the software, but both text and shortcut are editable and new quick notes can be added to the list. Quick Notes are case insensitive and cannot be added during pause.

	Shortcuts	label	
		Laber	_
А		Artefatto	
В		Inizio HPN	
с		Crisi	
H		Fine HPN	
E		Occhi chiusi	
0		Occhi aperti	
F		Fotostimolazione	
M		Movimenti	
Т		Attività Muscolare	
S		Sonno	

TRIGGER SETUP

BRAIN QUICK software allows to configure how triggers acquired during the recording are inserted; specifically, the user can choose between analog and digital type triggers by selecting the channel in which to place the markers, clicking to Application Button > Preferences > Trigger Setup:

	Modify Options
Preferences	Analog Trigger
Trigger Setup	Insert trigger on channel MRK
Acquisition Saving Options	Patient Button ON
Setup Acquisition Tools	Button connected to TriggerIn1
	Button text Artefatto
	Amplifier button note Artefatto
	Digital trigger
	✓ Enable
	Button connected to TriggerIn1 -
	Port COM used
	Digital Trigger Note Artefatto

Analog Trigger: This function allows the user to choose the channel in which to place analog triggers from an external unit.

In this section it's possible to enable the Patient Button and personalize the text when the button is pressed.

Digital Trigger: it allows the user to select the com port used to receive digital triggers from COM1, COM2, COM3, COM4.

MONTAGES AND EEG VISUALIZATION

The Montage tab allows the Montage visualization and the **Montage editing** directly in the EEG window or in Setup menu.



Clicking on **Montage** tab in Ribbon bar, the **Setup** icon allows the user to open the **Montage Editor** from which the user can setup all the Montages and other various parameters.

₽											Montage	setup							-	a ×
Close	Save	Undo Redo Archive	Create Duplica new	te Delete montage	Import Exp	bort Add	Select C all lines	ut Copy P	aste Delete lines	Add group	Edit Mov name up Groups	U Sta Move down	arting electro Imber of line	ode s 8 Auto-n	Bipolar	(3) C3 Monopolar				
		Name	Locked	T.																
-	Mont	as tune: Sustem		Genera	al proper	ties														
-	Monta	ige type. system		# Lines	B	ase time	Referer	nce M	aster gain	Maste	er high pass	Master low	pass		-1			Fp		Fp2
	1	Reduced	۵ ۵		12 🗘	20 sec	▼ G2	- 7	0 mV/cm 🛛 🔻	1.6 H	lz 🔻	70.0 Hz		Master not	ch			1	-	T
	2 1	Monopolar	0															COLL.	Et a	
	3	Longitudinal	·6	Monta	ge lines															(1-4)
	4	I ransversal	0	Derivation	-			Cala		Filter						Traca properties		ANT.	Nº1	AVY.
	5 1	Poly, Reduced	0	Derivation	1			Gain	Linked to	ritter		Linked to		Linked to	Linked to	trace properties		- (134)		XHAY.
	7	Poly, Longitudinai	2	#	Input -	Input +	Comment	Value	master gain	Туре	High pass	master HP	Low pass	master LP	master notch	Line type	Clipping		10	XX
	8 1	ruz test	20																(C)	
	0 1	Default montage	A	4 def	ault													124	IT.	HEF
	10	Default montage	6		1 Fp2	C4		70 mV/cm	~	IIR	1.6 Hz	\checkmark	70.0 Hz	~	~	Lines	None	A DE	11	The
	11	Default montage	20		2 C4	02		70 mV/cm	~	IIR	1.6 Hz	\checkmark	70.0 Hz	~	 Image: A set of the set of the	Lines	None		(B)	
	12	Default montage	'n		3 Fp2	T4		70 mV/cm	\checkmark	IIR	1.6 Hz	\checkmark	70.0 Hz	\checkmark	~	Lines	None		C.	(16)
	13	Default montage	h		4 T4	O2		70 mV/cm	\checkmark	IIR	1.6 Hz	\checkmark	70.0 Hz	\checkmark	~	Lines	None	1 A	11-	A Providence
	14	Default montage	h		5 Fp1	C3		70 mV/cm	\checkmark	IIR	1.6 Hz	\checkmark	70.0 Hz	~	~	Lines	None		100	the
	15	Default montage	'n		6 C3	01		70 mV/cm	\checkmark	IIR	1.6 Hz	\checkmark	70.0 Hz	\checkmark	~	Lines	None	0	(oz)	02
	16	Default montage	ĩa		7 Fp1	T3		70 mV/cm	\checkmark	IIR	1.6 Hz	\checkmark	70.0 Hz	\checkmark	~	Lines	None		\smile	
	17	Default montage	6		8 T3	01		70 mV/cm	\checkmark	IIR	1.6 Hz	\checkmark	70.0 Hz	~	~	Lines	None			
	18	CAP 19 fMRI - Monopolar	îa		9 PULS+	PULS-		100 units/								Lines	None	Reference:	52	Show all inputs
	19	CAP 31 fMRI - Monopolar	6		10 BEAT-	BEAT+		100 bpm/								Lines and n	un None			
	20	CAP 59 fMRI - Monopolar	6		11 SpO2-	SpO2+		100 %/cm								Numbers	None	Oxymeter	DC	Marker
	21	CAP 61 fMRI - Monopolar	ъ		12 MKR+	MKR-		70 mV/cm	\checkmark							Lines	None	EEG	Polygra	aphic
	22	SAM 25 - mode C21P	6																	
	23 1	SAM 32 - mode C21P	ò															(Fp1)(Fp2)	(в)(F4 (F7)
	24	BQ132s - mode C21P	îo																	
	25	BQ132s - mode C32	°0															FB F2		
	26	SD+JB21P - mode C21P	îo																	
	27 1	SD - mode C32	ò																	
	28	SD64, ch.01-64	îo															P3 P4		01 02
	29 1	SD96, ch.65-96	ò																	
	30 5	5D128, ch.65-128	6																	16 Fpz
			1	¥ 4													•			

Montage Editor panel is composed by:

- Montage Editor Ribbon bar
- The list of Montages on the left
- The list of all available channels and their position on the brain on the right
- Information about the selected montage

Montages could be of different types: System (local montages), Archived (saved on EEG trace) and Shared (on server). The user can LOCK the montages in order to avoid that other users change them. If a montage is locked the padlock next to the montage name becomes red. In the EEG Review window it is also shown if the user selects a locked montage:

	Home	Montage
2 - Mono	polar	\sim
Ø Mont	age is lock	ed
Lines: 9 - E	EG: 8 - Pol	ygraphic: 0

How to configure a Montage?

- 1. Select the montage of interest from the Montage column or create a new one using the apposite button **Create New** or duplicate an existing montage using **Duplicate** button
- 2. Define the number of lines, the gain, the time base, the reference and the filter properties that will be applied to all the lines "Linked to Master"
- 3. Fill in the information for each lines as follow:
 - Input + and Input -: the user can choose from the input list or type the input name or select the input of interest from the list of available channels.
 - Comment: the name that appears in front of the trace in EEG review window as label (the inputs name will appear in Line Editor).
 - Gain value: if a line is not linked to master, the user can choose a different gain.
 - Filter properties: if a line is not linked to master, the user can choose different filter properties.
 - Color: select a color for the trace.
 - Line Type: the user can choose to have the trace displayed numerically, as a trace, both at the same time or off.
 - Clipping
 - Line thickness
- 4. Save changes
- 5. The user can define different **Groups** of lines using **Add Group** button. Different groups will be displayed in EEG review window and there is the possibility to overlap the groups

MONTAGE SETUP WINDOW

The montage page setup is shown as below:



On the left part there is the list of the montages, which include two types:

- Archived montages, which are stored with the EEG file
- General montages, which are PC based (the montages can also be centralized over the network)

Note. iIn the review stations the number of the montages will be **UNLIMITED Note.** Montages can be "locked," this means write protected

In the central part there is the Montage setup: the line on top is the "MASTER," in which the user can setup the default Parameters.

Gener	al prop	erties												
# Lines		Base time	Reference	Master gain	Master h	igh pass	Master low pas	s						
	23 🗘	120 sec	✓ AVG	✓ 100 µV/cm	✓ 1.6 Hz	~	70 Hz	✓ Maste	er notch					
Monta	age line	s												
Derivatio	n			Gain		Filter						Trace or	operties	
Derivatio				Gain	Linked to	rincer		Linked to		Linked to	Linked to	nace pi	operaes	
¥	Input	- Input +	Comment	Value	master gain	Туре	High pass	master HP	Low pass	master LP	master notch	Color	Line type	Clipping
⊿ de	fault				, ,									
	1 AVG	AVG		100 µV/cm	~	IIR	off		1.0 KHz				Lines	None
	2 Fp2	F4		100 µV/cm	~	IIR	1.6 Hz	\checkmark	70.0 Hz	~	~		Lines	None
	3 F4	C4		100 µV/cm	\checkmark	IIR	1.6 Hz	\checkmark	70.0 Hz	\checkmark	\checkmark		Lines	None
	4 C4	P4		100 µV/cm	\checkmark	IIR	1.6 Hz	\checkmark	70.0 Hz	\checkmark	\checkmark		Lines	None
	5 P4	O2		100 µV/cm	\checkmark	IIR	1.6 Hz	\checkmark	70.0 Hz	\checkmark	\checkmark		Lines	None
	6 Fp2	F8		100 µV/cm	\checkmark	IIR	1.6 Hz	\checkmark	70.0 Hz	\checkmark	\checkmark		Lines	None
	7 F8	T4		100 µV/cm	\checkmark	IIR	1.6 Hz	\checkmark	70.0 Hz	\checkmark	\checkmark		Lines	None
	8 T4	Т6		100 µV/cm	\checkmark	IIR	1.6 Hz	\checkmark	70.0 Hz	\checkmark	\checkmark		Lines	None
	9 T6	O2		100 µV/cm	\checkmark	IIR	1.6 Hz	\checkmark	70.0 Hz	\checkmark	\checkmark		Lines	None
	10 Fz	Cz		100 µV/cm	\checkmark	IIR	1.6 Hz	\checkmark	70.0 Hz	\checkmark	\checkmark		Lines	None
	11 Cz	Pz		100 µV/cm	\checkmark	IIR	1.6 Hz	\checkmark	70.0 Hz	\checkmark	\checkmark		Lines	None
	12 Fp1	F3		100 µV/cm	\checkmark	IIR	1.6 Hz	\checkmark	70.0 Hz	\checkmark	\checkmark		Lines	None
	13 F3	C3		100 µV/cm	\checkmark	IIR	1.6 Hz	\checkmark	70.0 Hz	\checkmark	\checkmark		Lines	None
	14 C3	P3		100 µV/cm	\checkmark	IIR	1.6 Hz	\checkmark	70.0 Hz	\checkmark	\checkmark		Lines	None
	15 P3	01		100 µV/cm	\checkmark	IIR	1.6 Hz	\checkmark	70.0 Hz	\checkmark	\checkmark		Lines	None
	16 Fp1	F7		100 µV/cm	\checkmark	IIR	1.6 Hz	\checkmark	70.0 Hz	\checkmark	\checkmark		Lines	None
	17 F7	Т3		100 µV/cm	\checkmark	IIR	1.6 Hz	\checkmark	70.0 Hz	\checkmark	\checkmark		Lines	None
	18 T3	T5		100 µV/cm	\checkmark	IIR	1.6 Hz	\checkmark	70.0 Hz	\checkmark	\checkmark		Lines	None
	19 T5	01		100 µV/cm	\checkmark	IIR	1.6 Hz	\checkmark	70.0 Hz	\checkmark	\checkmark		Lines	None
	20 MKR-	MKR+		100 µV/cm	\checkmark								Lines	None
2	21 PULS	+ PULS-		100 units/cm									Lines	None
-	22 BEAT	+ BEAT-		100 bpm/cm									Lines	None
2	23 SpO2	+ SpO2-		100 %/cm									Numbers	None

The montages can be created by clicking on the brain scheme on the right, or by clicking on the blue spots on the bottom right.

NOTE: the button on the top left of the brain scheme (S) will toggle the electrodes visualization on the brain scheme from big to small and vice versa.

Groups

₽																	Mor	itage se	etup	_			
Close	Save	S Undo	(?) Redo	Archive	Create new	Duplicate	Delete montage	√ Import	<u>{</u> Export	Add	Select all lines	Cut	Copy	Paste	Delete	Add aroup	Edit name		↓ Move down	Starting electrode Number of lines 8	* \$	C3 C4 Bipolar I	ری دع Monopolar
						Mont	ages					Lin	es				Gro	ups		Au	to-montag	e	

Using "Add group" button it is possible to define a group of lines within the selected montage. When clicking on "Add group" button a window appears, in which the user can type a name for the group:

	Group Name	×
Group na	ame: new group 1	
	Cancel	OK

The user can also modify the group's name later on, by selecting the group and clicking on the button "Edit name."

The Move up and Move down buttons allow the user to change the group's position inside the montage. These buttons are enabled only when a group is selected.

NOTE: Groups are useful in case of montages for SEEG; a group can be defined for each deep electrode used.

If a montage with some groups is applied, in the EEG review window, it is possible to collapse or expand groups. This can be done using the + and - buttons near the EEG labels or using **Collapse all** and **Expand all** buttons from the Home tab of the Ribbon Bar:



Below, there is an example with a group collapsed and a group expanded:



Auto-Montage

There is also the possibility to automatically create a montage, specifying the Starting electrode and the Number of lines. Clicking on the button **Bipolar or Monopolar** will respectively create a bipolar or a monopolar auto-montage, starting with the electrode specified and having the predefined number of lines.

₽												Montage s	etup						
Close	Save Und	• Redo	Archive Create	Duplica	te Delemon	ete In tage	port Exp	ort Add line	Select Cut all lines	Copy Paste D	elete Add group r	Edit Move	Move down	ing electrode ber of lines	elA01 -	C3 C4 Bipolar Mor	iopolar		
				Mo	ontages				Lii	nes		Groups			Auto-montage				
#	Name			- 1	C			_											
⊿ M	ontage typ	e: System		-	# Line	erai pr	Base	s time	Reference	Master gain	Master h	igh pass M	laster low pas	5					
1	Reduce	d				8	\$ 10 :	ec 🔻	G2	▼ 100 µV/cm	▼ off	• 3	00.0 Hz	Maste	er notch				
2	Monop	olar																	
3	Longitu	dinal		- 11	Mont	tage li	nes												
4	Transve	rsal			WIGHT	uge i	nes												
5	Poly. Re	duced			Derivati	ion				Gain		Filter						Trace	prop
6	Poly. Lo	ngitudinal			#	In	out -	Input +	Comment	Value	Linked to	Туре	High pass	Linked to	Low pass	Linked to	Linked to	E B	ine tv
7	PO2										master gain			master HP		master LP	master notch		1
8	test			- 11	⊿ d	lefault													^
9	Default	montage		- 11		1 el	401 •	elA02		100 µV/cm	\checkmark	IIR	off	\checkmark	300.0 Hz	\checkmark	\checkmark		ines
10) Default	montage		- 11		2 el	102	eIA03		100 µV/cm		IIR	off	~	300.0 Hz		~		ines
11	L, C, R					3 el	102	el404		100 µV/cm	~	IIR	off		300.0 Hz		V		ines
12	2 Default	montage				1 0	103	01/05		100 µV/cm		IIR	off	-	300.0 Hz				ines
13	B Default	montage				5 0	104	01406		100 µV/cm	•	IID	off	•	200.0 Hz	•			inec
14	Default	montage				5 6	105	eIA00		100 µV/cm	×		off	•	500.0 HZ	•	•		ines
15	5 Default	montage				o ei	400	eiA07		100 µV/cm									ines
16	5 Default	montage				/ el	407	eiA08		100 µV/cm		IIK	011		011			H-	ines .
17	Default	montage				8 el	408	eIA09		100 µV/cm	\checkmark	шк	OTT		OTT				ines

MONTAGE VIEW

The Montage View palette provides a quick view of the current montage, by clicking on **Show Montage** button in Ribbon bar > Montage tab

	3 -	Double	Banan	3	•	400 µV/cr	n 🔻	3.0 cm/	/sec 💌	·	1 🔻	1	.6 Hz	•	70.0 Hz	•
P	Hc	me	Mont	age	Navigat	ion Eve	ents	HFO	Anal	yse	Redu	ction	Win	dow	Help	
P	Ð	Ð	B	æ	(P)	æ	⊘= ⊘=	0=	- <u>}</u>	- <u>/</u> /~_)		-1m-	-Am-1 (3)		P	
Setup	Electrode Position	Save all	Save	Reload	Archive	Show montage	Select All	Deselect all	Cut	Сору	Paste	Keep	Delete	Dup	licate&Lock	
			Setting	15				1	Montag	e line e	diting				View	

The Montage View panel will be open with the name of the montage as title and it can be visible also in floating mode. The user can drag a corner of the window to increase Montage View panel size until the can view the positions on each channel on the brain:



Hovering the mouse over an EEG line, the derivation corresponding to the trace will be highlighted in Montage View panel.

The montages can be changed during the acquisition, then, when reviewing, there will be the "as recorded" button, which will permit to review the traces with exactly the same parameters used during the acquisition.

	3 - Doubl	e Banana	•	400 μ\	//cm 🔻	3.0 cm/	sec 🔻	1 🔻	1.6
	Home	Montag	e Navig	gation	Events	HFO	Analyse	Reduc	tion
3 - Double I	Banana	-	69	Gain	400 µV/cm	- 7	✓ Hp filter	1.6 Hz	•
Lines: 26 - EE	G: 18 - Polyg	graphic: 0	Pp1 Pp2	Base time	3.0 cm/sec	- N.	Lp filter	70.0 Hz	<u> </u>
			AS recorded	Speed	1	-	icn.		
			Mor	ntage param	ieters				

On the other hand, if there are some changes during the acquisition \ review, these changes are kept also if the user is changing the montage and then going back to the same montage. The changes are active, but there is a button, which permits going back to the original. The changes are temporary only (for the patient reviewed), if the user what to save them, has to "save montage."

ZOOM

Another way to visualize only some of the montage channels is to activate Zoom modality:

In Zoom modality The software gives the possibility to select how many channels visualize, then with the mouse wheel focus on the vertical scroll bar on the right of the EEG page, it will be possible to scroll the EEG up and down. While scrolling, the channels not visualized will be shown on the top and on the bottom of the window, superimposed. The picture below shows an example of zoom in an EEG recording:

⊕ _{Zoom}



On the right part of the window, it is possible to select the number of zoomed traces to visualize (in this case 20), while the bottom vertical bar allows to scroll the traces. Zoom is disabled in case Duplicate & Lock function is enabled.

ELECTRODE POSITION

The user can move one or more electrodes from their default position on the real patient's head coordinates deliberately:

- from the acquisition protocol window, pressing Electrode Position button in the tab;

EEG N	/lanage	r												
₽	(+)	ß	B	Ŵ			ر <u>ک</u>	-	<u>T</u> ,	۲	∩ <mark>⊿</mark>	\bigcirc	P	
Close	New	Duplicate	Save	Delete	Set as Favorite Protocol	Headbox Scan	Camera Discovery	Default Labels	Auto Name	Electrode Position	Open EEG	Apply and Run	Save and Run	
				Proto	ocol EEG				Conne		G	io To Acquisit	ion	

- from Montage Tab, pressing Electrode Position button:

		3 - Double	e Banan	a	•	400 µV/cr	n 🔻	3.0 cm/	/sec 💌		1 🔻	1	.6 Hz	▼ 70.0 Hz	•
B		Home	Mont	tage	Navigat	tion Eve	ents	HFO	Anal	yse	Redu	ction	Wine	dow Help	
P	Ð	Ð	B	æ	(P)	æ	⊘= ⊘=	0=	- <u>An</u>]			-1m-1	-4~	R	
Setup	Electrode Position	e Save all	Save	Reload	Archive	Show montage	Select All	Deselect all	Cut	Сору	Paste	Keep	Delete	Duplicate&Lock	
			Settin	gs				1	Montag	je line e	diting			View	

Using this function, it is possible to update the electrode position manually memorized in the trace in order to reflect this change on the analysis maps and analysis tools.

Electrode Position window allows to visualize brain image together with the list of recorded electrodes and their coordinates:



The screen is divided in three sections: the **Electrode Position Ribbon Bar** on top, the **list of electrodes** on the left and the **head** on the right.

The **Electrode Position Ribbon Bar** allows to activate and deactivate all or the selected electrodes, to add grid / strip on brain image and to show coordinates grid, to load a brain image and to define or recall an electrode position configuration. Buttons available in Ribbon Bar are:

- 1. Close: this button allows to close Electrode Position window
- 2. Save: allows to save all changes in Electrode Position window

- 3. Activate All: allows to activate all electrodes available in the list
- 4. Deactivate All: allows to deactivate all electrodes available in the list
- 5. Activate Selected: allows to activate all electrodes selected by the user in the list
- 6. Deactivate Selected: allows to deactivate all electrodes selected by the user in the list
- **7. Reset All Inactive:** allows to reset position of all electrodes to default central position (Latitude and Longitude equals to 0.0°)
- 8. Load From File: this button allows to load a new image to be loaded instead of the default one
- 9. Show Coordinates Grid: allows whether to display or not grid with coordinates in degrees
- 10. Reset to Standard Brain: allows to reset the image to the standard one

Grid group in Ribbon Bar allows to group electrodes into grids to be added to the existing image, depending on how many electrodes are deactivated from electrodes list:

- 1. Rows: defines the number of rows of the grid
- 2. Columns: defines the number of columns of the grid
- 3. Start From: defines the starting electrode
- 4. Displacement: can be either horizontal or vertical
- 5. Colour: defines the electrodes colour
- 6. **Preview:** shows a grid preview
- 7. Apply: adds the defined grid to the image



Configurations group in Ribbon Bar allows to define and save electrode position configurations as standard electrodes placement:

1. **Configuration**: allows to select one from the available configurations. By default, only the IFCN Standard and Saved in Trace configurations are available

- 2. Save As New: allows to save the user defined electrodes position in a new configuration
- 3. Save Configuration: allows to modify and save the selected configuration
- 4. **Delete**: allows to delete the selected configuration

Note: IFCN Standard is the default configuration, which cannot be modified or deleted. User can only save the changes made on IFCN standard in a new configuration. New configurations are stored in the machine, hence at Unit level.



When the user works on Saved in Trace configuration, the modifications are directly saved in the EEG file.



The list of electrodes is composed of four columns called: Label, Active, Latitude and Longitude.

- 1. **Label**: indicates the electrode name. The EEG channels here visible are selected in the "Modify Connection" window, in acquisition, recallable only in the acquisition phase of EEG traces.
- 2. Active: indicates if the electrode is enabled or not. The user can activate the electrodes by clicking the left mouse button on the corresponding checkbox, making a symbol appear. Repressing the left mouse button, the symbol disappears and the electrode is disabled.
- 3. Latitude: indicates the latitude of the electrode and can be modified by the user. Click the left mouse button on the interested electrode cell and type the new value or selecting the electrode visualized in the brain image and dragging it in the desired position.
- 4. **Longitude**: indicates the longitude of the electrode and can be modified by the user. Click the left mouse button on the interested electrode cell and type the new value or selecting the electrode visualized in the brain image and dragging it in the desired position.

The **head** contains the head image that can be loaded by user and it is represented with circles that represent the active electrodes. These circles can be moved inside the red circle dragging them with the mouse; in the latitude and longitude columns the values change automatically. The name of the electrode appears when the user moves the mouse over each circle.

EVENTS

BRAIN QUICK software allows the user to insert notes to distinguish events during review and acquisition.

EVENTS DESCRIPTION

During the exam, the user has the possibility to insert events to distinguish particular situations during the recorded trace. There are three main events insertion modalities, which are described in the following:

Direct Notes Insertion

Direct notes insertion on the EEG page can be done with right mouse click on the part of the trace of interest: a text box appears if "note" is selected and the user can type the note text. Pressing Enter from the keyboard the note will be inserted in the EEG trace.



Notes can be inserted directly typing the note from the keyboard and pressing Enter, in this case the note will be inserted in the middle of the EEG page.

To avoid accidental events insertion, the events insertion can be locked using the Lock/Unlock button (which is present in the Home tab, in the Events tab and in the HFO tab of the Ribbon bar) shows a locked padlock:



Continuous Event Insertion (from the Ribbon bar)

The user can choose the type of event of interest from the Events tab of the Ribbon bar:

	3 - Doub	le Banana	1	•	400 µV/c	m 🔻	3.0 cm/s	sec 💌	1	•	1.6	Hz	-	70.0 Hz	-	EEG - 0	1 Patient - 1/23	/2024 11:57:04 AM	Л		
₽₽	Home	Monta	age N	avigatio	on Ev	rents	HFO	Analyse	e R	educti	on	Wind	low	Help	-			T -			
F\$ F\$	F	2				F	Ζ							, ,	Eyes open	d	A Artefact	Sleep	Acoustic stimulus Attention	ď	
Open Events panel setup	Lock Unlock	Note A	Innotation	Digital trigger	Video selection	Hyperver	ntilation s	EEG election	Analys selectio	is Ph on sele	otic ction			Ŧ	010 Hyperven	ilation	💮 Seizure	Pain stimulus	23 Addition	External calculation	
						General							Custor	m			Obs	envation		Tools	

Events can be of different types:

- General events: such as Notes, Annotations, Digital triggers and Selections
- Observation events: such as Eyes open, Eyes closed, Hyperventilation, Movement and Stimuli events
- Custom events: defined by the user

After clicking on a event the system enters continuous event insertion modality. This modality is indicated on the bottom right of the EEG window, with a flashing red warning. For example, if the user chooses "Video selection" event the warning" Inserting Video Selection" will appear:



Then the user has to click or click and drag on the EEG trace to insert the selected event. While event insertion modality is active the user can insert as many events as he wants (of the selected type).

Continuous event insertion modality remains active until the user clicks again on the event button on the Ribbon bar or clicks on the Lock/Unlock button or presses Esc key from the keyboard.

Single Event Insertion (from drop down menu)

If events insertion is unlocked there is the possibility to insert all kinds of events in the EEG trace. The user has to right-click on the EEG page in order to open the following drop down menu:



Then the user has to select the event of interest from the menu.

After clicking on a event, the system enters single event insertion modality. This modality is indicated on the bottom right of the EEG window, with a flashing red warning. For example, if the user chooses "Video selection" event the warning" Inserting Video Selection" will appear:

		: :		₽					
1 	И	-Am-	Fo	4	4	\bigcirc	\triangleright	\square	Ы

Then the user has to confirm event insertion or click and drag on the EEG trace (in case of selection events) to insert the selected event. Single event insertion modality remains active until the user inserts the selected event or clicks on the Lock/Unlock button or presses Esc key from the keyboard.

Once the event has been inserted single event insertion modality is automatically disabled. The event will be inserted in the exact point of the EEG on which the user clicked in order to open the drop down menu.

Automatic "Reviewed By" Event Insertion

It is possible to enable the automatic insertion of the event "Reviewed by <user>" (where <user> is the name of the user logged in the software) to automatically mark the part of the trace already reviewed by the user during page scroll.

This option can be enabled from Application button > Preferences > Preferences > Visualization Preferences > Review Progress > "Automatically insert the "Reviewed by <user>" event during review.

		Modify Opt	ions	
Preferences	Monitor Calibration	Visualization Preferences	Screen Capture	System Preferences
Trigger Setup	Measure Cursor			
Acquisition Saving Options	Show 11 measure cursors	in Standard Cursor		
Acquisition Tools Setup	Background Background color:	FFFFFF0 -		
	 ✓ Show grid ✓ Show sub-grid Grid color: 	FF808080 👻		
	Timebar settings Overview interval: 1 hou Auto-scroll speed: 1	Jr. ▼		
	Montages Montage order: Archi	ived, local, central	•	
	Review progress Automatically insert the * Warning Not Recording	Reviewed by <user>" event during review</user>		

The Review Progress Bar will be visible in the EEG page and as event in Event Panel together with the duration of the event.

The user can remove this event from Event Panel or right clicking and pressing Delete from the Event but it cannot be moved or manually added.

From Event Setup each user has the possibility to change font, color and text color of Review Progress bar event.

Move an Event

The user can move an event after its insertion. In order to move an event, follow these steps:

- 1. Click on the event and hold down the mouse button
- 2. Drag the event to the desired location and release the mouse button.

Edit an Event

The user can edit an event after its insertion. To rename an event follow these steps:

- 1. Right-click on the event you want to rename
- 2. Edit the event's name typing the new name in textbox

	Text eyes closed	
ά¢.	Delete	2
A.	Reassing	
	Info	

Delete an Event

The user can delete an event in two different ways:

- 1. Right-click on the event
- 2. Click Delete
- 3. The event will be immediately deleted (no confirmation message will appear)

	eye	Text eyes closed	
۲y.	Ser.	🗙 Delete	~
		? Info	
M	Money	www.mananananananananananananananananananan	٦

or

- 1. Open Events Panel using "Open Panel" button
- 2. Select the event to be deleted
- 3. Right-click on the event and click Delete (or press Canc button on the keyboard)
- 4. A confirmation message will appear. The user can choose to proceed or to cancel the operation

Events (4 objec	cts)	Search	Q >	<
Туре		Text	Posit	
Hyperventilation	n		11:57	*
EEG selection			11:57	
Kideo selection			11:57	
🗟 Annotation	LP I	Delate calested	11:57	
		•	4	¥
Visible objects: 4				

NOTES

During the exam review, the user has the possibility to insert notes to distinguish particular events. Notes are displayed as vertical blue lines in the EEG page and in the Time bar:



Insert Notes

Notes can be inserted in three different ways:

Direct Notes Insertion

Brain Quick Software allows Direct Notes Insertion

- 1. Right-click on the point of the EEG trace in which you want to insert the note
- 2. Select "Note"
- 3. A textbox appears
- 4. Type the note text
- 5. Press Enter from the keyboard to confirm the note insertion

or

- 1. Directly type from keyboard
- 2. A textbox appears
- 3. Type the note text
- 4. Press Enter from the keyboard to confirm the note insertion
- 5. The note will be inserted in the middle of the EEG trace page

or (in acquisition)

- 1. Use one of the keyboard keys defined in Note Setup
- 2. The note associated to the keyboard key in Note Setup will be inserted in the middle of the EEG trace page



Notes Insertion from the Ribbon Bar

- 1. Unlock events insertion clicking on Lock/Unlock button
- 2. Click on "Note" button on the Events tab of the Ribbon bar

		3 - Doub	le Banana	•	400 µV/cm	n ▼ 3.0 cm	/sec 🔻	1 •	1	.6 Hz 🔻	70.0 Hz	▼ EEG -	01 Patient - 1/23	8/2024 11:57:04 AI	A	
		Home	Montage	Navigatio	on Eve	ents HFO	Analyse	Red	uction	Window	Help					
F	₹	F	🔁 (Â	Eyes open	A Address	: ⅔) Sleep	Acoustic stimulus	ď
Open Eve panel se	ents tup	Lock Unlock	Note Ann	otation Digital trigger	Video H selection	Hyperventilation	EEG selection	Analysis selection	Photic selection		Ŧ	(b) Hyperventilatio	n 😁 Seizure	 Pain stimulus 	ZIS Attention	External calculation
						General				Custo	m		Obs	servation		Tools

- 3. The warning "Inserting Note" appears on the bottom right of the EEG window
- 4. Click on the point of the EEG trace in which you want to insert the note
- 5. A textbox appears
- 6. Type the note text
- 7. Press Enter from the keyboard to confirm the note insertion
- 8. When finished, click again on "Note" button or click on "Lock/Unlock" button or press Esc key from the keyboard to disable notes insertion modality

Notes Insertion from Drop Down Menu

- 1. Unlock events insertion clicking on Lock/Unlock button
- 2. Right-click on the point of the EEG trace in which you want to insert the note

3. A drop down menu appears



- 4. Select "Note" from the drop down menu
- 5. A textbox appears
- 6. Type the note text
- 7. Press Enter from the keyboard to confirm the note insertion

Move a Note

The user can move a note after its insertion. In order to move a note, follow these steps:

- 1. Click on the note and hold down the mouse button
- 2. Drag the note to the desired location and release the mouse button.

Edit a Note

The user can edit a note after its insertion. To rename a note follow these steps:

- 1. Right-click on the note you want to rename
- 2. Edit the note's name typing the new name in the text box
- 3. Press Enter from the keyboard to confirm the note's modification



Delete a Note

The user can delete a note in two different ways:

- 1. Right-click on the note
- 2. Click Delete
- 3. The note will be immediately deleted (no confirmation message will appear)

	eyes			Å		-			-			1		
	1		Text	ey	es	cl	OS	ed						
ryn.	starter and the	×	Delet	e									1	٨
		?	Info											
M	Umanya	nin	nterne	ωĝ	M	NN	M	Ŵ	NV	Mi	W	M	N ^M	١

or

- 1. Open Events Panel using "Open Panel" button
- 2. Select the note to be deleted
- 3. Right-click on the note and click Delete (or press Canc button on the keyboard)
- 4. A confirmation message will appear. The user can choose to proceed or to cancel the operation

Events (7 object	s) Se	earch Q ×
Туре	Text	Posit
Hyperventilation		11:57 🔺
EEG selection		11:57
Kideo selection		11:57
EEG selection		11:57
EEG selection		11:57
🖪 Annotation	test	11:57
🕄 Note	test	11:57
	Delete selected	
		-
	•	•
Visible objects: 7		

SELECTIONS

During the exam review the user has the possibility to mark a piece of trace by using a selection event. Selections are displayed as horizontal lines in the EEG page and in the time bar:



In particular:

- Video Selections are displayed as red horizontal lines and are used to mark interesting pieces of video
- **Hyperventilation Selections** are displayed as light blue horizontal lines and are used to mark or measure the time duration of a particular event as hyperventilation
- EEG Selections are displayed as green horizontal lines are used to mark interesting pieces of EEG
- MAP Selections are displayed as orange horizontal lines and are used to mark pieces of EEG trace that can be analyzed

• **Photic Selections** are displayed as purple horizontal lines and are used to mark or measure the time duration of a particular event as photic stimulation

Video and EEG selections can be used also during Video EEG files reduction (see section EEG Reduction).

Insert Selections

Selections can be inserted in two different ways:

Selections Insertion from the Ribbon Bar

- 1. Unlock events insertion clicking on Lock/Unlock button
- 2. Click on one of the selection buttons on the Events tab of the Ribbon bar, for example "Video selection"



- 3. The warning "Inserting Video selection" appears on the bottom right of the EEG window
- 4. Click on the point of the EEG trace in which you want to insert the selection and drag the selection until the desired end point
- 5. Release the mouse button to confirm selection's insertion
- 6. When finished, click again on "Video selection" button or click on "Lock/Unlock" button or press Esc key from the keyboard to disable Video selection insertion modality

Selections Insertion from Drop Down Menu

- 1. Unlock events insertion clicking on Lock/Unlock button
- 2. Right mouse click on the EEG trace
- 3. A drop down menu appears



- 4. Click on one of the selections buttons from the drop down menu, for example "Video selection"
- 5. Click on the point of the EEG trace in which you want to insert the selection and drag the selection until the desired end point
- 6. Release the mouse button to confirm selection's insertion

Move a Selection

The user can move a selection after its insertion. In order to move a selection, follow these steps:

- 1. Click on the selection and hold down the mouse button
- 2. Drag the selection to the desired location and release the mouse button.

Resize a Selection

The user can modify a selection's duration after its insertion. To resize a selection follow these steps:

- 1. Click on the start point (or on the end point) of the selection
- 2. Drag the start point (or the end point) of the selection to the desired location and release the mouse button.

Delete a Selection

The user can delete a selection in two different ways:

- 1. Right-click on the selection
- 2. Click Delete
- 3. The selection will be immediately deleted (no confirmation message will appear)



or

- 1. Open Events Panel using "Open Panel" button
- 2. Select the selection to be deleted
- 3. Right-click on the selection and click Delete (or press Canc button on the keyboard)
- 4. A confirmation message will appear. The user can choose to proceed or to cancel the operatio

Events (7 objects)	Search	Q ×
Туре	Text	Posit
Hyperventilation		11:57 🔺
EEG selection		11:57
Video selection		11:57
📕 EEG selecti 🎑 D	elete selected	11:57
EEG selection		11:57
🖪 Annotation	test	11:57
🔁 Note	test	11:57
	•	•
Visible objects: 7		

ANNOTATIONS

During the exam review the user has the possibility to mark a piece of trace by using an annotation event. Annotations are not-formatted text multi-line notes that can be inserted on the EEG trace.

Insert Annotations

Annotations can be inserted in two different ways:

Annotations Insertion from the Ribbon Bar

- 1. Unlock events insertion clicking on Lock/Unlock button
- 2. Click on "Annotation" button on the Events tab of the Ribbon bar



- 3. The warning "Inserting Annotation" appears on the bottom right of the EEG window
- 4. Click on the point of the EEG trace in which you want to insert the annotation
- 5. Write the annotation content into Insert annotation window

B	Insert annotation ×
the patient	
	OK Cancel

- 6. Click OK to confirm annotation's insertion
- 7. When finished, click again on "Annotation" button, or click on "Lock/Unlock" button, or press Esc key on the keyboard to disable annotation insertion modality

Annotation Insertion from Drop Down Menu

- 1. Unlock events insertion clicking on Lock/Unlock button
- 2. Right-click on the EEG trace
- 3. A drop down menu appears


- 4. Select "Annotation" from the drop down menu
- 5. Click on the point of the EEG trace in which you want to insert the annotation
- 6. Write the annotation content into Insert annotation window

B	Insert annotation ×
the patient	
	OK Cancel

7. Click OK to confirm annotation's insertion

Collapse or Expand an Annotation

Annotations can be displayed on the EEG page in collapsed or expanded mode:

						1							-		
				-							:		-	-	
								_	_	١.	:				
	-							1.54					-		
						Ŧ	•	-	57		:		-	1	÷
	أعصرت			-	-	بني	- 22		۰.	÷	÷.,	- 20	~	c	- 1
						:	× .			~	Υ.				
				-				-	-		:		-	-	
						1							-	-	
													-		
			-	-				-	-		:	-	-	-	
ت	أحريكم	-	÷.,	1.	ەت ا	÷.,	· '-	1.0	- i -			÷.,		÷	1.00
-		_	-	÷			~			~	~	-			
											:		-		
				-		1		-	-		1		-	-	
	÷.,	<u> </u>				4.	. 1	×.	-	÷			۰.	1.0	ŵ.
Y	ŝ	-	~	Ŷ	~		~	Y٧	~~	v	÷.,	κ.	~	<u> </u>	~ Y
															11
1									1		:	1			

												-	-	-
•												-	-	
•		•	: th	4	n	ati	ent	۰.						
			1.00	-	۲	uu								
2	1	÷.,								- 1	~	÷.,	÷	
2	-	~	- <u></u>	÷.,	с÷.,	تعلىكما	÷			. *			_	۰.
			1.1											
			1.000										-	
													-	
	1.1		÷ •				1.00		. *					
-	÷		~~~	-	-	.,	÷	~	-			~	_	
			÷ •		-			-	-			-	-	-
			÷ •		-			-	-			-	-	
				-				-					-	-
								-				-	-	
۰.		•	1. 1.	×.		·		۰.	1.0	in l		÷.	-	
٠	÷	~		4	~~	~	-	~	-	~ 7			Υ.	۰,
1	1			1				1	1	1.7			1	

Collapsed RTF Annotation

Expanded RTF Annotation

To toggle from collapsed to expanded visualization mode right-click on a collapsed annotation icon and select Expand. All annotations will be displayed in expanded mode:



To toggle from expanded to collapsed visualization mode right-click on an expanded annotation icon and select Collapse. All annotations will be displayed in collapsed mode:



Move an Annotation

The user can move an annotation after its insertion. In order to move an annotation follow these steps:

- 1. Click on the annotation and hold down the mouse button
- 2. Drag the annotation to the desired location and release the mouse button.

Edit an Annotation

The user can edit an annotation's text after its insertion. To edit an annotation follow these steps:

- 1. Right-click on the annotation you want to edit
- 2. Select Edit



- 3. Edit the annotation's text from Modify annotation window
- 4. Click OK to confirm annotation's modification

B	Modify annotation ×
the patient is sleepin	g
	OK Cancel

Delete an Annotation

The user can delete an annotation in two different ways:

- 1. Right-click on the annotation
- 2. Click Delete
- 3. The annotation will be immediately deleted (no confirmation message will appear)



or

- 1. Open Events Panel using "Open Panel" button
- 2. Select the annotation to be deleted
- 3. Right-click on the annotation and click Delete (or press Canc button on the keyboard)
- 4. A confirmation message will appear. The user can choose to proceed or to cancel the operation

Events (7 object	s) Searc	hQ ×
Туре	Text	Posit
Hyperventilation		11:57 🔺
EEG selection		11:57
Video selection		11:57
EEG selection		11:57
EEG selection		11:57
🖪 Annotation		11:57
🔁 Note 🤄	Delete selected	11:57
		T
Visible objects: 7		

DIGITAL TRIGGERS

Triggers are synchronizing events introduced on the recorded EEG either during acquisition or during review. Digital triggers are composed of a numeric value that is stored within the trace and adds information to the trigger itself: in fact a numeric value can inform on which kind of event has generated the trigger. By default, digital triggers are displayed as vertical green lines in the EEG page and in the Time bar:



Insert Digital Triggers

Digital triggers can be inserted in two different ways:

Digital Triggers Insertion from the Ribbon Bar

- 1. Unlock events insertion by clicking on Lock/Unlock button
- 2. Click on "Digital trigger" button on the Events tab of the ribbon bar
- 3. The warning "Inserting Digital trigger" appears on the bottom right of the EEG window
- 4. Click on the point of the EEG trace in which you want to insert the digital trigger
- 5. A text box appears
- 6. Type the digital trigger value
- 7. Press Enter from the keyboard to confirm the digital trigger insertion
- 8. When finished, click again on "Digital trigger" button or click on "Lock/Unlock" button or press Esc key from the keyboard to disable digital trigger insertion modality

Digital Triggers Insertion from Drop Down Menu

- 1. Unlock events insertion by clicking on Lock/Unlock button
- 2. Right mouse click on the point of the EEG trace in which you want to insert the digital trigger
- 3. A drop down menu appears
- 4. Select Digital trigger" from the drop down menu
- 5. A text box appears
- 6. Type the digital trigger value
- 7. Press Enter from the keyboard to confirm the digital trigger insertion

Move a Digital Trigger

The user can move a digital trigger after its insertion. In order to move a digital trigger follow these steps:

- 1. Click on the digital trigger and hold down the mouse button
- 2. Drag the digital trigger to the desired location and release the mouse button.

Edit a Digital Trigger

The user can edit a digital trigger after its insertion. To edit a digital trigger follow these steps:

- 1. Right-click on the digital trigger you want to edit
- 2. Edit the digital trigger's value typing the new value in the text box
- 3. Press Enter from the keyboard to confirm the digital trigger's modification



Delete a Digital Trigger

The user can delete a digital trigger in two different ways:

- 1. Right-click on the digital trigger
- 2. Click Delete
- 3. The digital trigger will be immediately deleted (no confirmation message will appear)



or

- 1. Open Events Panel using "Open Panel" button
- 2. Select the digital trigger to be deleted
- 3. Right-click on the digital trigger and click Delete (or press Canc button on the keyboard)
- 4. A confirmation message will appear. The user can choose to proceed or to cancel the operation

T	T	Desit
Туре	lext	Posit
Hyperventilation		11:57
EEG selection		11:57
Video selection		11:57
EEG selection		11:57
EEG selection		11:57
🖪 Annotation	test	11:57
🔁 Note	test	11:57
🖞 Digital trigger	0	Delete select

HFO EVENTS

HFO software module has been developed in order to allow the user to analyze scalp and intracranial HFOs as candidate to represent a valuable biomarker for the localization of the Seizure Onset Zone (SOZ). During the exam review the user has the possibility to insert manually HFO events on the EEG trace or to perform an automatic HFO detection (see section <u>External Calculation</u>). In both cases HFO events are displayed as horizontal selections in the EEG page and in the Time bar. Over each HFO event its duration (in milliseconds) is displayed:

P'1 P'2	Million and Market Market and Market
P'2 P'3	hand marked and the second and the second se
P'3 P'4	Munning Manner
P'4 P'6	in What we want when the second war and the second se
P'6 P'7	mannaman from mannan and a second and a second and a second s
P'7 P'8	www.manmanman.www.www.www.www.www.www.www.
P'8 P'9	manuna wana mana ana ana ana ana ana ana ana ana
S'1 S'2	many many many many many many many many
S'2 S'3	walker MMMM war walker want war and war and war and war and war
S'3 S'4	mappen and a second and a second and a second and the second and t
S'4 S'5	and a second and a
S'5 S'6	and a strategy and the second se
S'6 S'7	approximation of the second of
S'7 S'8	management and many many many many many and
L S'8 S'9	wales and the second and the second and the second se
21/11/2013 00:56:20.760	01:00 01:15 01:20 01:25

In particular:

- HFO ripple are displayed as red selections
- HFO fast ripple are displayed as green selections
- **HFO gamma** are displayed as light blue selections
- **HFO spike** are displayed as violet selections

Insert HFO Events

HFO events can be inserted in two different ways:

HFO Events Insertion from the Ribbon Bar

- 1. Unlock events insertion by clicking on Lock/Unlock button
- 2. Click on one of HFO events buttons on the Events tab of the Ribbon bar, for example "HFO ripple"

	3 - Doub	le Banana	•	400 µV	/cm 🔻	3.0	cm/sec	•	1 🔻	1.6	Hz 🔻	70.0	Hz 🔻
	Home	Montage	Navigat	ion	Events	HFO	Ar	nalyse	Reduct	tion	Window	Help	0
F	F	G	R	U	G	S	R	Ę	<u>ę</u>	ş		\swarrow	Z
Open Events panel setup	Lock Unlock	Duplicate&Lock	HFO ripple	HFO fast ripple	HFO gamma	HFO spike	HFO ripple	HFO fast ripple	HFO gamma	HFO spike	Statistics setup	Process	External calculation
		View		HFO e	events			HFO even	ts visibilit	y	HFO sta	atistics	Tools

- 3. The warning "Inserting HFO ripple" appears on the bottom right of the EEG window
- 4. Click on the start point of the pattern of interest and drag the HFO event until the desired end point
- 5. Release the mouse button to confirm HFO event's insertion
- 6. When finished, click again on "HFO ripple" button, or click on "Lock/Unlock" button, or press Esc key from the keyboard to disable HFO ripple insertion modality

HFO Events Insertion from Drop Down Menu

- 1. Unlock events insertion by clicking on Lock/Unlock button
- 2. Right-click on the EEG trace
- 3. A drop down menu appears



- 4. Click on "HFO" and then select one of the HFO events buttons, for example "HFO ripple"
- 5. Click on the start point of the pattern of interest and drag the HFO event until the desired end point
- 6. Release the mouse button to confirm HFO event's insertion

<u>NOTE</u>: Duplicate and Lock feature can be really useful during HFO insertion process, in fact it allows the user to visualize the same EEG trace with different filters and different time bases (see section <u>Duplicate and Lock</u>):

15 - M', P', S'	~	00	Gain	80 µV/cm	Hp fil	ter 1.6 Hz	v	15 - M', P', S'	~	00	Gain	10 µV/cm [Hp filt	er 80.0 Hz 💌
Lines: 4 - EEG: 4	- Polygraphic: 0	Fy1-Fy2 As	Base time	10 sec	Notch Lp filt	er 70.0 Hz	~	Lines: 4 - EEG: 4	- Polygraphic: 0	As	Base time	1 sec	Notch Lp filte	r 250.0 Hz ₩
		M	ontage para	meters						Mo	ntage parar	neters		
₽ M'5 M'6	mp	ΛW	www	Mu	mww	Whrw	VMV+	₽ M'5 M'6	ayhmuhailyma	hour and for the first for	hawaannah	nNNNNavan	ntronger	uran MMMMaariaa m
M'6 M'7	Mahad	Normal	pMpm	h.M.	alaMan	newsquity	V	M'6 M'7	Yeelandara daga daga	mhoronadillad	mmm	NNYMYM	anfreezer and and and	ounna)Mhunroou
M'7 M'8								M'7 M'8	water and the state of the stat	ntronomana)	nounderster	biteneiderte ensierte	heredoeste voelfen	helynilaenarynaan fan onlon
M'8 M'9	MM	Ŵ	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	hunn	Mund	mm	Mm	M'8 M'9	muniquismo	nyunyuu wa	nderfieldeterer	understreetingts	rangalanana	n-warad/Weinikanadr

<u>NOTE</u>: In order to better identify HFOs there is the possibility to set a "FIR" filters type from Montage Setup (see section <u>Montage Editor</u>).

Below 2 figures are reported in order to show the same part of an EEG trace filtered at [80-250 Hz] for RIPPLE visualization using a FIR filter in the first figure and an IIR filter in the second figure. As you can see the correct HFO visualization is available only selecting FIR filter type:



Move a HFO Event

The user can move a HFO event after its insertion. In order to move a HFO event follow these steps:

- 1. Click on the HFO event and hold down the mouse button
- 2. Drag the HFO event to the desired location and release the mouse button.

Resize a HFO Event

The user can modify a HFO event's duration after its insertion. To resize a HFO event, follow these steps:

- 1. Click on the start point (or on the end point) of the HFO event
- 2. Drag the start point (or the end point) of the HFO event to the desired location and release the mouse button.

Delete a HFO event

The user can delete a HFO event in two different ways:

- 1. Right-click on the HFO event
- 2. Click Delete
- 3. The HFO event will be immediately deleted (no confirmation message will appear)

When When a star March MMMM ? Info himmon

or

- 1. Open Events Panel using "Open Panel" button
- 2. Select the HFO event to be deleted
- 3. Right-click on the HFO event and click Delete (or press Canc button on the keyboard)
- 4. A confirmation message will appear. The user can choose to proceed or to cancel the operation

HFO Events Visibility

There is the possibility to enable / disable HFO events visibility for each EEG window to allow the user to visualize only the events of interest.

	3 - Doubl	e Banana	-	400 µV	/cm 🔻	3.0	cm/sec	•	1 🔻	1.6	Hz 🔻	70.0	Hz 🔻
	Home	Montage	Navigat	tion	Events	HFO	Ar	nalyse	Reduct	ion	Window	Help)
Fi Fi	F	G	R	Ģ	G	5	R	Ę	હ્	ş		\swarrow	Z
Open Events panel setup	Lock Unlock	Duplicate&Lock	HFO ripple	HFO fast ripple	HFO gamma	HFO spike	HFO ripple	HFO fast ripple	HFO gamma	HFO spike	Statistics setup	Process	External calculation
		View		HFO e	vents		ł	HFO event	ts visibility	/	HFO sta	atistics	Tools

HFO Statistics

There is the possibility to perform analysis on the number of HFO with or without SPIKES in the different channels in order to underline the channels with the major number of high frequency events that are candidate to represent the Seizure Onset Zone. This can be done using the HFO statistics functions in the HFO tab of the Ribbon bar:

	3 - Doubl	e Banana	-	400 μV	/cm 🔻	3.0	cm/sec	•	1 💌	1.6	Hz 🔻	70.0 I	Hz 🔻
	Home	Montage	Navigat	ion	Events	HFO	Ar	nalyse	Reduct	ion	Window	Help)
F	F	G	R	F	G	S	R	Ę	હ્	ş		\swarrow	ď
Open Events panel setup	Lock Unlock	Duplicate&Lock	HFO ripple	HFO fast ripple	HFO gamma	HFO spike	HFO ripple	HFO fast ripple	HFO gamma	HFO spike	Statistics setup	Process	External calculation
		View		HFO e	events		ł	HFO even	ts visibility	/	HFO sta	atistics	Tools

Statistic setup button will open the HFO Statistic Setup window, from which the user can select the statistic calculations to be performed:

B	HFO Statistics Setup ×
	Ripple / min
	Ripple with Spike / min
	Ripple without Spike / min
	✓ FastRipple / min
	☑ FastRipple with Spike / min
	✓ FastRipple without Spike / min
	☑ FastRipple with Spike with Ripple / min
	☑ FastRipple with Spike without Ripple / min
	🗹 Spike / min
	Spike with Ripple / min
	Spike with FastRipple / min
	Ripple with Spike without FastRipple/ min
	Ripple without Spike without FastRipple/ min
	Ripple without FastRipple / min
	☑ FastRipple without Ripple / min
	☑ FastRipple without Spike without Ripple / min
	OK Cancel

The HFO statistics calculation window will open by pressing the button **Process**. From this window, the user can define settings such as the montage lines on which the statistic calculation will be applied and the selection of EEG trace involved. There's also the possibility to analyze only the HFO events created by a defined user. Pressing the button OK the calculation will start. An excel file will be created in the destination folder, containing all the values selected in the HFO Statistics setup menu.

Hfo statistics calculation ×
Lines selection
All montage lines
○ Selected lines
All lines are selected
Interval selection
Whole trace
○ Current page
○ Selected interval events
Video selection
User selection
All users are selected
File path
C:\Users\mi_test\Documents\Micromed\BrainQuick\Hfo statistics calculations\Saß Alexander
✓ Open containing folder when finished
OK Cancel

CUSTOM EVENTS

In Ribbon Bar > Events tab there is the possibility to define custom events, in order to let the user create a new event type choosing its graphical and insertion properties.

EEG	1 - Fran Home	cy long Montaç	ge Nav	· 150 µ	IV/cm ▼	20 sec 🔻	2 🔻	ow	1.6 Hz 🔻	70.0 ctior	Hz 🔻				
Open Events panel setup	Lock Unlock	Note Ann	otation Dig	gital Video	Hyperventilatio	DIN EEG A selection se	P P analysis Pho election selec	> otic ction	user - defined New event	 ↓ ▼	 ⊕ Eyes open ⊕ Eyes closed ∅ Hyperventilation 	✓ Movement ∧ Artefact M Seizure	④ Sleep 砅 Speaking ❷ Pain stimulus	 Acoustic stimulus Attention 	External calculation
					General				Custom			Obs	ervation		Tools

Clicking on **Events setup** button a window will be opened, from which the user can visualize the default events grouped by category:

ъ								Event setup									-	σ×	
Close Save Add category	Add Rename sub-category selected Categories	e Add "all line interval" Evi	Add "single Add line instant" line ents	T'single interval'															
			General properti	es		Text properties						Graphic properties	User interface a	nd permissions					
Quick List	Description	Opt. button	Reference	Duration	Visualization	Туре	Position	Font	Size	Bold	Italic	Туре	Mouse	1-click interval	Insert	Delete	Update text	Upt	4
4 Category: Special																			
✓ Sub-category	: Special Annotation																		
*	Read		All lines	Interval	Text and graphic	Alphanumeric	Тор	Segoe UI	11			Underline	Click&drag			 Image: A start of the start of			
4 Category: General																			
	- A																		
Sub-category	Annotation							_					_						
	Ø Note		All lines	Instant	Text and graphic	Alphanumeric	Тор	Segoe UI	24			Vertical line	1 click		✓	✓	✓		
×	P Annotation		All lines	Instant	Text and graphic	Memo	Тор	Segoe UI	11			lcon	1 click			¥	¥		
Sub-category	r: Trigger																		
*	🕈 Digital trigger		All lines	Instant	Text and graphic	Numeric	Bottom	Segoe UI	18			Vertical line	1 click		✓	 Image: A start of the start of	✓		
Sub-category	r: Selection																		
*	Video selection		All lines	Interval	Graphic							Underline	2 clicks		V	¥			
*	Hyperventilation		All lines	Interval	Graphic							Underline	2 clicks		 Image: A start of the start of	v			
*	EEG selection		All lines	Interval	Graphic							Underline	2 clicks		V	V			
*	Analysis selection		All lines	Interval	Graphic							Underline	2 clicks		V	V			
	Photic selection		All lines	Interval	Graphic							Underline	2 clicks		V	 Image: A start of the start of			
✓ Sub-category	: Observation																		
*	Eyes open		All lines	Instant	Text and graphic	From description	Тор	Segoe UI	11			Vertical line	1 click		V	V			
*	Eyes closed		All lines	Instant	Text and graphic	From description	Тор	Segoe UI	11			Vertical line	1 click		v	v			
*	0 Hyperventilation		All lines	Instant	Text and graphic	From description	Тор	Segoe UI	11			Vertical line	1 click		V	V			
*	-4 Movement		All lines	Instant	Text and graphic	From description	Тор	Segoe UI	11			Vertical line	1 click		 Image: A start of the start of	¥			
*	∧ Artefact		All lines	Instant	Text and graphic	From description	Тор	Segoe UI	11			Vertical line	1 click		V	¥			
*	11 Seizure		All lines	Instant	Text and graphic	From description	Тор	Segoe UI	11			Vertical line	1 click		✓	¥			
្នា	I Sleep		All lines	Instant	Text and graphic	From description	Тор	Segoe UI	11			Vertical line	1 click		v	v			
<u>_</u>	6, Speaking		All lines	Instant	Text and graphic	From description	Тор	Segoe UI	11			Vertical line	1 click						
ប្	Pain stimulus		All lines	Instant	Text and graphic	From description	Тор	Segoe UI	11			Vertical line	1 click		Image: A state of the state				
<u>ĭ</u>	Acoustic stimulus		All lines	Instant	Text and graphic	From description	Тор	Segoe UI	11			Vertical line	1 click						
13	ZD Attention		All lines	Instant	Text and graphic	rrom description	тор	segõe UI	11			vertical line	I CIICK		V	¥			
Sub-category	: Detection																		
<u></u>	Seizure Detected		All lines	Interval	Text and graphic	From description	Тор	Segoe UI	11			Filled rectangle	Click&drag		✓	✓			
53	Spike Detected		Single line	Instant	Text and graphic	From description	Тор	Segoe UI	11			Vertical line	1 click		¥				

Events properties

An event is defined by the following properties:

- Quick List: defines if the events are available from insertion with right click on the trace
- Description: name of the Event that will be visualized in the Event tab

• General Properties

• **Reference:** could assume the following values:

SingleLine: if the event will be associated to a single line (e.g. HFO event) AllLines: if the event will be associated to all the lines (e.g. Red Selection)

• **Duration:** could assume the following values:

ZeroDuration: if the event is related to a fixed moment and not with a duration in timing (e.g. Note event).

Interval: if the event is related to an interval (e.g. Selection or HFO Events).

• Visualization: could assume the following values:

Text: if the events will be visualized with a text.

Graphic: if the events will be marked with a graphic selection or line (if it is defined with ZeroDuration).

Text And Graphic: both the previous.

• Text Properties

- **Type:** could assume the following values:
 - Alphanumeric
 - Numeric
 - Rtf: if the text related to the event is an annotation (a document rtf attached to the event).
 - From Description: if the text displayed with the event is the Description of the Event.
- $\circ\quad$ Color: the user can define the text color.
- **Font:** the user can define the text font.
- $\circ\quad$ Size: the user can define the text size.
- \circ **Bold:** the user can enable Bold if the text should be displayed in bold font.
- **Italic:** the user can enable Italic if the text should be displayed with Italic font.

• Graphic Properties

- **Type:** the user can define the graphical visualization of the event and could assume the following values:
 - Fill Rectangle Empty Rectangle
 - Underline
 - Vertical Line
 - Image
- **Color:** the user can define the graphic color.

• User Interface and Permission:

- **Mouse:** could assume the following values:
 - One Click: if the event will be added to the trace using a single click (e.g. Note events). Click And Drag: if the user has to click and drag the event in order to place it in the position of interest with the duration of interest (e.g. HFO events).
 - Two Clicks: if the event will be added to the trace using one click to start and one click to end the event insertion (e.g. Red Selection).
- **1-Click Interval:** the duration of the event could be fixed adding the event with a single click and the user can define the duration of this interval in seconds.
- Insert: allows to define the possibility to add an event or not.
- Delete: allows to define the possibility to delete an event or not.
- Update Text: allows to define the possibility to modify event's text or not.
- **Update Position:** allows to define the possibility to modify event's position or not.

Add new events category and subcategory

From Event setup window the user can edit existing events definitions but also create new events, events categories and subcategories, using the buttons available on the Event setup toolbar:



The buttons **Add category** and **Add subcategory** open a window in which the user can define the new category and subcategory name and the event type to insert in the subcategory created:

	Add category X
When you add a new categor and the first event type	ry you must specify also the first sub-category name
New category	New category 1
New sub-category	New sub-category
Event type	
🗯 💿 Add "all line insta	int"
Add "all line inter	val"
- OAdd "single line in	nstant"
- OAdd "single line in	nterval"
	OK Cancel

The user can choose to insert by default an event with type All-line zero-duration, All-line interval, Single-line zero-duration, or Single-line interval.

<u>NOTE</u>: an event category cannot be empty. The creation of a new category always implies the creation of a new sub-category and of an event.

<u>NOTE</u>: an event subcategory cannot be empty. The creation of a new subcategory always implies the creation of an event.

Add new events

The four buttons on the Events group of the toolbar allow the user to define new events:

- Add "all line instant": adds a zero-duration event which will be present in all the EEG lines.
- Add "all line interval": adds an interval event which will be present in all the EEG lines.
- Add "single line instant": adds a zero-duration event, which will be present in the selected EEG line only.
- Add "single line interval": adds an interval event, which will be present in the selected EEG line only.

New events can be customized according to the table below:

Event Type	Text	Text and Graphic	Graphic	Graphic Type
All Lines Instant	- Alphanumeric - Numeric - From description	- Alphanumeric - Numeric - From description - Memo	YES	- Vertical line - Icon (available only if Text and graphic with type "Memo" is selected)
All Lines Interval	NO	From description	YES	- Filled rectangle - Empty rectangle - Underline
Single Line Instant	- Alphanumeric - Numeric - From description	- Alphanumeric - Numeric - From description	YES	- Vertical line
Single Line Interval	NO	- From description	YES	- Filled rectangle - Empty rectangle - Underline

<u>NOTE</u>: Reference and Duration fields of already defined events cannot be modified. To change the event's Reference and Duration properties it is necessary to change event's type. The user has to delete the undesired event and to add a new one having the desired type.

The custom events defined by the user will be visualized in the Ribbon bar > Events tab > Custom:

		3 - Doubl	le Banana	1	•	400 µV/c	m 🔻 3.0 cm	/sec 🔻	1	• 1.6	Hz 🔻 7	70.0 Hz	▼ EEG - 0	1 Patient - 1/23,	/2024 11:57:04 AN	1	
	ł	Home	Mont	age N	lavigatio	n Ev	vents HFO	Analys	e Rec	luction	Window	Help					
Open Ever	nts up	Lock Unlock	Note A	Annotation	↓ 01 Digital trigger	Video selection	Hyperventilation	EEG selection	Analysis selection	Photic selection	user - defined		⊕ Eyes open ⊖ Eyes closed ம Hyperventilation	-& Movement ∧ Artefact ⊕ Seizure	ジ Sleep 《C Speaking ④ Pain stimulus	Acoustic stimulus Attention	External calculation
							General				Custom			Obs	ervation		Tools

Rename Selected and Delete Selected

The function **Rename Selected** allows the user to rename the selected category or subcategory. This function is enabled only if a category or a subcategory is selected.

<u>NOTE</u>: This function is not available to rename events. To rename an event just click on its name and type the new name, then save the changes.

The function **Delete Selected** allows the user to delete the selected item, which can be an event, a category, or a subcategory. A confirmation message will appear.

<u>NOTE</u>: Default events categories (General, HFO, Respiration, and Scoring) and their subcategories and events cannot be renamed nor deleted.

EXTERNAL CALCULATION

From BRAIN QUICK review window there is the possibility to run external calculation programs. In the Events tab of the ribbon bar you can find the button **External calculation**:

	3 - Doub	le Banana	~	400 µV/c	m 🔻	3.0 cm/sec	· 1	-	1.6	Hz 🔻	7	0.0 Hz	▼ EEG - 0	1 Patient - 1/23	/2024 11:57:04 AN		
	Home	Montage	Navigatio	on Ev	vents H	HFO Anal	yse l	Reduct	ion	Windo	w I	Help					
F F		°7 🖪	\downarrow									-	Eyes open	육 Movement	²⊴ Sleep	Acoustic stimulus	Ľ
Open Events	Lock	Note Annotati	on Digital	Video	Hypervent	tilation EEG	Analy	sis Pł	notic				Eyes closed	∧ Artefact	«{, Speaking	Attention	External
panel setup	Unlock		trigger	selection	21	selectio	on selecti	on sele	ection			₹	00 Hyperventilation	💮 Seizure	🕢 Pain stimulus		calculation
					General					0	Custom			Obs	ervation		Tools

Pressing External calculation button the following window will open:

5 Extern	al Calculation	×
Micromed Hfo Automatic Detection		•
Lines selection		
All montage lines		
O Selected lines		
All lines are selected		~
Interval selection		
Whole trace		
Current page		
Selected interval events		
Read		~
	Start Stop Cancel C	Dk

From the External Calculation window it is possible to select the plugin to be used for the calculations, choosing from a list of available plugins. The user can also define the montage lines and the trace interval on which the calculations will be performed.

Pressing the button Start the calculation will be launched, using the algorithm and the parameters defined by the user.

At the end of the external calculation results will be automatically imported and displayed.

<u>NOTE</u>: a progress bar will show the progress f the external calculation. At the end of the analysis the External Calculation window will automatically close.

Micromed HFO Automatic Detection

Micromed HFO Automatic Detection algorithm is implemented according to Staba's method and consists of detection of spontaneous high-frequency oscillation (HFO) events from continuous wideband EEG recordings. The wideband EEG is band-pass filtered 80–250Hz to identify high-frequency EEG events (Ripple oscillations). The threshold of 2.5 SD above the mean value of the rectified band-pass signal is calculated and used to detect HFO events. Consecutive events separated by less than 10ms are combined as one only event and only those with at least 6 peaks are considered.

To start HFO Automatic Detection follow these steps:

- 1. Click on External calculation button in order to open External Calculation window
- 2. Select "Micromed HFO Automatic Detection" plugin
- 3. Select montage lines (All montage lines or a selection of these) on which the calculation will be performed
- 4. Select EEG trace interval (Whole trace, Current page, or a trace user-defined selection) on which the calculation will be performed
- 5. Click on Start
- 6. All the HFO events detected will be displayed on the EEG trace and in the Events panel. Detected events will be added to the events file associated to the EEG file



<u>NOTE</u>: threshold, distance between events and peaks number values used by the algorithm can be edited using SettingsHFO.ini file located in C:\System98\Programs\HFO.

EVENTS PANEL

The Events Panel is a tool used to visualize, analyze, and edit all the events of an EEG recording. The Events Panel can be opened using the Open panel button in the Events tab of the Ribbon bar:

		1	3 - Doub	le Banan	a	•	400 µV/c	m 🔻	3.0 cm/	sec 🔻	1	•	1.6 Hz	-	70.0 H:		EEG - 0	I Patient - 1/23	/2024 11:57:04 AM	4	
٦			Home	Mon	tage N	lavigati	on Ev	ents	HFO	Analys	e Ré	eductic	on W	/indow	Help						
Г Ор ра	en la nel	vents etup	Lock Unlock	Note /	Annotation	↓ Digital trigger	Video selection	Hyperve	entilation	EEG selection	Analysi: selectio	s Pho n selec	T tic tion		^ ↓ ₹	@ @	⑦ Eyes open ⑦ Eyes closed ⑧ Hyperventilation	♣ Movement ∧ Artefact ♣ Seizure	多 Sleep 《 Speaking の Pain stimulus	In the second secon	External calculation
								Genera	d					Cust	om			Obs	ervation		Tools

The Events Panel displays all the events sorted by default by their position in the EEG trace:

Events (40 obje	cts)										Sean
fype	Text	Position	Duration	Derivation	Value	Extra value	External	Created by	Creation date	Updated by	Update date
Note	* Teilstuck Nr. 1*	12:30:53.785			0		0 False				
⊢ d		12:30:54.526	2.196 seconds	GLB4 ref. (not visibl	0		0 False	mi_test	31/08/2017 09:39:21	mi_test	22/11/2017 10:00:46
Video selection		12:30:54.933	5.457 seconds		0		0 False				
🖻 Note	Vorlauf E-Stim	12:30:55.078			0		0 False				
HFO fast ripple		12:30:56.683	0.941 seconds	GLC7 ref. (not visibl	0		0 False	mi_test	31/08/2017 11:08:16	mi_test	31/08/2017 11:08:16
HFO ripple		12:30:57.378	1 second	GLB5 ref. (not visibl	0		0 False	mi_test	31/08/2017 11:08:14	mi_test	31/08/2017 11:08:14
≟ a		12:30:58.649	0.588 seconds		0		0 False	mi_test	31/08/2017 09:38:16	mi_test	22/11/2017 10:05:25
-b		12:30:59.899		GLA4 ref. (not visib	0		0 False	mi_test	31/08/2017 09:39:10	mi_test	31/08/2017 09:39:12
-b		12:31:01.725		GLC6 ref. (not visibl	0		0 False	mi_test	31/08/2017 09:40:40	mi_test	31/08/2017 09:40:40
HFO gamma		12:31:02.209	1 second	GLA8 ref. (not visib	0		0 False	mi_test	18/09/2017 10:23:32	mi_test	18/09/2017 10:23:32
HFO gamma		12:31:24.899	3.333 seconds	GLC1 ref. (not visibl	0		0 False	mi_test	18/09/2017 10:23:38	mi_test	18/09/2017 10:23:38
HFO fast ripple		12:31:28.204	1 second	GLA7 ref. (not visib	0		0 False	mi_test	18/09/2017 10:23:44	mi_test	18/09/2017 10:23:44
HFO gamma		12:31:31.391	1 second	GLC5 ref. (not visibl	0		0 False	mi_test	18/09/2017 10:23:40	mi_test	18/09/2017 10:23:40
Map selection		12:31:36.470	6.706 seconds		0		0 False	mi_test	25/09/2017 15:50:03	mi_test	25/09/2017 15:50:03
Note	GLB8-GLC8 3.0mA 50.	12:31:38.156			0		0 False				
Note	GLB8-GLC8 3.0mA 50.	12:32:00.718			0		0 False				
Hyperventilation		12:32:55.457	4.566 seconds		0		0 False				
🖍 Note	GLB7-GLC7 4.0mA 50.	12:32:55.875			0		0 False				
Map selection		12:33:08.673	4 minutes 14.379 s		0		0 False	mi_test	22/09/2017 10:23:54	mi_test	22/09/2017 10:23:54
Note	GLB7-GLC7 5.0mA 50.	12:33:43.250			0		0 False				
Annotation	GLB6 ecc ecc	12:34:36.904			0		0 False	mi_test	01/08/2017 10:29:22	mi_test	01/08/2017 10:32:34
Note	GLB6-GLC6 5.0mA 50.	12:34:40.687			0		0 False				
🕈 Note	GLB6-GLC6 7.0mA 50.	12:35:01.125			0		0 False				
Note	GLB5-GLC5 7.0mA 50.	12:35:30.312			0		0 False				
Note	* Teilstuck Nr. 2 *	12:36:06.050			0		0 False				
Note Note	GLB4-GLC4 7.0mA 50.	12:36:06.406			0		0 False				
Note	Nachentladungen	12:36:19.765			0		0 False				
Note	GLB4-GLC4 7.0mA 50.	12:37:07.718			0		0 False				
Eyes open		12:37:21.350			0		0 False	mi_test	22/09/2017 10:25:52	mi_test	22/09/2017 10:25:52
Note	GLB3-GLC3 7.0mA 50.	12:37:53.812			0		0 False				
Note Note	Nachentladungen	12:38:05.148			0		0 False				
Map selection		12:38:16.587	6.639 seconds		0		0 False	mi_test	25/09/2017 15:50:08	mi_test	25/09/2017 15:50:08
Video selection		12:38:19.453	42.949 seconds		0		0 False				
Note 🖌	GLB3-GLC3 7.0mA 50.	12:38:35.500			0		0 False				

For each event the following information is displayed:

- Type: Note, Annotation, Digital Trigger, Video selection, etc.
- **Text:** available for events with type Note, Annotation, and Digital Trigger.
- **Position:** time position of the event in the EEG trace.
- **Duration:** available for events with type selection or interval
- **Derivation:** name of the derivation in which the event is inserted. Available for single line events only.
- Value, Extra Value and Extra Text: auxiliary multi-use fields, available for all the events except from Notes, Digital triggers, Video; Hyperventilation and EEG selections. These additional fileds can be used to group events.
- **External:** True or False. This field allows the user to identify events created and imported using external calculation tools.
- Created by: the user who created the event.
- Creation date: date and time of the creation of the event.
- Updated by: the user who modified the event.
- Update date: date and time of the event modification.

On the top of the Events Panel, the total number of events present in the EEG recording is displayed.

<u>NOTE</u>: All the events visible in the current EEG page are marked with a blue rectangle on the left. Using up and down arrow keys the user can scroll the events list. The blue mark will scroll too, in order to underline always those events, which are currently displayed.

<u>NOTE</u>: All the events belonging to derivations ,which are not visible in the current montage, instead, are highlighted in yellow.

Jump to Event

Click on any event in the Events Panel and the trace display automatically jumps to that point in the recording.

If you scroll to a new page in the recording, the first event on that page is highlighted in the Events Panel. If a duration event of any type is clicked in the Events Panel, the event is centered on the screen display. If the duration event is too long to fit fully on the screen, the left edge of the event will be displayed.

Sort

All events in the Events Panel can be sorted by Type, Text, Position, Duration, Derivation, Value, Extra Value, Extra Text, External, Created by, Creation date, Updated by and Update date, just by clicking on the column's header. Click the header a second time to reverse the order.

Reordering the Column Headers

You can reorder the Events Panel's columns by clicking on the column's header and dragging it to the desired position. For example, you can rearrange the headers from Name: Time : Duration to read Time : Name : Duration or in any other sequence you want to view them.

Delete

To delete events from the list of the Events Panel select the event, right-click on it with the mouse and choose Delete from the popup menu. A confirmation message will appear.

Otherwise you can select the event and press the Canc key on the keyboard. In this case no confirmation message appears before deletion.

NOTE: if you delete an event from the Events Panel, it will also be deleted from the EEG trace.

Filter

There is the possibility to filter events visualization in the Events Panel by Type, Text, Derivation, Value, Extra Value, Extra Text, External, Created by, Creation date, Updated by and Update date.

To filter events click on the funnel icon on the column header and select the items you want to visualize in the list:

Events (40 objec	ts)	
Type 🕈 🧲	Text ⁹	Position
🖋 Note	* Teilstuck Nr. 1 *	12:30:53.785
💉 Note	Vorlauf E-Stim	12:30:55.078
💉 Note	GLB8-GLC8 3.0mA 50.	12:31:38.156
💉 Note	GLB8-GLC8 3.0mA 50.	12:32:00.718
💉 Note	GLB7-GLC7 4.0mA 50.	12:32:55.875
💉 Note	GLB7-GLC7 5.0mA 50.	12:33:43.250
💉 Note	GLB6-GLC6 5.0mA 50.	12:34:40.687
💉 Note	GLB6-GLC6 7.0mA 50.	12:35:01.125
💉 Note	GLB5-GLC5 7.0mA 50.	12:35:30.312
💉 Note	* Teilstuck Nr. 2 *	12:36:06.050
💉 Note	GLB4-GLC4 7.0mA 50.	12:36:06.406
💉 Note	Nachentladungen	12:36:19.765
💉 Note	GLB4-GLC4 7.0mA 50.	12:37:07.718
💉 Note	GLB3-GLC3 7.0mA 50.	12:37:53.812
💉 Note	Nachentladungen	12:38:05.148
💉 Note	GLB3-GLC3 7.0mA 50.	12:38:35.500
Note 🖍	GLB2-GLC2 7.0mA 50.	12:39:56.843
Note 🖍	GLA8-GLC8 7.0mA 50	12:40:51.093
Note 🖍	SKA	12:40:58.437
💉 Note	Testung	12:41:09.933
🗹 [Type] In ('Note') 🗸		•
Visible objects: 20		

On the bottom part of the Events Panel a summary of the applied filters will appear:

Type 🎙	Text 9	Position
Note 🖍	* Teilstuck Nr. 1 *	12:30:53.785
Note 🖍	Vorlauf E-Stim	12:30:55.078
Note 🖍	GLB8-GLC8 3.0mA 50.	12:31:38.156
Note 🖍	GLB8-GLC8 3.0mA 50.	12:32:00.718
Note 🖍	GLB7-GLC7 4.0mA 50.	12:32:55.875
💉 Note	GLB7-GLC7 5.0mA 50.	12:33:43.250
💉 Note	GLB6-GLC6 5.0mA 50.	12:34:40.687
💉 Note	GLB6-GLC6 7.0mA 50.	12:35:01.125
Note 🖍	GLB5-GLC5 7.0mA 50.	12:35:30.312
Note 🖍	* Teilstuck Nr. 2 *	12:36:06.050
Note 🖉	GLB4-GLC4 7.0mA 50.	12:36:06.406
💉 Note	Nachentladungen	12:36:19.765
Note 🖉	GLB4-GLC4 7.0mA 50.	12:37:07.718
💉 Note	GLB3-GLC3 7.0mA 50.	12:37:53.812
Note 🖍	Nachentladungen	12:38:05.148
Note 🖍	GLB3-GLC3 7.0mA 50.	12:38:35.500
Note 🖍	GLB2-GLC2 7.0mA 50.	12:39:56.843
Note Note	GLA8-GLC8 7.0mA 50	12:40:51.093
Note 🖌	SKA	12:40:58.437
Note 🖉	Testung	12:41:09.933
-		

Clicking on the checkmark next to the filter properties you can disable on enable again the filter. Clicking on the X button on the bottom right, instead, you can clear all filter settings.

Under the filter settings the number of currently visible events is displayed: this number takes into account events, which are visible after the filters application.

VISUALIZATION SETTINGS

The user can enable Events Panel visualization pressing "Open Panel" button that is available from different points of the EEG window:

- From Ribbon bar > Home tab (Events group)
- From Ribbon bar > Events tab
- From Ribbon bar > HFO tab
- From Time bar:



Events Panel can be floating in the position of interest in the EEG window or can be docked to one of the preset positions in the EEG window (see sections "Dock Panel Layout" and "<u>Windows Placement</u>"). Events Panel can also be placed on a second screen. To move Events Panel, just click on its header and drag it to the desired position.

The height and width of Events Panel can also be modified. To resize Events Panel just hover the mouse on one of its edges. When the cursor turns into a two-sided arrow, click and drag the window edge until the desired dimension is reached.

LOCAL EVENT MANAGER

Brain Quick software implements a local event manager for the display of alarms. To enable the event manager, the user has to enable the alarms of interest in the software preferences.

By clicking on Application Button > Preferences > Acquisition Saving Options the user can access the local event manager options:

Preferences	EEG Recording	
Trigger Setup	Trace Length	
Acquisition Saving Options	Close Trace File Every	
Setup Acquisition Tools	O Close trace File At Time O Close trace File At Time O Make a Single Trace and Stop Recording Video Recording Video File Length Image: Trace and Stop Recording	
	 ✓ Local Event Manager ✓ Enable send patient and amplifier buttons message ✓ Enable send analyser Threshold messages 	✓ Core master Event Manager ✓ Enable send patient and amplifier buttons message ✓ Enable send analyser Threshold messages File Manager Core Master Ip Address File Manager Core Master Port

In this page it is possible to enable the Local Event Manager and to select whether to be alerted by the either or both the following possible events:

- Patient button/Amplifier button
- Analysis alarm threshold

Once the Local Event Manager is enabled, it is possible to open its window in the status panel by clicking on the relative icon in the home tab of Brain Quick Software:

11 - Event Analyser • 100 µV/cm • 10 sec • 2	1.6 Hz off eEG - ACQUISITION: 3.5.3 Defects Test (EEG EXAM ACQUIRE)	– ø x.
Home Montage Events HFO Analyse Window Hel		^
11 - Event Analyser Gain 100 µV/cm Y Hp filter 1.6 Hz In filter		
Lines: 5 - EEG: 2 - Polygraphic: 0 Base time 10 sec V Notch	Connect Check Run Save Pause Enable Setup Acquisition Control Photic Chronometer Local Event Cortical Cortical ANG SRC Zoom Panel Stimulation Manager Ismulation Stimulation Setup Setup Setup	.ock Open Anonymize nlock Report
Lines: 3 - EEG: 2 - Polygraphic: 0 Base time 10 sec 💌 V Lp filter off 💌	Connect Check Run Save Finuer Enable Setup Acquisition Central Photo: Chronometer Local Event Contical Contrical Setup Acquisition Central Photo: Chronometer Local Event Simulation Setup Setu	nlock Report

Once enabled, the Local Event Manager will be visible in the status panel:

Local Event Manager							
	7/1/2024 4:57:17 PM Min Fp2 - data is in the established range 7/1/2024 4:57:24 PM Headbox button: UA	⁻ >>					
X	7/1/2024 4:57:27 PM Headbox button: RA 7/1/2024 4:57:30 PM Headbox button: DA	₽.					
	7/1/2024 4:57:33 PM Headbox button: LA	▼ Neset					

With the Local Event Manager window open, the software will prompt information regarding alarms during the recording of an EEG exam. Once an alarm is triggered, a sound will start playing to alert the user and a red flashing icon will appear to the left of the information box. No alarm will be issued if the current EEG exam is not currently been saved.

Amplifier button and patient button

Alarms triggered by pressing the amplifier button or the patient button a sound alarm will start ringing and a red man-shaped icon will start flashing to the left of the information box:

X

By pressing the Reset button to the right of the information box, both the red icon and the sound alarm will stop and the text in the information box will be preserved.

Analyzer threshold alarm

If an analysis protocol is set for the current analysis and the analysis panel is open, the software will automatically notify the user of alarm threshold been triggered. To setup an analysis threshold alarm, refer to the **Analyzer** section of the manual.

When an analyzer threshold alarm is triggered, a sound will start playing and a red bell-shaped icon will start flashing to the left of the information box:



By pressing the Reset button to the right of the information box the alarm sound will stop. The red icon will continue to flash up until the analyzer signal is no longer in the alarm region. Furthermore, no more sound will be played until the graph that triggered the alarm goes back into the safe region or a different graph triggers a new alarm.

MEASURE CURSORS

Measure cursors are tools which allows to measure oscillations amplitude, duration and frequency in a quick way. They can be enabled by clicking on the **Cursor** section from the Home tab of the Ribbon bar:



Finally there is the Distance cursor, another tool that allows the user to measure time differences between two defined points on the trace.

These features and how to use them are explained below.

DISTANCE CURSOR

Distance cursor is a tool that allows the user to measure time differences between two defined points on the EEG trace. It is composed of two vertical red lines with red arrows, which identify the start and end point selected for the distance measurement. A textbox displays the distance measured between the selected start point and end point.

The user can enable and disable distance cursor by directly clicking with the mouse on the EEG trace:

- 1. Double-click on the EEG trace to set the start point for distance measurement
- 2. Double-click on the EEG trace to set the end point for distance measurement
- 3. Distance information is displayed
- 4. Double-click on the EEG trace to close distance cursor



RULER MEASURE CURSOR

Ruler cursor is a tool that allows the user to measure oscillations amplitude in a quick and qualitative way. It can be enabled by clicking on **Ruler** button from the Home tab of the Ribbon bar:



A floating ruler with graduated axis appears when hovering the mouse on the EEG trace. The ruler can be positioned in correspondence with the oscillations of interest to measure their amplitude and it can be fixed on the EEG page using shortcut CTRL+F and unfixed using again CTRL+F.



The ruler cursor y-axis is equal to the gain and the x-axis is equal to 1 second.

STANDARD MEASURE CURSOR

Standard Measure Cursor is a tool which allows to measure oscillations amplitude, duration and frequency in a quick way. It can be enabled by clicking on **Standard** button from the Home tab of the Ribbon bar:



When clicking on Standard button the Standard Measure Cursor directly opens in the middle of the EEG page. It is composed of a red area, which delimits the part of the EEG trace to be measured. The selection applies to all the montage lines.

Standard Measure Cursor displays information updated in real time about the:

- Initial and final timing position of the vertical selection
- Temporal duration of the interval
- Peak-to-peak amplitude of the interval



The area selected by the Standard Measure Cursor can be resized by clicking with the mouse on the start point (or on the end point) of the selection and dragging it to the desired position. The selection can also be moved by clicking with the mouse on the red area and dragging it to the desired position.

Standard Measure Cursor allows also to fit frequency of the selected waves: the cursor provides 9 vertical bars within the selected area that split the selection in 10 parts, which allow the user to fit the interesting wave's peaks. Just selecting with the cursor the wave of interest and reshaping the selection in order to fit the peaks you can obtain a direct measure of the frequency of the selected wave. Frequency value calculated is displayed in the results box which appears on the top left of the measure cursor.

ADVANCED MEASURE CURSOR

Advanced Measure Cursor is a tool which allows to measure oscillations amplitude, duration and frequency in a quick way. It can be enabled by clicking on the **Advanced** button from the Home tab of the Ribbon bar:



When clicking on the **Advanced** button the Advanced Measure Cursor directly opens in the middle of the EEG page. It is composed, as the Standards Measure Cursor, of a red area that delimits the part of the EEG trace to be measured. The selection applies to all the montage lines and by default the first montage line is selected.

The user can select the area of interest by clicking and drag the selection directly from the EEG page.

Advanced Measure Cursor displays information updated in real time about the:

- Initial and final timing position of the vertical selection
- Temporal duration of the interval
- Peak-to-peak amplitude of the interval

The area selected by the Advanced Measure Cursor can be resized by clicking with the mouse on the start point (or on the end point) of the selection and dragging it to the desired position. The selection can also be moved by clicking with the mouse on the red area and dragging it to the desired position.

Advanced Measure Cursor allows also to fit frequency of the selected waves: the cursor provides 9 vertical bars within the selected area that split the selection in 10 parts, which allow the user to fit the interesting wave's peaks. Just selecting with the cursor the wave of interest and reshaping the selection in order to fit the peaks you can obtain a direct measure of the frequency of the selected wave. Frequency value calculated is displayed in the results box, which appears on the top left of the measure cursor.

In addition to Standard Measure Cursor's features, Advanced Measure Cursor provides a panel showing two graphs. The upper graph displays a zoom of the selected part of the EEG trace. The lower graph displays the spectrum of the selected part of the EEG trace, with indication of the peak frequency:



Hovering the mouse over the Advanced Measure Cursor's graphs the user can obtain additional information about the amplitude or the power of the trace: each graph provides a vertical cursor which is displayed when the mouse hovers on the plot. When the vertical cursor is active a box displays information about the position and amplitude of the selected point for the zoom graph and about frequency and power of the selected point for the spectrum graph.

Double clicking on the amplitude graph it is possible to add a fixed reference to visualize information about the position and amplitude difference between the fixed value and the actual position of the mouse over the amplitude graph:



It is possible to double click to fix and compare two different values on the amplitude graph and in this case the active box will show information about the difference between the selected peaks:



The user can also modify both graphs' axis scale by clicking on the axis cursor's extremity and dragging it:



Advanced Measure Cursor allows to analyze more than one EEG segment at the same time. The user can select more than one EEG segment using Ctrl + mouse click on the lines of interest. If more lines are selected, their graphs are superimposed with different colors in Advanced Measure Cursor panel:



ANALYZER

ANALYZER DATA PROCESSING

Introduction

The EEG Analyzer software is a dedicated instrument for analysis of EEG and Polygraphic signals (in the following they will be both referred as EEG signals). It provides quantitative analysis of data both in frequency and time domain, with display of evolution of any of the calculated parameters over the time.

The EEG Analyzer is designed to fulfill the analysis needs in the following activities:

- 1. Monitoring EEG Signals in Intensive Care Units Adult/Pediatric/Neonatal
- 2. Monitoring SpO2 and HR in Long Term Monitoring for Epilepsy
- 3. Analyzing EEG and Polygraphic Signals for Reporting LTM and/or Ambulatory Recording

The design of the User Interface is defined for two main groups of users:

A. <u>Basic Users</u>: very simple User Interface, a Quick Startup, a few pieces of information that is clear and condensed.

B. <u>Advanced Usesr</u>: sophisticated Analysis with the possibility to configure any single detail, in a User Friendly manner, which simply need to be fast in term of calculation and efficient in term of display. They might choose to display lot of information and to export lot of data for further analysis.

Data Processing Scheme

The calculation is based on a segmentation of the signal into 2 sec. epochs, the so called "minimum epoch."



<u>Already Calculated Parameter</u> will be saved, storing ONLY the really used parameters. For sure an offline modification of the displayed parameters will require a recalculation of the data.

Spectral Analysis

Spectral analysis is a process that is based on the transformation of the trace from the time domain to the frequency domain. The advantage of such an operation consists in the possibility to condense information contained in trace segments of several seconds or up to several hours into a single graph. This analysis supplies information about the structure of the trace, but does not supply information regarding any eventual morphology present in the signal, which is however not the real objective of long term monitoring. Spectral analysis is based on the principle that any signal can be viewed as a sum of pure sinusoidal components that differ in frequency and phase.



The signal display in the form of a spectrum is simply a graph that shows, for each pure frequency component, its power, also called PSD - Power Spectral Density. This graph should be shown in columns, but typically is always drawn as a continuous graph where the X-axis shows the measured frequency in Hertz or cycles/sec and the Y-axis shows the power, where the unit measurement is uV^2/Hz . The computation of this decomposition is obtained by the DFT - Discrete Fourier Transform, of which a rapid calculation version was introduced in 1970 and took the name of FFT - Fast Fourier Transform.



Frequency analysis consists in the segmentation of the EEG trace in multiple epochs of 2 seconds or more, transformation of each of these according to Fourier, then averaging the various spectrums and displaying the results obtained as a graph.

As already stated, spectral analysis is not a punctual methodology, but median, in such that it highlights the harmonic content of the signal contained in fixed epochs; if we add the fact that we average the results obtained from multiple epochs, we can clearly understand why such an analysis is not capable of highlighting sporadic low power events present in the trace.

Signal Conditioning (Pre-Processing)

To improve the performance of both Time Domain Analysis and Spectral Analysis a conditioning of the original signal can be performed as follows:

• **Overlapping**: this is a technique consisting in analysis of superimposed epochs. This consists in the analysis of, for example, preset epochs of 2 seconds selecting consecutive epochs every second (1 sec, following figure). This permits the analysis of each trace element in a manner that they are centrally located within the analysis epoch.



• **Detrending**: this is a technique consisting in the removal from each epoch of any eventual DC or their derived components. This consists in removing the straight -ine components from the signal that best approximate the trace tendency within the epoch. The result obtained is notable, because the very slow components that are suppressed are usually of no interest, while any rapid components are highlighted, as they are the most important ones within analysis.



• **Tapering**: this technique has the aim to reduce the phenomena of spectral leakage which, distributing the signal power in a wide band of the spectrum, risk masking other important low power components of the trace. The resulting improvement is considerable, especially with signals characterized by a dominating rhythm, whose dispersed components could effectively mask other real components of the trace. This operation consists in multiplying the epoch of the signal by a known constant function, which is usually 0 at the extremes of the epoch.

Signal Referencing

The following Referencing algorithm can be applied to the signal, prior to any signal re-combination:

Average Reference (AVG)

Bi-Auricular Reference (A1-A2)

Source Reference (SRC)

Signal Recombination

The EEG Analyzer allows the selection of the following channels for the analysis:

MONOPOLAR EEG CHANNEL

This is a monopolar EEG Channel "As Recorded", that is with the physical Common Reference used during acquisition (i.e. Fp2-G2). Processing allowed on this kind of data are the following: Average Reference Biauricular Reference Source Reference No need to predefine these channels for the analysis as they are derived from the list of recorded channels.

BIPOLAR POLYGRAPHIC CHANNEL

This is a Polygraphic Channel "As Recorded", that is then a Physical Bipolar signal. No processing is allowed on this kind of data. No need to predefine these channels for the analysis as they are derived from the list of recorded channels.

BIPOLAR EEG CHANNEL

This is a Bipolar EEG Channel derived from 2 Monopolar EEG Channel by simple subtraction (i.e. Fp2-C4 derived from Fp2-G2 and C4-G2).

Processing allowed on this kind of data (prior to bipolar calculation) are the following:

Average Reference

Biauricular Reference

Source Reference

The list of possible "Bipolar EEG Channels" need to be defined in the protocol Setup

MONOPOLAR EEG CHANNELS GROUP

This is a Group of Monopolar EEG Channels, which specify to calculate the average activity of any of the parameters over the selected Monopolar EEG channels.

Processing allowed on this kind of data (prior to average group activity calculation) are the following: Average Reference

Average Reference

Biauricular Reference

Source Reference

The list of possible "Monopolar EEG Channels Group" needs to be defined, with the detailed composition of each group, in the Protocol Setup

BIPOLAR EEG DATA GROUP

This is a Group of Bipolar EEG Channels, which specify to calculate the average activity of any of the parameters over the selected Biopolar EEG channels.

Processing allowed on this kind of data (prior to average group activity calculation) are the following:

Average Reference

Biauricular Reference

Source Reference

The list of possible "Bipolar EEG Channels Group" needs to be defined, with the detailed composition of each group, in the Protocol Setup

Signal Filtering

The following Filtering can be applied to the signal:

High Pass Filter Low Pass Filter Notch Filter "Rectangular Like" Filter

Period of Calculation

This parameter defines the duration of the super epoch for the calculation of the values to be displayed, i.e. the number of epoch to consider in order to produce an output (which is not always the "Average" of the values of single epochs). It must be defined in seconds.

Interval Type

This parameter defines the duration of the super epoch for the calculation of the values to be displayed, i.e. the number of epoch to consider in order to produce an output (which is not always the "Average" of the values of single epochs). It must be defined in seconds.

Parameter List

All the parameters used in the EEG Analyzer are calculated any time the user runs the EEG Analyzer program. The list of these parameters is the following:

1. PSD (Power Spectral Density): this parameter is calculated using the Fourier Transform: further information is described in the following section (Spectral Analysis)

- 2. Absolute Power
- 3. Relative Power
- 4. Spectral Edge Frequency (SEF)
- 5. Peak Frequency
- 6. Main Dominant Frequency (MDF)
- 7. Median Frequency (MF)
- 8. User Index
- 9. Burst Suppression Ratio (BSR)
- 10. Average Coherence
- 11. Signal Value
- 12. Integrated Amplitude (IAEEG)
- 13. Tachogram in bpm
- 14. Tachogram in sec

ANALYZER PROTOCOLS

PSD-Power Spectral Density

This parameter is calculated using the Fourier Transform: further information are described in the "Spectral Analysis" part.

Absolute Power

The absolute power on a band is calculated as the area of the spectrum delimited by the frequency band limits (mathematically it is the integration, in the frequency domain, of the PSD). The unit of measure is μV^2 . In the figure below the absolute power of the alpha band is shown as the area under the graphic of the PSD (Power spectral Density) within the Alfa Band limits.



Absolute power of the Alfa band shown as a shaded area of the spectrum.

Relative Power

Calculated as the ratio between the absolute power in a specific band and the total spectral power (equal to the total sum of the power in all bands). Taking as an example the 4 standard spectral bands, we can obtain the following:

$$Delta_{REL} = \frac{Delta_{ABS}}{Delta_{ABS} + Theta_{ABS} + Alfa_{ABS} + Beta_{ABS}}$$

Being a ratio between two similar quantities, the result has no dimension and is usually expressed as a percentage.

Spectral Edge Frequency (SEF)

This is defined as the width of the spectrum. Its calculation can be derived in different ways but it is most often calculated as the frequency, which delimits 95% of the total spectral power (figure 6). Its dimension is in Hz or cycles/sec.



Example of the SEF value derived from an EEG spectrum

Peak Frequency (PF)

This is the frequency where the power of the spectrum, reaches its maximum value or peak. This value can also be defined as the maximum value reached in each of the specific bands. Its dimension is in Hz or cycles/sec.



Main Dominant Frequency (MDF)

This is the dominant frequency of the spectrum, defined as the weighted average of the power at various frequencies and is calculated by the following formula:

$$MDF = \frac{\sum\limits_{f=0}^{f_{MAX}} f \cdot PSD[f]}{\sum\limits_{f=0}^{f_{MAX}} PSD[f]}$$

Its dimension is in Hz or cycles/sec.

Median Frequency

Median frequency is the specific frequency value that divides the spectrum into two regions, each containing 50% of the total power (figure 8). Its dimension is in Hz or cycles/sec.



Burst Suppression Ratio (BSR)

This is a parameter that quantifies the degree of suppression of the trace. It is calculated on preset epoch lengths as a ratio of the period where the signal remains stable and below a specific threshold, for example $\pm 5 \,\mu$ V, and the duration of the epoch (figure 9). To qualify the trace considered in suppression, the threshold must be surpassed for at least 400 - 500 msec. If there are multiple intervals of suppression during a single epoch they are summed. This parameter shows the percentage of suppression present in each data interval. Normally the program visualizes a value of BSR every 8 seconds but the calculation is of a sample every 2 seconds, so there will be 4 values of BSR calculated every 8 seconds. In the EEG Analyzer setup the user can setup if visualizing the higher, lower or the mean of these 4 values. (In general the option "Mean" is choosen).



Inter Burst Interval - IBI

This is a parameter that quantifies the degree of suppression of the trace. It is calculated as the Interval between two burst of activity if the signal in that interval keep on staying within a predefined threshold (the same amplitude threshold of the BSR).

As the calculation can be based on several consecutive epochs, particular precautions need to be taken into its calculation and or recombination over epochs.

Average Coherence

This is the parameter that quantifies the average coherence between 2 channels. It can be defined as Coherence between 2 "Monopolar EEG Channels" or between 2 "Bipolar EEG Channels"

Signal Value

This is the parameter that visualizes the numerical value of the signal selected. As it refers to a signal epoch, it should be displayed as the "Maximum", "Minimum" or "Mean" value within the epoch.

If "Maximum" or "Minimum" are selected, when "averaging" values over epochs the "Maximum" of all the "Maximum" of each epoch must be calculated as well as the "Minimum" of all the "Minimum" of each epoch must be calculated.

IAEEG (Integrated Amplitude EEG)

This parameter is calculated on a channel as the "Lower Edge" and "Upper Edge" of an "Amplitude Integrated" processed channel. Amplitude Integrated of an EEG channel means pre-filter the signal (with a pass-band filter 2-20 Hz), rectify smooth and compress the values in time in order to obtain the desired values.

User Index

All the parameters already described can be used singularly as a variable to be monitored, or in combination to define new variables also known as **Indexes**. A typical example often found in literature is the Theta/Alfa quotient, which is calculated as the ratio of the absolute power in Theta and the absolute power in Alfa of any given signal. It is obvious that many other indices can be defined, including the definition of different signal ratios. An index can be defined as follows:

$$Index = K \cdot \frac{ParA \pm \cdot ParB}{ParC \pm \cdot ParD}$$

Tachogram in bpm

ECG channel is pre-filtered (with a pass-band filter 4-40 Hz) and a detection algorithm is applied for peak R recognition. This parameter is a measure of the heart rate variability and represents the number of beats per minute (BPM).

Tachogram in sec

ECG channel is pre-filtered (with a pass-band filter 4-40 Hz) and a detection algorithm is applied for peak R recognition.

"Tachogram in sec" is an analysis of variation in the instantaneous heart rate time series using the beat-tobeat RR intervals and it describes the duration of interval RR in seconds. The RR interval is the time measured between the R wave of one heartbeat and the R wave of the preceding heartbeat.

HOW TO PERFORM EEG ANALYSIS

EEG analysis can be executed either online during acquisition or offline during review of EEG traces. EEG Analyzer panel can be opened from Ribbon bar > Analyzer tab pressing **Open** button. In case of online analysis, panel is automatically opened if the user set an analysis program from acquisition protocol.

The following steps explain how to perform an online analysis:

- 1. Click on Open button to open EEG Analyzer panel
- 2. Select an analysis protocol from the available protocols in the combo box (only trends type)
- 3. Start the EEG acquisition
- 4. Calculation starts and the analysis results are progressively displayed in the Analyzer panel



Instead, to run a new offline analysis, follow these steps:

1. Click on Open button to open EEG Analyzer panel

- 2. Select an analysis protocol from the available protocols in the combo box
- 3. Click on Process button to start calculation
- 4. Calculation starts and the analysis results are progressively displayed in the Analyzer panel. Below the protocols combo box a progress bar is displayed to show the calculation's progress
- 5. Wait until the calculation is complete, otherwise click again on the **Process** button to stop the calculation

		3 -	Double B	anana	▼ 400	µV/cm `	- 3	.0 cm/sec 🖪	1	▼ 1.0	6 Hz 🔻 70	0.0 Hz 🔻	EEG -
		Ho	ome	Montage	Navigation	Events	i HF	O Ana	yse Re	duction	Window H	lelp	
	<u>_</u>	Ø.	Pier	CFM C3-C4		•	1	\mathbf{x}_{t}	∽_	Σ	06.00	ο, 🔥	
	Open ai	New nalysis	Archived analyses			P	rotocol setup	Amplitude map	Frequency map	Erp manager	Setup Open	Setup Open	
				EEG Analyse	er			Ma	th	Math	Reaction monitor	Persyst	
nalyser	# • 10 • 10	10 % -										III Analysis interval 2 hour	s 🗸 🖉 🚺 🖬 X
»		~~~~~	~~~~~		~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~			<u></u>		~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~		
Hearth Rate	# • 348+1	98.7 bpm +					4	Marine	Manda A	Mah			
00:20	0030		00.40	anter Mariana Mericana	01.00	01:10	9.90717	0120	01:30	02.40	0150	2000 B200	8210

<u>NOTE</u>: the analysis process can run also in background, so the user can keep EEG Analyzer panel closed during calculation and open it later (either during calculation progress or when calculation is complete).

When the process is completed, from the Archived Analysis combo box is possible to review it. The maximum limit for conducting analyses on a single EEG examination is 2. When this limit is reached, the user must delete one or both analyses from the archive window to initiate additional analyses, as indicated by the displayed alert.

	×
Maximum number of analysis files reached.	
	OK
	OK

EEG Analyzer panel

EEG Analyzer panel provides a toolbar that allows the user to configure Analyzer graphs visualization settings.



From left to right:

- **Toggle One/Two Columns:** this feature allows the user to switch EEG Analyzer graphs visualization from one column to two columns and vice versa. This feature is enabled only when two of more graphs are displayed in the EEG Analyzer panel.
- **Analysis Interva**: this feature allows the user to modify EEG Analyzer graphs time base. Available values for Analysis interval go from 10 seconds to 7 days.
- Link Analysis Interval to Time Bar Overview Interval: this feature allows the user to apply to EEG Analyzer graphs a time base equal to Time bar's overview interval. Time bar's overview interval can be set from BRAIN QUICK Application menu > Preferences > Time bar settings. When Link analysis interval to time bar overview interval is enabled Analysis interval combo box is disabled.
- Show Time-Events Control: Time-events control is a bar displayed at the bottom of EEG Analyzer panel. Time-events control replicates Time bar's information, is aligned with EEG Analyzer graphs and provides #day and time information. If Time-events control is already present clicking on "Show timeevents control" button will hide the bar.



o Hide Panel Caption: this feature allows to hide/show EEG Analyzer panel's title bar.

Moreover, each EEG Analyzer graph has its own toolbar:


This toolbar allows the user to modify visualization properties for each Analyzer graph independently one from the others. From left to right:

- **Protocol Name**: current analysis protocol name is displayed just above the corresponding Analyzer graph.
- **Grid Options**: this menu allows to show/hide EEG Analyzer graphs X-grid and Y-grid.
- Scale Options: these menus allow to modify Y scale or to set Auto-fit Y-scale. Analyzer graphs are updated according to the scale set. Auto-fit Y scale feature allows the display of the graph using the best scale.
- **Color Scale** (available for DSA protocols only): this menu allows the user to select one of the available color scales for DSA analysis. 4 different color scales are available.
- **Synchronize All DSA Plotters To This** (available for DSA protocols only): this feature allows to apply current DSA graph visualization options to all the other available DSA graphs.

In case of EEG Analyzer protocols containing more different analysis cells it is possible to re-arrange cells position within the EEG Analyzer panel with CRTL+ mouse clicking on the cell and dragging it to the desired position:

Analyser (processing	g: 31% done)			👖 Analysis interval 🛛 hours 💟 🔗 💽 🖬 🗆 🗙
	DSA FP1-C3	₩ ▼ 0 ÷ 22 Hz ▼ 120.8 μV ² /Hz	BSR FP1-T3	∰ ▼ 0 ÷ 6.05 % ▼
	125 -		2	
DSA C3-01	₩ ▼ 0 ÷ 22 Hz ▼ 120.8 µV²/Hz	····	BSR T3-01	₩ - 0+5.12% -
125 3.5	ana dala mining and a secolar based		2 -	
DSA Fp1-T3	₩ ▼ 0 ÷ 22 Hz ▼ 120.8 µV ² /Hz	- 💶 - Ģ	BSR FP2-C4	∰ ▼ 0÷5.39% ▼
$\frac{12.5}{3.5}$			2	
DSA T3-01	∰ ▼ 0 ÷ 22 Hz ▼ 120.8 μV²/Hz	- - - G	BSR C4-O2	₩ • 0+0% •
125 35				
DSA Fp2-C4	₩ ▼ 0 ÷ 22 Hz ▼ 120.8 µV²/Hz	- 🚺 - Ģ	BSR FP2-T4	₩ • 0÷0% •
12.5 3.5	 The state of the sector is a sector state of a state of the sector sector is a sector is a sector sector is a sector sector sector sector is a sector is a sector is a sector sector sector sector is a sector is a sector is a sector sector sector sector is a sector is a sector is a sector sector sector sector is a sector is a sector is a sector sector sector sector is a sector is a sector is a sector sector sector sector is a sector is a sector is a sector sector sector sector is a sector is a sector is a sector sector sector sector is a sector is a sector is a sector sector sector sector is a sector is a sector is a sector sector sector sector sector is a sector is a sector sector sector sector sector is a sector sector is a sector sector sector sector sector sect			
DSA C4-02	₩ ▼ 0 ÷ 22 Hz ▼ 120.8 μV²/Hz	- - - G	BSR T4-02	∰ ▼ 0÷6.8% ▼
125 -			5	
DSA FP2-T4	₩ ▼ 0 ÷ 22 Hz ▼ 120.8 μV ² /Hz	- - -G	BSR C3-01	∰ ▼ 0÷0% ▼
125 -				
18	## x 0:22 Hz x 1208-04/15		PSP EP1 C2	## = 0 - 609 % =
036 14-02	THT - 0 + 22 HZ + 120.8 pV/HZ		5	++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++
112 I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I				
00:20 00:30 00:4	40 00:50 01:00 01:10 01:20	01:30 01:40 01:50 02:00 02:10	00:20 00:30 00:40	00:50 01:00 01:10 01:20 01:30 01:40 01:50 02:00 02:10

EEG ANALYZER PROTOCOL SETUP

There is the possibility to define custom EEG Analyzer protocols. To do that click on **Protocol setup** button from the Analyze tab of the Ribbon bar:



Analyzer Protocol Setup window opens:

B.				Analyser Protocol Setup			-	σ	×
Close Save									
Layouts Trend List Channel List Frequ	uency Ba	ands User Indexes							
Add Layout 🖾 Copy Layout 🛃 R	Remove L	Layout 📕 Add Cell) 🚟 Remove Cell 🙀 Edit cell detai	ls						
# Name	Des								
4 Analyzer Protocol Type: External		General Properties							
o chica ci	CD	Page length Set page length equal to overview interval	Grand Epoch						
1 DSA Group Rel	DS/	10 hours *	10 seconds ·						
2 Derivation Reduced DSA	Der	C-11-							
3 Derivation Reduced DSA+BSR	Der	Cells							
4 Monitor SPO2	Mo	Description Cell Type	Trend Definitions	Alert Threshold Type	Inferior Alert Threshold Superior Alert Thresh	old			
5 Monitor SP02+Heart	Mo	CFM C3-C4 Cfm	CFM C3-C4	Off	0	0 -			
4						* 4			F

Analyzer Protocol Setup window is composed by 5 different tabs: Layouts, Trend List, Channel List, Frequency Bands and User Indexes.

Layouts

A Layout includes all the calculation and graphical properties of an analysis protocol. Each Layout is composed of one or more cells, which correspond to the EEG Analyzer graphs that will be displayed. The list of all available layouts is displayed in the left column of Layouts tab. In the middle column general properties and cells of the selected layout are shown. In the right column there is a preview of the cells' position within EEG Analyzer panel.

₿-					Analyser Protocol Setup			-	σ	×
Close Save										
Layouts Trend List Channel List	Frequency Ba	nds User Indexes								
Add Lavout 20 Copy Lavout	Remove	avout 🖽 Add Cell	Remove Cell 200 Edit cell detail	5						
# Name	Des						==			
4 Analyser Protocol Type: Externa		General Properti	es							
0 CFM C3-C4	CFA	Page length Se	t page length equal to overview interval	Grand Epoch						
1 DSA Group R+L	DS/	TO HOURS *		TO SECURIDS *						
2 Derivation Reduced DSA	Der	Cells								
3 Derivation Reduced DSA+B	ISR Der									
4 Monitor SPO2	Mo	Description	Cell Type	Trend Definitions	Alert Threshold Type	Inferior Alert Threshold Superior Alert Threshold				
3 Monitor SPu2+Heart	Mo	CFM C3-C4	Cfm	CFM C3-C4	Uff	0 0				
								_		
•	•									2

To setup a new analysis protocol, follow these steps:

- 1. Click on Add Layout button. A new layout named "New Layout" is created on the left column of the window. "New Layout" contains a cell by default.
- 2. To edit the new layout's name, click on it and type the new name
- 3. To edit the cell's description, click on it and type the new name
- 4. Select cell type by clicking on **Cell Type** combo box. Available cell types are: Dsa, Trends, Cfm and Indexes

General Properties					
Page length Set page length equal to overview interval 10 hours		Grand Epoch 10 seconds 💟			
Cells					
Description	Cell Type		Trend Definitions		
New Cell 1	Dsa	\sim	Psd F3-F8		
New Cell 2	Dsa		Abs F3-F8 delta		
	Trends				
	Cfm				
	Indexes				

5. Select Trend definitions by clicking on **Trend Definitions** combo box. Available trends are displayed according to the selected cell type.

The user can select one or more trend definitions for the same cell. If more than one trend definition is selected their graphs will be superimposed with different colors in the EEG Analyzer panel. Click on **OK** button to confirm trend definitions choice.

Cells		
Description	Cell Type	Trend Definitions
New Cell 1	Dsa	Psd F3-F8
New Cell 2	Trends	Abs F3-F8 delta
		 ✓ Abs F3-F8 delta ✓ Abs Fp1-Fp2 delta BSR-Fp1-C3 BSR-C3-O1 BSR-Fp1-T3 BSR-T3-O1 BSR-Fp2-C4 BSR-C4-O2
		OK Cancel

<u>NOTE</u>: for cells with type Dsa it is not possible to select more trend definitions per cell. If the user tries to add more than one trend definition to a Dsa cell the following error will appear and it will not be possible to save nor to exit from Analyzer Protocol Setup window:

Cell Type	Trend Definitions
Dsa	😵 Psd F3-F8;PSD-Left 🔍
Trends	Abs F3-F8 delta
	Cell Type Dsa Trends

6. Select on Alert Threshold Type by clicking on **Alert Threshold Type** button. From this options it's possible to enable an alert if the analysis is inside or outside two bounds, above or below one threshold. Each Threshold are settable using Inferior and Superior Alert Threshold options.

Alert Threshold Type	Inferior Alert Threshold	Superior Alert Threshold
Off 🔹	0	0
Off		
Inside Two Bounds		
Outside Two Bounds		
Above One Threshold		
Below One Threshold		

7. Click on **Edit cell details** button to set cell's grid and scale properties and to enable/disable Auto Fit feature. Edit cell details menu can be opened also with mouse right-click directly on the cell

Cells			
Description	Cell Type	Trend Definitions	
New Cell 1	Dsa	Psd F3	î
New Cell 2	Trends	Abs F3 🗸 Show X grid	
		 Show Y grid 	
		\checkmark]
		Auto Fit 🗹	
		0 ÷ 30 (Hz)	

NOTE: color scale and frequency scale properties are available only for cells with type Dsa.

7. Click on Add Cell button to add another cell to the selected layout

- 8. Click on Remove Cell button to remove the selected cell
- 9. Set layout's General Properties:
 - Page Length: is the EEG Analyzer graphs page length. Available values go from 10 seconds to 7 days.
 - Set page length equal to overview interval: allows the user to set EEG Analyzer graphs page length equal to EEG trace page length.
 - Grand Epoch: super-epoch value used for the calculations. Available values go from 2 seconds to 10 seconds.

General Properties						
Page length 10 hours 💟	Set page length equal to overview interval	Grand Epoch 10 seconds 💌				

10. Set cell's orientation (vertical/horizontal) using the toggle button:

New Cell 1		New Cell 1	New Cell 2
New Cell 2			

Layouts tab provides also the possibility to duplicate an existing layout, by selecting it and click on **Copy Layout** button and to remove an existing layout by selecting it and clicking on **Delete Layout** button.

Trend List

A Trend defines which kind of calculation will be performed and which channel or group of channels is involved in the analysis.

Trend List tab displays a list of all the available Trends:

•		Analyser P	Analyser Protocol Setup				
youts Trend List Channel List Frequency Bands User Indexes							
Name	Description	Trend type	Channel Definitions/ Numerical Values				
Analyser Trend Type: Externa	l .						
Psd E3-E8	Psd F3-F8 descr	Power Spectral Density	F3-F8				
Abs F3-F8 delta	Absolute Power F3-F8 in Delta band	Absolute Power	F3-F8				
Abs Fp1-Fp2 delta	Absolute Power Fp1-Fp2 in Delta band	Absolute Power	Fp1-Fp2				
PSD-Left	PSD-Left	Power Spectral Density	Left				
PSD-Right	PSD-Right	Power Spectral Density	Right				
PSD-Center	PSD-Center	Power Spectral Density	Center				
PSD-Fp1-C3	PSD-Fp1-C3	Power Spectral Density	Fp1-C3				
PSD-C3-O1	PSD-C3-O1	Power Spectral Density	C3-O1				
PSD-Fp1-T3	PSD-Fp1-T3	Power Spectral Density	Fp1-T3				
PSD-T3-O1	PSD-T3-O1	Power Spectral Density	T3-O1				
PSD-Fp2-C4	PSD-Fp2-C4	Power Spectral Density	Fp2-C4				
PSD-C4-O2	PSD-C4-O2	Power Spectral Density	C4-O2				
PSD-Fp2-T4	PSD-Fp2-T4	Power Spectral Density	Fp2-T4				
PSD-T4-O2	PSD-T4-O2	Power Spectral Density	T4-O2				
BSR-Fp1-C3	BSR-Fp1-C3	Burst Suppression Ratio Mean	Fp1-C3				
BSR-C3-O1	BSR-C3-O1	Burst Suppression Ratio Mean	C3-O1				
BSR-Fp1-T3	BSR-Fp1-T3	Burst Suppression Ratio Mean	Fp1-T3				
BSR-T3-O1	BSR-T3-O1	Burst Suppression Ratio Mean	T3-O1				
BSR-Fp2-C4	BSR-Fp2-C4	Burst Suppression Ratio Mean	Fp2-C4				
BSR-C4-O2	BSR-C4-O2	Burst Suppression Ratio Mean	C4-O2				
BSR-Fp2-T4	BSR-Fp2-T4	Burst Suppression Ratio Mean	Fp2-T4				
BSR-T4-O2	BSR-T4-O2	Burst Suppression Ratio Mean	T4-O2				
CFM C3-C4	CFM C3-C4	Integrated Amplitude	C3-C4				
SPO2	SPO2	Signal Value Max	SpO2+				
Heart	Heart	Tachogram Mean (bpm)	pA11+				

For each of the defined Trends a Name, a Description, Trend type and Channel Definitions/Numerical values are displayed.

All Trends defined in Trend List tab will be automatically displayed in the **Trend Definitions** combo box of Layouts tab.

To set up a new Trend Definition follow these steps:

- 1. Click on Add Trend Definition button. A new trend will be added at the end of the Trend List
- 2. Type a Name and a Description for the new trend
- 3. Select the Trend Type. Available Trend Types include the following:
 - Power Spectral Density
 - Absolute Power
 - Relative Power
 - Spectral Edge Frequency
 - Main Dominant Frequency
 - o Median Frequency
 - Burst Suppression Ratio Max
 - Burst Suppression Ration Min
 - o Burst Suppression Ratio Mean
 - Signal Value Max
 - Signal Value Min
 - o Signal Value Mean
 - Tachogram Max (bpm)
 - Tachogram Min (bpm)
 - Tachogram Max (sec)
 - Tachogram Min (sec)
 - Tachogram Mean (sec)

- Integrated Amplitude
- 4. Select a monopolar channel, a bipolar channel, a group of channels, or a constant from the list of available items in **Channel Definitions/ Numerical Values** column.
- 5. Click on the newly created Trend and then click on **Edit Trend details**. A menu opens showing all the customizable Trend properties. According to the selected Trend type different modifiable settings will be displayed.

Below there is a list of all modifiable Trend settings:

- FFT Epoch: 2 seconds or 10 seconds
- Overlapping: enabled or disabled
- Tapering: enabled or disabled
- Detrending: enabled or disabled
- Reference type: G2, AVG, A1A2
- High pass filter cut off frequency: from OFF to 800 Hz
- \circ $\;$ Low pass filter cut off frequency: from OFF to 1 kHz $\;$
- Notch filter: enabled or disabled
- Frequency Bands: the user can select a frequency band from the list of available frequency bands
- Bsr duration: from 200 msec to 750 msec (available for Burst trend type only)
- Bsr threshold: from 5 uV to 50 uV (available for Burst trend type only)
- Cfm threshold: from 10 uV to 300 uV (available for Integrated amplitude trend type only)

FFT Epo	ch 2	sec	PSD-F	Fp1-C3	Power Spectral Density	Fp1-C3
Overlap	pina		PSD-0	C3-O1	Power Spectral Density	C3-O1
Tapering	1		PSD-F	Fp1-T3	Power Spectral Density	Fp1-T3
Detrend	ing		PSD-1	T3-01	Power Spectral Density	T3-O1
Detrend	. Г		PSD-F	Fp2-C4	Power Spectral Density	Fp2-C4
Keteren	ce type	AVG	PSD-0	C4-O2	Power Spectral Density	C4-O2
High pa	ss filter [.0 Hz	PSD-F	Fp2-T4	Power Spectral Density	Fp2-T4
Low pas	s filter 7	0.0 Hz	PSD-1	T4-O2	Power Spectral Density	T4-O2
Votch	_		BSR-F	Fp1-C3	Burst Suppression Ratio Mean	Fp1-C3
Frequen	cy Bands	Delta	* BSR-C	C3-O1	Burst Suppression Ratio Mean	C3-O1
BSR-Fp1-	Т3		BSR-F	Fp1-T3	Burst Suppression Ratio Mean	Fp1-T3

<u>NOTE</u>: In Channel Definitions/Numerical Values combo box, different items are displayed with a different color. In particular:

- Group of channels are displayed in green
- Bipolar channels are displayed in light blue
- Monopolar channels are displayed in deep blue

Trend type	Channel Definitions/ Numerical Values				
	-				
Power Spectral Density	Left				
Power Spectral Density	Right				
Power Spectral Density					
Power Spectral Density	Left 💆				
Power Spectral Density	Right	1			
Power Spectral Density	Center				
Power Spectral Density	Fp1-Fp2				
Power Spectral Density	F3-F8				
Power Spectral Density	Fp1-C3				
Power Spectral Density	C3-O1				
Power Spectral Density	Fp1-T3				
Burst Suppression Ratio Mean	T3-01				
Burst Suppression Ratio Mean	Fp2-C4				
Burst Suppression Ratio Mean	C4-O2				
Burst Suppression Ratio Mean	Fp2-T4				
Burst Suppression Ratio Mean	T4-02				
Burst Suppression Ratio Mean	C3-C4				
Burst Suppression Ratio Mean	62				
Burst Suppression Ratio Mean	Fp1				
Integrated Amplitude	1Fp2				
Signal Value Max	SpO2+	-			

<u>NOTE</u>: Not available channels or groups of channels are displayed as strikethrough text, as shown in the figure below:

Trend type	Channel Definitions/ Numerical Values	
Power Spectral Density	Left	
Power Spectral Density	Right	
Power Spectral Density	*	
Power Spectral Density	Left 🔶	
Power Spectral Density	Right	
Power Spectral Density	Center	
Power Spectral Density	Fp1-Fp2	
Power Spectral Density	F3-F8	
Power Spectral Density	Fp1-C3	
Power Spectral Density	C3-01	
Power Spectral Density	Fp1-T3	
Burst Suppression Ratio Mean	T3-01	
Burst Suppression Ratio Mean	Fp2-C4	
Burst Suppression Ratio Mean	C4-02	
Burst Suppression Ratio Mean	Fp2-14	
Burst Suppression Ratio Mean	14-02	
Burst Suppression Ratio Mean	C3-C4	
Burst Suppression Ratio Mean	Ge	
Burst Suppression Ratio Mean	En2	
Integrated Amplitude	F3 V	
Signal Value Max	SpO2+	

Channel List

Channel List tab displays a list of all the available bipolar channels and groups of channels. Bipolar channels list is displayed in the left column, while groups of channels are displayed on the right column.

In this tab the user can define new bipolar channels or channels groups or delete them.

To create a new bipolar channel, follow these steps:

- 1. Click on **Add bipolar channel** button. A New Bipolar Channel will be added at the end of the channel list on the left
- 2. Edit the bipolar channel's name
- 3. Set Input+ and Input- from the list of available derivations
- 4. Click on Save button

To remove a bipolar channel, follow these steps:

- 1. Select the bipolar channel you want to delete
- 2. Click on Remove bipolar channel button
- 3. A confirmation message will appear: "Are you sure to remove the selected bipolar channel?" Click on Yes to permanently remove the bipolar channel, click on No to cancel the operation

To create a new group of channels follow these steps:

- 1. Click on **Add channel group** button. A New Channel Group will be added at the end of the groups list on the right
- 2. Edit the channel group's name
- 3. Select the channels belonging to the group from the list of available channels
- 4. Click on **Save** button

To remove a group of channels follow these steps:

- 1. Select the group of channels you want to delete
- 2. Click on Remove channel group button
- 3. A confirmation message will appear: "Are you sure to remove the selected channel group?" Click on Yes to permanently remove the channel group, click on No to cancel the operation

Layouts Trend List	Channel List	Frequency Band	ls	User Indexes	
Add bipolar cha	nnel 🔥 Remove	e bipolar channe	el.	Add channel group 🔥 Remo	ve channel group
Alias	Input -	Input +		Alias	Group Label
▲ Analyser Bipolar	Channel Type: Ar	chived	-	▲ Analyser Channel Group Type: E	ixternal
C3-C4	C3	C4		Left	Fp1;C3;O1;T3
4 Analyser Binolar Channel Type: External				Right	Fp2;C4;O2;T4
En1-En2	En1	En2		Center	Fz;Cz
F3-F8	F3	F8			

Frequency Bands

Frequency Bands tab displays a list of all the available frequency bands. There are four default frequency bands: **Delta**, **Theta**, **Alpha** and **Beta**.

The **Add Frequency Band** button allows the user to add new frequency bands with the desired name and limits. **Remove Frequency Band** button, instead, allows the user to delete selected frequency bands (a confirmation message will appear before deletion is started).

Each frequency band can be renamed and its frequency limits can be changed choosing them from the popup menu or directly typing them in the correct cell. Frequency bands limits can be set from 0Hz to 512Hz.

Layouts	Trend List	Channel List	Frequency Bands	User Indexes	
123 🔂 Ad	ld Frequency B	and 123 Remo	ove Frequency Band		
Name		Inf		Sup	
	alvser Frequer	cy Band Type:	Archived		-
Del	ta		0.5	3.5	
▲ Ana	alyser Frequer	cy Band Type: I	External		
Del	ta		0.5	3.5	
The	eta		4	7.5	
Alp	ha		8	12.5	
Bet	a		13	30	
Rip	ple		80.0	250.0	

NOTE: default frequency bands (Delta, Theta, Alpha and Beta) cannot be removed.

User Indexes

User Indexes tab displays a list of all the available indexes. The user can add new indexes or delete existing ones.

Layou	ts Trend List Channel	List Frequency Bands User Inc	lexes					
√×	$\sqrt{x_0}$ Add User Index $\sqrt{x_0}$ Remove User Index $\boxed{1}$ Edit Index details index = K * (trendA op trendB)/(trendC op trendD)							
		Description	К	Numerator	Denumerator			
4	Analyser User Index Type:	External						
		Index1	0.5	Addition	Subtraction			
		Index2	2	Multiplication	Subtraction			
		Index3	-0.2	Addition	AbsoluteValueSubtraction -			

To add a new User Index, follow these steps:

- 1. Click on Add User Index button. New Index will be inserted at the end of the indexes list
- 2. Type a name and a description for the new index
- Set K, Numerator and Denumerator for the index, according to the following formula: index = K*(trendA op trendB)/(trendC op trendD)
- 4. Click on Edit Index Details button. A drop down menu opens:

Layouts Tre	end List Channe	l List	Frequency Bands User	Indexes					
√×⊕ Add Use	√x Add User Index √x Remove User Index Edit Index details index = K * (trendA op trendB)/(trendC op trendD)								
		Des	cription	К		Numerator	Denumerator		
Analyser	r User Index Type:	Exter	rnal						
Trend A	Abs F3-F8 delta	•	:1		0.5	Addition	Subtraction		
Trend B	Abs F3-F8 delta	•	2		2	Multiplication	Subtraction		
Trend C	Abs F3-F8 delta	•	3		-0.2	Addition	AbsoluteValueSubtraction		
Trend D	Abs F3-F8 delta	•							

- 5. Set trendA, trendB, trendC and trendD to be used in the index formula
- 6. Click on Save button

To remove a User Index, follow these steps:

- 1. Select the User Index you want to delete
- 2. Click on Remove User Index button

3. A confirmation message will appear: "Are you sure to remove the selected index?" Click on Yes to permanently remove the User Index, click on No to cancel the operation

MAPS

MAP DESCRIPTION

BRAIN QUICK SOFTWARE provides the possibility to display EEG data as brain maps. In a brain map the patient's head is represented as a circle and each electrode is depicted as a point on the circle.

The value of the map in the points corresponding to the electrodes is determined by the EEG data and by the mapping method chosen. Interpolation is used to obtain a value for every point of the map, which is then represented on the screen using color-coded scaling.

The software allows MAPS offline analysis during EEG review.

It is possible to enable Amplitude and Frequency Maps from Analyze tab:



AMPLITUDE MAPS

Amplitude maps represent the distribution of the EEG amplitude in the brain in a determined timing of the EEG recording.

Clicking on Amplitude map button on Analyzer tab of the Ribbon bar Amplitude maps panel opens. Together with the panel a vertical cursor appears on the EEG trace. The cursor is made of 1/4/8/32 (according to the number of Amplitude maps displayed) equally spaced vertical bars which can be dragged or stretched using the mouse in order to select exactly the points in the EEG trace to be analyzed. Amplitude maps are automatically calculated when the vertical cursor is placed on the EEG trace.

Below each Amplitude map the timing of the EEG recording in which the analysis is performed is displayed.



Hovering the mouse on the map's electrodes information about the electrode and the EEG Amplitude value (in μ V) corresponding to that electrode is displayed:



Amplitude Maps Settings



Amplitude maps panel provides a toolbar that allows the user to configure analysis parameters and visualization settings:

- Settings: this menu allows the user to set up
 - The number of maps to be displayed: 1, 4, 8, or 32
 - The algorithm to be used for the interpolation: Knn, Planar spline or Spherical spline
 - Filter settings: HP filter cutoff frequency, LP filter cutoff frequency, Notch filter
- Auto-fit: this button allows the user to automatically adjust the scale in order to visualize Amplitude maps using the best scale.
- o Color Scale: min and max values can be directly typed into the scale text boxes.
- Show Electrodes: this button allows the user to show/hide electrodes positions on the maps.

3D Amplitude Maps

BRAIN QUICK SOFTWARE provides the possibility to display three-dimensional Amplitude maps. 3D Amplitude maps can be displayed by clicking on **3D View** button on Amplitude maps panel's toolbar. This feature allows the user to display the already calculated Amplitude maps in three dimensions.



Enabling 3D Amplitude maps view the following features are available from Amplitude maps panel's toolbar:



- **Show Grid**: this feature allows to display/hide the grid on 3D maps. When 3D View of the maps is disabled Show grid button is disabled too.
- Synchronize Positions: if enabled this feature allows the user to rotate all the 3D maps together, otherwise only the selected Amplitude map is rotated. When 3D View of the maps is disabled Synchronize positions button is disabled too.
- **Nasion**: this feature allows the user to put Nasion in front of view.
- Inion: this feature allows the user to put Inion in front of view.
- Left: this feature allows the user to put the left ear in front of view.
- **Right**: this feature allows the user to put the right ear in front of view.

FREQUENCY MAPS

Frequency maps represent the topographic distribution on the patient's brain of the original signal transformed in the frequency domain and divided in spectral bands, each one covering a determined frequency range.

The analysis is based on average and therefore the user has to define the interval where it is performed.



Hovering the mouse on the map's electrodes information about the electrode and the EEG power spectral density value (in $\mu V^2/Hz$) corresponding to that electrode is displayed:



Frequency Maps Settings						
	Frequency maps					
	Settings 🔹 Frequency bands 📀 🟲 Analysis selecti 💟 +++ 🞯 📁 🌐 🌮 Nasion Inion Left Right 🕨					

Frequency maps panel provides a toolbar that allows the user to configure analysis parameters and visualization settings:

- Settings: a menu allows the user to set up
 - The algorithm to be used for the interpolation: Knn, Planar spline or Spherical spline
 - Filter settings: HP filter cutoff frequency, LP filter cut off frequency, Notch filter
- **Frequency Bands**: from the menu below the user can set up the frequency ranges in which the analysis is performed. A Frequency map is created for each frequency band defined. Indication of the frequency band on which the calculation is performed is displayed below each Frequency map.

	Frequen	cy band setup	×
Active	Name	Start	Stop
\checkmark	Delta	0.5 Hz 🗘	3.5 Hz 🗘
\checkmark	Theta	4 Hz 🗘	7.5 Hz 🗘
\checkmark	Alpha	8 Hz 🗘	12.5 Hz 🗘
\checkmark	Beta	13 Hz 🗘	30 Hz 🗘
	Gamma	30.5 Hz 🗘	100 Hz 🗘
	Extra1	0.5 Hz 🗘	100 Hz 🗘
	Extra2	0.5 Hz 🗘	100 Hz 🗘
	Extra3	0.5 Hz 🗘	100 Hz 🗘
		Restore default val	ues
		0	K Cancel

- **Process on Whole Trace**: this button allows the user to calculate Frequency maps on the whole EEG recording.
- Process on Selected Interval: this button allows the user to calculate Frequency maps on a specific part of EEG recording. The part of EEG recording to be analyzed is identified by a selection event. The user can choose one of the available selection events from the combo box on Frequency maps panel's toolbar.
- **Auto-fit**: this button allows the user to automatically adjust the scale in order to visualize Amplitude maps using the best scale.
- Show electrodes: this button allows the user to show/hide electrodes positions on the maps.

To start Frequency maps calculation the user has to press the button "Process" on Frequency maps panel's toolbar:

Frequency maps				
Settings 🔹 Frequency bands 📿 🟲 🛛 Analysis selecti	. 🗸 🕂	😌 🍺 🕀 🎜	Nasion Inion Left	t Right 🕨

3D Frequency Maps

BRAIN QUICK SOFTWARE provides the possibility to display three-dimensional Frequency maps. 3D Frequency maps can be displayed clicking on **3D View** button on Frequency maps panel's toolbar. This feature allows the display of the already calculated Frequency maps in three dimensions.



REACTION MONITOR

The "Reaction monitor" function is an analysis tool that highlights EEG modification after an event or a patient stimulation. In particular, this tool allows to have quantified data (Spectral bands power) to see signal components difference BEFORE / AFTER an event, with the adjustment of the % threshold between BEFORE and AFTER to highlight only the important changes.

HOW TO PERFORM REACTION MONITOR ANALYSIS

Reaction Monitor panel can be opened from Ribbon bar > Analyse tab pressing **Open** button in the "Reaction Monitor" group.

	3 -	Double B	anana	•	400	µV/cm	•	3.0 cm/sec	• 1	• 1	.6 Hz 🔻	70	.0 Hz	•	EEG -
B	Hor	me l	Montage	Naviga	ation	Ever	its H	FO Ana	lyse R	eduction	Windo	ow H	elp		
∿		Q	CFM C3-C4			Ŧ	1	€	~	Σ		ΩαΩ	್ಹ		
Open	New 4 analysis a	Archived analyses					Protocol setup	Amplitude map	Frequency	Erp managei	Setup	Open	Setup	Open	
			EEG Analyse	r				M	ath	Math	Reaction	monitor	Per	syst	

When clicking on the **Open** button, the Reaction Monitor directly opens in the middle of the EEG page. It is composed of a highlighted area that delimits the part of the EEG trace which corresponds to the "Reject Time". On the left side of the eeg trace appears a table with some comparison values before/after the reject time, as detailed in this section. Finally, moving the cursor on one of the values of the table, it is possible to visualize in detail the graph of the trend type chosen, with a comparison between BEFORE / AFTER the Reject time.

micromed



The width of the Reject Time area can be set by opening the Reaction Monitor setup:

	Pre-analysis time	3 s 🌲	Reject t	time 1.0 s 💲
	Post-analysis time	3 s 🌲		
	Trend type	Absolute Power	•	
Frequency ba	nds			
Active	Name	Start frequency	Stop frequency	Threshold
\checkmark	Delta	0.5 Hz 🌲	3.5 Hz 🌲	20 %
\checkmark	Theta	4 Hz 🌲	7.5 Hz 🗘	20 % 💲
\checkmark	Alpha	8 Hz 🌲	12.5 Hz 🜲	20 % 💲
\checkmark	Beta	13 Hz 🌲	30 Hz 🗘	19 % 💲
\checkmark	Gamma	30.5 Hz 🌲	100 Hz 🌲	20 % 🌻
			Restore default	values

As can be seen from the previous picture, it is also possible to set the analysis interval before/after the event in the Reject Time area.



From Reaction Monitor Setup, it's also possible:

- choose trend type selection: the default value is Absolute power, but other choices are available (Relative power, Peak Frequency, SEF, Median Frequency, Main dominant Frequency);
- define the frequency bands and activate the display of the band;
- define for each band a threshold in % (Difference in % Power AFTER BEFORE). For example, if difference between Power AFTER / Power BEFORE is less than 40% threshold, bargraph is displayed in RED:



In the case of Power After lower than Power Before, the bargraph is blue. On the other hand, in the case of Power After higher than Power Before, the bargraph is green. Deep of blue/green colour depend of % of difference.

DATA AVERAGE

The synchronized average, called "data average," is a particular procedure that uses the trigger events positioned in an automatic way or manually on the trace during acquisition or review; the program in a second moment can perform trace scan in search of such events to perform the average of channel per channel of periods of trace delimitation from such events and which the user is set by the user (from 10 msec to 10 sec). On the trace both analog and digital trigger can be placed; the two types of triggers are generated in an automatic way from different units (stimulators) to synchronized with particular events; the following grid indicates the main differences between the two types of trigger:

Analog trigger	Digital Trigger
Positioned on one channel only (it is possible in the same trace to position the analog trigger on different channels)	Appears as an event and does not interest a single channel
Appears as a variation of level of the signal (vertical peak)	The instant and numerical code is memorized
The triggers can not distinguish one from the other (apart from the channel where they are positioned)	The trigger are distinct from a numerical value; it is possible to perform synchronized average on groups of trigger having the same code.
The number of triggers that can be inserted is limited only by the length of the file (two triggers must be distant at least a minimum of three samples one from the other)	Maximum of 8192 triggers can be inserted

NOTE: it is not possible to perform the data average by using digital triggers and analog triggers at the same time.

The window of synchronized average is accessible by selecting the item **Data Average** from the menu **Analyze** – **Erp Manager**.

HOW TO PERFORM DATA AVERAGE ANALYSIS

Data Average panel can be opened from Ribbon bar > Analyse tab pressing **Erp Manager** button in the "Math" section.

	3 - Dou	ole Banana	▼ 4	00 µV/cm	▼ 3	.0 cm/sec 💌	· 1	▼ 1.0	6 Hz 🔻	70.0)Hz 🔻		EEG -
₽	Home	Montage	Navigation	n Ever	nts HF	O Anal	yse Re	duction	Window	He	lp		
<u></u>	A A	CFM C3-C4	-	•	1	Ţ₽.	4	Σ	060 0	nN		6	
Open	New Archi analysis analy	ved ses			Protocol setup	Amplitude map	Frequency map	Erp manager	Setup O	pen	Setup (Open	
		EEG Analys	ser			Ma	th	Math	Reaction m	onitor	Persy	st	

When clicking on the button, the Data Average directly opens on the right of the EEG page. It is composed of a new eeg window, which corresponds to the ERP Preview, and a panel with ERP Processing settings.

micromed



DATA AVERAGE PARAMETERS

This tab is subdivided into various sections that are listed from top to bottom.

Processing Interval

The Processing interval section allows to select the whole trace or one of the selection interval already present in the trace. Next the combo box there is the Process button to realize the ERP preview.

Γ	Processing interval	
	Whole trace 🔹	\bigcirc
	Whole trace	_
	EEG selection	
	Video selection	

Next the combo box there is the Process button to realize the ERP preview. When it is pressed, the process starts and a loading bar appears.

Proc	essing interval —	
	12%	0

Trigger Type

Two options are visible, Digital triggers, and Analog triggers.

Digital Triggers: enables the use of digital trigger for the synchronized average and excludes analog trigger. The following controls become visible:

Trigger Type: It's a dialog window that allows the user to select which triggers to consider for the trace scan to perform the data average. When "Digital" option is selected, if there are digital triggers in the EEG trace it's possible to select all the triggers or only a particular trigger.

Trigger type
🔿 Analog 💿 Digital
select triggers 🔹
(Select All)
1 (20 triggers)
10 (20 triggers)
OK Cancel

Trigger condition: if "Patient Response" option is checked then the user can set a "condition," that is how to consider the different triggers as they are disposed on the recorded trace; for example a particular trigger can be considered as a *response trigger* and has to follow another trigger (the *stimulus trigger*) before a specified interval of time; if the stimulus trigger is followed by a different response trigger then it can be considered as a "wrong response" and rejected from the calculation of data average. When this option is checked, it opens a dialog window where to set the following values

Correct Answer Trigger Value: from the popup menu you can select the value of trigger that has to be considered as the "correct response" of the patient which receives the stimulus.

Correct Answer Interval: max time interval (in milliseconds) from the "correct answer" trigger and the previous trigger (the stimulus trigger).

Wrong Answer Trigger Value: value of triggers that have to be rejected and not considered in the calculation of data average.

Trigger condition		
✓ Patient response		
Correct:	Wrong:	
1 •	10	-
Max response time:	1000 ms	*

Analog Triggers: enables the use of the analog trigger for the synchronized average and excludes the use of digital triggers.

Channels trigger: a popup menu in which the user selects the channels of trace in which the scanning of the analog triggers is performed.

- Trigge	er type -		
🖲 An	alog	O Digital	
MKR	+		-
MKR	+ (91 tri	ggers)	

NOTE: if this field appears blank, the user cannot proceed with the calculation of the synchronized average.

Sweep Length

ERP Processing settings panel allows to set and visualize the sweep length, defining the Pre-trigger and Post-trigger intervals.

Pre-trigger Interval (msec): interval (in milliseconds) of considered trace in the construction of the average BEFORE of the trigger event.

Post-trigger Interval (msec): interval (in milliseconds) of trace considered in the construction of the AFTER trigger event.

Total (msec): sum of the time of pre-trigger and post-trigger, in milliseconds.

- Sweep length -		
Pre-trigger:	Post-trigger:	
50 ms 🌲	50 ms	÷
Total: 100 ms		

Pre-processing

During the trace scanning a pre-processing on the channels can be performed: before this can be used for the average, the signal can be conditioned with the filters (high-pass, low-pass and notch) and rectification (the negative part of the signal is inverted).

Pre-process	ing -		
HP filter:		LP filter:	
off	٠	off	•
✓ Notch		 Rectify 	

Rejection

Enable Rejection: enables/disables rejection.

Set Rejection Parameters: opens a dialog window that allows the user to set the parameters for the rejection. In a grid all the channels of the trace appear: channel by channel, it is possible to enable/disable the rejection to set the threshold intervention (in μ V).

 Rejection 			
 Apply rejection 			
Threshold:	±100 μV	-	
Channels:	ep1+;ep2	•	

Post-processing

ERP Processing settings panel allows to enable or disable an Offset correction on Post-processing.

Post-processing	
✓ Offset correction	

View parameters

From the view parameters section, it's possible to change Master Gain on ERP Preview.

View parameters	;	
Master gain:	10 µV/cm	•

Trace Export

After the process to realize the ERP Preview, it's possible to export to EEG the processed average trace according to the defined parameters. In this section the user can define the Analsys title, the Signal window and select if the signal window shall be applied to the Polygrafic channels too.

- Trace export
Analysis title:
Data average
Signal window
± µV 🔻 🗹 Polygraphics
Export to EEG 🖆

After clicking "Export to EEG" button, a message appears:

	×
Export to E	EG succeeded
	ОК

Calculation Report

The last section allows to give a Calculation report containing:

- the number of triggers averaged;
- the number of triggers rejected;
- the number of correct responses (if Patient Response option is enabled);
- the number of wrong responses (if Patient Response option is enabled);
- the number of missing responses (if Patient Response option is enabled);
- T_{avg}: Correct response average time (if Patient Response option is enabled);
- σ: Standard Deviation of the Correct response time (if Patient Response option is enabled);
- R: Correct responses / number of triggers (if Patient Response option is enabled).

- Calculation report Averaged: 8 Rejected: 11 Correct responses: 19 Wrong responses: 19 Missing responses: 2 T avg : 507.25 ms o: 80.42 ms R: 0.48

BACKGROUND REDUCTION

EEG REDUCTION IN BACKGROUND

Brain Quick software allows files reduction in background to consent the user to keep in memory only the important segments selected of an acquired EEG trace and to allow the user to do different activities during the reduction process.

To perform a file reduction, the user can select the segments of the trace of interest, during acquisition and reading phase of an EEG exam and define the **Reduction Protocol** opening **Reduction Setup** from Reduction tab.

	3 - Double	e Banana		• 40	0 µV/cm ▼	3.0 cm	/sec 🔻	1 🔻	1.6 Hz 🔻	70.0 Hz	▼ EEG -
Ĕ	Home	Montage	Na	vigation	Events	HFO	Analyse	Reductio	n Window	Help	
ofo	Protocol Legacy	Protocol 🔻	of0	of o							
Edit			Run	Preview							
Setup		Tools									

From Reduction Protocol Setup it is possible to add, delete and modify reduction protocols.

Reduction	Protocol Ed	litor						-	×
Save Exit	Add Del	→ AB I↔ Text to	Text Text	Interval Event	Delete				
System			A General	Properties					
- Legacy Protoc	ol		Protocol	Name					
			Legacy	Protocol					
			Section	Start Annotation 🔞		Section End Annotation 😵			
			Part #%	#					
			Exam Da	te/Time		Exam Comment	_		
			Real		•	Original			
			✓ Com	pine Sections					
			Conditio	ns					
			Conditio	13					
			Inter 	Val Event BEFORE 00:00:00	RedF	lag		FTER :00:00	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
			Inter 	val Event <u>BEFORE</u> 00:00:00	WWW Even W	tB		ETER :00:00	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Each protocol is described with a "Protocol Name" and it is possible to define:

- How reduced exam comments are handled (protocol name, original exam comment, trigger or none comments)
- If reduced sections are combined or separated (possibility to define if trace selections will be reduced into SAME FILE composed by different segments), a "Section Start Annotation" and a "Section End Annotation". It is also possible to use the following tokens to create a unique annotations in sections:
 - %# = Section Count
 - o %sd = Section Start Date
 - o %st = Section Start Time

- o %ed = Section End Date
- %et = Section End Time

Example: "Part #%# %sd %st" = "Part #1 08/04/2021 07:39"

• How exam date/time is handled (original, real, now)

General Properties	
Protocol Name	
Legacy Protocol	
Section Start Annotation 📀	Section End Annotation (2)
Part #%#	
Exam Date/Time	Exam Comment
Real	▼ Original ▼
Combine Sections	

Each reduction protocol can be composed by one or more reduction "Conditions", that is used to detect what part of the EEG/Video should be kept:

Text to Text AB Selects data between two events with → matching Text fields	AB	Text Selects data when an event Text field matches		Interval Event Selects data from an Interval event definition type
Instant Event Selects data from an Instant event definition type	0	Periodic Selects a duration of data every interval	-	Exam Start Selects data the beginning of an exam for a duration
Exam End Selects data at the end of an exam for the duration				

a. **Text to Text**, to keep V/EEG from X seconds/minutes before a user defined "Trigger Start Text" to Y seconds/minutes after a user defined "Trigger End Text", where X and Y are defined by user and with the possibility to choose to enable or not "match case" for Trigger Texts

Text to Text				
BEFORE	TRIGGER START TEXT	TRIGGER END TEXT	AFTER	1.1.1.1
Mar Mar Mar Mar Mar Mar	Start Text	End Text	When Manus Ma	Vin
	Match Case	Match Case	00:00:00	<u> </u>
M W MM	WALLAN	h Win Was	Mar Varman	MV.
Mahmin			Martin Partition	w.v

b. **Text**, to keep V/EEG from X seconds/minutes before a user defined "Trigger Text" to Y seconds/minutes after that "Trigger Text", where X and Y are defined by user and with the possibility to choose to enable or not "match case" for Trigger Texts

Text		
	TRIGGER TEXT AFTER Text 00:30:00	
A Anna Anna Anna Anna Anna Anna Anna An	Marin Mingung Channess of	

c. **Interval Event**, to keep V/EEG from X seconds/minutes before a user selected "Event" from the list of available interval events to Y seconds/minutes after that event, where X and Y are defined by user.



d. **Instant Event,** to keep V/EEG from X seconds/minutes before a user selected "Event" from the list of available instant events to Y seconds/minutes after that event, where X and Y are defined by user.



e. **Periodic**, to keep n amount of V/EEG every n time, it is possible to define the duration of the V/EEG to keep and the interval between the segments.



f. Exam start, to keep V/EEG X minutes after beginning (where X is defined by user).

Exam Start	

g. Exam end, to keep V/EEG X minutes before end (where X is defined by user).

Exam End	
munition	www.Www.go. What have before
No. William	Martin
and the second second	에서 생긴 이 것 같아요. 이 것 이 가지 않는 가까? 지 않는 이 것 같아. 이 것 것 것 같아. 가까 것 같아. 가지 않는 것이 가지 않는 것 이 것 같아. 이 것 같아. 이 것 같아.

h. **All**, to keep the entire V/EEG exam.



Select/Unselect the cinema bar in each condition to keep or not the Video together with EEG:

Interval Eve	ent	
	Record RedFlag	
and Mar	and have been and the second of the second o	

From Reduction tab it is possible to select one of the saved protocols to visualize on the open trace a **Preview** of the reduction that can be performed and to **Run** it to start the reduction. Reduction can be even launched from File Manager interface, right clicking on an EEG exam, and selecting "Reduce". Available protocols are the ones defined in Brain Quick.

REPORT

Brain Quick software and Neurowerk software manages the creation of reports, which can be realized both during the acquisition and the review of EEG and EMG traces.

Instead, FILE MANAGER software can open, edit and delete these documents, as well as create new anamnesis.

It has a default editor, but the user can use Microsoft Word as default editor for report management. Anyway, the software has an editor that is independent from Word, in order to be used without installing Microsoft Office license.

REPORT MODELS

The model is a prebuilt document that can contain information, headers and so on. The user can modify this information such that the report model adapts to the user (doctor, lab, or hospital) needs.

The model can contain automatic fields, that is, referrals to record fields of the patient. When the report of an exam of a determined patient is created, instead of the referrals, the patient data automatically appears.

Different doctors or different type of exams can have different models for the creation of a report.

The model is a prebuilt document that can contain information, headers, etc. The user can modify this information such that the report model adapts to the user (doctor, lab, or hospital) needs.

The model can contain automatic fields, that is, referrals to record fields of the patient. When the report of an exam of a determined patient is created, instead of the referrals, the patient data automatically appears.

ANAMNESIS

In FILE MANAGER it is possible to create an anamnesis for a selected patient by clicking the **New Anamnesis** button on the ribbon bar (Home Tab).



A dialog will open allowing to choose a predefined model; if no default template has been created, an empty anamnesis document will open. Once the model is selected, the Report editor panel will appear allowing the user to enter observations and patient information. If the anamnesis template contains referrals to patient record fields, patient information is automatically filled in with the selected patient data.

When anamnesis is saved, it will appear in the list of exams for the selected patient as a separate "study".

Double clicking on anamnesis exam or file, it is possible to open and edit it directly from in the Report editor panel. Report Editor is dockable, so it can be moved and pinned to the top, bottom, left, or right of the application window, and it can be resized as desired.

Anamnesis Models

The **Models** button of the ribbon bar (Home Tab) allows the creation of new models for anamneses or the modification of an existing one; the "Models Management" dialog will open with the collection of all available templates. It is possible to edit an existing model or define a new one.



Clicking the "New" button on the toolbar the Windows "Save As" dialog will appear allowing to enter template name and save it in the Templates folder. Once saved, it is possible to select the model and open it with the Report Editor for the template definition.

Report Editor offers different tools to setup layout, style, define header and footer etc.; in addition, the Insert tab allows to add to the model referrals to some patient record fields.

		Sele	ct the template to m	anage		
Home						^
a						
New Delete						
Model						
ANA_Empty	ANA_ENG	ANA_ESP	ANA_ITA	NW_EEG_DE	NW_EEG_ENG	
					OK	Cancel

Anamnesis Models Management

Note. Anamnesis models are saved locally and are shared among all users.

HOW TO CREATE A NEW REPORT MODEL?

To create a new model or to modify an existing one, the user must select the **Report Models** button in the BrainQuick bar of the Archive window.

The **Model** window is shown, in order to let the user choose the Model file to modify or to allow the creation of the new model.

		Sel	ect the template to manag	age
Home				^
强 🗓				
New Delete				
Model				
EEG_Empty	EEG_ENG	EEG_ESP	EEG_ITA	
				OK Cancel

To create a new model, the user must click on New Button and save the document in the folder chosen.

When a new model is created, the user can insert a lot of information, for example the patient's name, the hospital, the street, the telephone number, etc. This can be done by simply typing the text and modifying its dimension, font, and position. See **Report Editor**.

REPORT EDITOR

In the report editor the creation of a report or anamnesis consists on the creation of a new document containing all the information about the patient and the exam diagnosis. For each exam, the user can assign a report.

There are various ways to assign a report:

From Review window (during exam review phase), choosing Open Report from Ribbon bar > Home tab.

If a report associated to the exam in review already exists, it will be opened to allow the user to add diagnosis information to the report.

If there are no reports related to the opened exam, a new report file will be created and opened to allow the user to type patient or diagnosis information and observations to the report.



• From the FILE MANAGER archive ribbon bar under Brain Quick tab, pressing **New Report** button when it is positioned on the visit or exam of interest.

A dialogue window appears, that asks the user to specify the type of model to be used for the report.

Report Window

TITLE BAR
RIBBON BAR
LIST RECORDING AREA
REPORT AREA
STATUSBAR

The report window appears like a text document and it is composed of:

1. The Report TITLE BAR, that contains an indication about the "type" of document ("REPORT") with First and Last Name of the patient and Date and Time of creation of the report. There will be also the possibility to enable "anonymous" function in order to hide patient name from the title bar



2. Report RIBBON BAR, containing all the toolbars placed on several tabs, grouped by functionality. The Ribbon bar uses tabs to expose different sets of controls, eliminating the need for many parallel toolbars

ort - Test A - 2023/06/21 5:00:47 PM	± Х
Home Insert Page Layout View Review Home Insert Page Layout View Review Home Review Save Quick Print Print Undo Redo Print Preview Common Info	HIS Voice ^
	1 · · · · 4 · · · · 1 · · · · 5 · · · · 1 · · · 6 · · · · 1 · · · 7 · · <u>/ · · · · 1 · · · · 7</u>
BRAIN QUICK	micromed
POLICLINICO Dipartimento Primaric	UNIVERSITARIO di Neuroscienze p: Prof. Rossi
via Giotto, 4 Venezia	Tel: +39.041.5937000 Fax: +39.041.5937011
Refe	rto EEG
Paziente: «First Name» «Last Name»	Data di Nascita: «Birthdate»
ID: «ID1»	Sesso: «Gender»
Medico Referente: «File doctor»	Data: «Exam recording date»
Indicazioni:	

The ribbon bar could be minimized, keeping only tabs titles displayed:



The user has the possibility to visualize Ribbon bar in Normal Mode or in Minimized mode.

The ribbon bar is designed to help the user to quickly find the commands that he needs to complete a task. Commands are organized in logical groups, which are called together under the tabs. Each tabs relates to a type of activity, such as writing or laying out a page.

- FILE tab contains principal commands for writing, save and print the report
- HOME tab contains Clipboard, Font, Styles, and Editing menus
- INSERT tab allows the user to add pages, tables, pictures and hyperlink to the document. From this tab there is also the possibility to add FIELDS and BLOCKS: the report can contain automatic fields that refer to record information of the patient.
 When the report of an exam related to a patient is created, instead of the FIELD, the patient data automatically appears: this information are typically patient's name, birthdate or other items.
 BLOCKS let the user insert preset blocks of text. It opens a window that asks to the user to specify the name of the block to insert. From the same menu the user can create a new block with the selected text (or add the selected text to an existing block) and eventually define a shortcut in order to automatically add a specific block to the report pressing the shortcut key
- **PAGE LAYOUT** contains Page Setup and Page Background menus and describes how each page of the document will appear when it is printed
- VIEW tab allows the user to change the view
- HIS tab allows to export PDF (only if HL7 settings is activated)
- **VOICE** tab allows to dictate in order to write in the report (present only if it's activated in settings, for more details see "Report Dictation" section).
- 3. REPORT AREA, that is the real body of the text document, where the user can type his own comment about the exam



The report will be saved in.docx format and can be open from all the computer using all the commercial .docx reader (like Microsoft Office Word or WordPad) without any compatibility problems.

When the new report is saved, it appears in the exams list associated to the EEG study; by double clicking on report file it is possible to edit report information or add notes and observations through the Report Editor.

Wo	rking Area					Pa	atien	t 01									
Gender	Patient	•	Birthdate	Last Exam Date			□ 0	R 🗋 🍘	Recording of	date	Code						
O,	Patient 01		1/1/1900	2/25/2017 5:33:3	•	œ	۲	L	2/25/2017	5:33:39 PM			*				
o"	Patient 02		7/20/1964	9/26/2006 4:05:0				_									
O'	Patient 03		7/21/2021	7/21/2021 10:16:0		eee	۲		2/25/2017	9:33:38 AM							
o"	Patient 04		6/22/1984	1/7/2021 6:44:36													
												_	•				
									4			•					
						Total e	exams:	2			* M ment Doc						
						2/2											
						R	ecordi	ng date		Comment		Doc					
						Q 2/	/25/20	17 9:33:3	88 AM				-				
						⊕ 1′	2/19/2	017 1.25	28 PM								
						8/29/2017 11:59:14 AM											
						(b) 8.	/29/20	17 11:36									

When double clicked, the editor will open the report to edit.



Report Dictation

Report Editor is integrated with **Voisis dictaphone**, a voice recognition system able to convert the speaker voice into written text which helps making reporting activity easier and immediate.

Thanks to such integration it is possible to dictate report and anamnesis content directly from the Report Editor.

Note. Dictation functionality is protected by a specific license (FMS SPEECH).

Report Editor toolbar has a dedicated **Voice** tab with a **Dictation** button; to enable dictation click with the mouse on the document position where you want to enter some text then click the **Dictation** button.



Dictation – Report Editor

Voisis EasyWriter console will automatically appear; the user currently logged in ^(*) will be used for the connection to Voisis dictaphone and the transcription will be automatically enabled.

(*) **Important Note.** In order to guarantee the access to the dictation console the username of the logged user **must** match with one of the Voisis users registered in Voisis server; for example, if currently logged in user is **micromed**, in Voisis server there must be a "micromed" user defined.

Repor	t - Paolo	Rossi - 3/	23/2023 3:21:5	57 PM							щ	×
File	Home	Insert	Page Layout	View	Review	HIS	Voice					^
Dictation			🚱 Voisis EasyW	/riter				- 0	×			
Voice			= 🤊 🖻				?	user: micromed				_
										· 7		-
	BRA	IN	QUIC	К			П	ΙΟΤΟΙ	Π	b		

Voisis EasyWriter console

In case of **anonymous** access, Voisis login dialog will appear: enter **valid** credentials, i.e username and password of a Voisis user registered in Voisis server, in order to access dictaphone console; then enable the transcription by clicking the "microphone" button on the toolbar. **Note.** Voisis users shall have username and password equal.

You can start dictate: your voice will be recognized from the Voisis dictaphone and text will automatically appear inside the report document starting from the cursor position.

Voisis EasyWriter dialog window can be kept opened: in the panel with yellow background all words and phrases recognized (automatically entered in the report document) will be displayed.

eport - Patien	t 01 - 3/2	29/2023 3:48:4	0 PM							
ile Home	Insert	Page Layout	View	Review	HIS	Voice				
	. 1	2 1	3 .		1411		. 5	1	6	
		K	NG'	S HO	DSP	ITA	Ĺ	1	I	1
	8	Voisis EasyWriter					-		×	1
_		🤊 🔤 🚍	_		6		user: micro	omed		_
8850 Long B Venice, Italy	<i>ridg</i> e Patie	nt does not have a	any chronica	l disease	-					1000 1011
			EE	G Re	epor	t				1
Patient: 01	Patient					ate of	Birth: «	Birthd	ate»	
ID: «ID1»						ex: «(Sender»			
Referring P	nysician	«Doctor»				ate:				
Indications Patient doe	s not hav	ve any chronic	al diseas	e						

Report Dictation

When you finished click again on the **Dictation** button to disable the transcription and disconnect from the dictaphone.
ADVANCED FEATURES and CONFIGURATION

USER MANAGEMENT

As illustrated in the **Access to the Software** paragraph, it is possible to protect access to **FILE MANAGER**, and other Micromed softwares, by **username** and **password** and to assign different rights to the different users.

In a typical networked environment, Micromed security framework is based on a **centralized Users database** which collects the list of users who can access FILE MANAGER (and Brain Quick software) and all roles assigned.

Micromed security framework offers the following features:

- Authentication services: users are allowed or denied accessing parts of system functionality according to the role assigned, i.e. to their permissions.
- Login management: if logon system is enabled, users can log in and out of FILE MANAGER and current logged-in user is tracked.
- Audit services: user interaction with single machine is tracked and key functions/operations are recorded in an audit log.

MICROMED SUITE

Micromed Suite is an external utility intended to support in system configuration at installation time; in particular, it allows to setup:

- Active Directory integration with the possibility to enable Active Directory user authentication and bind entire Active Directory groups to File Manager user Roles in order to keep the central Users database automatically synchronized with the linked domain users credentials (central configuration).
- Logon preferences, i.e. enabling user authentication on single workstation.
- Network Configuration, i.e. setting up the communication between the local File Manager Core service running on single workstation and the central File Manager Core service running on server (distributed system configuration only).
- Network Key Reading, i.e. enabling the read of network license key(s) (optional).
- License Key Activation via Key Updater tool.
- Configuration of other archiving features:
 - Automatic archiving procedure
 - Persyst cleaning procedure
 - Background Transfer
 - Dictation
 - Databases conversion

Note. The above configurations are advanced features that must be performed by authorized personnel only.

LOGON SYSTEM CONFIGURATION

In a networked environment, logon preferences are centralized, that is user authentication can be enabled or not, even if it is always highly recommended.

Logon preference can be setup through the Micromed Suite external application; this operation is typically performed at installation time by authorized personnel.

Note. Authorized users only can access Micromed Suite: a password is required.

From Micromed Suite users tab, click on Logon and then "Enable Logon" toggle switch to enable user authentication and click "OK" button to save preferences. If the users' database is not present, it is necessary to create it to start adding users and roles to it.

🙈 Logon Configur	ation X
Logo	en 💽
Create u	isers database
Ok	Cancel

The FILE MANAGER logon system supports both **online** and **offline** user authentication; offline user authentication is based on a local copy of the centralized Users database which is kept synchronized; only users registered in local User Database can access FILE MANAGER in off-line mode.

ACTIVE DIRECTORY INTEGRATION

In a networked environment where Active Directory groups are established, FILE MANAGER logon system can be configured to **link Active Directory groups** to FILE MANAGER Roles. This represents a great advantage since it allows to bind group membership on network domain to medical device system restrictions.

Note. Each Role can be linked to specific Active Directory group only: all domain users belonging to the group will share the same permissions.

Active Directory Configuration

The Active Directory authentication enabling and related configuration must be performed centrally on server by authorized personnel at installation time through **Micromed Suite**.

In Micromed Suite menu select the Users tab and click the **Active Directory configuration** button; the Active Directory Configuration wizard will open.

In the first configuration step, it is possible to enable Active Directory authentication ("Enable LDAP" toggle switch) and setup the LDAP (Lightweight Directory Access Protocol) server details; in particular, it is necessary to specify the LDAP Server name and the port on which to contact it. Moreover the LDAP Base DN indicating the starting point of the search should be entered.

ctive Directory Configuration	×	Active Directory Configuration	×
Active Directory Configuration		Ldap Synchronization Configuration	
LDAP server	LDAP port	60 • Time Elapsed (minutes)	
LDAP base dn		Role AD group Administrator Alimiter Control Administrator	
		Senior Doctor Junior Technician Senior Technician	
Set Default Set Authentication		Guest	
Nex	t	Back	Dk Cancel

LDAP Server details

AD Groups Linking and Synchronization

The **Get Default** button allows to retrieve the standard values of these parameters (or it is possible to specify them manually).

Alternatively, AD Authentication over SSL ("Enable LDAPS" toggle switch) allows to communicate with Domain Controller through sign a secure communication protocol.

Clicking the **Test Authentication** button it is possible to test the correctness of entered parameters by testing authentication from a username and a password known.

Once AD authentication has been enabled, clicking on the "Next" button it is possible to proceed and enable the **automatic synchronization** with one or more Active Directory groups linked to FILE MANAGER pre-defined user role.

The synchronization timeout can be set and Active Directory groups can be manually linked to available roles by entering the Active Directory group name (among the existing ones in the reference domain) in correspondence of the chosen role.

Note. FILE MANAGER roles have a default set of permissions assigned; each role, except for the Administrator one, can be customized according to specific needs.

Click "Ok" to save Active Directory configuration; it will apply to all stations belonging to the networked environment ensuring the possibility to login to FILE MANAGER using domain credentials (username and password) for all users belonging to any linked Active Directory group.

If automatic synchronization is enabled, all Windows users belonging to the linked Active Directory group are added to Users database and can access FILE MANAGER (and Brain Quick software).

Main advantage is that linked groups are kept synchronized, so if a new user is added to the group by the IT he is automatically allowed to login to FILE MANAGER; similarly, "obsolete" user removed from the group by the IT will be no more allowed to login.

USERS DATABASE CONFIGURATION

IMPORTANT NOTE. It is highly recommended that Users database configuration is performed by expert technicians only, i.e. by authorized users with a complete understanding of FILE MANAGER software architecture and the networked environment where Micromed softwares are installed.

As mentioned above, in a networked environment users are centrally administered, and all users are stored in the central Users database.

The Users database can contain both Windows users (Active Directory users) and workgroup users (non-AD), i.e. it is possible to choose whether to authenticate only with Micromed defined users (non-AD) or to authenticate using Active Directory.

Administrator user only can (directly within FILE MANAGER in a dedicated and protected area) manage the central Users database with possibility to:

- Add/modify/delete users (non-AD) to database
- Customize user Roles
- Setup the "generic" protection password used to specific operation
- Manually synchronize linked Active Directory groups

From Micromed Suite, it is possible to access the Users Database Manager area. Go to Micromed Suite users tab, click on Logon and then on "Users Database" button.

"Users Database Manager" window is composed by a toolbar and the Users Area which displays all users stored inside the Users Database, both Windows and not, grouped by role. If the role is linked to a specific Active Directory group also group name is shown between brackets.

For each user the following information is shown: full name, username (used for the authentication), and whether it is a Windows user imported from Active Directory.

The toolbar contains all buttons organized in functional groups: Users, Roles and Generic Password.



Adding a new user

Clicking the New button it is possible to create a non-AD user and assign it some "special permissions" (role).

Ist name Last name Micromed User Inthdate ID(19/2022 Ster username Confirm user username ILuser Imi_user Imi	7		×
Micromed User irthdate 10/19/2022 E Ser username Confirm user username mi_user mi_user Ser password Confirm user password User role Standard User Administrator Junior Doctor Senior Doctor Standard User Cancel	First name	Last name	
irhdate 10/19/2022 E 10/19/2022 Ser username Confirm user username mi_user mi_user Iver role Standard User Aunior Doctor Serior Doctor Aunior Tochrician Cok Cancel	Micromed	User	
Io/19/2022	Birthdate		
ser username Confirm user username ini_user ini_user confirm user password confirm user password User role Standard User Senior Doctor	10/19/2022		Ē
mi_user mi_user mi_user mi_user sassword Confirm user password	Jser username	Confirm user username	
Ser password Confirm user password User role Standard User Administrator Junior Doctor Senior Doctor Senior Doctor Senior Doctor Senior Marinician Standard User Example of the series o	mi_user	mi_user	
User role Standard User </td <td>Jser password</td> <td>Confirm user password</td> <td></td>	Jser password	Confirm user password	
User role Standard User Administrator Junior Doctor Senior Doctor Junior Technician Ok Cancel Standard User	•••••	•••••	
Junior Doctor Senior Doctor Junior Technician Ok Cancel Standard User	User role Standard User Administrator		
Anior Technician Ok Cancel Standard User	Junior Doctor		
Standard User	Junior Technician		Ok Cancel
	- Standard User		

User Database Manager - New User

In the "New user" dialog window, the following information is mandatory: first name and last name, birthdate, username and password, and user role (to be selected among the available ones).

Note. A double confirmation is required for both username and password.

To change an existing non-AD user information or the assigned role, select it and click the **Modify** button. It is also possible to delete a non-AD user, i.e. to remove it from database, by clicking the **Delete** button; once deleted the user cannot access FILE MANAGER anymore.

Note. Active Directory user management is demanded to IT department, that is domain users can only be imported with their own credentials and associated to a set of pre-defined permissions by linking the domain group to which they belong to a specific FILE MANAGER role.

Customizing Roles

To give specific permission to user or group of users, it is possible to customize one of the available Roles.

From the Roles tab, click the **Setup** button to open "Role management" dialog.

All available Roles are listed with the possibility to customize each one, except for the Administrator, i.e. to change the collection of default permissions assigned.

*		×	* ×
Roles			1
			X
Administrator	<u>A</u>		Role name Senior Doctor
			User Permissions
	0		Can Create/Modify Report
Junior Doctor	$\Delta \phi$		✓ Can Delete Report
			✓ Can Set Marker to Read
	0		✓ Can Delete files
Senior Doctor	der		✓ Can Create/Delete Patients
			Can Modify Patients
	0		Can Archive Manually
Junior Technician	de		Can Reassign Technician-Doctor Info in Exam property
			✓ Can Reduce EEG and Video Manually
			Can Acquire
Senior Technician	De		✓ Can Modify Unit Settings
			Can Modify Central Settings
			✓ Can Create/Modify/Delete/Resources
Guest	Q.		Can Reassign Exam to Patient Manually
			Can Access to External HIS Interface
			Can Export Report to HIS
			✓ Can Merge Patients Manually
		•	I Can Record Multimodal Data
			Ok Cancel

Roles

Role Permissions

Clicking the "Edit role" icon a dialog will open with the list of all user permissions available for the selected role; simply check or uncheck single to change pre-defined permissions associated to the role and click "Ok" to confirm. It is also possible to change the default name assigned to each role, except for the Administrator.

Generic Password Setup

Critical operations are furtherly protected by password, i.e. user needs to enter a "generic" protection password, to access specific FILE MANAGER functionalities or confirm specific operation.

In a networked environment, the "generic" password is shared by all stations and can be changed by authorized user only.

Clicking the **Setup** button in the Generic password group it is possible to change the default password; a double confirm is required.

Þ	Generic password	—		×
Insert ge	neric password			
•••••				
Confirm	generic password			
Show	password			
		Ok	Can	cel

Generic password Setup

SYSTEM98 SQL MANAGER

The **System98 SQL Manager** tool is a Micromed application which allows to create Micromed Patient Database that is managed and used by the FILE MANAGER.

The application is comprised of two selectable macro areas; clicking the button with the "computer" icon will allow the user to set up the Patient Database.

CREATING A PATIENT DATABASE

In System98 SQL Manager main window select the "computer" icon and choose the "**New SystemPlus Database**" option to create a new Patient Database

🔒 System98 SQL Manager 1. 2. 1 Tools	
SystemPlus Arch	nive SQL Manager
-New SystemPlus Database	
Create a new database and initial	iized it as a SystemPlus database.
SQL Server Name	User Name
AG-GIULNL\SQLEXPRESS	sa
Database Name	Paceword
EEGDbl	
	I
Database Directory The directory have to be present	in the SOL Server
D://wicromedDisk//wicromedData	i/Database/
	OK Cancel

System98 SQL Manager - New Database Creation

In the "New SystemPlus Database" dialog, enter the name of the SQL Server where you are going to create the database and the Database name.

Important Note. Do not use special characters like "?", "/", ".", "," and blank spaces into the Database Name; only use letters and the underscore character as separator.

It is also possible to specify valid credentials (username and password) if needed to access the SQL server. Finally, select the Database directory, i.e. the path where to save the database; if changing the default folder, ENSURE THAT THE FOLDER EXISTS WITHIN THE COMPUTER WHERE THE SERVER IS DEFINED. Click "OK" to confirm database creation.

IMPORTANT NOTE. THE PATIENT DATABASE NEEDS TO BE UPDATED IN ORDER TO BE USED BY THE FILE MANAGER. WHEN A RESOURCE LINKED TO THE PATIENT DATABASE IS DEFINED FILE MANAGER WILL ASK THE USER TO PROCEED WITH THE UPDATE, REMIND TO ANSWER "YES".

ADDING NEW WINDOWS USER TO SQL SERVER

To guarantee the access to Patient Database to a specific Windows user choose the "**New login**" option. In the "New Login" dialog, enter the SQL server name to which add the Windows user and the name of the Windows user to add.

i System98 SQL Manager 1. 2. 1	×
SystemPlus Archi	ive SQL Manager
Allows a Windows user account to SQL Server.	connect to the specified
SQL Server Name	User Name
AG-GIULNL\SQLEXPRESS	
Login Name mm_User	Password
	OK Cancel

System98 SQL Manager - New Login

Enter valid credentials (username and password) if needed to access the SQL server. Click "OK" to confirm the new login.

OTHER FUNCTIONALITIES AVAILABLE

From System98 SQL Manager, in the area dedicated to Patient Database there also the following options available:

- **Backup of SystemPlus Database**, to perform a backup of the selected database. The target folder for backup must exist within the computer where the server is defined.
- **Restore of SystemPlus Database**, to restore a database from the backup folder and to save it to the target folder.
- **General Information**, to obtain information about the selected server. This shows which database are defined within the server and which users have access to the server.

- **Test of SystemPlus Database**, to test the selected database. Both in case of success or failure, it is possible to view the test result in the Windows registry.
- **Delete a Database**, to delete the selected database
- Import SystemPlus database Access to SQL Server, to import data from one database to another. The fields to fill in are:
 - Name of the server to copy the database to
 - Username and password to access the database
 - Target database name
 - Folder of the target database
 - Source folder to copy the data from
- Move Database fields, to switch the database fields.

KEY UPDATER

The **Key Updater** tool is an external application used to activate and update the license keys of the FILE MANAGER and other Micromed software.

It is installed as part of the **Micromed Suite** installation and can be launched from the *Network* menu of the suite itself.



As shown in the figure below, the Key Updater main window is divided in three columns:

- the first column (on the left) shows all the keys that can be viewed in the Key Updater, their ID, their type, days left to expiration, if network keys and the related number of seats. At the bottom, there is a Key Tools panel with two buttons:
 - **Save Computer Fingerprint**, which allows to generate the fingerprint of the machine for which requiring a new license key.
 - Load Requested Licenses from V2C, which allows to activate a new license key or to update an existing key with the additional licenses required starting from the V2C file received from Micromed.
- The second column (in the middle) lists all the available licenses for the selected key, those that have already been activated ("Is Enabled" column) and those to add, in case of existing key update.
- The third column (on the right) shows the options enabled related to the sets of mutual exclusive licenses with the possibility to select those to add. At the bottom there is the **Generate C2V** button which allows to generate a key update request with the selected licenses to add.

Micromed Key Updater v3.2.0.0	_						-	\times
Kevs	Name							
	SW FILEMANAGER					Enabled	To Add	
Key	Name	Is Enabled	To Add		BRAIN OLICK	SW BRAIN OLICK (MDD)		_
Type: SOFTWARE	SW FILEMANAGER	v			Certification	Str brown quick (mbb)	None	
Expiring (days): PERPETUAL	FMS TRANSFER	~						_
Network: False Number of seats: 0	FMS AUTOARCH	~			EEG ACQ	BQS ACQ CLINIC	None	*
	FMS ACQ LIST	×			EEG REV	BOS REV CUNIC	None	
	FMS HIS SERVER	×			EEG NEV	DQ3 NEV CUIVIC	INUTIE	•
	FMS HIS CLIENT	×			EEG DV ACQ	BQS ACQ DVCL	None	
	FMS SPEECH							_
	FMS SLEEPRT				EEG DV REV	BQS REV DVCL	None	•
	FMS SCORE				111111111111111111111111111111111111111	DOC MUNICED ACO	Nees	_
	SW BRAIN QUICK			_	ANALTSEK AUQ	BUS ANALTSEK AUU	INONE	•
	SW NEUROWERK			_	ANALYSER REV	BQS ANALYSER REV	None	
	SW SLEEPRT			_				_
	E SW MOBERG			_	EMG ACQ	NWS EMG ADVANCED	None	*
					59.459		Need	_
					EPACQ	NWS EP ADVANCED	None	•
Key Tools								
Save Computer Fingerprint								_
Load Requested Licenses from V2C						Generate Ca	2V	

The Key Updater allows users to view and update all keys managed by Micromed; keys can be grouped as follows:

- Hardware keys, which are simple USB dongles.
- Local software keys, which are codes saved on the computer. These keys can only be used on the computer for which they were generated and cannot be recognized by any other computer.
- **Network software keys**, which are a special type of software keys that can be used by a predefined number of computers (workstations) simultaneously.

UPDATING KEYS

The process of updating licenses for hardware and software keys follows these steps:

- 1. If updating a hardware key, connect it to the computer. Launch the Key Updater: the key will appear on the left column in the list of available keys. If updating a software key, ensure that the computer with the software key of interest is being used.
- 2. Select the key to update in the left-hand column.
- 3. Select the licenses to add by enabling them in the "To Add" column of the license list in the middle pane and/or selecting option to add/change in the dropdown menus related to mutual exclusive licenses on the right pane.

Micromed Key Updater v3.2.0.0								- 0	\times
Keys		Name							
· · · ·		SW FILEMANAGER					Enabled	To Add	
Key	E	SW BRAIN QUICK				BRAIN OUICK	SW BRAIN OUICK (MDD)		
Type: SOFTWARE		Name	Is Enabled	To Add		Certification		None	•
Expiring (days): PERPETUAL		BQS EEG BCI		V					
Network: False Number of seats: 0		BQS EEG EVENTS	\checkmark			EEG ACQ	BQS ACQ CLINIC	None	•
		BQS EEG HFO	\checkmark			EEG REV	ROS REV CUNIC	ROS REV MULTICH	_
		BQS EXTERNAL CALL	\checkmark			EEG NEV	bes nev centre	bes nev moenen	
		BQS BACK AVERAGE	\checkmark			EEG DV ACQ	BQS ACQ DVCL	None	•
		BQS HOLTER		\checkmark				(
		BQS MAP	\checkmark			EEG DV REV	BQS REV DVCL	BQS REV DVMULTICH	-
		BQS NEURALYNX				ANALYSER ACO	POS ANIAIVEER ACO	Nees	
		BQS PERSYST	\checkmark			ANALTSER ACQ	DQS AIVALTSEN ACQ	None	•
		BQS IP MULTI	v			ANALYSER REV	BQS ANALYSER REV	None	*
	•	SW NEUROWERK							_
		3 SW SLEEPRT				EMG ACQ	NWS EMG ADVANCED	None	-
	E	3 SW MOBERG				50.400		Neze	_
						EP ACQ	NWS EP ADVANCED	None	•
Key Tools									
Save Computer Fingerprint									
Load Paguerted Licenses from V2C							Generate C2	2V	
Load Requested Licenses from V2C					*	L			

4. Click the **Generate C2V** button to generate the ".c2v" file in the defined path.

The ".c2v" file needs to be sent to Micromed, which will use it to generate the codes needed to unlock the requested licenses. These codes will be stored in a ".v2c" file that Micromed will send back to you.

In order to update the key after receiving the ".v2c" file with the code, the user needs to:

- 1. Ensure that the hardware key is connected to the computer or use the computer with the software key.
- 2. Launch the Key Updater and select the key to update in the left column.
- 3. Click the Load Requested Licenses from V2C button to load the received ".v2c" file.

When the .v2c file is successfully loaded, the updated key and the new licenses will be immediately available to the FILE MANAGER.

CREATING SOFTWARE KEYS

To create software keys, the user will need to generate the *fingerprint* for the machine where the licenses will be installed. The fingerprint is a file containing the digital print of the machine and is therefore specific to each computer.

To generate the *fingerprint*, launch the Key Updater and click the **Save Computer Fingerprint** button (in the Key Tools pane on the left) which allows to save the fingerprint in the desired folder.

A message will confirm if operation is successful.

The *fingerprint* file needs to be sent to Micromed, which will use it to generate a ".v2c" file containing the requested software key.

	Keys
Key f	
Type: SOFTWAR	RE
Expiring (days):	PERPETUAL
Network: False	Number of seats: 0
	Key Tools
Save Compt	Key Tools uter Fingerprint

Note. Since the ".v2c" file is generated using the fingerprint of the computer for which the software key was requested, it is not possible to use the same ".v2c" file for a different computer.

In order to load the received ".v2c" file, the user needs to:

- 1. Launch the Key Updater.
- 2. Click the **Load Requested Licenses from V2C** button in the Key Tools panel on the left to load the received ".v2c" file with the requested key.
- 3. After clicking "Open", the software key will be created and it will appear in the list of keys in the left column. A message will notify if operation is successful.

Keys			Name		_		Enabled	To Add	
Kow	•	• •	SW FILEMANAGER		*		Enabled	10 Add	
		•	SW BRAIN QUICK			BRAIN QUICK		None	
		12	SW NEUROWERK			Certification		Hone	_
expiring (days): PERPETUAL	0		SW MOBERG			EEG ACQ		None	
						EEG REV		None	-
						EEG DV ACQ		None	
				Succe	ss		×	None	
	Software ke	ey g	eneration succeeded! I	Please,	resta	art Key Updater to init	ialize the new	None	
	key							None	
							OK	None	
Key Tools									
Save Computer Fingerprint	í.								

The software key and related licenses will be immediately available to the FILE MANAGER.

APPENDIX

SHORTCUTS

Events Shortcuts

Previous event	CTRL + P
Next event	CTRL + N

Paging Shortcuts

BEGIN	Home
END	End
Interval Back	Page Down
Interval Forward	Page Up
Auto Back	Down Arrow
Auto Forward	Up Arrow
Page Left	Left Arrow
Page Right	Right Arrow
½ Page Left	SHIFT + Left Arrow
½ Page Right	SHIFT + Right Arrow
1 Sec Left	CTRL + Left Arrow
1 Sec Right	CTRL + Right Arrow
Increase Speed	*
Decrease Speed	/
Place/Move ruler cursor	CTRL + F
Go to time	CTRL + T

Video Shortcuts

Play/Stop Video	Space

TERMINOLOGY

Review Window

The EEG review screen is the part of the program that is used to review and analyze EEG exams. In the review section it is possible to review more than one trace at the same time and this allows the user to compare the different exams of the same patient or of different patients.

Ribbon Menu

The upper part of BRAIN QUICK SOFTWARE review and acquisition window containing the toolbars commands that allow access to all the review and acquisition functions.

Events Panel

The list of events placed in the trace opened in review and acquisition.

HFO

Filters

BRAIN QUICK SOFTWARE allows the possibility to set Low/High pass frequency from Montage Setup and directly from acquisition/review window and to apply the same filter at the same time to all the lines or it can be applied separately on the selected line.

A popup menu appears in order to let the user choose the value of the cut off frequency of the filter.

The review software is HFO compatible and contains possibility to set band filters for High Frequency Oscillation visualization allowing the possibility to filter at high frequency bands and to set "FIR" filter type, instead of the "IIR" filter type for the spike visualization



Below 2 figures are reported in order to show the same part of an EEG trace filtered at [80-250 Hz] for RIPPLE visualization using a FIR filter in the first figure and an IIR filter in the second figure. As you can see, the correct HFO visualization is available only by selecting FIR filter type:



As you can see, the typical filter commercially available (IIR Filter) does not permit the correct HFO visualization. Micromed software permits to have both filters available in Montage Setup.